
Workforce Solutions Alamo is an equal opportunity employer/program. Persons with disabilities who plan to attend this meeting and 
who may need auxiliary aids, services, or special accommodations should contact Linda Martinez at (210) 581-1093 at least two (2) 
working days prior to the meeting, so that appropriate arrangements can be made. Relay Texas: 1-800-735-2989 (TDD) or 1-800-
735-2988 (Voice).

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING
Workforce Solutions Alamo

100 N Santa Rosa Ave
San Antonio, TX 78207

January 22, 2021
1:00 PM

                                        

Agenda items may not be considered in the order they appear.

Citizens may appear before the Board to speak for or against any item on the Agenda in accordance with 
procedural rules governing meetings.  Speakers are limited to three (3) minutes on each topic (6 minutes if 
translation is needed) if they register at the beginning of meeting.  Questions relating to these rules may be directed 
to Linda G. Martinez at (210) 581-1093.

To protect the health of the public and limit the potential spread of COVID 19 as directed by Governor of Texas, 
Bexar County and City of San Antonio, WSA will hold this meeting via videoconferencing.  The meeting will be 
held in compliance with the suspended provisions of the Texas Open Meetings Act.  For those members of the 
public that would like to participate, please call toll-free 1-877-858-6860, which will provide two-way 
communications through a speaker phone.  For additional information, please call Linda G. Martinez, (210) 581-
1093.

I. Call to Order and Quorum Determination
Presenter:  Chair Leslie Cantu
Welcome New WSA Board members:
Lisa Navarro Gonzales, Vice President Santana Group
Dawn Dixon, Executive Director, ConnectAbility

 
II. Declarations of Conflict of Interest
Presenter:  Chair Leslie Cantu
 
III. Public Comment
Presenter:  Chair Leslie Cantu
 
IV. Consent Agenda: (Discussion and Possible Action)
Presenter:  Chair Leslie Cantu
a.    Special Board Meeting December 28, 2020 Minutes
b.    Parent Share of Cost Policy
c.    JBSA Priority Group 
d.    C2 Global Professional Services, LLC Adult Services Contract Renewal #1
e.    C2GPS Youth and SERCO Youth Renewal #2
 

4

1



Workforce Solutions Alamo is an equal opportunity employer/program. Persons with disabilities who plan to attend this meeting and 
who may need auxiliary aids, services, or special accommodations should contact Linda Martinez at (210) 581-1093 at least two (2) 
working days prior to the meeting, so that appropriate arrangements can be made. Relay Texas: 1-800-735-2989 (TDD) or 1-800-
735-2988 (Voice).

V. Audit and Finance (Discussion and Possible Action)
Presenter: Louis Tatum, CFO
a.    Request for Proposal Financial Monitoring Award (4-year renewal) 
b.    Request for Approval Enterprise Agreement and Equipment (Network Security
       Upgrades)

 
VI. Child Care Committee Report (Discussion and Possible Action)
Presenter: Doug Watson
a.    Request for Proposal Child Care Quality Services Award 

 
VII. Strategic (Discussion and Possible Action)
Presenter: Dr. Andrea Guerrero-Guajardo, CIO
a.    Local Plan 2021-2024

 
VIII. Oversight (Discussion and Possible Action)
Presenter:  Ricardo Ramirez, 
a.    Monitoring Timeline

 
IX. Committee of Six Chair and/or Partner Staff Report Outs / Discussion Items
Presenters: Diane Rath, Pooja Tripathi, Alex Lopez
 
X. CEO Report
Presenter:  Adrian Lopez
a.    Unemployment Claims & Responses
b.    Performance, Facilities, Financial and Regulatory Compliance, Organizational, 
Branding, Funding, Partnerships, Event highlights
c.    New Staff Introduction: Cristina Bazaldúa, Director Public & Government Relations

 
XI. Chair Report (Discussion and Possible Action)
Presenter:  Chair Leslie Cantu
a.    Board Priorities 2021
b.    Review of WSA Demographics, Attendance and Board Make-up January 2021
c.    WSA Board Attendance Policy
d.    Board Meeting Schedule for 2021
e.    2021 Committee Chairs

 
XII. Next Meeting: special Board Meeting – Febraury 19, 2021

 
XIII. Executive Session:  Pursuant to Chapter 551 of the Texas Open Meetings Act, the Board may recess 
into Executive Session for discussion on any issue for which there is an exception to the Act as set out in 

41

54

64

214

223

262

2



Workforce Solutions Alamo is an equal opportunity employer/program. Persons with disabilities who plan to attend this meeting and 
who may need auxiliary aids, services, or special accommodations should contact Linda Martinez at (210) 581-1093 at least two (2) 
working days prior to the meeting, so that appropriate arrangements can be made. Relay Texas: 1-800-735-2989 (TDD) or 1-800-
735-2988 (Voice).

section 551.071 et. seq. including, but not limited to, the following: 

a.    Government Code §551.072 – Discussions Regarding Purchase, Exchange, Lease, or Value of Real 
Property if Deliberation in an Open Meeting Would Have a Detrimental Effect on the Position of 
Workforce Solutions Alamo in Negotiations with a Third Party; 
b.    Government Code §551.071 - All Matters Where Workforce Solutions Alamo Seeks the Advice of its 
Attorney as Privileged Communications under the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct of 
the State Bar of Texas:  
c.    Pending or Contemplated Litigation; and 
d.    Government Code §551.074- Personnel Matters involving Senior Executive Staff and Employees of 
Workforce Solutions Alamo and 
e.    Government Code Section 551.089—Discussions regarding Security Devices for Audits.

 
XIV. Adjournment
Presenter:  Chair Leslie Cantu
 

3



 

 
 

Workforce Solutions Alamo 
 

SPECIAL BOARD MEETING MINUTES 

100 N. Santa Rosa, Suite 120 

San Antonio, TX  78207 

December 28, 2020 

1 P.M. 

  

WSA Board Member Attendees:  Juan Solis (Chair), Leslie Cantu (Vice Chair), Mary Batch, 

Eric Cooper, Jamie Allen, Yousef Kassim, Doug Watson, Dawn Vernon, Polo Leal, Mitchell 

Shane Denn, Dr. Sammi Morrill, Dr. Burnie Roper, Kelli Rhodes; Lindsay Dennis 

 

Partners:  Diane Rath, Pooja Tripathi, Alex Lopez, Robert Cantu, Ruben Davila 

 

WSA Counsel:  Frank Burney 

 

WSA Staff:  Adrian Lopez, Louis Tatum, Linda Martinez, Mark Milton, Dr. Andrea Guerrero-

Guajardo, LaVonia Horne-Williams, Aaron Smith, Melissa Sadler-Nitu, Ricardo Ramirez, Tony 

Martinez, Angela Bush, Vickie Reece, Manuel Ugues, Joshua Villella, Chuck Agwuegbo, Jessica 

Villarreal, Barbetta Womack, Carol Chavez, Chakib,  

 

Guests: Norman Paul, SWBC PEO, Katherine Sanchez, Alamo Academies,  Esther Metcalff, Elisa 

Skinner, Kimberly Polluck ASL Interpreter, Mandy, ASL Interpreter  

 

Citizens may appear before the Board to speak for or against any item on the Agenda in accordance 

with procedural rules governing meetings.  Speakers are limited to three (3) minutes on each topic 

(6 minutes if translation is needed) if they register at the beginning of meeting.  Questions relating 

to these rules may be directed to Linda Martinez at (210) 272-3250. 

 

To protect the health of the public and limit the potential spread of COVID 19 as directed by 

Governor of Texas, Bexar County and City of San Antonio, WSA will hold this meeting via 

videoconferencing.  The meeting will be held in compliance with the suspended provisions of 

the Texas Open Meetings Act.  For those members of the public that would like to participate, 

please call toll-free 1-877-858-6860, which will provide two-way communications through a 

speaker phone.  For additional information, please call Linda G. Martinez, (210) 272-3250.  

 

 

 

 

4



Please join WebEx meeting from your computer, tablet or smartphone.  

You can also dial in using your phone.  

United States (Toll Free): 1-415-655-0002 

https://wsalamo.webex.com/wsalamo/j.php?MTID=m7a522725c41d736f50045648e0816956  

Access Code: 146 164 8059 

New to WebEx? Get the app now and be ready when your first meeting starts:  

https://www.webex.com/ 
 

During the Public Comments portion of the meeting (Agenda Item 3), 

the Public may type their name into the chat box or unmute themselves and state their 

name. The meeting host will call each member of the public for comments, 

in the order their names were submitted. 

 

I. Call to Order and Quorum Determination 

At 1:15 p.m., Chair Solis called the meeting to order.  The roll was called, and a 

quorum was declared present.   

 

II. Declarations of Conflict of Interest 

 Presenter:  Chair Solis 

 None 

  

III. Public Comment 

 Presenter:  Chair Solis 

- Mr. Yenter Tu requested ASL interpreters to assist with his public comment.   

- Mr. Yenter Tu addressed the Board to encourage greater access and information 

for the deaf community. He asked that this request be provided to TWC. It is the 

responsibility of TWC to provide information to the public including the deaf 

community.  

- Mr. Tu asked that more advertising be done via social media and focused on the 

deaf community. Many within the deaf community may miss out on benefits and 

information. Mr. Tu explained that many in the death community are not able to 

read English and closed captioning is not an option.  

- Mr. Tu recommended providing information by sign language and getting direct 

feedback from the deaf community. He also recommended website and/or online 

access be brought up to date, for example, the use of video phone option instead 

of TTY. Also, creating advertisements, specifically for the deaf community, for 

example, an ASL interpreter signing the information on a video. 

- There needs to be a better strategy specifically for the deaf community regarding 

the TWC assessment for the benefits that is sent out every 2 weeks.  

- Mr. Solis informed Mr. Tu that the Board would ensure this information would 

be provided to the Market & Communications Committee and TWC. We have 

different programs for people with disabilities. We want to be able to assist those 

that have may have special needs.  WSA Board believes that everyone is entitled 

to contribute to our economy, giving them the opportunity to work and take 

advantage of the programs that are created, especially for them. 

- Mr. Solis also stated his appreciation to Mr. Tu taking time and providing his 

feedback and concerns and making the Board aware of something that they may 

5

https://wsalamo.webex.com/wsalamo/j.php?MTID=m7a522725c41d736f50045648e0816956
https://www.webex.com/


have overlooked.  

- Mr. Adrian Lopez, CEO and Mr. Mark Milton stated they would also reach out 

to Mr. Tu.  

 

IV. Briefing on Alamo Academies   

 Presenter: Katherine Sanchez-Rocha, Executive Director 

- Ms. Sanchez-Rocha requested more interaction between WSA and Alamo 

Academies. She reviewed the objectives and outreach of Alamo in a new 

transition.   

- Ms. Sanchez-Rocha stated 1745 certificates were earned between 2014-2020. 

- Alamo Academies is focusing on expanding and improvement plans to include 

several key areas in funding and partnerships. We're extending the outreach of 

instructional providers to the students; so, they understand the various options 

available to them.  

- These are the four pillars that will reconnect with the industry needs: 

o Expand instructional providers 

o Diversified & robust funding 

o Curriculum overhaul to enhance experiential learning & internships 

o Industry-driven to Industry led 

- Ms. Sanchez-Rocha presentation showed the multiple provides & pathways for 

student success partnerships with UTSA, Hallmark, Trinity University, and 

others 

- Ms.  Sanchez-Rocha also requested WSA partnership with funding grants. 

- Board Member Ms. Jamie Allen asked if there was Board diversity of Alamo 

Academies? I don't see any representation to the African American community.  

Is there a plan to expand that area of San Antonio and/or Bexar County? 

- Ms. Sanchez-Rocha said yes, we have opened our board so that it is composed of 

a diverse group of partners. 

- Board Member Mary Batch asked what is the biggest challenge you see making 

this change?  

- Ms. Sanchez-Rocha stated that funding may be the biggest challenge.  

- Mr. Solis stated this would go to the Regular Board for consideration.  

 

V. Consent Agenda:   

 Presenter:  Chair Solis 

Upon motion by Director Cantu and second by Director Watson, the Board 

unanimously approved the following: 

a. Minutes from Dec. 4, 2020 meeting 

b. 2021 Board meeting dates 

c. Dream Proposal allocation of funds to service providers 

 

VI. Procurement: 

 Presenter:  LaVonia Horne-Williams 

a. Month-to-month lease for Floresville, Texas Service Center. Ms. Rath requested that 

the County Judge be made aware of lease proposals.  

Upon motion by Director Cooper and second by VC Cantu, the lease extension 

6



was unanimously approved.  

b. Cleaning contracts for all service centers.  This request is for a renewal of the current 

contract.   

-Upon motion by Director Dr. Roper and second by Director Batch, the contract 

with M & R Elite Janitorial Solutions was unanimously extended for one (1) year.   

c. Professional Employer Organization (PEO) RFP and contract. The recommendation 

from staff and review committee is to execute a contract with SWBC for PEO contract. 

- VC Cantu asked what specific services would be covered in the PEO. In previous 

meetings, the discussion of possible payroll challenges was raised.   

PEO Services are:  

 - Payroll 

-  Online Services 

- Human Resources 

- Worker Compensation 

-Upon motion from Director Allen and second by VC Cantu, a contract with 

SWBC was unanimously approved subject to negotiation of final contract.  

d. Update on Child Care Quality contracts. Two organizations responded to this 

proposal.  Recommendations will be brought to Board at next meeting.   

 

VII. Child Care Committee Report 

Presenter:  Jessica Villarreal, Child Care Services Director & Doug Watson, Child Care 

Committee Chair 

a. Briefing on Child Care Services maximum reimbursement rates  

Upon motion by Director Allen and second by Director Dr. Roper, the increase in 

reimbursement rates was unanimously ratified by the Board effective September 

2020, with Director Watson recusing. 

b. Texas Rising Star Discounts 

- Director Watson briefed the Board on the increase by TWC of reimbursement rates.  

- Director Watson briefed the Board on TRS program with approximate financial 

budgetary impact of $150,000 over FY.   

- Ms. Solis asked who would be responsible for informing parents of this discount? 

- Board Member Doug Watson said he presumed it would be the COSA, at the time 

parents are registering for CCS.  

- Board Member Jamie Allen asked that a follow-up on the advertisement be provided 

to ensure parents are made aware of this discount.   

- Upon motion by Director Vernon and second by Director Cantu, the TRS 

discounts was unanimously approved, with request to have a future report on 

outreach to providers, with Director Watson recusing.  

 

VIII. Local Plan 

 Presentar: Dr. Andrea Guerrero Guajardo, CIO 

- Dr. Guerrero-Guajardo reported on revised Local Plan and the schedule for 

public meetings. Local Plan should align with TWC strategic goals.  Internal team 

is getting input from local elected officials. Deadline to TWC by March 1, 2021. 

 

IX. CEO Report: 

7



 Presenter:  Adrian Lopez 

- CEO Lopez provided an update on work session with new officers of the Board 

and goals by CEO for CY 2021, including a Board report, ROI for programs, and 

other outreach.  

- Mr. Lopez stated the work session with the new board officers would take place 

the 1st of 2021.  

- Mr. Lopez reported that Executive Team had a work session with the contractors, 

and they were able to lay out their goals from programmatic, data and fiscal 

standpoints. This would align both the contractor and Board goals. The work 

session allowed the contractors to receive feedback in relation to their requests. 

One of the larger topics was closer monitoring of the resetting of business services 

unit overseen by C2Global and SERCO.  

- Mr. Lopez also informed the Board of the systematic changes that would take 

place with the contractors, for example., more regularly scheduled meetings with 

regarding fiscal matters. This will allow us to forecast any issues and making 

appropriate adjustments as needed.  

- Mr. Lopez informed the Board that he has outlined to the new Chairwoman his 

goals for fiscal year 2021 and this includes the completion of the Local Plan and 

the development and release of WSA’s first annual report.  

- Mr. Lopez also asked the Board Members consider being chairs or industry 

champions as WSA develops the sector-based model Dr. Guajardo has presented.  

 

X. Chair Report:   

 Presenter: Chair Solis 

a. Human Resources Committee recommendations for CEO contract:  HR Committee 

compiled all input from the Board for CEO evaluation. Chair Solis recommended a 

one-year extension of Mr. Lopez’s contract and 5% increase in salary effective Oct.1, 

2020.  

Upon motion by Director Cooper and second by Director Morrill, the contract 

with the CEO was unanimously extended for one (1) year and his salary increased 

by 5% effective October 1, 2020 (the beginning of FY 2020-21)  

b. WSA participation in San Antonio “Ready to Work” initiative. 

- Task Force created & will first/second week in January.  

 

XI. Next Meeting:  January 22, 2021 

 

XII. Executive Session:  Pursuant to Chapter 551 of the Texas Open Meetings Act, the 

Board may recess into Executive Session for discussion on any issue for which there 

is an exception to the Act as set out in section 551.071 et. seq. including, but not limited 

to, the following:  

 

a. Government Code §551.072 – Discussions Regarding Purchase, Exchange, Lease, 

or Value of Real Property if Deliberation in an Open Meeting Would Have a 

Detrimental Effect on the Position of Workforce Solutions Alamo in Negotiations 

with a Third Party;  

b. Government Code §551.071 - All Matters Where Workforce Solutions Alamo 

8



Seeks the Advice of its Attorney as Privileged Communications under the Texas 

Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct of the State Bar of Texas:   

c. Pending or Contemplated Litigation; and  

d. Government Code §551.074- Personnel Matters involving Senior Executive Staff 

and Employees of Workforce Solutions Alamo; and 

e. Government Code Sections 551.089 – Discussions regarding Security Devices for 

Audits. 

 

The Board adjourned into Executive Session at 1:54 p.m. and returned to Open 

Session at 2:29 p.m.  No action was taken in Executive Session. 

 

XIII. Adjournment 

Presenter:  Chair Solis 

 

 There being no further business, a motion was made by Director Vernon and second 

by Director Batch that the meeting adjourn.  The motion carried unanimously.  The 

meeting adjourned at 2:33 p.m. 

 

 

Enclosures 

- Certificate of Executive Session 

 

 
N:\CORP\FBB\WSA\MINUTES\Board\Board Mins 12 4 2020.docx 

9



 

 

CERTIFIED AGENDA OF CLOSED MEETING 

 

 Workforce Solutions SPECIAL BOARD MEETING 

 

 

 

I, CHAIRMAN JUAN F. SOLIS, III, THE PRESIDING OFFICER OF THE WORKFORCE 

SOLUTIONS ALAMO BOARD, CERTIFY THAT THIS DOCUMENT ACCURATELY 

REFLECTS ALL SUBJECTS CONSIDERED IN AN EXECUTIVE SESSION OF THE 

COMMITTEE CONDUCTED ON ___DEC 28, 2020__ AT ___ PM. 

 

1. The Executive Session began with the following announcement by the presiding 

officer:  “The WSA BOARD is now in Executive Session on _Dec 28, 2020, 

______ at __P.M. pursuant to exceptions under Government Code 551.”  

 

2. SUBJECT MATTER OF EACH DELIBERATION: 

 

a. Government Code §551.072 – Discussions Regarding Purchase, Exchange, 

Lease, or Value of Real Property if Deliberation in an Open Meeting 

Would Have a Detrimental Effect on the Position of Workforce Solutions 

Alamo in Negotiations with a Third Party;  

b. Government Code §551.071 - All Matters Where Workforce Solutions 

Alamo Seeks the Advice of its Attorney as Privileged Communications 

under the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct of the State 

Bar of Texas:   

c. Pending or Contemplated Litigation; and  

d. Government Code §551.074- Personnel Matters involving Senior 

Executive Staff and Employees of Workforce Solutions Alamo.   

 

 3. No further action was taken. 

 

4. The Executive Session ended with the following announcement by the presiding 

officer:   "This Executive Session ended on _DEC 28, 2020,  at ____ _P.M." 

 

 

 

________________________________ 

MR. JUAN F. SOLIS, III, Chair 

 

 

 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 0828869A-7B1B-4F4D-9182-95E91621784E

2:29

1:54

12/29/2020

1:54

10



 

 

 

 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 

To:    Workforce Solutions Alamo Board    

 

From:    Adrian Lopez, WSA CEO 

 

Presented by:  Mark Milton, WSA COO 

 

Date:    January 22, 2021 

 

Subject: Parent Share of Cost Policy 

 

 

Summary:   

Child Care Services (CCS) parents must pay a parent share of cost (PSOC) based on income, 

family size, and the number of children in care.   

 

On December 28, 2020 the Board approved PSOC discounts for parents choosing a Texas Rising 

Star (TRS) provider.  WSA updated child care policy CC 12, C2 Parent Share of Cost to include 

the TRS discount. On 1.11.2021, WSA received approval from Child Care Committee for uppddtt 

to Child Care Policy CC12, C2 Parent Share of Cost. WSA is requesting Consent for the updated 

policy.   

 

Analysis:   

CCS 12, C2 Parent Share of Cost was updated to include the TRS discount.  The policy change 

authorizes a discount on the assigned PSOC when a parent chooses a TRS provider.   

 

TWC has the following requirements associated with the TRS discount: 

• The parent continues to receive the discount if the TRS provider loses certification 

• The parent continues to receive the discount if the parent moves or changes 

employment and there are no TRS providers to meet the needs of the parent’s changing 

circumstances.   

 

WSA consulted with Tarrant County, another large workforce board that implemented the TRS 

discount for best practices.  The City of San Antonio (COSA) will develop procedures to ensure 

eligible families receive the discount and the PSOC automation is accurate.   

 

Alternatives:   

There are no alternatives because CCS 12, C2 Parent Share of Cost must be updated to reflect 

the changes for TRS discounts.   

 

Fiscal Impact:   

11



 

 

WSA fiscal staff developed the 12-month budget estimates below for TRS discounts on PSOC.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

Discount Duration Cost 

10% 12 months $148,814 

 

Recommendation:   

Board staff is requesting Consent of CCS 12, C2 Parent Share of Cost.  The policy is attached 

for review and approval.   

 

Next Steps:   

COSA will implement procedure changes to ensure compliance with TWC requirements and 

Board policy.   

 

Attachment: 

CCS 12, C2 Parent Share of Cost  

12



Parent Share of Cost Policy

January 22, 2021

13



Summary

• 12/28 Board approved TRS discount on Parent Share of Cost 

• Updated CCS 12, C2 Parent Share of Cost Policy 

• Consulted with Tarrant County Board on best practices

• Contractors will implement procedure changes

• 01/11/2021 CCS 12, C2 Parent Share of Cost Policy Received 

Child Care Committee approval

• Requesting Consent for updated policy

14



Questions?

15



 

 

 

 

 

POLICY LETTER  
 

ID NO: CCS 12, C2                             DATE ISSUED: January 22, 2021 

 

TO:  Workforce Solutions Alamo CCS Contractor 

      

FROM: Adrian Lopez, CEO 

        

SUBJECT: Parent Share of Cost 

 

 

 

PURPOSE: 

 

To adopt changes to the current CCS 12 policy as it relates to provider reimbursement of parent 

share of cost.   

 

REFERENCE(S): 

 

Texas Workforce Commission (TWC) Child Care Rules, Sections 809.2, 809.13, 809.19, 809.45, 

809.47, 809.49, 809.51, 809.52, 809.54.  

 

BACKGROUND: 

 

Texas Workforce Commission (TWC) Rules, Section 809.13, requires Boards to develop policies 

for the design and management of the delivery of child care services in a public process.  Rules 

require Boards to have a policy related to assessment of parent share of cost including the 

reimbursement of providers when a parent fails to pay the parent share of cost.    

 

POLICY: 

   

Parent share of cost (PSOC) will be an amount determined by the sliding fee scale based on the 

family’s size, gross monthly income, and number of children in care.  If the PSOC, based on family 

income and family size, is calculated to be zero, the Board or its child care Contractor shall not 

charge the parent a minimum shard of cost amount.  PSOC is due before child care services are 

delivered.   

 

Teen PSOC is based solely on the teen parent’s income and size of the teen’s family as defined in 

809.2, unless they are covered under an exemption listed below. 

 

16



PSOC will be assessed to all parents except in the following exemptions: 

• Parents who are participating in Choices or who are in Choices child care described in 

809.45 

• Parents who are participating in SNAP E&T or who are in SNAP E&T described in 809.47 

• Parents of a child experiencing homelessness described in 809.52 

• Parents who are children who are receiving protective services child care under 809.49 and 

809.54, unless DFPS assesses the parent share of cost 

If the parent is not covered by an exemption listed above, then the Board or its child care 

Contractors shall not waive the assess PSOC under any circumstances. 

 

PSOC will only be assessed at the following times: 

• Initial eligibility determination 

• 12-month eligibility redetermination  

• Upon the addition of a child in care 

• Upon a parent’s report of income, family size, or number of children in care that would 

result in a reduced parent share of cost assessment 

• Upon resumption of work, job training, or education activities following temporary 

changes described in 809.51(a)(2) and upon resumption of work, job training or education 

activities during the three-month continuation of care period described in 809.51(c)  

Parents that choose to enroll in a TRS provider will receive a 10% discount on their assigned 

PSOC  The parent continues to receive the discount if the TRS providers loses TRS 

certification, or the parent moves or changes employment and there are no TRS-certified 

providers available to meet the needs of the parent’s changing circumstances.  The parent 

will no longer receive the discount if they voluntarily transfer from a TRS-certified provider 

to a non-TRS certified provider.   

 

Contractor staff must develop procedures to ensure eligible families receive the discount and 

automation adjustments are made as needed.   

 

PSOC shall not increase above the amount assessed at initial eligibility redetermination or at the 

12-month eligibility redetermination except upon the addition of a child in care.   

 

The Board or its child care Contractor may review the assesses PSOC for a possible temporary 

reduction if there are extenuating circumstances that jeopardize a family’s self-sufficiency.  The 

Board or its Child Care Contractor may temporarily reduce the assessed PSOC if warranted by 

these circumstances.  Following the temporary reduction, the PSOC amount immediately prior to 

the reduction shall be reinstated.  Requests for reductions must be received by the Board’s 

Contractor as specified in Contractor’s procedures.   

 

Parents may request a reduction in their PSOC two (2) times in a 12-month period due to 

extenuating circumstances that jeopardize a family’s self-sufficiency.  The limit to PSOC 

reductions does not apply when a parent reports a change in income, family size, or number of 

17



children in care that would result in a reduced PSOC.  Additional reductions over the two (2) 

allowed will be granted by WSA on a case-by-case basis.   

 

The child care provider is responsible for collecting all PSOC before services are delivered and 

report instances in which the parent fails to pay the PSOC.  WSA will not reimburse providers 

when parents fail to pay the PSOC.  

 

If a parent is terminated for nonpayment of the PSOC, the parent must pay the amount owed to the 

provider before the family can be redetermined eligible for future child care services.  Prior to 

terminating child care for nonpayment of PSOC, the Contractor must evaluate and document the 

family’s financial situation for extenuating circumstances that may affect affordability of the 

assessed PSOC.  For every PSOC termination, the child care Contractor will document on a 

running list the family size, income, and family circumstances as data for future analysis of 

affordability.  

 

When frequent terminations occur, WSA will reexamine its sliding fee scale and adjust it to ensure 

that fees are not a barrier to assistance for families at certain income levels.  The definition of 

frequent procedures will be developed in WSA Contractor procedures.  When evaluating 

affordability, the general criteria will be a PSOC of less than 8 percent of the total family income 

for the first child.   

 

ACTION REQUIRED: 

 

Contractor shall implement this policy immediately.  

 

EFFECTIVE DATE: 

 

Immediately.   

 

INQUIRIES: 

 

Please direct all comments and inquiries pertaining to this policy to policyinquiry@wsalamo.org.  

 

RESCISSIONS: 

 

CCS 12, C1 

 

ATTACHMENT: 

 

None 

18

mailto:policyinquiry@wsalamo.org


 

 

 

 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 

To:    Workforce Solutions Alamo Board    

 

From:    Adrian Lopez, WSA CEO 

 

Presented by:  Mark Milton, WSA COO 

 

Date:    January 22, 2021 

 

Subject: Joint Base San Antonio (JBSA) Priority Group 

 

 

Summary:   

Boards have the flexibility of adding local priority groups for child care assistance based on local 

needs.  The City of San Antonio is home to one of the largest concentrations of military bases in 

the United States of America.  Therefore, there is high demand for child care services at JBSA 

locations.     

WSA is requesting approval to address the need for Child Care at JBSA locations.  On Jan.11, 

2021, received committee approval to add this group to the local priority list (Priority Group III), 

and approval on the Child Care policy, CCS 11, C3 Maintenance of Waiting List & Board Priority 

Groups. These 2 items are now being presented with a request for consent to move 

forward in implementation. 

Analysis:   

JBSA is one of the largest employers in San Antonio.  JBSA is comprised of three primary 

locations: Sam Houston, Lackland, and Randolph.  There are currently seven child development 

centers at these JBSA locations with a max capacity of 1,131 slots.  Due to high demand for 

child care services, these child development centers have a waitlist of 891 children; and an 

average wait time of 6-12 months.   

 

Making JBSA military members, civilians, and associated contractors at JBSA a local priority 

would allow WSA to support one of the largest employers in San Antonio.  This change would 

make subsidized child care more accessible to these families and support our economy.   

 

Children are enrolled based on priority level when intake is open.  TWC Commissioners 

determine the first and second-tier priorities.  WSA only has flexibility on the third-tier priority.  

Below is a summary of TWC and Board child care priorities.  

 

The first priority group is assured child care services and includes children of parents eligible for 

the following:  

19



 

 

• Choices child care as referenced in D-300  

 

 

 

 

 

• Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF) Applicant child care as referenced in D400  

• Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program Employment and Training (SNAP E&T) child care 

as referenced in D-500  

• At-Risk child care for former Choices child care recipients whose TANF benefits were denied 

or voluntarily ended within the last 12 months due to employment, timing out of benefits, or an 

earnings increase 

 

The second priority group is served subject to the availability of funds and includes, in the 

following order of priority:  

1. Children who need to receive protective services child care as referenced in D-700 

2. Children of a qualified veteran or qualified spouse as defined in §801.23  

3. Children of a foster youth as defined in §801.23  

4. Children experiencing homelessness as defined in A-100 and described in D-600  

5. Children of parents on military deployment as defined in A-100 whose parents are unable to 

enroll in military-funded child care assistance programs  

6. Children of teen parents as defined in A-100  

7. Children with disabilities as defined in A-100 

 

The third priority group includes priorities adopted by the Board.  The order of local priority 

groups will be in the following order of priority, if approved: 

1. Rural siblings of a child already receiving care 

2. Rural WIOA participants 

3. Rural children on the waitlist when the Rural enrollment percentage is less than 20% of total 

enrollments.  

4. Bexar county Siblings of a child already receiving care 

5. Bexar county WIOA Participants 

6. Families enrolled in Early Head Start Child Care Partnerships  

7. JBSA military members, civilians, and associated contractors 

Alternatives:   

• Outlined population will continue to be placed on military wait lists to await potential 

opportunities for Child Care on JBSA respective military bases. 

• COSA can implement additional outreach opportunities to ensure that military families 

are made aware of CCS options. No priority will be given, families will be placed on 

waitlist according to their application. 

 

Fiscal Impact:   

There will be no fiscal impact.   

 

 

 

20



 

 

 

 

 

 

Recommendation:  WSA staff recommends approval of placing JBSA military members, 

civilians, and associated contractors of JBSA to Priority Group III and additionally requests 

approval of update to CCS 11 Ch 3 Maintenance of a Waiting List and Board Priority Groups 

policy, reflecting this change.  

 

 

 

 

Next Steps:   

Upon Board consent, WSA will proceed with the implementation of the Child Care policy CCS 

11, C3 Maintenance of Waiting List and Board Priority Groups. 

 

 

 

 

Attachment: 

None.   

21



Joint Base San Antonio (JBSA)/CCS

January 22, 2021

22



Summary

• SA one of the largest concentrations of military bases in USA

• There is a shortage of Child Care slots at JBSA locations

• Boards have flexibility to add local priorities based on need of 

community

• Requesting Consent to add JBSA priority group & Consent for 

the corresponding update to Priority policy CCS 11 Ch 3 

Maintenance of a Waiting list and Board Priority Groups

23



JBSA Child Care Shortage

• 7 Child Development centers available for JBSA

• Max capacity 1,131

• Current waitlist for military personnel, civilians & military 

contractors: 891 children

• Avg est. wait for care: 6-12 months

• Delay of access to Child Care

24



First Priority Group

• Choices Child Care as referenced in D-300 

• Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF) Applicant 
Child Care as referenced in D400 

• Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program Employment and 
Training (SNAP E&T) Child Care as referenced in D-500 

• At-Risk Child Care for former Choices Child Care recipients 
whose TANF benefits were denied or voluntarily ended within 
the last 12 months due to employment, timing out of benefits, 
or an earnings increase

25



Second Priority Group 

1. Children who need to receive protective services Child Care 

2. Children of a qualified veteran or qualified spouse 

3. Children of a foster youth 

4. Children experiencing homelessness 

5. Children of parents on military deployment as defined in A-100 
whose parents are unable to enroll in military-funded Child Care 
assistance programs 

6. Children of teen parents

7. Children with disabilities

26



Third Priority Group (Board Approved)

1. Rural siblings of a child already receiving care

2. Rural WIOA participants

3. Rural children on the waitlist when the Rural enrollment 
percentage is less than 20% of total enrollments. 

4. Bexar county Siblings of a child already receiving care

5. Bexar county WIOA Participants

6. Families enrolled in Early Head Start Child Care Partnerships 

7. JBSA military (DOD) members, military (DOD)civilians, 
and (DOD) contractors.

27



Requesting Consent

• To add: Military, Military Civilian & Military Contractors to Priority 
Group III. 
• DoD civilian employees are those paid from either appropriated funds 

(APF) or non-appropriated fund (NAF). Eligible employees of DoD 
Contractors identified as DoD cardholders, not repairmen, painters, 
gardeners, etc. Priority order: military members would have the highest 
priority, followed by DoD civilians, and last is DoD contractors.

• On Update to: Local Priority Policy: CCS 11 Ch 3

• To support military community & families, and local economy.

• To provide an additional opportunity for Child Care.

28



Questions?

29



 

1 
 

 

 

 

POLICY LETTER 

ID NO: CCS 11, C3                 DATE ISSUED: 1/22/2021 

TO:   Workforce Solutions Alamo CCS Contractor 

FROM:  Adrian Lopez, CEO 

SUBJECT:      Maintenance of Waiting List & Board Priority Groups 
  

 

PURPOSE: 

To adopt changes to current the CCS 11 policy as it relates to Board priority groups.    

 

REFERENCES: 

Texas Workforce Commission (TWC) Rules, Sections 809.13, 809.18, 809.43  

BACKGROUND: 

Texas Workforce Commission (TWC) Rules, Section 809.13, requires Boards to develop 

policies for the design and management of the delivery of child care services in a public process.  

Rules require Boards to have a policy related to the maintenance of a waiting list and Board 

priority groups.  

 

POLICY: 

Parents who are potentially eligible for child care services will be wait-listed for 90 days by                                                                                                                                                             

entering the family information into Texas Workforce Information System of Texas (TWIST) 

during the pre-screening process. The following criteria will be reviewed during pre-screening 

process: 

• family income and family size meet eligibility requirements; 

• children needing child care are age-eligible; 

• children needing child care are U.S. citizens or have legal immigration status; 

• parent(s) is working or enrolled in an educational or training program; 

• parent(s) meets minimum hour requirement for a 1 or 2 parent household; and 

• family resides in Workforce Solution Alamo’s Board region.   

 

Parents must contact Contractor prior to their purge date (90 days from initial pre-screening date) 

to update their eligibly information and ensure they still meet the basic eligibility requirements.  

 

30



 

2 
 

 

 

Local Priority Groups 

• Children in Rural Counties will be a local priority until at least 20% of children receiving 

Discretionary funded subsidized child care do so from the Rural Counties.  When all 

TWC priority groups have been served, customers from Rural Counties will have priority 

until the percentage of Rural children in Discretionary care has been met.   

• WIOA participants and siblings of a child already receiving care shall be deemed a local 

priority group for child care.   

• Families enrolled in Early Head Start Child Care Partnerships shall be deemed a local 

priority. 

• JBSA military members, civilians, and associated Contractors. 

The order of local priority groups will be as follows: 

1. Rural siblings of a child already receiving care 

2. Rural WIOA participants 

3. Rural children on the waitlist when the Rural enrollment percentage is less than 20% of 

total enrollments.  

4. Bexar county Siblings of a child already receiving care 

5. Bexar county WIOA Participants 

6. Families enrolled in Early Head Start Child Care Partnerships  

7. JBSA military members, civilians, and associated Contractors.   

Rural Counties include all Alamo local workforce development area counties except Bexar 

County. 

ACTION REQUIRED: 

Contractor shall implement this policy immediately.  

 

EFFECTIVE DATE: 

Immediately.  

 

INQUIRIES: 

Please direct all comments and inquires pertaining to this policy to policyinquiry@wsalamo.org. 

 

RESCISSIONS: 

CCS 11, Change 2 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

None 

 

31

mailto:policyinquiry@wsalamo.org


 

 

 

 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 

To:    Board of Directors    

 

From:    Adrian Lopez, WSA CEO 

 

Presented by:  Adrian Lopez, WSA CEO 

 

Date:    January 22, 2021 

 

Subject: Discussion and Possible Action Contract Renewal of C2 Global 

Professional Services Adult and American Job Center Services  

 

 

Summary:  This consent agenda item was approved by the Executive Committee on August 

10, 2020.  C2 GPS’s Adult and American Job Services contract, 2021C2A2003, was initiated 

10/01/2019 with three one-year renewal options.   

 

For your review and action is the option to renew the contract for the upcoming 10/01/2020 – 

09/30/2021 term, which is the first of three one-year renewal options in the procurement cycle of 

this contract.  The contract will have two additional one-year terms remaining. 

 

Analysis:   

Fiscal Integrity.  Passed Fiscal Integrity review.   

Overall Performance.  Met compliance with deliverables outlined in the contract 

including having adequate operating and management systems to effectively provide 

services in 13-County region; maintained adequate staffing to provide services; has 

actively participated in the collaboration and development of local partnerships. 

Key Elements.  Met and, or, Exceeded all TWC-contracted and local performance 

measures; maintained fiscal integrity; has shown improvements to meet expenditure 

benchmarks tied to the provision of direct services; has adhered to quality assurance 

and compliance requirements in accordance to local, state, and federal regulations with 

no questioned costs and demonstrated improvements in areas needing improvements; 

displays professionalism at all levels. 

Innovation.  

• Implemented new mobile technology, gained expertise and equipment capacity 

for on and off-site services for customers. 

• Increased flexibility in delivery of services along with expansion in access to 

services to larger audiences than those traditionally mandated.    

• Virtual orientations offered at flexible times in both English and Spanish. 

• Staff has been cross-trained and prepared to triage customers for safe 

participation. 

32



 

 

• Adapted Center operations and structure of traditional funding – cross-trained 

staff to incorporate additional fluidity and adaptability to execute projects by 

escalating or de-escalating resources as needed. 

• Developed virtual job fairs, large and small. 

• Focusing on outreaching customers to support target demand industry.  

Challenges.  

• Additional strategies, documentation, and coordination with partners/community 

providers, including reporting of efforts and outcomes. 

• Changes in leadership increase risk which are expected to be reduced as 

leadership gains experience/knowledge. 

• Having more of a rural focus in investments and efforts. 

• Expanding/strengthening engagement with business community and industry.  

• Improved management of multi-grant/special initiatives for increased planning 

and responsiveness. 

• Decrease in funding. 

• Continue adjusting to pandemic environment and maintaining safety of staff and 

customers. 

 

Fiscal Impact:   

 

Contractor 
Renewal 

Cycle 
2020 

Budget 

2021 
Estimated 

Budget 
Difference 

% 
Change 

C2 GPS 3 of 3 $14,042,039 $12,535,871 -$1,506,168 -12.01% 

 

Staff Recommendation:  Approve Fiscal Integrity Review as presented and renew C2 GPS 

contract for the period of 10/1/2020 – 09/30/2021. 

 

Alternatives:  Prepare and open solicitation for the Adult and American Job Center Services. 

 

Next Steps:  If approved, initiate negotiations with C2 GPS and prepare Statement of Work 

(SOW), Profit Matrix, Participant Planning Summaries (PPSs), budget, and contract. 

 

Attachments:  Fiscal Integrity Review.  

 

  

33



Contract Period:  10/1/20-9/30/21

Fiscal Integrity Review Date: 7/14/20

Prepared by:  Christine H. Nguyen, CPA

Purpose:

Criteria:

Procedures:

TWC FMGC 

Reference

Results 

(Yes / No / 

NA)

Source Documents Reviewed Comments

I. Fiscal Integrity Review

A. Desk Review Procedures

1. Does the workforce service providers have the capacity or 

have program regulations to comply with the following 

requirements:

(A)  Federal and state statutes and regulations and directives 

of the Texas Workforce Commission.

yes Prior Financial Monitoring 

reviews; Accounting Policies 

and Procedures, 2018 Audit 

reports.

(B) Any other safeguards a Board has identified that are 

designed to ensure the proper and effective use of funds 

placed under the control of its workforce service providers.

yes Prior Financial Monitoring 

reviews; Accounting Policies 

and Procedures, 2018 Audit 

reports.

2.  Review workforce service provider’s prior three-year 

financial history before the Board awards or renews a 

workforce service contract.

No Prior Financial Monitoring 

reports; 2018 Audit reports

C2GPS' 2019 audit report 

has not been completed-

Due date was 6/30/20.  

Expected to complete by 

the end of July 2020; and 

current financial 

statements.

3. Does workforce contractor have any adverse judgments or 

findings, such as administrative audit findings; Commission, 

Agency, or Board monitor findings; or sanctions by a Board or 

court of law?

No Prior Financial Monitoring 

reports;  2018 Audit reports

4. Does workforce contractor have provisions such as 

accounting for program income in accordance with federal 

regulations? 

yes Prior Financial Monitoring 

reports.

5.  Does workforce contractor have non-federal/state resources 

for  repayment of disallowed costs in a timely manner?

yes Prior Financial Monitoring 

reports; Tax Report.

6.  Does workforce contractor systems provide safeguarding of 

fixed assets and provide adequate internal controls for cash 

management, financial reporting, procurement, and cost 

allocation?

yes Prior Financial Monitoring 

reports; Accounting Policies and 

Procedures; Cost Allocation 

Plan.

7.  Does workforce contractor has adequate fidelity bonding, 

general liability, property, worker's compensation, and error 

and omission insurance coverage to protect workforce funds?

no Certificate of Insurance. Pending evidence of 

worker's compensation.

B. Conclusion

1.  Based on the above procedures, did the workforce 

contractor complies with the fiscal integrity requirements to 

administer workforce services

Yes Pending 2019 audit report,  

and current financial 

statement.

Certifying Signature Date

Workforce Board Area: Workforce Solutions Alamo

Contractor Name: C2GPS

Funding Source: Workforce Services

We have reviewed and concurred with the external financial monitor's recommendation.

To satisfy performance of the fiscal integrity evaluation of the contract that is being 

considered for renewal, or for a new contract to comply with the 40 TAC §802.21.

Financial Manual for Grants and Contracts:  Chapter 14.18; TAC §802.21 requires Boards to 

perform fiscal integrity evaluations of workforce service providers.

Chapter 14.18

34



 

 

 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 

To:    Board of Directors   

 

From:    Adrian Lopez, WSA CEO 

 

Presented by:  Adrian Lopez, WSA CEO 

 

Date:    January 22, 2021 

 

Subject: Discussion and Possible Action C2 Global Professional Services 

Youth Urban Contract Renewal 

 

 

Summary:  This consent agenda item was approved by the Executive Committee on August 

10, 2020.  C2 GPS’s Youth Urban Services contract, 2021C2Y2003, was initiated 10/01/2018 

with three one-year renewal options.  The Board elected to renew the contract for one term 

10/01/2019-09/30/2020.   

 

For your review and action is the option to renew the contract for the upcoming 10/01/2020 – 

09/30/2021 term, which is the second of three one-year renewal options in the procurement 

cycle of this contract.  The contract will have one additional one-year term remaining. 

 

Analysis:   

Fiscal Integrity.  Passed Fiscal Integrity Review. 

Overall Performance.  Met compliance with deliverables outlined in the contract 

including having adequate operating and management systems to effectively provide 

services in Bexar County; maintained adequate staffing to provide services; actively 

participated in the collaboration and development of local partnerships.  Notably, C2 has 

increased and strengthened partnering throughout the community, including COSA, Next 

Level, Youthbuild, and others. 

Key Elements.  Met and, or, Exceeded all TWC-contracted and local performance 

measures; maintained fiscal integrity; has shown improvements to meet expenditure 

benchmarks tied to the provision of direct services; has adhered to quality assurance 

and compliance requirements in accordance to local, state, and federal regulations; 

displays professionalism at all levels. 

Innovation.  

• Refocused efforts to outreach in-school and out-of-school youth during COVID-

19 pandemic. 

• Partners with whom WSA previously did not partner with have opened their doors 

to both groups of youth customers. 

• Developed virtual services, including orientations, workshops, and job fairs.   

35



• Youth team prepared to guide youth through online target demand training or 

online long-term post-secondary pursuits.   

• Focused on expanding the youth footprint by f orging new partnerships while 

fostering existing partnerships that have common interest in serving youth 

workforce development.  

Challenges.  

• Turnover in staff and changes in management. 

• Significant decrease in funding. 

• Continue adjusting to pandemic environment and maintaining safety of staff and 

customers. 

 

Fiscal Impact:   

 

Contractor 
Renewal 

Cycle 
2020 

Budget 

2021 
Estimated 

Budget 
Difference 

% 
Change 

C2 GPS 2 of 3 $3,095,080 $1,388.911 -$1,706,089 -55.1% 

 

Staff Recommendation:  Approve Fiscal Integrity Review as presented and renew C2 GPS 

contract for the period of 10/1/2020 – 09/30/2021. 

 

Alternatives:  Prepare and open solicitation for the Youth Urban Services. 

 

Next Steps:  If approved, initiate negotiations with C2 GPS and prepare Statement of Work 

(SOW), Profit Matrix, Participant Planning Summaries (PPSs), budgets, and contract.   

 

Attachments:  Fiscal Integrity Review.  

 

36



Contract Period:  10/1/20-9/30/21

Fiscal Integrity Review Date: 7/14/20

Prepared by:  Christine H. Nguyen, CPA

Purpose:

Criteria:

Procedures:

TWC FMGC 

Reference

Results 

(Yes / No / 

NA)

Source Documents Reviewed Comments

I. Fiscal Integrity Review

A. Desk Review Procedures

1. Does the workforce service providers have the capacity or 

have program regulations to comply with the following 

requirements:

(A)  Federal and state statutes and regulations and directives 

of the Texas Workforce Commission.

yes Prior Financial Monitoring 

reviews; Accounting Policies 

and Procedures, 2018 Audit 

reports.

(B) Any other safeguards a Board has identified that are 

designed to ensure the proper and effective use of funds 

placed under the control of its workforce service providers.

yes Prior Financial Monitoring 

reviews; Accounting Policies 

and Procedures, 2018 Audit 

reports.

2.  Review workforce service provider’s prior three-year 

financial history before the Board awards or renews a 

workforce service contract.

No Prior Financial Monitoring 

reports; 2018 Audit reports

C2GPS' 2019 audit report 

has not been completed-

Due date was 6/30/20.  

Expected to complete by 

the end of July 2020; and 

current financial 

statements.

3. Does workforce contractor have any adverse judgments or 

findings, such as administrative audit findings; Commission, 

Agency, or Board monitor findings; or sanctions by a Board or 

court of law?

No Prior Financial Monitoring 

reports;  2018 Audit reports

4. Does workforce contractor have provisions such as 

accounting for program income in accordance with federal 

regulations? 

yes Prior Financial Monitoring 

reports.

5.  Does workforce contractor have non-federal/state resources 

for  repayment of disallowed costs in a timely manner?

yes Prior Financial Monitoring 

reports; Tax Report.

6.  Does workforce contractor systems provide safeguarding of 

fixed assets and provide adequate internal controls for cash 

management, financial reporting, procurement, and cost 

allocation?

yes Prior Financial Monitoring 

reports; Accounting Policies and 

Procedures; Cost Allocation 

Plan.

7.  Does workforce contractor has adequate fidelity bonding, 

general liability, property, worker's compensation, and error 

and omission insurance coverage to protect workforce funds?

no Certificate of Insurance. Pending evidence of 

worker's compensation.

B. Conclusion

1.  Based on the above procedures, did the workforce 

contractor complies with the fiscal integrity requirements to 

administer workforce services

Yes Pending 2019 audit report,  

and current financial 

statement.

Certifying Signature Date

Workforce Board Area: Workforce Solutions Alamo

Contractor Name: C2GPS

Funding Source: Workforce Services

We have reviewed and concurred with the external financial monitor's recommendation.

To satisfy performance of the fiscal integrity evaluation of the contract that is being 

considered for renewal, or for a new contract to comply with the 40 TAC §802.21.

Financial Manual for Grants and Contracts:  Chapter 14.18; TAC §802.21 requires Boards to 

perform fiscal integrity evaluations of workforce service providers.

Chapter 14.18

37



 

 

 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 

To:    Board of Directors   

 

From:    Adrian Lopez, WSA CEO 

 

Presented by:  Adrian Lopez, WSA CEO 

 

Date:    January 22, 2021 

 

Subject: Discussion and Possible Action SERCO Youth Rural Contract 

Renewal 

 

 

Summary:  This consent agenda item was approved by the Executive Committee on August 

10, 2020.  SERCO’s Youth Rural Services contract, 2021SERCO003, was initiated 10/01/2018 

with three one-year renewal options.  The Board elected to renew the contract for one term 

10/01/2019-09/30/2020.   

 

For your review and action is the option to renew the contract for the upcoming 10/01/2020 – 

09/30/2021 term, which is the second of three one-year renewal options in the procurement 

cycle of this contract.  The contract will have one additional one-year term remaining. 

 

Analysis:   

Fiscal Integrity.  Passed Fiscal Integrity review.   

Overall Performance.  Met compliance with deliverables outlined in the contract 

including having adequate operating and management systems to effectively provide 

services in the 12 rural counties; maintained adequate staffing to provide services; 

actively participated in the collaboration and development of local partnerships.  Has 

effectively transformed services for youth in the rural areas, particularly in counties 

where services had been dormant. 

Key Elements.  Met and, or, Exceeded all TWC-contracted and local performance 

measures; maintained fiscal integrity; has shown improvements to meet expenditure 

benchmarks tied to the provision of direct services; has adhered to quality assurance 

and compliance requirements in accordance to local, state, and federal regulations 

including no questioned costs and minimal findings; displays professionalism at all 

levels.  

Innovation.  

• Successfully delivered an innovative and customer responsive business model 

for rural area youth. 

• Adaptive responsiveness to COVID-19 through utilization of virtual and remote 

customer engagement practices. 

38



• Implemented virtual orientations, enrollments, information processing, job fairs, 

including adjustments in traditional service hours/schedules. 

• Redeployed operational funds toward client investments for greater community 

impact. 

• Developed and implemented forecasting tools for performance achievement and 

fund expenditures management. 

• Solidified employee training and development courses, including virtual and 

online training. 

• Customized customer work experience partnerships with established firms such 

as Caterpillar in Seguin – implementing a model aligned with business/employer 

needs for incubation of future workers. 

• Expanded partnerships such as SA Food Bank, including work experience 

services to address COVID-19 unprecedented challenges. 

Challenges.  

• Improve ways in which we highlight participant outcomes and successes coming 

from work with partners. 

• Significant decrease in funding. 

• Continue adjusting to pandemic environment and maintaining safety of staff and 

customers.  

 

Fiscal Impact:   

 

Contractor 
Renewal 

Cycle 
2020 

Budget 

2021 
Estimated 

Budget 
Difference 

% 
Change 

C2 GPS 2 of 3 $1,546,752 $1,047,928 -$498,824 -32.2% 

 

 

Staff Recommendation:  Approve Fiscal Integrity Review as presented and renew SERCO’s 

Youth Rural Services contract for the period of 10/1/2020 – 09/30/2021. 

 

Alternatives:  Prepare and open solicitation for the Youth Rural Services. 

 

Next Steps:  If approved, initiate negotiations with SERCO and prepare Statement of Work 

(SOW), Profit Matrix, Participant Planning Summaries (PPSs), budget, and contract.   

 

Attachments:  Fiscal Integrity Review.  

 

39



Contract Period:  10/1/20-9/30/21

Fiscal Integrity Review Date: 7/15/20

Prepared by:  Christine H. Nguyen, CPA

Purpose:

Criteria:

Procedures:

TWC FMGC 

Reference

Results 

(Yes / No / 

NA)

Source Documents 

Reviewed
Comments

I. Fiscal Integrity Review

A. Desk Review Procedures

1. Does the workforce service providers have the capacity or 

have program regulations to comply with the following 

requirements:

(A)  Federal and state statutes and regulations and directives of 

the Texas Workforce Commission.

yes Prior Financial Monitoring 

reviews; Accounting Policies 

and Procedures, Audit reports.

(B) Any other safeguards a Board has identified that are 

designed to ensure the proper and effective use of funds placed 

under the control of its workforce service providers.

yes Prior Financial Monitoring 

reviews; Accounting Policies 

and Procedures, Audit reports.

2.  Review workforce service provider’s prior three-year 

financial history before the Board awards or renews a 

workforce service contract.

yes Prior Financial Monitoring 

reports; Audit reports

Pending review of current financial 

statements.

3. Does workforce contractor have any adverse judgments or 

findings, such as administrative audit findings; Commission, 

Agency, or Board monitor findings; or sanctions by a Board or 

court of law?

No Prior Financial Monitoring 

reports; Audit reports

4. Does workforce contractor have provisions such as 

accounting for program income in accordance with federal 

regulations? 

yes Prior Financial Monitoring 

reports; Recoupment

5.  Does workforce contractor have non-federal/state resources 

for  repayment of disallowed costs in a timely manner?

yes Prior Financial Monitoring 

reports; Audit reports

6.  Does workforce contractor systems provide safeguarding of 

fixed assets and provide adequate internal controls for cash 

management, financial reporting, procurement, and cost 

allocation?

yes Prior Financial Monitoring 

reports; Accounting Policies 

and Procedures; Cost 

Allocation Plan.

7.  Does workforce contractor has adequate fidelity bonding, 

general liability, property, worker's compensation, and error 

and omission insurance coverage to protect workforce funds?

no Certificate of Insurance. Pending evidence of worker's compensation 

coverage.

B. Conclusion

1.  Based on the above procedures, did the workforce 

contractor complies with the fiscal integrity requirements to 

administer workforce services

yes Except for evidence of worker's 

compensation insurance coverage, and 

current financial statements.

Certifying Signature Date

Workforce Board Area: Workforce Solutions Alamo

Contractor Name: SERCO of Texas

Funding Source:  WIOA - Youth

We have reviewed and concurred with the external financial monitor's recommendation.

To satisfy performance of the fiscal integrity evaluation of the contract that is being considered for renewal, or 

for a new contract to comply with the 40 TAC §802.21.

Financial Manual for Grants and Contracts:  Chapter 14.18; TAC §802.21 requires Boards to perform fiscal 

integrity evaluations of workforce service providers.

Chapter 14.18

40



 

 

 

MEMORANDUM 

 

To: Board of Directors 

 

From: Louis Tatum, CFO 

 

Presented by: Louis Tatum, CFO 

 

Date: January 22,2021  

 

Subject: Fiscal Monitoring – Procurement of New Contract 

 

 

SUMMARY:   

 

The 4th and final renewal of WSA’s Fiscal Monitoring Services contract with Christine Nguyen 

expired September 30th and which was extended through 11/30/2020 for a total cost of 

$132,288.13.  To that purpose, WSA issued a Request for Qualifications (RFQ) for Fiscal 

Monitoring Services.  Requested services include providing comprehensive financial monitoring 

reviews and fiscal integrity reviews to ensure that: 

• Intended program resources are expended on allowable activities, 

• Resources are efficiently and effectively used for authorized purposes and are protected 

from waste, fraud, and abuse, 

• Reliable and timely financial information is captured and reported, and 

• Applicable laws, rules, regulations, policies and contract terms and conditions are adhered 

to. 

 

WSA received responses from two bidders.  The responses were evaluated internally by WSA 

Staff.  A summary of scores and a recommendation for the selection of a single contract is provided 

below for your consideration. 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  

 

Discussion and Possible Action to negotiate a contract with Christine H. Nguyen, CPA, to provide 

Fiscal Monitoring Services.  The duration of the contract shall be for a period of one year from the 

date of execution of the agreement which the Board may opt to extend for up to four (4) one (1) 

year extensions based upon WSA needs and the availability of funds.  In no event shall the total 

term of the contract exceed five (5) years.    

 

41



Proposals were required to achieve an overall score of at least 70 points to be considered for 

selection and contract award.  The maximum points available was 105. 

 

Bidder 
Evaluator 

1 

Evaluator 

2 

Evaluator 

3 

Total 

Score 

Avg. 

Score 

Christine H. Nguyen, CPA 100 102 102 304 101.3 

Level 4 Ventures, Inc. 65 53 63 181 60.3 

 

FINANCIAL IMPACT:  The estimated annual budget is $127,105.00 – however, WSA will 

retain an additional 10% for contingency for an estimate total of $139,815.50. 

 

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE:  To ensure contractors comply with WSA’s contractual obligations 

under its contract with the Texas Workforce Commission (TWC) and the U.S. Department of 

Labor (DOL) as it pertains to fiscal goals, processes, functions, and responsibilities. 

 

ATTACHMENTS:  None 

 

42



Fiscal Monitoring Services RFQ
Louis Tatum, CFO

January 22, 2021

43



Summary
This item serves to provide a recommendation for selection of 
single contract for Fiscal Monitoring Services.

44



Overview

1. The 4th and final renewal of WSA’s Fiscal Monitoring 
Services contract expired 09/30/2020 (was extended 
through 11/30/2020) – with a total cost of $132,288.13.

2. To that purpose, WSA issued an RFQ for Fiscal Monitoring 
Services.

3. Services include providing comprehensive financial 
monitoring and fiscal integrity reviews.

45



RFQ Results

• WSA received responses from two bidders.

• The responses were evaluated internally by WSA 

staff.

• A summary of scores and recommendation are 

provided. 

• A minimum overall score of at least 70 points 

were required to be considered for selection.

• A maximum of 105 points were available.

Bidder
Evaluator 

1

Evaluator 

2

Evaluator 

3

Total 

Score

Avg.

Score

Christine H. Nguyen, 

CPA
100 102 102 304 101.3

Level 4 Ventures, Inc. 65 53 63 181 60.3

46



Staff Recommendation

• Staff recommend approval to negotiate a 

contract with Christine H. Nguyen, CPA to 

provide Fiscal Monitoring Services.

• The duration of the contract shall be for a 

period of one (1) year from the date of 

execution.  The Board may opt to extend for 

up to four (4) one (1) year extensions. In no 

event shall the total term exceed five (5) 

years.

• Financial Impact: $127,105 plus 10% for 

contingency not to exceed $139,815.50.
47



Questions?

48



 

 

 

MEMORANDUM 

 

To: Board of Directors 

 

From: Louis Tatum, CFO 

 

Presented by: Louis Tatum, CFO 

 

Regarding: Enterprise Agreement & Equipment: Network upgrade supporting IT Security 

 

 

SUMMARY:  Texas Workforce Commission has approved the board to purchase $56,407.57 for 

equipment necessary to upgrade the network as detailed on the boards in the disaster recovery plan. The 

board obtained two quotes for this purchase before Cisco informed the resellers that we had already 

received quotes from our chosen vendor and, additional quotes for a Cisco product could not be obtained. 

Cisco the sole manufacturer and reseller of the hardware.  

WSA is requesting an Enterprise Security Solution which requires Cisco Firepower Management Center 

1600 Chassis ($13,965.81) and related software. The update will additionally require two Cisco Storage 

Server base Chassis ($22,874.50) and two Cisco one row of drives ($19,567.26) and related software to 

upgrade WSA’s Backup and Disaster recovery systems.  

ENTERPRISE SECURITY SOLUTIONS: Enterprise Security Solutions is estimated to have a total cost 

of $537,189.45 including licensing and subscriptions from 2021-2024 as illustrated below.  

Equipment  

Cisco Firepower Management Center 1600 Chassis    $13,965.81 

Software and Licensing  

Enterprise Agreement Licensing (3-Year Agreement) $434,150.34 

Cisco Firepower Mgmt. Center 1600 (3-Year Agreement)       7,773.30 

Services:  

Implementation and Consulting Services     $81,300.00 

 

Subscriptions and Licensing utilized in Enterprise Security Solutions include the following:  

• Cisco AMP for Endpoints (Anti-Malware) 

• Cisco AnyConnect Apex licenses (VPN Client, Network Access Manager, etc.) 

• Cisco Cloud Email Security (Anti-Spam, Anti-Phishing, Anti-Malware, Email Encryption, Data 

Loss Prevention) 

• Cisco Identity Services Engine (Network Access Control) 

49



• Cisco Firepower (Intrusion Prevention System, Anti-Malware for Firewalls) 

• Cisco Stealth watch (Network Traffic Analysis, Monitor East/West Network Traffic) 

• Cisco Umbrella (URL/Content Filtering, DNS Layer Security for hosts on and off-network 

(mobile/roaming clients) 

• Cisco DUO (Multi-Factor Authentication) 

 

An Enterprise Security Solution will allow the board to have a fully functioning cybersecurity solution as 

required by regulatory bodies. This upgrade will protect the network through a cohesive suite of services 

that mitigate threats before they enter the WSA environment.  

 

BACK UP AND DISASTER RECOVERY SOLUTION: The backup and Disaster Recovery Solution is 

estimated to have a total cost of $138,012.78 including supporting hardware, subscriptions, and installation 

services.  

 

Equipment  

Two Cisco Storage Server base Chassis   $22,874.50 

Two Cisco one row of drives       19,567.26 

Supporting Hardware (unit cost under $5,000)   55,097.90 

Software and Licensing 

Licensing       $13,910.00   

Premium Maintenance (3-Year Agreement)      7,658.00 

Supporting  Subscriptions (3-Year Agreements)      7,520.12 

Services:  

Implementation and Consulting Services    $11,385.00 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Discussion and Possible Action to approve the Enterprise Security 

Solution and Backup/Disaster Recovery proposal as provided by Barcom. 

 

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE:  To provide enhancements and security upgrades to the network. 
 

  

50



Bryan Daniel, Chairman 
Commissioner Representing 
the Public 
 
Julian Alvarez 
Commissioner Representing 
Labor 
 
Aaron Demerson 
Commissioner Representing 
Employers 
 
Edward Serna 
Executive Director 
 

101 E. 15th Street • Austin, Texas 78778-0001 • (512) 463-2222 • Relay Texas: 800-735-2989 (TDD) 800-735-2988 (Voice) • www.texasworkforce.org 
Equal Opportunity Employer / Program 

Auxiliary aids and services are available upon request to individuals with disabilities 

December 14, 2020 

Via Email  
Email: alopez@wsalamo.org 

Mr. Adrian Lopez 
Chief Executive Officer 
Alamo Workforce Development Board 
  dba Workforce Solutions Alamo 
100 North Santa Rosa Street, Suite 120 
San Antonio, Texas 78207 

RE: Purchase Review Letter #20-21-G-01 

Dear Mr. Lopez: 

We have received and reviewed the enclosed/attached Form 7100, Request for Purchase Review, for the 
Alamo Workforce Development Board (Board). The request is for fifty-six thousand four hundred and 
seven dollars and fifty-seven cents ($56,407.57) to purchase two (2) Cisco UCSS S3260 storage base 
chassis, two (2) Cisco UCS C3X60 one row of drives containing 14 x 4TB, and one (1) Cisco Firepower 
Management Center 1600 chassis. This equipment is needed to upgrade security measures and support the 
Board’s disaster recovery plan for its network system. 

The Board is authorized to proceed with this procurement based on its assurance that it will:  
• comply with the requirements of Chapters 13 and 14 of the Texas Workforce Commission Financial 

Manual for Grants and Contracts (FMGC) dated April 1, 2014; 
• ensure that appropriate cost categories are charged; 
• ensure that appropriate procurement records are: 
 maintained as described in FMGC Chapters 13 and 14; 
 accessible to workforce monitors and State Auditor’s Office staff; and 

• use the procurement as specified in the request. 

No later than 30 days after final acquisition of the property, you must submit Form 7200, Notification of 
Property Acquisition, to the Board’s assigned contract manager. If this procurement is not completed by 
March 14, 2021, the request must be resubmitted for approval. 

If you have questions, please contact your assigned contract manager, Jill Bent, at  
(512) 936-3842 or jill.bent@twc.state.tx.us.  

Sincerely, 

Travis Weaver, Manager 
Workforce Board Grants 

Enclosure/Attachment 
  

DocuSign Envelope ID: E24A3868-AFC4-43A9-9CF1-655C6F8685C8
DEMONSTRATION DOCUMENT ONLY
PROVIDED BY DOCUSIGN ONLINE SIGNING SERVICE
999 3rd Ave, Suite 1700  • Seattle • Washington 98104 • (206) 219-0200
www.docusign.com

December 14, 2020

51

mailto:jill.bent@twc.state.tx.us


Page 1 of 2 
 

Form 7100     03/01/2013 

 

Texas Workforce Commission 
Member of the Texas Workforce Network 

 Request for Purchase Review 

Complete and submit Form 7100 to the designated Texas Workforce Commission contract manager to request 

prior approval for the acquisition of real property or equipment, and for other costs requiring concurrence 

approval from the Texas Workforce Commission. Unless otherwise defined by the Texas Workforce 

Commission, real property and equipment have the meanings in the Texas Workforce Commission’s Financial 

Manual for Grants and Contracts. 

Contact Information 

Workforce Solutions Alamo Adrian Lopez 

Contractor Name Preparer Name 

100 N Santa Rosa, Suite 120 Chief Executive Officer 

Address Title   

San Antonio, Texas 78207 210-272-3250 

City State Zip Code Telephone Number 

Proposed Purchase 

(Attach Additional Pages If Necessary) 

Item UAC Quantity Total Cost 

CISCO UCS S3260 STORAGE SERVER BASE CHASSIS       2 $22,874.50 

CISCO UCS C3X60 ONE ROW OF DRIVES 14 X 4T       2 $19,567.26 

CISCO FIREPOWER MANAGEMENT CENTER 1600 

CHASSIS 

      1 $13,965.81 

       

TOTAL: $56,407.57 

Method of Procurement  

 Small Purchase 

 Formal Advertising 

 Competitive Negotiation 

 Noncompetitive  

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7A428E65-AF67-4C10-9DE9-46C4AC0B2EBEDocuSign Envelope ID: E24A3868-AFC4-43A9-9CF1-655C6F8685C8
DEMONSTRATION DOCUMENT ONLY
PROVIDED BY DOCUSIGN ONLINE SIGNING SERVICE
999 3rd Ave, Suite 1700  • Seattle • Washington 98104 • (206) 219-0200
www.docusign.com

52



Page 2 of 2 

Allocation of Charges 

 

WIA 

Admin Program 

2.30% 21.00% 

CHILD CARE 1.00%  19.00% 

ES 1.20% 11.75% 

SNAP E&T .50% 4.25% 

TANF/CHOICES 1.5%  12.75% 

OTHER  
 See breakout below. 

 2.5 % 22.25% 

Property Description and Use 

The request is for $56,407.57 to purchase two (2) Cisco UCS S3260 storage server base chassis, two (2) Cisco 

UCS C3X60 one row of drives, Cisco Firepower Management Center 1600 chassis. They are needed to 

upgrade security measures and support our disaster recovery plan for WSA’s network system. Purchasing 

under DIR contract #4167.  
. 

Certification 
 

        

Authorized Representative/Title  Date 

 Completed forms, inquiries, or corrections to the individual information contained in this form shall be sent to designated Texas 

Workforce Commission contract manager.  Please call your contract manager if you have questions.  An individual may receive and 

review information that TWC collects regarding that individual by sending an e-mail to open.records@twc.state.tx.us or writing to 

TWC Open Records Unit, 101 East 15th Street, Room 264, Austin, Texas 78778-0001. 

Workforce Solution Alamo will allocate the cost of the equipment consistent with the methodology outline in the agency 
wide cost allocation plan. After evaluating the usage of the equipment, we have determined that most fair and equitable 
basis for allocating this cost is FTE.  
Workforce Solutions Alamo will allocate the cost based on FTE at the time of the purchase. The 7100 was based on 
estimates at the time we prepared the 7100.   The staffing level might change at the point of purchase, but we are 
confident that these allocations will not materially change.  

 

Funding Stream Program Allocation  Administrative Allocation  

NCP 1.00% .25% 

REA 2.00% .5% 

Veteran 5.25% .25% 

City  7.00% .75% 

County  7.00% .75% 

Total  22.25% 2.5% 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7A428E65-AF67-4C10-9DE9-46C4AC0B2EBE

12/11/2020

DocuSign Envelope ID: E24A3868-AFC4-43A9-9CF1-655C6F8685C8
DEMONSTRATION DOCUMENT ONLY
PROVIDED BY DOCUSIGN ONLINE SIGNING SERVICE
999 3rd Ave, Suite 1700  • Seattle • Washington 98104 • (206) 219-0200
www.docusign.com

53

mailto:open.records@twc.state.tx.us


 

 

 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 
To:    Board of Directors    
 
From:    Louis Tatum, WSA CFO 
 
Presented by:  Louis Tatum, CFO 
 
Date:    January 22, 2021  
 
Subject:   Childcare Quality Services Recommendation for Award 
 
 
Summary:  Workforce Solutions Alamo (WSA) issues Request for Qualifications (RFQ), 
Request for Proposals (RFP), and Request for Quotes (RFQ) to acquire services and 
goods. Procurements are conducted in a manner that provides for full, open, and free 
competition. The procurement of all goods and services for WSA is governed by the 
requirements and specifications outlined in the Texas Workforce Commission (TWC) 
Financial Manual for Grants and Contracts, Chapter 14, Office of Management and 
Budget’s “Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit 
Requirements for Federal Awards” (Uniform Guidance (UG)) which is codified at Title 2, 
Part 200 of the Code of Federal Regulations (2 CFR part 200) and the Uniform Grant 
Management Standards (UGMS), Part III, Chapter 783 Texas Government Code. 
 
Analysis:  As an entity supported by public funds, WSA has a legal obligation to spend 
public funds wisely and prudently, to act in the public interest, to be transparent in its 
actions, and be accountable to the public.  
 
WSA issued a Request for Proposal (RFP) to obtain Childcare Quality Services on 
November 13, 2020. WSA held a Pre-Proposal meeting on November 19, 2020, and 
accepted written questions through November 23, 2020. The submission deadline for 
proposals was December 15, 2020. WSA received two (2) proposals and both were 
deemed responsive and moved forward to be evaluated. After the tabulation of evaluator 
scores, the two proposals were ranked and a recommendation is being made to award 
the contract to the highest-ranked Proposer, the City of San Antonio with an overall score 
of 90 points out of 100. 
 
Fiscal Impact:  The implication of awarding the Child Care Quality contract to one 
provider will result in a reduction of overall administrative cost.  
 

54



 

 

Next Steps: Concurrence of the Childcare Committee and move the recommendation for 
award forward to the Board for approval. Once approved by the board, beginning the 
process of negotiations and execution of a contract. 
 
Attachment:  Strength and Weakness Proposal Analysis  

55



Strength Weakness

Organization 

Capacity Max 

25 Points

Child Care program implement since 1991. 

Partnership Programs with Childcare providers. 

Detailed information on proposed plan. Has 

fully developed program to include financial 

analyst, audit, investigations, and technology 

requirements, etc.

Lack of inclusion of surrounding 

counties in program. Has potential of 

local political pressures intervening into 

program.

Performance 

Max 25 Points

The proposed described the organization's 

successful performance in managed 

comprehensive services that provide services to 

quality program. Key personnel assigned to the 

engagement demonstrated history and success 

in projectwith very similar scope of work.  

Listed top personnel and provided details, has 

personnel in place and experienced 

Usage of percentage amounts. If you go 

from 5 to 6 centers, that is a 20% 

increase but is it sufficient to meet the 

needs?

Operation 

Plan Max 20 

Points

The proposer describes in detail their 

understanding of the programs and servies to 

be offered.  The proposer describes several of 

the enhancements to services for the target 

population.

Most services and partnerships are in 

San Antonio and may not be as willing 

to expand to other counties that can’t 

provide a benefit to the partner’s 

interests.

Transition 

Plan 15 points

The proposer provided a detailed transition 

plan which includes the current grantee 

leadership team, along with time lines.

Budget Max 

15 Points

The proposer provided a budget narrative 

which outlines cost allocation, Indirect, no 

profit, 

NO in kind matching funds  Some 

expenses incurred because of city 

requirements. May or may not assist 

with employee hiring/retention

City of San Antonio

56



Strength Weakness

Organization 

Capacity Max 

25 Points

Comprehensive Project. Regional Public- 

Privaget Partnership. Detialed information on 

proposed plan of actiong for structuring 

program.  ESC-20 has experience in working 

with multiple areas and regions. Good 

experience in fiscal and reporting requirements

Unclear years of duration of each 

project.  If awared , it appears that this 

grant will be-managed by two different 

entities. Coordination between the two 

organizations is not discussed

Performance 

Max 25 Points

Four project were listed for each entity 

applying for the grant.  Has worked with various 

entities for other projects and have worked 

with each other in a previous project. Have met 

requirements for other contracts and has the 

institutional knowledge to deal with larger 

projects and required documentation for 

performance

The time frame for each project 

unclear. Key personnel who will be 

assigned to the project was provided 

within another section of the RFP, 

however unclear of they demonstrated 

history and success with projects similar 

size, scope and budget. Lacks detail in 

achieving performance goals of other 

contracts

Not as much details in execution of 

other contracts and meeting the goals.

Operation 

Plan Max 20 

Points

The proposer describes in detal their 

understanding of the program and services to 

be offered. The proposer describes several of 

the enhancementsto services for the target 

population  Each organization understands its 

own role in the process and each brings 

different and unique strengths to the table.

Lacks a detailed technology section

Transition 

Plan 15 points

The proposer provided a transition plan which 

includes the current grantee leadership team 

with a multilevel communication plan

May be too ambitious to meet February 

2021 date. Would prefer to see X 

number of days or a timeline so the 

Budget Max 

15 Points

The proposer has provided a budget narrative 

which outlines Competiitive indirect costs, 

overhaed cost, no inentivie charged. No Profit 

charge

Cost allocation methodology vague or 

not included. No in-kind matching funds 

identified  Indirect costs not detailed or 

explained.

Education Service Region 20

57



Procurement Department
Contracts and Procurement

January 22, 2021

58



Childcare 
Quality 

Services RFP

59



Childcare Quality (CCQ) Services

Request for Proposal (RFP) Timeline 

Date of Issuance:  November 13, 2020, 4:00 p.m. (CST)

Pre-Proposal Meeting: November 19, 2020, 2:30 pm (CST) 

Written Questions due by: November 23, 2020, 4:00 p.m. (CST)

Submission Deadline: December 15, 2020 5:00 p.m. (CST)

Evaluation: December 28, 2020 - January 04, 2021

Recommendation for Award: January 07, 2021

Full Board Recommendation for Award: January 22, 2021

60



Criteria for Evaluation

Organizational Capacity - 25 points

Performance – 25 points

Operational Plan – 20 points

Transition Plan – 15 points

Budget – 15 points

HUB Certification – 5 points (bonus)

Total points w/bonus: 105

Childcare Quality (CCQ) Services

61



• Recommendation 

• Two proposal received.

• Award City of San Antonio with highest score.

• Scored 90 points out of 100.

Childcare Quality (CCQ) Services

 

Organization 

Capacity Max 

25 Points

Performance 

Max 25 Points

Operation 

Plan Max 20 

Points

Transition 

Plan Max 

15 points

Budget Max 

15 Points
Total

Proposer 25 25 20 15 15 100

ESC Region 20 21.5 18.5 19 13.5 10.5 83

City of SA 22.5 23 18 13 13.5 90

62



Questions?

63



 

 

 

 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 

To:    Board of Directors    

 

From:    Adrian Lopez, WSA CEO 

 

Presented by:  Andrea Guerrero, Guajardo, PhD, MPH 

 

Date:    January 22, 2021  

 

Subject:   Local Plan Update 

 

 

Summary:  This item is to provide an update on the proposed timeline for the creation of the 

2021-2024 Local Plan in accordance with TWC requirement for each Workforce Development 

Board to develop a comprehensive 4-year local plan that analyzes the local workforce 

development area and lays out each Board’s strategy to meet the economic and employment 

needs of the area’s job seekers and employers. Staff has provided the Draft #2 of the local plan 

in the board packet that includes revisions to reported data in the 2017 two-year update. Staff 

continues to conduct regional economic analysis related to target industries and occupations 

and will provide the final draft of the document to the WSA board in January 2021.   

 

 

64



Local Plan 2021-2024
Andrea Guerrero-Guajardo, PhD, MPH

Chief Information Officer

1/22/2021

65



Local Plan 2021-2024

• The Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA) 
requires Local Workforce Development Boards to develop a 
comprehensive four-year plan (Local Plan).  The plan is 
required to be modified every two-years

• The Local Plan has been developed in accordance with 
guidelines issued by Texas Workforce Commission (TWC)

66



TWC Goals Strategic Plan 2021-2025

1. Support a Workforce System that allows employers and workers to achieve and sustain 
economic prosperity

2. Promote employers’ access to the talent and abilities of individuals with a disability. 
Accommodate such workers in the workplace and assist with maintaining and advancing their 
careers successfully

3. Prepare individuals for employment by supporting education and training that equips 
individuals with in-demand skills as identified by employers

4. Accelerate employment pathways for veterans, service members and their spouses as they 
transition to civilian occupations in Texas

5. Fostering systems that enhance early education, support strong families, advance the growth 
of the at-risk workforce to accelerate their employment opportunities, and help support 
personal and family stability

67



Framework and Strategy Presentations

• Public Comment
• January 8 – January 22, 2021

• Committee of Six: 
• 6/24, 8/26, 12/2

• WSA Board of Directors:
• Full Board

• Oversight Committee

• Strategic Committee 

• 6/19, 7/21, 7/24, 8/21, 11/13, 11/17,12/4, 12/28

68



Local Wisdom/Community Engagement 

69



Partner Survey Implementation

Partner Category Audience

Elected Officials Area Judges, County Commissioners, Suburban 

City Officials, City Councils

Employer Sector-Based Industry/Employer Clusters

Education Higher Ed, PreK, Middle and Secondary, 

Vocational, Incl SDOH

Labor Associations and Consortiums

Community-Based/Social Services Nonprofits

Community Voice/Job Seeker Individuals (job seekers, UI claimants, training 

participants, childcare recipients) 

70



Local Plan Components

• Board Strategic Vision

• Economic and Workforce 
Analysis

• Core Programs

• One-Stop Service Delivery

• Workforce Investment 
Activities

• Adult, Dislocated Workers, 
and Youth Services

• Fiscal Agent, Grants, and 
Contracts

• Performance

• Training and Services

• Apprenticeship

71



Board Strategic Vision
Sector-Based Partnerships

• Sector-based strategies 

• Employer-driven partnership within a 
critical industry that brings together 
education, economic development, 
workforce systems, and community 
organizations to identify and 
collaboratively meet the workforce 
needs of that industry within a 
regional labor market

• Career pathways, apprenticeships, 
industry-credentials that promote and 
formalize sector partnerships

Source: https://www.wtb.wa.gov/wp-content/uploads/2020/02/Improving-

Employment-Outcomes_Handout.pdf72

https://www.wtb.wa.gov/wp-content/uploads/2020/02/Improving-Employment-Outcomes_Handout.pdf


WSA Convener
IC: Aerospace

IC: 
Construction

IC: Education

IC: Healthcare

IC: 
IT/Cybersecurity

IC: 
Manufacturin

g

IC: Oil & Gas, 
etc

SA 
WorksChambers/EDC

s

SAISD

NEISD

Military/Veterans 
Affiars

Alamo 
Colleges

Restore 
Education 

UTSA

SA Food 
Bank

The Health 
Collaborative

Industry 
Cluster: 

Manufacturing

TMM
X

TTTX

HEB

Joyson 
Safety 

Systems

CPS 
Ener
gy

WSA Sector-Based 

Partnership

Example

73



Economic and Workforce 
Analysis
Local Plan 2021-2024

74



Economic and Workforce Analysis
Target Clusters and Industries

Clusters Industries

3361 Motor Vehicle Manufacturing

3363 Motor Vehicle Parts Manufacturing

3364 Aerospace Products and Parts Manufacturing

6211 Offices of Physician 

6221 General Medical and Surgical Hospitals

6223 Specialty (except Psychiatric and Substance Abuse) Hospitals

6212 Offices of Dentists

6215 Medical and Diagnostic Laboratories 

5182 Data Processing and Related Services

5415 Computer Systems Design

5416  Management/Scientific, and Technical Consulting Services

4234 Professional and Commercial Equipment and Supplies Merchant Wholesalers 

2373 Highway, Street, and Bridge Construction

2371 Utility System Construction

5413  Architectural, Engineering, and Related Services

4441 Building Material and Supplies Dealers 

5221 Depository Credit Intermediation 

5242 Agencies, Brokerages, and Other Insurance Related Activities

2111 Oil & Gas Extraction

4931 Warehousing and Storage

2131 Support Activities for Mining

Education 6111-Elementary and Secondary Schools

Oil & Gas/ Warehousing & 

Transportation/Finance/Others

TARGETS

Aerospace/Manufacturing

Health

Information Technology/Cybersecurity

Construction/Architecture/Utilities

75



Target Occupations Criteria

• Primary Data Targets
• Percent change >= 15.7% 
• Number change (absolute) >= 500 
• Mean Wage >= $15.00 hourly ($31,200 annual)

• Secondary Data Targets: 
• Employment change due to growth (not exits) >= 50
• Entry Wage >= $15.00 hourly
• Help Wanted Online (HWOL) postings >= 300
• STEM related,  Staffing Pattern Target Industry
• Occupations identified by TWC as adding the most jobs or fastest growing
• Local Targets for Investment
• Local Wisdom

76



Target Occupations 2021-2024

Cyber Security/IT

Computer and Information Systems Managers

Information Security analysts

Computer Network Support Specialists

Computer User Support Specialists

Network and Computer Systems Admin

Software Developers and Software QA

Web Developers & Digital Interface Designers

Operations Research Analyst

Computer Hardware Engineers

Transportation and Warehousing/Related Wholesale-Retail 

Trade

General and Operations Managers

Compliance Officers

Human Resource Specialists

Logisticians

Management Analysts

Training and Development Specialists

Market Research Analysts and Marketing Specialists

Manufacturing/Construction/Architecture/Oil & Gas 

Extraction and Energy

Industrial Engineers

Industrial Engineering and Technologists

Aircraft Mechanics and Technicians

Production, Planning, and Expediting Clerks

Operating Engineers and Other Construction

Electricians

Plumbers, Pipefitters, and Steamfitters

Sheet Metal Workers

Bus and Truck Mechanics and Diesel Engine Specialists

Industrial Machinery Mechanics

First-Line Supervisors of Production and Operating

Machinists

Welders, cutters, and Solderers, and Brazers

Heavy and Tractor-Trailer Truck Drivers

Finance/Insurance/Other

Financial Managers

Personal Financial Advisors

Customer Service Representatives

Accountants and Auditors

Securities, Commodities, and Financial Services

Bookkeeping, Accounting, and Auditing Clerks

Claims Adjusters, Examiners, and Investigators

Healthcare

Dieticians and Nutritionists

Respiratory Therapists

Cardiovascular Technologist and Technicians

Diagnostic Medical Sonographers

77



Economic and Workforce Analysis
Target In-demand Industries

Industry Level

Industry 

Code

Industry Title Annual 

Average 

Employmen

t            

Annual 

Average 

Employ

ment         

Number 

Change              

2018-2028

Percent 

Change 2018-

2028

Sector (2 digit) 62    Health Care and Social Assistance 158,096 197,181 39,085 24.7

Sector (2 digit) 44-45 Retail Trade 118,416 136,056 17,640 14.9

Sector (2 digit) 61    Educational Services 99,246 111,105 11,859 11.9

Sector (2 digit) 52    Finance and Insurance 66,342 79,485 13,143 19.8

Sector (2 digit) 31-33 Manufacturing 52,211 62,442 10,231 19.6

Sector (2 digit) 54    Professional, Scientific, and Technical Services 51,265 59,675 8,410 16.4

Sector (2 digit) 23    Construction 54,872 57,487 2,615 4.8

Sector (2 digit) 48-49 Transportation and Warehousing 34,783 39,472 4,689 13.5

Sector (2 digit) 42    Wholesale Trade 34,521 38,254 3,733 10.8

Sector (2 digit) 51    Information 20,449 24,438 3,989 19.5

Sector (2 digit) 21    Mining, Quarrying, and Oil and Gas Extraction 12,647 17,859 5,212 41.2

Source: TWC/LMCI/Projections-Totals will not add due to rounding and suppression for confidentiality

The WSA region continues to have strong and diversified industries, and many industry sectors in the area

are considered emerging in-demand industry sectors. For 2021-2024, the WSA Board will target industries

for both the high demand and targeted occupations that are expected to continue to experience high growth,

high demand and offer living wages. The following table shows WSA’s in-demand industry sectors for

2020-2024.

78



In-Demand Occupations Criteria

• Percent change >= 15.7% 

• Number change (absolute) >= 500 

• Mean Wage >= $15.00 hourly ($31,200 annual)

79



High Demand Occupations

SOC Code Occupational Title Education

Entry 

Level 

Wage (as 

of 2019)

Experienced 

Level Wage (as 

of 2019)

Change in 

employme

nt 2028 - 

2018

Percentage 

Change

Change in 

Emp by 

Growth

Help 

Wanted 

Ads - 3rd 

Qtr 2020 Career Cluster STEM

2019 

Mean 

Hourly 

Wage Target Industry Title- Staffing Pattern

Manufacturing/Construction/Architecture/Oil and Gas Extraction & Energy
11-9041 Architectural and Engineering Managers Bachelor's Degree $91,001 $172,289 116 23.15 12 100 Science, Technology, Engineering and MathematicsYes $69.80 Transportation Equipment Manufacturing

17-2141 Mechanical Engineers Bachelor's Degree $67,067 $114,798 286 27.9 29 219 Science, Technology, Engineering and MathematicsYes $47.54 Transportation Equipment Manufacturing

17-2171 Petroleum Engineers Bachelor's Degree $98,320 $239,949 347 45.84 35 0 Science, Technology, Engineering and MathematicsYes $92.66 Mining, Quarrying, and Oil and Gas Extraction

17-2199 Engineers, All  Other Bachelor's Degree $70,674 $129,697 202 24.08 20 215 Science, Technology, Engineering and MathematicsYes $52.90 Architectural, Engineering, and Related Services

17-3025 Environmental Engineering Technologists and Technicians Associate's Degree $29,780 $56,618 49 21.4 5 0 Agriculture, Food and Natural ResourcesYes $22.92 Transportation Equipment Manufacturing

19-2042 Geoscientists, Except Hydrologists and Geographers Bachelor's Degree $57,567 $107,082 253 55.97 25 3 Science, Technology, Engineering and MathematicsYes $43.55 Architectural, Engineering, and Related Services

Education and  Education Support/ Health Care
27-2022 Coaches and Scouts Bachelor's Degree $26,649 $61,164 260 23.66 26 313 Education and Training No $23.87 Elementary and Secondary Schools

11-9111 Medical and Health Services Managers Bachelor's Degree $65,282 $138,707 837 24.24 84 1,630 Business, Management and AdministrationYes $28.14 Hospitals

29-9091 Athletic Trainers Bachelor's Degree $36,708 $64,049 48 29.81 5 37 Health Science Yes $26.41 Elementary and Secondary Schools

Transportation and Warehousing/Related -Wholesale-Retail Trade
11-3071 Transportation, Storage, and Distribution Managers High-School Diploma or Equivalent $60,589 $114,551 137 19.13 14 259 Transportation, Distribution and LogisticsNo $46.42 Merchant Wholesalers, Durable Goods 

13-1121 Meeting, Convention, and Event Planners Bachelor's Degree $34,611 $69,766 132 19.05 13 63 Hospitality and Tourism No $27.91 Hospitals

41-4012 Sales Rep., Wholesale & Manufacturing, Except Tech. & Scientific ProductsHigh-School Diploma or Equivalent $32,431 $86,856 1,178 14.45 118 4,027 Marketing, Sales and Service No $33.04 Building Material and Garden Equipment and Supplies Dealers 

43-9061 Office Clerks, General High-School Diploma or Equivalent $22,648 $40,777 1,779 6.14 178 567 Marketing, Sales and Service No $16.70 Mining, Quarrying, and Oil and Gas Extraction

47-1011 First-Line Supervisors of Construction Trades and Extraction Workers High-School Diploma or Equivalent $46,674 $71,774 640 10.96 64 214 Architecture and Construction No $30.48 Mining, Quarrying, and Oil and Gas Extraction

49-1011 First-Line Supervisors of Mechanics, Installers, and Repairers High-School Diploma or Equivalent $44,820 $75,237 498 16.03 50 630 Manufacturing No $31.30 Mining, Quarrying, and Oil and Gas Extraction

51-7011 Cabinetmakers and Bench Carpenters High-School Diploma or Equivalent $23,528 $38,415 238 28.88 24 21 Manufacturing No $16.08 Transportation Equipment Manufacturing

51-9023 Mixing and Blending Machine Setters, Operators, and Tenders High-School Diploma or Equivalent $24,018 $41,120 125 17.48 12 15 Manufacturing No $17.03 Mining, Quarrying, and Oil and Gas Extraction

27-3031 Public Relations Specialists Bachelor's Degree $35,211 $70,202 454 17.04 45 255 Marketing, Sales and Service No $28.14 Hospitals

Source: TWC/LMCI/Projections/LMI Tools
80



Economic and Workforce Analysis
Educational Attainment

Educational Attainment 
 

Concerning educational attainment, 17.2% of the selected regions' residents possess a Bachelor's 

Degree (1.8% below the national average), and 7.8% hold an Associate's Degree (0.4% below the national 

average). 

 
 % of Population Population 

 
⬤ 

 
Less Than 9th Grade 

 
8.1% 

 
144,564 

 
⬤ 

 
9th Grade to 12th Grade 

 
8.1% 

 
143,741 

 
⬤ 

 
High School Diploma 

 
26.5% 

 
471,454 

 
⬤ 

 
Some College 

 
22.9% 

 
408,207 

 
⬤ 

 
Associate's Degree 

 
7.8% 

 
139,323 

 
⬤ 

 
Bachelor's Degree 

 
17.2% 

 
307,203 

 
⬤ 

 
Graduate Degree and Higher 

 
9.4% 

 
167,307 

 

8% 8%

26%

23%

8%

17%

9%10%

8%

25%

22%

7%

19%

10%

6%
7%

27%

21%

8%

19%

12%

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

Less Than 9th
Grade

9th Grade to
12th Grade

High School
Diploma

Some College Associate's
Degree

Bachelor's
Degree

Graduate
Degree and

Higher

Educational Attainment Comparison Alamo,  State, National

2018 % of Population 2018 State % Population 2018 National % Population

81



Educational Attainment Gaps

82



Educational Attainment by County
18-24 years

Source: US Census ACS 5-Year 2019

Geographic 

Population 18 

to 24

  Less than 

high school 

graduate %

 High school 

graduate 

(includes 

equivalency) %

 Some 

college or 

Associate's 

degree %

 Bachelor's 

degree or 

higher %

Atascosa County, Texas 4,479 795 17.70% 2,145 47.90% 1,434 32.00% 105 2.30%

Bandera County, Texas 1,502 98 6.5% 856 57.0% 488 32% 60 4.0%

Bexar County, Texas 203,048 27,391 13.5% 71,219 35.1% 88,507 44% 15,931 7.8%

Comal County, Texas 10,715 1,735 16.2% 4,342 40.5% 3,631 34% 1,007 9.4%

Frio County, Texas 2,680 976 36.4% 1,303 48.6% 316 12% 85 3.2%

Gillespie County, Texas 1,802 314 17.4% 686 38.1% 650 36% 152 8.4%

Guadalupe County, Texas 14,144 1,742 12.3% 6,777 47.9% 4,747 34% 878 6.2%

Karnes County, Texas 1,615 481 29.8% 522 32.3% 522 32% 90 5.6%

Kendall County, Texas 3,503 672 19.2% 1,469 41.90% 1,119 31.90% 243 41.9%

Kerr County, Texas 4,234 630 14.9% 1,808 42.7% 1,534 36% 262 6.2%

McMullen County, Texas 54 4 7.4% 22 40.7% 25 46% 3 5.6%

Medina County, Texas 4,844 1,159 23.9% 1,950 40.3% 1,460 30% 275 5.7%

Wilson County, Texas 4,038 617 15.3% 1,475 36.5% 1,589 39% 357 8.8%

83



Educational Attainment by County
25 and Older

Geographic 

Population 

25 +

 Less than 9th 

grade %

  9th to 12th 

grade, no 

diploma %

   High school 

graduate 

(includes 

equivalency) %

 Some 

college, no 

degree %

 Associate's 

degree %

Bachelor's 

degree %

Graduate 

Degree 

or Higher %

Atascosa County, Texas 31,431 3,461 11.0% 3,744                  11.9% 12,168 38.7% 6,055 19.3% 1,470 4.70% 3,193 10.20% 1,340 4.30%

Bandera County, Texas 16,904 653 3.9% 1,154 6.8% 5,463 32.3% 4,393 26.0% 1,384 8.20% 2,626 15.50% 1,231 7.30%

Bexar County, Texas 1,247,428 91,412 7.3% 105,982             8.5% 316,364 25.4% 283,452 22.7% 100,767 8.10% 221,427 17.80% 128,024 10.30%

Comal County, Texas 98,736 3,242 3.3% 4,049                  4.1% 24,695 25.0% 22,617 22.9% 7,768 7.90% 23,881 24.20% 12,484 12.60%

Frio County, Texas 12,449 2,245 18.0% 1,968 15.8% 4,252 34.2% 2,115 17.0% 962 7.70% 481 3.90% 426 3.40%

Gillespie County, Texas 19,327 986 5.1% 1,148                  5.9% 5,779 29.9% 5,779 29.9% 1,170 6.10% 4,465 23.10% 1,764 9.10%

Guadalupe County, Texas 104,489 4,501 4.3% 7,291                  7.0% 31,836 30.5% 22,016 21.1% 9,394 9.00% 18,958 18.10% 10,493 10.00%

Karnes County, Texas 10,693 1,334 12.5% 1,260                  11.8% 3,945 36.9% 1,988 18.6% 526 4.90% 1,237 11.60% 403 3.80%

Kendall County, Texas 29,910 1,234 4.1% 930                     3.1% 6162 20.6% 6,684 22.3% 2,310 7.70% 8,070 27.00% 4,520 15.10%

Kerr County, Texas 37,607 1,695 4.5% 2,595                  6.9% 10,219 27.2% 10,229 27.2% 2,580 6.90% 6,590 17.50% 3,699 9.80%

McMullen County, Texas 496 12 2.4% 24                        4.8% 162 32.7% 120 24.2% 35 7.10% 77 15.50% 66 13.30%

Medina County, Texas 33,616 2,387 7.1% 3,272                  9.7% 10,417 31.0% 8,084 24.0% 2,785 8.30% 4,245 12.60% 2,426 7%

Wilson County, Texas 33,086 1,647 5.0% 2,467                  7.5% 11,940 36.1% 7,406 22.4% 2,429 7.30% 4,850 15% 2,347 7.10%

84



Addressing the Gap

• In 2019, there were 31,152 graduates in the 13 Alamo Counties. This pipeline has grown by 9 % over
the last 5 years. The highest share of these graduates come from Liberal Arts and Sciences/Liberal
Studies, General Studies, and Medical/Clinical Assistant. Table 3 shows the primary educational pipeline
and the number of graduates.

School Total Graduates (2019)

The University of Texas at San Antonio 7,116

San Antonio College 3,622

Northwest Vista College 3,078

University of the Incarnate Word 2,438

St Philip's College 2,207

Palo Alto College 1,741

Texas A&M University-San Antonio 1,669

The University of Texas Health Science Center at San Antonio 1,326

Our Lady of the Lake University 918

St. Mary's University 903

Educational Pipeline

85



Hiring Gap by Industry
Monthly Job Postings vs. Hires June 2020-November 2020

Avg. Monthly Postings (Jun 2020 - Nov 2020)

Occupation Avg Monthly Postings 

(Jun 2020 - Nov 2020)

Avg Monthly Hires 

(Jun 2020 - Nov 2020)

Hiring GAP

Healthcare Practitioners and Technical Occupations 8,721 1,883 6,837

Transportation and Material Moving Occupations 7,002 6,422 579

Computer and Mathematical Occupations 6,468 973 5,495

Sales and Related Occupations 6,251 7,947  (1,696)

Management Occupations 5,331 2,088 3,242

Office and Administrative Support Occupations 5,225 9,185  (3,960)

Business and Financial Operations Occupations 3,718 2,517 1,201

Unclassified Occupation 3,664 0 3,664

Food Preparation and Serving Related Occupations 2,741 14,412  (11,671)

Installation, Maintenance, and Repair Occupations 2,437 2,320 117

Healthcare Support Occupations 2,209 4,555  (2,346)

Architecture and Engineering Occupations 1,310 574 735

Production Occupations 1,230 3,295  (2,065)

Personal Care and Service Occupations 1,221 2,414  (1,193)

Educational Instruction and Library Occupations 1,170 1,881  (711)

Construction and Extraction Occupations 1,061 3,389  (2,328)

Building and Grounds Cleaning and Maintenance Occupations 1,037 2,551  (1,514)

Community and Social Service Occupations 930 693 237

Arts, Design, Entertainment, Sports, and Media Occupations 722 698 24

Protective Service Occupations 686 1,299  (614)

Life, Physical, and Social Science Occupations 523 293 229

Legal Occupations 380 191 189

Military-only occupations 68 535  (467)

Farming, Fishing, and Forestry Occupations 30 396  (367)

Avg. Monthly Hires (Jun 2020 - Nov 2020)

86



Hiring Gap by In-Demand Occupations

SOC Code SOC Title

Current 

Demand 

(HWOL)

Current 

Supply 

(WIT)

Supply 

GAP 

(Current)

Avg.Annua

l Openings

Annual 

Graduates

Education 

Gap 

(Annual)

Current 

Employment 

(2019)

Projected 

Employment 

(2028)

Employment 

GAP (#C)

Finance
13-2052 Personal Financial Advisors 90 61 29 104 320 -216 830 1,186 356

41-3031 Securities, Commodities, and Financial Services Sales Agents 158 135 23 564 N/A N/A 3,570 5,415 1,845

Healthcare 
29-1031 Dietitians and Nutritionists 164 41 123 54 40 14 500 716 216

29-1126 Respiratory Therapists 80 30 50 120 73 47 1,060 1,807 747

29-1141 Registered Nurses 3,388 667 2,721 1,607 1,417 190 21,920 24,869 2,949

29-2031 Cardiovascular Technologists and Technicians 119 22 97 34 17 17 660 539 -121

29-2032 Diagnostic Medical Sonographers 53 40 13 33 55 -22 440 468 28

29-2034 Radiologic Technologists and Technicians 82 52 30 132 148 -16 1,530 1,986 456

29-2035 Magnetic Resonance Imaging Technologists 60 16 44 15 3 12 180 208 28

29-2052 Pharmacy Technicians 196 183 13 330 51 279 3,590 3,642 52

29-2055 Surgical Technologists 87 63 24 119 83 36 1,390 1,356 -34

29-2061 Licensed Practical and Licensed Vocational Nurses 708 333 375 682 506 176 7,220 8,104 884

31-2021 Physical Therapist Assistants 57 99 -42 112 106 6 650 836 186

31-9091 Dental Assistants 129 290 -161 539 300 239 3,470 4,405 935

31-9097 Phlebotomists 131 136 -5 118 44 74 820 1,034 214

IT/Cybersecurity
11-3021 Computer and Information Systems Managers 22 308 -286 149 1,049 -900 1,870 1,649 -221

15-1211 Computer Systems Analysts 243 212 31 430 532 -102 4,060 5,074 1,014

15-1212 Information Security Analysts N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 860 N/A

15-1231 Computer Network Support Specialists 52 112 -60 137 787 -650 1,380 1,489 109

15-1232 Computer User Support Specialists 379 628 -249 517 N/A N/A 4,510 5,522 1,012

15-1241 Computer Network Architects 96 137 -41 99 1,025 -926 1,100 1,229 129

15-1244 Network and Computer Systems Administrators 216 276 -60 341 811 -470 3,350 4,126 776

15-1256 Software Developers and Software Quality Assurance Analysts and Testers 880 196 684 475 212 263 5,590 5,346 -244

15-1257 Web Developers and Digital Interface Designers 102 75 27 88 160 -72 830 1,012 182

17-2061 Computer Hardware Engineers 18 31 -13 11 66 -55 120 136 16

Manufacturing/Construction
17-3026 Industrial Engineering Technologists and Technicians 151 8 143 45 2 43 310 418 108

43-5061 Production, Planning, and Expediting Clerks 127 130 -3 307 N/A N/A 2,230 2,743 513

49-9041 Industrial Machinery Mechanics 37 94 -57 265 N/A N/A 2,540 2,611 71

51-1011 First-Line Supervisors of Production and Operating Workers 133 407 -274 458 1 457 3,250 4,129 879

51-4041 Machinists 15 68 -53 171 71 100 1,360 1,511 151

51-4121 Welders, Cutters, Solderers, and Brazers 37 464 -427 351 42 309 2,330 3,076 746

17-2112 Industrial Engineers 18 43 -25 161 28 133 1,520 1,861 341

47-2111 Electricians 85 264 -179 702 52 650 4,460 6,076 1,616

47-2152 Plumbers, Pipefitters, and Steamfitters 85 203 -118 355 21 334 2,810 3,179 369

47-2211 Sheet Metal Workers 20 51 -31 152 N/A N/A 1,200 1,377 177

87



Core Programs
Local Plan 2021-2024

88



WIOA Core Programs

• Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA) Adult, Youth and Dislocated Worker

• Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF)/CHOICES

• CHOICES Non-Custodial Program (NCP)

• Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program Employment & Training (SNAP)

• Trade Adjustment Assistance Act (TAA)

• Rehabilitation Act:  that provide services to individuals with disabilities

• Wagner-Peyser Employment Services: staff located within centers and directly employed by TWC; the 
contractor integrates theses services under the Texas Model

• Veteran’s Employment Services/Texas Veterans Leadership Program (TVLP): provided by staff located 
within the centers and employed by the Texas Veterans Commission (TVC) or TWC.  

89



WSA Required Partner Progams

• Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA)

• Wagner-Peyser Employment Service (ES)

• Unemployment Insurance (UI) Benefits Information

• Choices, the Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF) employment and training program

• Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program Employment and Training (SNAP E&T)

• Subsidized childcare

• Trade Adjustment Assistance (TAA)

• Adult Education and Literacy (AEL) programs

WSA establishes memoranda of understanding (MOUs) with the following agencies for programs that are not under the direct oversight of the 
board: 

• Adult Education and Literacy (WIOA, Title II)

• Apprenticeship programs

• Non-Certificate Postsecondary Career and Technology Training programs

• Senior Community Service Employment Program

• HHSC (jointly developed with TWC)

90



Evaluation Framework

Development of Annual Evaluation Report with focus on: 

• Core Programs
• Performance Metrics

• Key Performance Indicators

• Partnerships
• ETPL Training Partners

• Education Partners

• Employers

• Elected Officials

• Job Seeker/Client

• Industry Metrics
• Placement in Target Industries

• Real-time Wage Data

• Incumbent Worker Reskilling/Upskilling

• Economic Impact
• Contribution to economy 

• ROI of Core Programs, Non-Core Programs, and Childcare

91



Next Steps

Comments and Feedback 

https://www.workforcesolutionsalamo.org/announcements/

LocalPlan@wsalamo.org

92

https://www.workforcesolutionsalamo.org/announcements/
mailto:LocalPlan@wsalamo.org


Questions?

93



 

 
  

Draft Available for Stakeholder Approval 

January 2021 

94



Executive Summary 

 

Under the Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA) §108 (20 Code of Federal 

Regulations §679.500–580), each Local Workforce Development Board (Board) is required to 

develop and submit to the state a comprehensive four-year plan (Board Plan) that identifies and 

describes policies and procedures as well as local activities that are in line with the State Plan. 

This Board Plan must be developed openly and be available to the public for comment for at 

least 15 days, but no more than 30 days, particularly to members of the business and educational 

communities as well as various other labor organizations. Along with submission of the Board 

Plan to the Texas Workforce Commission (TWC), the Board must submit all public comments of 

disagreement with the plan to TWC. 

At the end of the first two-year period, the appropriate chief elected officials (CEOs) and the 

Board will review the local plan and, and as needed or required by TWC, prepare and submit 

modifications to reflect changes in the labor market and economic conditions, factors affecting 

the implementation of the plan, changes in financing, changes to the structure of the Board, 

and/or the need to revise strategies to meet local performance goals. 

  

95



Part 1: Board Vision and Strategies  

The strategic elements of the Local Workforce Development Board Planning Guidelines 

(Guidelines) are as follows:  

A. Vision and Goals  

(WIOA §108(b)(1)(E); 20 CFR §679.560(a)(5))  

Boards must include a description of the Board’s strategic vision to support regional economic 

growth and economic self-sufficiency. The description must include: 

• goals for preparing an educated and skilled workforce, including early education 

services, and services for youth and individuals with barriers to employment; and  

• goals relating to the performance accountability measures based on performance 

indicators described in WIOA §116(b)(2)(A).  

The Workforce Solutions Alamo (WSA) Board serves as the governing board for the regional 

workforce system, a network of service providers and contractors that brings people and jobs 

together. The Board of Directors represents various sectors among the 13 county Alamo 

region and reflects the diverse constituencies of the regional community: business, economic 

development, education, manufacturing, healthcare, community organizations, and 

government.    

The WSA Board strives to manifest its core values of accountability, collaboration, excellence, 

innovation, and integrity. WSA is committed to promoting regional economic growth, economic 

self-sufficiency through sector-based workforce system that fully aligns efforts of local partners 

and communities in the region with State-level strategic efforts with which the Plan is required 

align.  

The Board works in partnership with the local Chief Elected Officials (CEOs), which include the 

Mayor of the City of San Antonio and the County Judges from Atascosa, Bandera, Bexar, 

Comal, Frio, Gillespie, Guadalupe, Karnes, Kendall, Kerr, McMullen, Medina, and Wilson 

counties. Together, the Board and the CEOs provide leadership and insight about the needs 

of the workforce system in the Alamo region, especially as it relates to the unique needs of urban 

and rural areas.  

WSA Board vision provides the inspiration to execute an integrated community workforce 

network in the nation.  The WSA Board and its regional partners recognize the collaborative 

process as a powerful means to collectively achieve economic growth that enables the workforce 

occupational demand to increase, thus providing the opportunity for more job seekers to reach 

self-sufficiency.  WSA and its regional workforce partners have a history of collaborative 

planning and have aligned strategic initiatives with targeted industry sectors and demand 

occupations. The Strategic Goals outlined below identify the key areas of focus for the duration 

of this Plan. Subsequent sections describe the Strategies and Actions to achieve the outlined 

broader goals of the workforce system.    

As required, WSA strategies align with the TWC’s System Strategic Plan goals outlined in the:  

  

• The Texas Workforce Consolidated 2021-2025 Strategic Plan: 

https://www.twc.texas.gov/files/twc/strategic-plan-fiscal-years-2021-to-2025-twc.pdf 
96



• The Texas Workforce System Strategic Plan FY 2016–FY 2023   

https://gov.texas.gov/uploads/files/organization/twic/System-Strategic-Plan-Update.pdf   

  

• The Texas Workforce Commission 2021–2025 Strategic Plan   

https://www.twc.texas.gov/files/twc/strategic-plan-fiscal-years-2021-to-2025-twc.pdf  

   

• WIOA Combined State Plan Program Years 2020–

2023 https://www.twc.texas.gov/files/partners/wioa-combined-state-plan-twc.pdf  

   

• Strategic Plan for Adult Education and Literacy for the Fiscal Year of 2015–2020   

http://www.twc.state.tx.us/files/twc/twc-strategic-plan-adult-education-literacy-fy2015-

2020.pdf   

  

• Texas Early Learning Strategic Plan, 2020–

2025 https://www.twc.texas.gov/files/partners/texas-early-learning-needs-assessment-

twc.pdf  

 

Workforce Solutions Alamo is defined by a commitment to supporting the regional economic 

growth and economic self-sufficiency and acknowledging the unique needs of urban and rural 

areas of the 13-county region.   

 

Key Goal: A shared prosperity through inclusive growth  

Strategic Framework: Target and develop initiatives based on key principles of inclusive growth 

to:  

• Address the global scale and technological complexity of of an advanced economy, and  

• Promote the socio-economic prosperity of children, workers, and communities so they 

may meet their productive potential.  

Core Principles of Inclusive Growth  

• Growth from within and prioritize industries, occupations, and firms that:  

1. Drive local competitive advantage, innovation, productivity, and wage gains  

2. Prioritize industry specializations through sector-based strategies  

• Invest in people and skills by:  

1. Targeting upskilling, re-skilling, and life-long learning to expand educational attainment 

and capacity to increase experience and wages  

2. Increase capacity to serve priority populations including veterans, foster youth, and 

individuals with identified barriers to meaningful employment  

• Support sector-based strategies  

1. Data-informed decision-making at the partnership level  

2. High level of industry engagement   

97

https://gov.texas.gov/uploads/files/organization/twic/System-Strategic-Plan-Update.pdf
https://www.twc.texas.gov/files/twc/strategic-plan-fiscal-years-2021-to-2025-twc.pdf
https://www.twc.texas.gov/files/partners/wioa-combined-state-plan-twc.pdf
http://www.twc.state.tx.us/files/twc/twc-strategic-plan-adult-education-literacy-fy2015-2020.pdf
http://www.twc.state.tx.us/files/twc/twc-strategic-plan-adult-education-literacy-fy2015-2020.pdf
https://www.twc.texas.gov/files/partners/texas-early-learning-needs-assessment-twc.pdf
https://www.twc.texas.gov/files/partners/texas-early-learning-needs-assessment-twc.pdf


3. Delivery of services specific to sector-based partnerships  

4. Emphasis on sustainability and continuous improvement  

5. Investment in capacity of staff to manage partnerships  

Primary Objective:   

• Develop and implement workforce development opportunities that lead to self-

sufficiency including career pathways and stackable credentials that lead to identified 

target industries and occupations.   

Key Performance Indicators (KPIs):  

• Formative and summative evaluation is conducted using established metrics including 

TWC-contracted performance measures. Short and long-term outcomes inform policy 

and program development and drive the allocation of staff and financial resources 

throughout the strategic framework.   

  

B. Board Strategies 
(WIOA §108(b)(1)(F); 20 CFR §679.560(a)(6))  

 

Boards must include a description of the Board’s strategy to work with the entities carrying out the 

core programs and with the required partners to align resources available to the local workforce 

development area (workforce area) to achieve the vision and goals.  

 

Sector-Based Partnerships 

 

Workforce Solutions Alamo is working toward the development of a sector-based partnership 

model based on best practices in workforce development. WSA has worked to create 

partnerships within the regional labor market level in the 13-county area served by WSA. These 

partnerships include a diverse collection of employers, government entities and elected officials, 

education and training partners, economic development organizations, labor associations and 

organizations, and community-based and non-profit social service agencies that create an 

ecosystem focused on the development of the local workforce and driven by industry demand.  

WSA has established the agency as the convener of these partnerships and acts as a coordinating 

partner across multiple sectors to facilitate communication, funding, innovation, and progress. 

WSA’s approach incorporates data collection from specific constituencies in order to create 

highly customized responses to the needs of target industries.  

WSA has transitioned from short-term collaborations that exist for the duration of a single grant 

or program to the establishment of long-term connectedness that envisions employers as partners 

with significant participation of the workforce as opposed to external customers. Furthermore, 

the model emphasizes people and relationships within a replicable process with defined outcome 

measures. The goal of WSA is to identify and prioritize the existing strengths of its partners to 

drive workforce and economic development for the region.  

Workforce Solutions Alamo is committed to the people of the Alamo region, the execution of its 

programs with efficiency and intentionality, and to maintaining fidelity to identified target 

industries and occupations using data-driven approaches. The dynamic relationship that exists 

98



between People, Programs, and Industry serves as an iterative mechanism to facilitate process 

and program improvement while promoting innovation and collaboration.  

 

 

      

 

 This fundamental framework is the foundation for the continued development of plans and 

programs that support targeted sectors through intentional cooperation and continuous 

improvement that builds on integration of education, economic, and workforce development.  

To accomplish the development of sector-based partnerships, WSA seeks to adopt best practices 

from other high performing workforce development boards and partnerships throughout the 

nation. Boards who have created successful relationships share operational elements that are the 

hallmarks of the sector-based model.  

The Sector-Based partnership model (illustrated below) is based on the development of 

relationships with organizations and entities that facilitate career pathways with entry points, or 

on-ramps, to the regional workforce. Additionally, representatives from identified target 

industries provide input and information that drives the development of training and education 

programming to increase or expand appropriate entry points. WSA, as convener, provides 

cohesion and coordination to facilitate communication, coordination, and formative and 

summative evaluation.   

People

Programs

Industry/

Employers

Career 
Pathways

Stackable 
Credentials

Self Sufficiency/

Thriving 
Workforce

99



 

Source: https://www.wtb.wa.gov/wp-content/uploads/2020/02/Improving-Employment-

Outcomes_Handout.pdf 

 

Best practices associated with the Sector-Based model include:  

• The development of collaborative infrastructure with a lead agency in the role of 

convener or lead organization that facilitates connection with education, industry, and 

economic development partners with a shared vision for workforce development 

• Transparency and communication among regional partners to promote the shared vision 

for workforce development 

• Creation of a playbook to define communications plan for programs and partnerships 

• Emphasize local wisdom and community voice in program development and evaluation 

• Create measurable goals and objectives with culturally responsive data-gathering and 

evaluation processes 

• Clearly define career pathways that address the needs of employers and jobseekers 

These deliverables must be predicated on existing or developing circumstances A study of Gold 

Standard Workforce Development Partnerships (Armstrong, 2018) outlines key tenets that 

100



inform the development of successful sector-based partnerships. WSA is developing capacity in 

each of these in order to realize mature sector-based partnerships within the life span of this plan.  

• Sector partnerships must be data-driven 

o WSA utilizes multiple sources of data to perform demographic, educational, 

employment, and wage trend analysis. These sources include industry snapshots 

and projections to understand the current and future movement in the 

environment. Other sources of data are labor market data, cost of living data, 

educational attainment and hiring needs of target occupations, availability of in-

demand occupations or occupations that provide lower wages, and growth 

industries. Analysis also includes community-level US Census data that provide 

insight on population growth, and place of residence compared to place of work. 

• Sector partners should implement data sharing agreements memoranda of understanding 

to expedite innovation and promote shared accountability 

o WSA will execute a MOU and data sharing agreement with each of the sector 

partners. MOUs and data sharing agreements provide valuable information to 

WSA and its partners to align education and training programming with target 

labor market skills and credentials. MOUs will outline long-term expectations for 

the partnership, and data sharing will inform workforce development planning, 

curricula, marketing and communications, and evaluation.  

• Sector partnerships should include K-12 partners and included measurable and connected 

activities toa achieve measurable progress and scale  

o WSA has established relationships with the largest K12 independent school 

districts and Pre-Kindergarten initiatives that serve a majority of students in the 

13-county region i.e. Pre-K 4 SA, SAISD, Northeast ISD, Northside ISD, and 

others. WSA and schools will define middle and secondary curricula tracks that 

align with target industries to establish the prerequisite courses and graduation 

tracks that lead to career pathways for targeted industries and occupations.  

• Sector partnerships should leverage cross-system resources 

o In addition to the investment of WIOA funds and resources, WSA has forged 

strategic partnerships with cross-system organizations including municipal 

governments and city councils, county commissioners and rural, county judges,  

early childhood education organizations, housing, food and nutrition supplemental 

programs, and veterans and juvenile and adult corrections programs. WSA will 

continue to seek partnerships with other programs that support mental health and 

substance abuse prevention, child abuse and neglect prevention, healthcare, as 

other organizations that address social determinants of health and coalitions that 

address systems and systemic change.  

• Sector partnerships should be guided by intermediary-level governance boards 

o The sector-based model proposed by WSA will be informed by a wide array of 

key decision-makers with particular expertise at the executive operational levels. 

101



Sector champions will be identified from target industries to form an advisory 

board intended to inform strategic planning and program development.  

• Sector partnerships should facilitate career pathways that lead to skills required by target 

industries, industry-recognized post-secondary credentials, and living-wage jobs 

o WSA has identified career pathways, with stackable credentials, so that job 

seekers can receive necessary skills instruction within a sector. The criteria for 

these skills are employer-driven and informed by data collected from employer 

partners. Demographic and descriptive data ensures that the special needs of 

target populations are addressed. 

• Sector partnerships should be built with business, labor, and industry partners 

o WSA has created an ongoing survey process to seek input from job seekers, local 

elected officials, employer, education, and community non-profit partners. These 

surveys collect both quantitative and qualitative data related to economic 

priorities, target industries and occupations, specialized populations, and 

hiring/recruitment/retention of workforce. These surveys provide local wisdom 

for the development of this plan as well as the framework for formative 

evaluation of programming.  

The sector-based framework of WSA prioritizes strategies that promote systems change and 

partnership across multiple sectors of the workforce ecosystem. Multiple entry points into the 

career pathway systems acknowledge varied levels of existing educational attainment to ensure 

equitable opportunities for career and skills development.  

WSA has engages partners to foster cooperation based in individual locales as well as larger 

regional strategies necessary to support the entire Alamo region. WSA continues to focus on 

data-driven analysis of successful strategies and the promotion of self-sufficiency of its clients.  

The following diagram illustrates the structure of the sector-based partnerships infrastructure will 

be developed for the Alamo regions. Representatives and stakeholders from each industry 

cluster, from urban and rural counties, will be recruited to provide insight and input specific to 

their respective industries. Together with representatives from other strategic partners categories 

to form the sector-based advisory group for the WSA 13-county region.  

102



 

 

 

 

Resource Alignment  

Board Response: Resource Alignment 

Within the WSA operated workforce system, contract partners who managing and operating the 

region’s American Job Centers have full responsibility for operating core TANF, SNAP, WIOA 

(Adult, Dislocated Worker, and Youth) programs, as well as providing day-to-day guidance to 

TWC (state) Employment Services staff. TWC maintains administrative responsibility, and 

shares responsibility for directing daily work assignments, assigning individual performance 

goals, coordinating hiring, initiating disciplinary action and evaluating staff performance.  

WSA works collaboratively across entities to execute core programs and align resources 

available to the local area.  

Efforts to integrate additional required partners, including Adult Education and Literacy (AEL) 

Consortium partners and Rehabilitative Services (TWC Department of Vocational Rehabilitative 

Services/VRS) will be spearheaded by WSA Board staff.  

Due to the restructuring of AEL services in Texas to move management and oversight of 

services under TWC, the WSA Board is charged with coordination and collaboration 

responsibilities to support and ensure continuous improvement of AEL services. WSA 

Board staff are active participants with the regional AEL Alamo Consortium that consist 

of eight service providers, led by TWC grant recipient Education Service Center Region 

20 (ESC-20). Providers offer a variety of adult education services across the 13 county 

Alamo area. Students can be served as young as 16 years of age, and services are free of 

charge. Students are eligible if they need to earn their TxCHSE, improve basic skills, or 

103



learn English. Classes are offered both in-person and virtually at a variety of locations 

and times.  In 2016, TWC VRS was restructured to move the function under TWC. With 

the restructuring, the WSA Board has been tasked with coordination with VRS to 

leverage the full breadth of resources provided to the Alamo region. WSA Board staff has 

actively engaged with their departmental counterparts.  To efficiently coordinate 

operations and services, leadership from both of our groups has been engaged in strategic 

planning, business engagement and future facility co-location. WSA Board staff will 

continue to respond to TWC guidance regarding coordination of activities. Co-location 

with Vocational Rehabilitation partners improved the direct linkage for individuals with 

disabilities to workforce services. Vocational Rehabilitation partners are now located in # 

of the workforce centers in the Alamo workforce area. On November 18 and December 

2nd, 2016 ESC-20 hosted work sessions for approximately 230 participants from VRS, 

ESC-20, Workforce Center Contractors and WSA Board staff.  The purpose of the work 

sessions was to share program information, identify gaps between the service delivery 

system, and implement a referral system.  

 

AEL, VRS, and WSA contractors are provided guidance and strategies regarding alignment and 

leveraging of resources and are responsible for integration of services. WSA Board staff is 

responsible for direct management and oversight of all WSA contractors and coordination and 

collaboration with AEL and VRS to ensure effective execution.   Alignment with Vision and 

Goals: Consolidation of core program management and oversight, and day to day management of 

partner staff, ensures alignment of resources. Strong management and oversight by the WSA 

Board and Board staff ensures resources are deployed consistent with the WSA Vision, “to lead 

the most integrated community workforce network in the nation” and achieve the goals outlined 

within this plan. 

  

104



C. High-Performing Board  

 

(WIOA §108(b)(18); 20 CFR §679.560(b)(17))  

 

Boards must include a description of the actions the Board will take toward becoming or remaining 

a high-performing Board, consistent with the factors developed by the Texas Workforce Investment 

Council (TWIC).  

 

Board Response: Local Board Functions 

As defined in WIOA Sec. 107(d), the Board will aim to excel in the following 13 functions.  

These include: 

 

1. Local Plan.  In partnership with local chief elected officials and other relevant 

stakeholders, develop and submit a 4-year local plan and appropriate modifications as 

needed or required by TWC 

 

 

2. Workforce research and regional labor market analysis. 

a. Analysis of economic conditions in the Alamo region, needed knowledge and skills, 

the workforce and workforce development activities. 

b. Collection, analysis, and usage of workforce and labor market information. 

c. Conducting research, data collection, and analysis related to workforce needs of the 

Alamo regional economy, including input from a wide array of stakeholders. 

 

3. Convening, brokering, and leveraging.  Convening a local workforce development 

system of stakeholders to assist in the development of the local plan. 

 

4. Employer engagement.  Lead efforts to engage with a diverse range of employers and 

with entities involved in: 

a. Promoting business representation. 

b. Developing effective linkages with employers through the implementation of 

sector-based partnerships to support employer utilization of the local workforce 

development system and support related investments. 

c. Develop/implement proven or promising strategies for meeting employment and 

skill needs of workers and employers, including industry and sector partnerships, 

providing the skilled workforce needed by employers, expanding employment and 

career advancement opportunities for workforce development system participants 

in in-demand industry sectors and occupations. 

 

5. Career pathways development.  Along with representatives of childcare, K-12, 

secondary and postsecondary education programs, lead efforts to develop and implement 

career pathways by aligning employment, training, education, and supportive services 

needed by adults and youth, particularly individuals with barriers to employment. 

 

6. Proven and promising practices.  Lead efforts to:  

a. Identify and promote proven and promising strategies/initiatives for meeting the 

needs of employers, and workers and jobseekers (including individuals with 

barriers to employment).  This includes providing physical and programmatic 

accessibility to the one-stop delivery system. 

105



b. Identify and disseminate information on proven and promising practices carried out 

in other local areas for meeting such needs. 

 

7. Technology.  Develop strategies for using technology to maximize the accessibility and 

effectiveness of the local workforce development system for employers, and workers and 

jobseekers, by: 

a. Facilitating connections among the intake and case management information 

systems of the one-stop partner programs to support a comprehensive workforce 

development system in the local area. 

b. Facilitating access to services provided through the one-stop delivery system, 

including access in remote areas. 

c. Identifying strategies for better meeting the needs of individuals with barriers to 

employment, including those that augment traditional service delivery and increase 

access to services/programs of the one-stop delivery system, such as improving 

digital literacy skills. 

d. Leveraging resources and capacity within the local workforce development system. 

 

8. Program oversight.  In partnership with local chief elected officials: 

a. Conducting oversight for local youth, employment and training activities, and the 

one-stop delivery system, and ensuring the appropriate use and management of the 

funds for these purposes; 

b. Ensuring the appropriate use, management, and investment of funds to maximize 

performance outcomes as contracted by TWC for workforce development 

activities. 

 

9. Negotiate local performance accountability measures.  Negotiate and reach agreement 

on local performance accountability measures. 

 

10. Select one-stop operators.   

a. Designate or certify one-stop operators and may terminate for cause the eligibility 

of such operators (in alignment with the inter-local agreement with chief elected 

officials assigning the responsibility of this function to the Board). 

b. Select youth providers. 

c. Identify eligible providers of training. 

d. Identify eligible providers of career services. 

e. Ensure consumer choice requirements. 

 

11. Coordination with education providers.  Coordinate activities with education and 

training providers, providers of workforce investment activities, adult education and 

literacy, career and technical education, and agencies administering vocational 

rehabilitation services.   

 

12. Budget and administration.  Develop a budget for activities of the local board in the 

Alamo region consistent with the local plan and the duties of the local board, subject to the 

approval of the chief elected officials.   

 

13. Accessibility for individuals with disabilities.  Annually assess the physical and 

programmatic accessibility as required by applicable laws. 

 

106



The Board will plan on using a set of criteria to determine whether it attains and retains “high-

performing” status.  These criteria focus on elements that are critical to the nature of our work 

and include the following (these may be modified, and additional criteria may be added).   

 

1. Compliance 

a. Receive no findings or formal determinations in Federal or State monitoring, particularly 

disallowed or questioned costs, as evidenced by documentation provided by the 

monitoring agency. 

b. Sustain fiscal integrity, as evidenced through the yearly Single Audit documentation. 

c. Have no recapture of grant funds for failure to obligate at least 95% of program funds 

within/by each grant’s applicable program year.  

d. Ensure core (required) partners provide access to their services through the One-Stop 

delivery system (e.g., through at least one Job Center designated as “Comprehensive”) in 

alignment to TWC guidelines. 

 

2. Performance & Services 

a. Meet or Exceed 100% of TWC-contracted performance measures as evidenced by 

performance reports provided by TWC. 

b. The Board will work to develop a metric that measures the ratio or percent of WIOA Adult 

and Dislocated Workers (DW) program participants attaining “self-sufficient” wages.  

This will include a definition of “self-sufficient” for the Alamo region, as well as 

information as to how the metric will be measured.  Our guidelines require, and our 

funding allows, for only up to one (1) year of follow-up services after WIOA Adult and 

DW participants Exit the program after having gained unsubsidized employment.   

c. Attain the highest ratio of TRS Providers in Texas as compared to other Board areas. 

 

3. Sector-Based Strategies 

a. Develop, implement, and sustain at least three (3) sector initiatives each program year 

directly tied to industry sectors or occupations in the Target Occupation List and which 

result in the following.  Previous year’s data will be used as a baseline. 

i. 10% or greater increase in the number of employers from industry sectors or 

occupations in the Target Occupation List that use WorkInTexas. 

ii. 10% or greater increase in the number of placements of program participants in 

employment in industry sectors or occupations in the Target Occupation List. 

iii. Percent of WIOA Adult/Dislocated Worker/Youth in training (goal to be determined). 

iv. Percent WIOA Adult/Dislocated Worker/Youth training participants in training-

related employment (80% goal). 

 

At minimum three (3) sector strategies tied to Employers from industries and occupations in the 

Target Occupation List (using the number of workers, ideally program participants and 

individuals with barriers to employment, as a metric and for whom their jobs form a part of a 

sector strategy focused on local business recruitment, retention, or expansion).   

  

107



Part 2. Economic and Workforce Analysis  

A. Regional Economic and Employment Needs Analysis  

(WIOA §108(b)(1)(A); 20 CFR §679.560(a)(1))  

Boards must include a regional analysis of the following:  

• The economic conditions, including existing and emerging in-demand industry sectors, in-

demand occupations, and target occupations  

• The employment needs of employers in existing and emerging in-demand industry sectors, in-

demand occupations, and target occupations  

B. Knowledge and Skills Analysis  

(WIOA §108(b)(1)(B); 20 CFR §679.560(a)(2))  

Boards must include an analysis of the knowledge and skills needed to meet the employment 

needs of the employers in the region, including employment needs for in-demand industry 

sectors, in-demand occupations, and target occupations.  

C. Labor Force Analysis and Trends  

(WIOA §108(b)(1)(C); 20 CFR §679.560(a)(3))  

Boards must include an analysis of the regional workforce, including current labor force  

WD Letter 18-20, Attachment 2 5  

employment and unemployment data, information on labor market trends, and educational and 

skill levels of the workforce, including individuals with barriers to employment.  

D. Workforce Development Analysis  

(WIOA §108(b)(1)(D); 20 CFR §679.560(a)(4))  

Boards must include an analysis of workforce development activities in the region, including 

education and training.  

Board Response: Economic conditions  

 

Existing in-demand industry sectors  

 

The economic environment of the WSA service region strengthened significantly during the last 

four years, offering quality employment opportunities for varying occupations and skill levels to 

local job seekers. For the past four years, through February 2020, the Alamo region had a growing 

economy with record low unemployment. The pandemic of 2020, coronavirus disease, 2019, 

(COVID-19) affected the Alamo area as well as Texas and the Nation.  A Bureau of Labor 

Statistics article examines the labor market impacts of establishment shutdowns implemented in 

response to coronavirus disease 2019 (COVID-19). The article identifies sectors directly exposed 

to the shutdowns using data from the Quarterly Census of Employment and Wages and 

Occupational Employment Statistics programs of the U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics. The six of 

the most directly exposed sectors include: Restaurants and Bars, Travel and Transportation, 

Entertainment (e.g., casinos and amusement parks), Personal Services (e.g., dentists, daycare 

108



providers, barbers), other sensitive Retail (e.g., department stores and car dealers), and sensitive 

Manufacturing (e.g., aircraft and car manufacturing). Furthermore, the occupations with lower 

wages are more common in the highly exposed sector than elsewhere in the economy 

(Loewenstein, April 2020).  

 

The effects of the pandemic have now become widespread, and employment losses have not been 

confined to businesses in industries that were forced to shut down. As localities and states lifted 

stay-at-home orders and businesses in vulnerable industries have begun to reopen and the economy 

is rebounding, however, there are several uncertainties yet to be determined. Will the industries 

identified as vulnerable continue to face difficulty?  Another uncertainty is how COVID will affect 

how industries operate and the reskilling needs of incumbent workers employed by industries. As 

the Alamo region embarks on the changes occurring due to the COVID-19 pandemic, the Alamo 

WDA also reviews the strengths of the existing and emerging economy. 

 

As evident in Table 1, TWC quarterly employment and wage data (QCEW) indiates that thirteen 

counties have shown a steady increase in the number of establishments, average employment, for 

all the 13 counties.  Average weekly wages show a steady increase from 2018-2020 for 12 of the 

of the 13 counties, with Frio County indicting a loss. For the Alamo WDA estabalishment 

increased between  2018 to 2019 by 1,604 establishments  and  between 2019-2020 grew by 1,577 

establishements. The averaged weekly wage for the Alamo WDA  increased by 6.22% between 

2018 and 2020. Average employment for the WDA increased by 33,940 jobs. 

 

TABLE 2. ECONOMIC INDICATORS ALAMO REGION ALL INDUSTRIES 

 

 

• Table 2, reviews Quarterly Census of Employment and Wages (QCEW) data for Quarter 1, 

2020. Findings indicates that the Alamo WDA, the industry sectors with the most establishments 

are: Healthcare and Social Assistance (62) with 11,074.  The industry sector with the 2nd most 

establishments is Professional, Scientific and Professional Services (54) with 6,576.  Industry 

sectors ranking 3rd and 4th most establishments are the 44-45 Retail Trade sector and the 72 

Accommodations and Food Service Sector with 6,445 and 5,340 respectfully.  

• The industry sectors with the highest weekly wages, ranking 1st, 2nd and 3rd are Management 

of Companies and Enterprise (55) Finance and Insurance (52) and Mining Quarrying and Oil and 

Gas (21) sectors at $2,877.00, $2,145.00 and $2,103.00 respectively.  Two IT/Cyber related sectors 

Professional, Scientific, and Technical Services (54) and Information (51) have the 4th and 5thth 

highest Average Weekly Wage at $ 1,524.00 and $1,334.00.  

A
rea

Estab
lish

m
en

ts

Firm
s

A
verage 

Em
p

lo
ym

en
t

A
verage 

W
eekly W

age

A
rea

Estab
lish

m
en

ts

Firm
s

A
verage 

Em
p

lo
ym

en
t

A
verage 

W
eekly W

age

A
rea

Estab
lish

m
en

ts

Firm
s

A
verage 

Em
p

lo
ym

en
t

A
verage 

W
eekly W

age

Atascosa 894 834 13,130 946$             Atascosa 918 854 14,105 1,077$           Atascosa 915 852 14,162 1,065$          

Bandera 485 454 3,292 664$             Bandera 473 446 3,357 680$               Bandera 477 450 3,433 710$             

Bexar 41,919 33,737 855,595 1,009$          Bexar 43,044 34,740 868,468 1,030$           Bexar 44,224 35,663 877,300 1,062$          

Comal 3,770 3,438 54,357 861$             Comal 3,963 3,606 56,486 895$               Comal 4,159 3,782 59,352 918$             

Frio 424 401 7,050 1,028$          Frio 425 403 7,700 1,017$           Frio 428 403 7,403 995$             

Gillespie 1,078 1,019 10,574 701$             Gillespie 1,111 1,055 10,789 735$               Gillespie 1,156 1,099 11,020 749$             

Guadalupe 2,201 1,982 41,067 849$             Guadalupe 2,253 2,026 40,649 881$               Guadalupe 2,315 2,075 41,549 888$             

Karnes 402 362 6,010 1,115$          Karnes 406 360 6,603 1,275$           Karnes 431 379 7,119 1,213$          

Kendall 1,504 1,434 15,760 935$             Kendall 1,583 1,505 17,129 950$               Kendall 1,627 1,548 17,291 958$             

Kerr 1,496 1,366 17,640 780$             Kerr 1,553 1,420 18,416 794$               Kerr 1,549 1,418 18,461 825$             

McMullen 79 75 515 1,023$          McMullen 83 78 516 1,034$           McMullen 84 78 565 1,117$          

Medina 848 760 9,730 710$             Medina 862 767 10,004 716$               Medina 873 778 10,183 753$             

Wilson 743 696 8,150 717$             Wilson 773 719 8,770 786$               Wilson 786 725 8,972 790$             

WDA 55,843 46,558 1,042,870 11,338$       WDA 57,447 47,979 1,062,992 11,870$         WDA 59,024 49,250 1,076,810 12,043$       

Source:TWC/LMCI/Quaterly Census of Employment and Wages (QCEW)

2018 1st Quarter 2019 1st  Quarter 2020  1st Quarter

109



 

The Healthcare and Social Assistance sectors also indicate the largest average employment with 

171,181, followed by Accommodation and Food Service with128,849, Retail Trade with 118,454 

and Educational Services 104,206. Industries with large, triple digit employment the 72-

Accomadation and Food Service and the 44-45 Retail Trade, indicated an inverse relationship with 

wages at $406 and $670 (Average Weekly Wage) respectively.  Accommodation and Food Service 

and Retail Trade, two sectors with triple digit employment, also indicate the 1st and 3rd lowest 

wages of all the Industry sectors. 

• Healthcare industry, a component of the Healthcare and Social Assistance (62) sector, in 

the Alamo Region, is spearheaded by the South Texas Medical Center, the University of Texas 

Health Science Center, and the surrounding major cluster of healthcare facilities. Information 

Technology and Cybersecurity lead by JBSA Airforce Cyber, UTSA Cyber Security and 

Southwest Regional Institute (SwRI) create a nucleus of cyber and defense technology.  

Professional, Scientific, and Technical Services (54) sector, industries 5416, 5417 and 5415, are 

Cybersecurity related NAICS. The NAICS 5182 Data Processing and Related Services is an IT 

related industry component of the 51-industry sector. In the Alamo region NAICS 5182, the cloud 

computing industry, is led by the company, Rackspace.  

 

Table 2-Economic Indicators Alamo Region 2020 Quarter 1 

 
SOURCE: TWC/LMCI/QCEW/Q1 2020 

 

According to TWC projection data shown in Table 3 the WSA region had 1,158,263 jobs in 2018 

and annual average employment is projected to grow by 1,340,601 or approximately 15.7% by the 

year 2028.    

 

 

 

 

In
du

st
ry

 C
od

e

In
du

st
ry

Es
ta

bl
is

hm
en

ts

Fi
rm

s

A
ve

ra
ge

 

Em
pl

oy
m

en
t

A
ve

ra
ge

 W
ee

kl
y 

W
ag

e

11 Agriculture, Forestry, Fishing and Hunting 607 603 2,699 700.00$                  

21 Mining, Quarrying, and Oil and Gas Extraction 525 460 12,755 2,013.00$              

23 Construction 4,766 4,502 60,481 1,111.00$              

31-33 Manufacturing 1,648 1,509 52,997 1,187.00$              

22 Utilities 114 85 7,224 1,507.00$              

42 Wholesale Trade 2,646 2,342 36,443 1,401.00$              

44-45 Retail Trade 6,445 3,846 118,454 670.00$                  

48-49 Transportation and Warehousing 1,511 1,274 37,632 1,037.00$              

51 Information 639 475 19,244 1,524.00$              

52 Finance and Insurance 3,174 1,854 67,726 2,145.00$              

53 Real Estate and Rental and Leasing 2,830 2,121 18,404 1,308.00$              

54 Professional, Scientific, and Technical Services 6,576 5,930 56,025 1,334.00$              

55 Management of Companies and Enterprises 263 246 13,643 2,877.00$              

56 Administrative and Support and Waste Management and Remediation Services3,078 2,729 71,077 805.00$                  

61 Educational Services 737 675 104,206 902.00$                  

62 Health Care and Social Assistance 11,074 9,886 177,181 940.00$                  

71 Arts, Entertainment, and Recreation 757 670 17,452 639.00$                  

72 Accommodation and Food Services 5,340 3,897 123,849 406.00$                  

81 Other Services (except Public Administration) 4,753 4,245 30,422 684.00$                  

92 Public Administration 520 173 47,356 1,292.00$              

99 Unclassified 574 573 851 595.00$                  

110



Table 3: Economic Indicator Alamo Region All Industries 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

As indicated in Table 4, the healthcare and social assistance sector continues to enhance its 

position as a primary driver of the local economy.  According to TWC projections, the healthcare 

and social assistance sector in 2018 had 158, 096 jobs and is projected to be the largest industry 

employer with 197,181 jobs in 2028, 39,085 new jobs are added by 2028.  Mining, Quarrying, and 

Oil and Gas Extraction, an industry with downturns after the great recession is project to gain 

5,212 jobs by 2028, with a 41.2% employment increase.  At the low end of the spectrum, 

Agriculture, Forestry, Fishing and Hunting is projected to lose -312 jobs by 2028. 

  

Health Care & Social Assistance, Accommodation & Food Services, Educational Services, 

and Retail Trade are projected to be the four sectors with the most jobs in the WS Alamo region 

in 2028. Workforce Solutions Alamo (WSA) target sectors for 2019 included: Healthcare and 

Social Assistance, Educational Services, Finance and Insurance, Construction, Professional, 

Scientific, and Technical Services, Manufacturing, Transportation & Warehousing, Information, 

and Mining, Quarrying, and Oil and Gas Extraction. The sectors are reviewed on Table 4. with 

2018-2028 projection data. All the 2019 sectors indicate continued growth. 

TABLE 4. INDUSTRY SECTOR PROJECTIONS WITH 2019 SECTORS 

HIGHLIGHTED 

 

 

 
Source: TWC/LMCI/Industry Projections 2018-2028 

 

Economic Development Alignment: WSA regional workforce partners have a history of 

collaborative planning and have executed strategic economic development initiatives aligned with 

targeted industry sectors and occupations.   

 

Industry 

Code

Industry Title Annual Average 

Employment            

  2018

Annual Average 

Employment         

2028

Number 

Change              

 2018-2028

Percent 

Change 

2018-2028

62    Health Care and Social Assistance 158,096 197,181 39,085 24.7

72    Accommodation and Food Services 124,011 145,199 21,188 17.1

44-45 Retail Trade 118,416 136,056 17,640 14.9

61    Educational Services 99,246 111,105 11,859 11.9

999000 Government, Except Postal Services, State and Local Education & Hospitals 78,597 85,797 7,200 9.2

56    Administrative and Support and Waste Management and Remediation Services 72,120 84,170 12,050 16.7

52    Finance and Insurance 66,342 79,485 13,143 19.8

31-33 Manufacturing 52,211 62,442 10,231 19.6

54    Professional, Scientific, and Technical Services 51,265 59,675 8,410 16.4

23    Construction 54,872 57,487 2,615 4.8

81    Other Services (except Public Administration) 40,994 43,920 2,926 7.1

48-49 Transportation and Warehousing 34,783 39,472 4,689 13.5

42    Wholesale Trade 34,521 38,254 3,733 10.8

51    Information 20,449 24,438 3,989 19.5

53    Real Estate and Rental and Leasing 18,165 20,689 2,524 13.9

71    Arts, Entertainment, and Recreation 16,822 20,321 3,499 20.8

21    Mining, Quarrying, and Oil and Gas Extraction 12,647 17,859 5,212 41.2

55    Management of Companies and Enterprises 13,612 15,608 1,996 14.7

11    Agriculture, Forestry, Fishing and Hunting 2,515 2,203 -312 -12.4

22    Utilities 1,335 1,502 167 12.5

Industry 

Title 

Annual 

Average 

Employment 

2018 

Annual 

Average 

Employment 

2028 

Number 

Change 

2018-

2028 

Percent 

Change 

2018-

2028 

Total, All 

Industries 1,158,263 1,340,601 182,338 15.7 

111



The WSA Target Industry Clusters/Sectors/Industries are in strong alignment with those of 

regional economic development partners in metropolitan Bexar County and surrounding counties. 

Bexar County partners, the San Antonio Economic Development Foundation (SA EDF), Bexar 

County Economic Development (Bexar Co ED), SA 2020, SATomorrow, SA Works, the City of 

San Antonio Economic Development Department (CoSA EDD), and the Alamo Area Council of 

Governments (AACOG) as articulated in the region’s Comprehensive Economic Development 

Strategy (CEDS). Table 3 shows the aligned industry clusters with these regional partners. 

 

TABLE 1. ALIGNMENT OF TARGET INDUSTRIES BY REGIONAL PARTNER 

 
 

In addition to the economic development partners identified above, WSA works with economic 

development professionals from rural communities to best align community resources and 

target/demand occupations to meet their needs, and to support initiatives identified as key drivers 

of future economic growth in the Alamo region. Communities throughout the region have unique 

needs that WSA strives to support related to the presence of military bases throughout Bexar 

County, to robust and balanced economic growth in New Braunfels (Comal County) and the 

development of micro-cluster vineyard communities in Fredericksburg (Gillespie County). WSA 

strives to support all communities throughout the region to both capitalize on regional efforts 

driven by large economic development partners, but also to further economic development 

strategies capitalizing on their own unique community assets.   

 

Emerging in-demand industry sectors 

 

Emerging-Industry Sectors and Growth Areas:  

 

Historically, through decades, the Alamo area, had traditional economic influencers that were 

drivers of the economy. The traditional economic assets for the San Antonio and surrounding area 

are: Tourism (Accommodation, Food Service, Retail), Healthcare, Education, and the Military. 

Among the original big three, tourism, healthcare and the military, the military influence remains 

the strongest. Manufacturing, aviation, finance, technology, healthcare, bioscience, and education, 

all are tied to the military. Following the federal base realignment and Closure in 2005, many of 

the Pentagon’s medical functions were transferred to San Antonio. This is highlighted by the 

Medical Education and Training Campus built at Fort Sam Houston, the world’s largest facility 

for military medical education, research, and training. Brooke Army Medical Center, an inpatient 

hospital that is the military’s largest health care organization is also housed at Ft. Sam Houston.  

 

The aviation industry, also a product of both the military and aerospace manufacturing, has 

remained important for San Antonio since the closer of Kelly Air Force Base. Key to the aerospace 

Clusters SA2020

SATomorrow

Growth

SAEDF/

COSA EDD

AACOG

(CEDS) WSA

Healthcare/Bioscience l l l l l

Aerospace l l l l l

Manufacturing l l l l l

IT/Cybersecurity l l l l l

Military/Defense l l l l l

Finance l l

Energy l l l l

Construction l

Business Services l

112



manufacturing industry has been Port San Antonio. In 1995, following the Cold War’s end, Kelly 

Air Force Base was closed. A government entity was created to repair and lease out the vast space 

to private companies, since then, the port has become an important facility and economic driver in 

San Antonio. Port San Antonio is located at the former Kelly AFB, with access to an airport and 

adjacent to Lackland AFB. The port houses heavy industrial and aerospace companies and includes 

tenants like Boeing, GDC Techniques and StandardAero. Port San Antonio has more recently 

evolved into a cybersecurity and IT center. The military has driven tech growth, as well. Some of 

this billion-dollar impact is generated by federal agencies that contract with local IT and 

cybersecurity firms, making San Antonio a lead in the country in concentration of data centers.  

Ventures such as Rackspace, Geekdom, have strengthened the IT economy for the region (Beyer, 

2016).  

 

The backbone of a growth economy is one that has strengthened and diversified. Today San 

Antonio has evolved beyond its “traditional three” economic influencers — tourism, military, and 

health care.  Although these industries remain important economic assets, the target growth areas 

for economic partners include industries with the “new mid-skill, mid-wage” jobs.  Newer mid-

skill/mid-wage jobs require technical certifications and Associates degrees and work experience. 

These jobs are well compensated, show considerable employment growth over time, and their 

performance requires more skilled technical, analytical, problem solving, administrative, and 

communicative skills. The target job growth areas where the “new” analytical, high tech jobs are 

found in the industries and clusters identified by Workforce Solutions Alamo partners including 

SAEDF, San Antonio Tomorrow, San Antonio 2020, AACOG and other economic agencies.  

Target growth Industries include: 1) Healthcare, Bio-Science, Life Sciences, Bio-Scientific-

Research and Development, 2) Information Technology and Cybersecurity, 3) Advanced 

Manufacturing (Aero, Auto and Heavy Equipment) 4) New Energy (Solar, Battery, Natural Gas)  

(Report). 

 

Economic growth in the traditionally “rural “counties surrounding San Antonio also provide many 

economic assets for the WDA. A new economic corridor is emerging in the center of Texas. Hays 

and Comal Counties are part of the Austin and San Antonio metropolitan areas respectively. But 

they are not merely suburbs capturing overflow from larger cities. They are becoming part and 

parcel of an emerging 80-mile-long economic corridor between San Antonio and Austin, along the 

I-35. Texas State Demographer Lloyd Potter foresees an additional 1.5 million people in the 

corridor by 2030, a nearly 34 percent jump. In Hays and Comal counties, the state projects between 

69 and 44 percent in population growth during that period. “Over the next 50 years, Austin and 

San Antonio will become a single mega-metro area” says Potter.  Companies such as the Sysco 

distribution facility in New Braunfels, and other distribution facilities such as Amazon are a 

driving forces in this growth.  The entire I-35 corridor is among the national leaders in job creation. 

The Alamo Counties affected by this growth are Bexar, Comal, Guadalupe, and Kendall.  The 

corridor may also be a catalyst for an emerging high-tech corridor between Austin and San Antonio 

(Beyer, 2016).  

 

Sharing the longest border with Mexico of any U.S. state, Texas has become an important part of 

the realigned North American “auto alley,” now running north from Mexico through several 

southern U.S. states.  The Alamo Manufacturing Partnership is a Department of Commerce special 

designation targeting the Transportation Equipment Manufacturing subsector, NACIS 336. This 

designation has placed the Alamo Region in the top third of the country for employment in this 

manufacturing category. A catalyst to this subsector is the Toyota motor manufacturing plant and 

suppliers on the Southside of San Antonio. Other transportation manufacturing companies located 

in the Alamo WDA are Caterpillar, Boeing, Kalmar RT.  

113



 

Education has traditionally been a part of a high-tech corridor’s success. Education levels in many 

of the counties in the WDA have remained below the national standards. Efforts to educate and 

upskill the workforce are critical to advancing in the target growth industries. Big changes are 

happening in the once rural areas of the Alamo WDA.  WSA’s target industries are inclusive 

industries strengths throughout the Alamo Region and most of the WSA target occupations fall 

withing the “new mid-skill, mid-wage” jobs.  A recent partnership with the City of San Antonio 

and Bexar County has provided opportunity to offer reskilling opportunities to many Bexar County 

and COSA residents affected by COVID-19. The Bexar Strong and the COSA Job Ready initiative 

have strong community support, having recent approval through a City-Wide election.  Census 

data indicates continued population growth in the Alamo WDA 13 Counties. This continued 

population growth is an asset to the local economy. 

 

COVID Essential Sectors: 

 

As the nation comes together to respond to COVID-19, the Cybersecurity, and Infrastructure 

Security agency (CISA) identified the essential sectors and the critical workers employed in these 

sectors that will assist to address the “new” requirements. Over 104 million U.S. workers, or 71 

percent of the total U.S. workforce, are employed in the “Essential Critical Infrastructure 

Workforce” battling COVID-19. Critical worker occupations and numbers vary by state. The 

following sectors were identified as essential: 

 

HEALTHCARE / PUBLIC HEALTH  

Workers, including laboratory personnel, that perform critical clinical, biomedical, and research, 

development, and testing needed for COVID-19 or other diseases. Healthcare providers including, 

but not limited to, physicians, dentists; psychologists; mid- level practitioners; nurses; emergency 

medical services; infection control and quality assurance personnel; phlebotomists; pharmacists; 

physical, respiratory, speech and occupational therapists and assistants; social workers; 

optometrists; speech pathologists; chiropractors; diagnostic and therapeutic technicians; and 

radiology technologists. The healthcare industry also requires many support occupations. 

 

LAW ENFORCEMENT, PUBLIC SAFETY, AND OTHER FIRST RESPONDERS  

Public, private, and voluntary personnel in emergency management, law enforcement, fire and 

rescue services, emergency medical services (EMS), and security, public and private hazardous 

material responders, air medical service providers (pilots and supporting technicians), corrections, 

and search and rescue personnel. Personnel involved in provisioning of access to emergency 

services. Personnel that are involved in the emergency alert system (EAS) (broadcasters, satellite 

radio and television, cable, and wireline video) and wireless emergency alerts (WEA). 

 

EDUCATION  

Workers who support the education of pre-school, K-12, college, university, career and technical 

education, and adult education students, including professors, teachers, teacher aides, special 

education and special needs teachers, ESOL teachers, para-educators, apprenticeship supervisors, 

and specialists.  Workers who provide services necessary to support educators and students. 

 

FOOD AND AGRICULTURE  

Workers enabling the production, sale, distribution of human food, animal food. This includes 

many support service and supplier workers producing food supplies and other agricultural inputs 

for domestic consumption and export. Also includes manufacturing, packaging, and distribution 

of veterinary drugs and biologics (e.g., vaccines).  

114



 

ENERGY  

Workers supporting the energy sector, regardless of the energy source (including, but not limited 

to, nuclear, fossil, hydroelectric, or renewable), segment of the system, or infrastructure the worker 

is involved in, who are needed to construct, manufacture, repair, transport, permit, monitor, operate 

engineer, and maintain the reliability, safety, security, environmental health, and physical and 

cybersecurity of the energy system, including those who support construction, manufacturing, 

transportation, permitting, and logistics. 

 

WATER AND WASTEWATER  

Workers needed to operate and maintain drinking water and wastewater and drainage 

infrastructure.  

 

COMMUNICATIONS AND INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY  

Communications:  Maintenance of communications infrastructure, -- including privately owned 

and maintained communication systems, -- supported by technicians, operators, call centers, 

wireline and wireless providers, cable service providers, satellite operations, Internet Exchange 

Points, Points of Presence, Network Access Pointsand manufacturers and distributors of 

communications equipment. Information Technology: Workers who support command centers, 

including, but not limited to, Network Operations Command Centers, Broadcast Operations 

Control Centers, and Security Operations Command Centers. Data center operators, including 

system administrators, IT managers and purchasers, data transfer solutions engineers, software and 

hardware engineers, and database administrators for all industries. Workers who support client 

service centers, as well as manufacturers and supply chain vendors that provide hardware and 

software, support services, research and development, information technology equipment. 

Workers supporting communications systems, information technology, and work from home 

solutions and remote education. Workers required in person to support Software as a Service 

businesses that enable remote working, and education performance of business operations, 

distance learning, media services, and digital health offerings, or required for technical support 

crucial for business continuity and connectivity. 

  

OTHER COMMUNITY- OR GOVERNMENT-BASED OPERATIONS AND ESSENTIAL 

FUNCTIONS  

Workers to ensure continuity of building functions, including but not limited to security and 

environmental controls (e.g., HVAC), building transportation equipment, the manufacturing and 

distribution of the products required for these functions, and the permits and inspections for 

construction supporting essential infrastructure. Elections personnel. Workers supporting the 

operations of the judicial system. Workers who support administration and delivery of 

unemployment insurance programs, income maintenance, employment services, vocational 

rehabilitation programs and services, disaster assistance, workers’ compensation insurance and 

benefits programs, and pandemic assistance.  Workers providing dependent care services, 

including childcare, eldercare, and other service providers necessary to maintain a comprehensive, 

supportive environment for individuals and caregivers needing these services. 

 

CRITICAL MANUFACTURING  

Workers necessary for the manufacturing of: metals (including steel and aluminum), industrial 

minerals, semiconductors, materials and products needed for medical supply chains, including 

PPE, medical equipment, products to support essential services, remote workforce including 

computing, communications devices, security tools to support communications, information 

technology and for supply chains associated with transportation, building transportation 

115



equipment, aerospace, energy, food and agriculture, chemical manufacturing, nuclear facilities, 

wood products, commodities used as fuel for power generation facilities, the operation of dams, 

water and wastewater treatment, processing and reprocessing of solid waste, emergency services, 

and the defense industrial base. Additionally, workers needed to maintain the continuity of these 

manufacturing functions and associated supply chains, and workers necessary to maintain a 

manufacturing operation.  

 

DEFENSE INDUSTRIAL BASE  

Workers who support the essential services required to meet national security commitments to 

the federal government and U.S. Military, including, but are not limited to, space and aerospace 

workers, nuclear matters workers, mechanical and software engineers (various disciplines), 

manufacturing and production workers, transportation logistics and cargo handling workers, IT 

support, security staff, security personnel, intelligence support, aircraft and weapon system 

mechanics and maintainers, and sanitary workers. 

 

RESIDENTIAL/SHELTER FACILITIES, HOUSING 

Workers who support food, shelter, and social services, and other necessities of life for needy 

groups and individuals, including in-need populations and COVID-19 responders, including 

traveling medical staff. 

 

HYGIENE PRODUCTS AND SERVICES 

Workers to support production of hygiene products, home cleaning, disinfection services, 

sanitation of food manufacturing, pest control, home cleaning and pest control products. 

 

CHEMICAL  

Workers supporting the chemical and industrial gas production and supply chains. 

 

COMMERCIAL FACILITIES  

Workers who support the supply chain of building materials from production through application 

and installation, including plumbing (including parts and services), electrical, heating and cooling, 

refrigeration, appliances, paint and coatings, and repair materials and equipment for essential 

functions. Workers supporting ecommerce of essential goods through distribution, warehouse, call 

center facilities, and other essential operational support functions, that accept, store, and process 

goods, and that facilitate their transportation and delivery. 

 

FINANCIAL SERVICES  

Workers who are needed to provide, process, and maintain systems for processing, verification, 

and recording of financial transactions and services, including payment, clearing, and settlement; 

wholesale funding; insurance services; consumer and commercial lending; public accounting; and 

capital markets activities. 

 

TRANSPORTATION AND LOGISTICS  

Workers supporting or enabling transportation and logistics functions, including truck drivers, bus 

drivers, dispatchers, maintenance and repair technicians, warehouse workers, third party 

logisticians, driver training and education centers, DMV workers, enrollment agents for federal 

transportation worker, towing and recovery services, roadside assistance workers, intermodal 

transportation personnel, and workers that construct, maintain, rehabilitate, and inspect 

infrastructure. Workers who are critical to the manufacturing, distribution, sales, rental, leasing, 

repair, and maintenance of vehicles and other equipment. Warehouse operators, including vendors 

116



and support personnel critical for business continuity. (Guidance on the Essential Critical 

Infrastructure Workforce: Ensuring Community and National Resillence In COVID-19 Response, 

V. 4.0, 2020. August 18). 

 

Governor’s Industry Clusters:  The Governor’s Industry Clusters are: 1) Aerospace and Defense 

Cluster, 2) Advanced Technologies and Manufacturing Cluster, 3) Biotechnology and Life Science 

Cluster, 4) Energy cluster, 5) Petroleum Refining and Chemical Products Cluster, 6) Information 

and Computer Technology Cluster.   

 

San Antonio, sometimes referred to as “Military City, USA” is home to tens of thousands 

of U.S. Air Force personnel and is a major national hub for aircraft maintenance, repair 

and overhaul (MRO). 

 

WSA identified targeted industry clusters that align with the Governor’s Industry Clusters which 

positions the region to capitalize on state investments to support WSA’s regional economic and 

workforce development initiatives.  The Governor’s clusters industry workforce concentration 

maps are color coded for high, above average, and moderate concentrations.  For industries in 

the WSA regional area: 

o There are three industries with a high concentration in the WSA region: Data 

Management, Hosting and Related Services -Funds, Trusts & other Financial Vehicles 

(Mutual) - Insurance Carriers.  

o The maps also indicate an above average concentration in the WSA region for: Aerospace 

Products & Parts Manufacturing - Support Activities for Air Transportation - Medical & 

Diagnostic Laboratories - Motor Vehicle Parts Manufacturing - Motor Vehicle 

Manufacturing - Scientific Research & Development Services - Specialized Hospitals - Oil 

& Gas, Financial Services - Other Financial Investments - HVAC and Refrigeration 

Equipment Manufacturing - Food Manufacturing – Beverage Manufacturing - Support 

Activities for Air Transportation.   

o There was a moderate concentration of the Consumable Pharmaceutical & Medicine 

Manufacturing - Architectural and Engineering Services, Legal Services - Medical 

Equipment Supply Manufacturing - Credit and Consumer Lending Services – Architectural 

and Structural Metals Manufacturing.  

 

    TABLE 2. TARGET CLUSTERS & INDUSTRIES 

The table shows our target clusters and their related target industries in the Alamo Region for 

2021 to 2024. In-demand industry sectors and occupations 

 

Clusters Industries

3361 Motor Vehicle Manufacturing

3363 Motor Vehicle Parts Manufacturing

3364 Aerospace Products and Parts Manufacturing

6211 Offices of Physician 

6221 General Medical and Surgical Hospitals

6223 Specialty (except Psychiatric and Substance Abuse) Hospitals

6212 Offices of Dentists

6215 Medical and Diagnostic Laboratories 

5182 Data Processing and Related Services

5415 Computer Systems Design

5416  Management/Scientific, and Technical Consulting Services

4234 Professional and Commercial Equipment and Supplies Merchant Wholesalers 

2373 Highway, Street, and Bridge Construction

2371 Utility System Construction

5413  Architectural, Engineering, and Related Services

4441 Building Material and Supplies Dealers 

5221 Depository Credit Intermediation 

5242 Agencies, Brokerages, and Other Insurance Related Activities

2111 Oil & Gas Extraction

4931 Warehousing and Storage

2131 Support Activities for Mining

Education 6111-Elementary and Secondary Schools

Oil & Gas/ Warehousing & 

Transportation/Finance/Others

TARGETS

Aerospace/Manufacturing

Health

Information Technology/Cybersecurity

Construction/Architecture/Utilities

117



The WSA region continues to have strong and diversified industries, and many industry sectors in 

the area are considered emerging in-demand industry sectors. For 2021-2024, the WSA Board will 

target industries for both the high demand and targeted occupations that are expected to continue 

to experience high growth, high demand and offer living wages.  The following table shows 

WSA’s in-demand industry sectors for 2020-2024. 

 

TABLE 3. TARGET INDUSTRY SECTORS 

 
 

WSA applies TWC’s long term projections to identify industries and occupations that will likely 

grow the fastest (by % change).  Long term projections also point to industries and occupations 

likely to have the largest absolute employment growth (by number change) over the projected 

period, from 2018-2028.  The projections for fastest growing or most added jobs were included in 

the data analysis of target industries and occupations for the Alamo region.  Industries were also 

selected based on secondary data targets, such as average weekly wages, competitive effect, 

Location Quotient, Regional % of Industry, percent female employment and “local wisdom.”  

Growth assumes an adequate supply of workers with relevant skills; therefore, an analysis of 

trained/available workers and a validation of skills gaps were also completed. The local labor 

market analysis included input from all relevant stakeholders.  

 

A recent employer survey conducted in collaboration with the UTSA Policy Institute utilized 

Qualtrics an online survey tool, to analyze survey responses. The questions measured the 

employer’s knowledge of occupations with labor shortages. The target population were employers 

withing the 13 county WSA regions. A qualifying question assure the response was from the target 

population. Utilizing a sample of convenience, the survey indicated the response to the following: 

 

Q1.5 - Please list and describe the top occupation where your organization has a critical labor 

shortage. (e.g. Welder, fill holes, indentions, or seams of metal products) 

 

 The results of the survey indicated labor shortages in the following top fifteen occupations: Sales, 

Data Analyst, Childcare Providers, Electricians, Electrician Apprentice, Electrician Helper, Sheet 

Metal Technicians, Electrical Engineers, Contracting Specialist, Qualified Office Staff, Qualified 

Sales Staff, Registered Nurses, Carpenters, Property, Casualty Insurance, Security Officer. The 

survey responses were considered during the target occupation analysis. 

 

Industry Level

Industry 

Code

Industry Title Annual 

Average 

Employmen

t            

Annual 

Average 

Employ

ment         

Number 

Change              

2018-2028

Percent 

Change 2018-

2028

Sector (2 digit) 62    Health Care and Social Assistance 158,096 197,181 39,085 24.7

Sector (2 digit) 44-45 Retail Trade 118,416 136,056 17,640 14.9

Sector (2 digit) 61    Educational Services 99,246 111,105 11,859 11.9

Sector (2 digit) 52    Finance and Insurance 66,342 79,485 13,143 19.8

Sector (2 digit) 31-33 Manufacturing 52,211 62,442 10,231 19.6

Sector (2 digit) 54    Professional, Scientific, and Technical Services 51,265 59,675 8,410 16.4

Sector (2 digit) 23    Construction 54,872 57,487 2,615 4.8

Sector (2 digit) 48-49 Transportation and Warehousing 34,783 39,472 4,689 13.5

Sector (2 digit) 42    Wholesale Trade 34,521 38,254 3,733 10.8

Sector (2 digit) 51    Information 20,449 24,438 3,989 19.5

Sector (2 digit) 21    Mining, Quarrying, and Oil and Gas Extraction 12,647 17,859 5,212 41.2

Source: TWC/LMCI/Projections-Totals will not add due to rounding and suppression for confidentiality

118



TABLE 4. HIGH DEMAND OCCUPATIONS 

 

These high demand occupations are not supported by WIOA training (i.e., Individual Training Accounts), unless otherwise included in the 

Target Occupation List.  They represent occupations that are in high demand. These Occupations fall withing the staffing pattern of the target 

industries and Selection Criteria includes Percent change >= 15.7% and/or Number change (absolute) >= 500 Mean Wage >= $15.00 hourly 

($31,200 annual). Occupations may fall withing the career pathway of the Target Occupations either at a more advanced or entry education 

level.  

 

 

SOC Code Occupational Title Education

Entry 

Level 

Wage (as 

of 2019)

Experienced 

Level Wage (as 

of 2019)

Change in 

employme

nt 2028 - 

2018

Percentage 

Change

Change in 

Emp by 

Growth

Help 

Wanted 

Ads - 3rd 

Qtr 2020 Career Cluster STEM

2019 

Mean 

Hourly 

Wage Target Industry Title- Staffing Pattern

Manufacturing/Construction/Architecture/Oil and Gas Extraction & Energy
11-9041 Architectural and Engineering Managers Bachelor's Degree $91,001 $172,289 116 23.15 12 100 Science, Technology, Engineering and MathematicsYes $69.80 Transportation Equipment Manufacturing

17-2141 Mechanical Engineers Bachelor's Degree $67,067 $114,798 286 27.9 29 219 Science, Technology, Engineering and MathematicsYes $47.54 Transportation Equipment Manufacturing

17-2171 Petroleum Engineers Bachelor's Degree $98,320 $239,949 347 45.84 35 0 Science, Technology, Engineering and MathematicsYes $92.66 Mining, Quarrying, and Oil and Gas Extraction

17-2199 Engineers, All  Other Bachelor's Degree $70,674 $129,697 202 24.08 20 215 Science, Technology, Engineering and MathematicsYes $52.90 Architectural, Engineering, and Related Services

17-3025 Environmental Engineering Technologists and Technicians Associate's Degree $29,780 $56,618 49 21.4 5 0 Agriculture, Food and Natural ResourcesYes $22.92 Transportation Equipment Manufacturing

19-2042 Geoscientists, Except Hydrologists and Geographers Bachelor's Degree $57,567 $107,082 253 55.97 25 3 Science, Technology, Engineering and MathematicsYes $43.55 Architectural, Engineering, and Related Services

Education and  Education Support/ Health Care
27-2022 Coaches and Scouts Bachelor's Degree $26,649 $61,164 260 23.66 26 313 Education and Training No $23.87 Elementary and Secondary Schools

11-9111 Medical and Health Services Managers Bachelor's Degree $65,282 $138,707 837 24.24 84 1,630 Business, Management and AdministrationYes $28.14 Hospitals

29-9091 Athletic Trainers Bachelor's Degree $36,708 $64,049 48 29.81 5 37 Health Science Yes $26.41 Elementary and Secondary Schools

Transportation and Warehousing/Related -Wholesale-Retail Trade
11-3071 Transportation, Storage, and Distribution Managers High-School Diploma or Equivalent $60,589 $114,551 137 19.13 14 259 Transportation, Distribution and LogisticsNo $46.42 Merchant Wholesalers, Durable Goods 

13-1121 Meeting, Convention, and Event Planners Bachelor's Degree $34,611 $69,766 132 19.05 13 63 Hospitality and Tourism No $27.91 Hospitals

41-4012 Sales Rep., Wholesale & Manufacturing, Except Tech. & Scientific ProductsHigh-School Diploma or Equivalent $32,431 $86,856 1,178 14.45 118 4,027 Marketing, Sales and Service No $33.04 Building Material and Garden Equipment and Supplies Dealers 

43-9061 Office Clerks, General High-School Diploma or Equivalent $22,648 $40,777 1,779 6.14 178 567 Marketing, Sales and Service No $16.70 Mining, Quarrying, and Oil and Gas Extraction

47-1011 First-Line Supervisors of Construction Trades and Extraction Workers High-School Diploma or Equivalent $46,674 $71,774 640 10.96 64 214 Architecture and Construction No $30.48 Mining, Quarrying, and Oil and Gas Extraction

49-1011 First-Line Supervisors of Mechanics, Installers, and Repairers High-School Diploma or Equivalent $44,820 $75,237 498 16.03 50 630 Manufacturing No $31.30 Mining, Quarrying, and Oil and Gas Extraction

51-7011 Cabinetmakers and Bench Carpenters High-School Diploma or Equivalent $23,528 $38,415 238 28.88 24 21 Manufacturing No $16.08 Transportation Equipment Manufacturing

51-9023 Mixing and Blending Machine Setters, Operators, and Tenders High-School Diploma or Equivalent $24,018 $41,120 125 17.48 12 15 Manufacturing No $17.03 Mining, Quarrying, and Oil and Gas Extraction

27-3031 Public Relations Specialists Bachelor's Degree $35,211 $70,202 454 17.04 45 255 Marketing, Sales and Service No $28.14 Hospitals

Source: TWC/LMCI/Projections/LMI Tools

119



 

Target industry sectors and occupations 

 

A list of the target industry sectors and occupations are found below: 

 

Industries and Occupations identified as priority investment areas for WSA are included in the 

Target Occupation List which, at the request of our Board, we are titling “Target Occupation 

Career Paths” (Target List).  Targeted occupations are those that are authorized for training 

expenditures from the Workforce Innovation Opportunity Act (WIOA).  WSA will commit 

resources in the form of Individual Training Accounts (ITAs) to promote high-growth/high-

demand industries and occupations that include educational programs offering industry-

recognized credentialing.  While On-the-Job Training (OJTs), Work Experience, and other 

individualized services for customers are related to these occupations, these services are tied to the 

career lattices and industries (and not specifically the occupation, as allowable).  

 

Scope.  It is important to note that WSA’s investments to meet labor demands of 

industry/employers is not limited to the Target List.  WSA’s mission and scope includes offering 

services to businesses in need of labor – generating quality matches between job seekers and 

employers is perhaps the most critical workforce development task.  Please refer to Part A. 

Question #4 in this document for a broader description of Business Engagement and Business 

Services.  The Target List also represents local regional economic and workforce development 

priorities, for which WSA will pursue opportunities for special projects, potential grants, etc., 

through regional collaboration.   

 

Methodology.  To select the industries and occupations, we applied a specific methodology and 

used specific data sources as guided and required by TWC, including the use of both ‘primary’ 

and ‘secondary’ data targets.  TWC recommends for the Target List to include 20-40 target 

occupations.  It is permissible (and conducive) for large Board regions (such as WSA) to have 

more than 40 but not in excess. 

 

Local Wisdom.  WSA’s original list includes 59 occupations.  Based on local wisdom and 

comments received through the public comment period held January 8, 2021 – January 22, 2021 

as well as WSA Board, local public official, and key stakeholder feedback. 

 

Local Partnerships.  The work that several key partners do with industry and employers ties into 

other local funding streams and resources.  These funding streams depend on and/or are tied to the 

occupations on the Target List.  WSA is cognizant of this extended type of role that the Target List 

plays at the local level and is fully in support of this type of regional collaboration.   For this reason, 

we have included occupations that, based on local wisdom, help leverage local resources.  Targets 

of investments and growth targets of key local stakeholders (e.g., AACOG, SATomorrow, 

SA2020, SAEDF/COSA EDD, Port of SA) play a primary role for alignment of WSA’s target 

industries. 

 

Standard Occupational Classification (SOC) Crosswalks.  We received recommendations for 

occupations without a specific SOC code tied to them.  In as best possible, these occupations were 

cross-walked, and all the occupations for which a SOC code was identified were reviewed using 

primary and secondary data targets.   

 

Classification of Instructional Programs (CIP) Codes.  Some occupations submitted for review 

were not tied or did not crosswalk to a formal educational/training credentialing program, or CIP 

120



Code.  All occupations in the Target List are required to have a CIP code.  CIP codes are tied to 

our Occupational/Vocational Training, and to specific programs as offered by training providers 

registered through the Eligible Training Provider System (ETPS), and which must meet additional 

State requirements. 

 

In-demand Industries.  In-demand industries are defined by TWC as an industry or industry 

sector that has a substantial current or potential impact on the local economy.  They include jobs 

that lead to economic self-sufficiency and opportunities for advancement, and that contribute to 

the growth or stability of other industry sectors or businesses.   

 

Target Industries.  Target industries have a high demand for workers due to growth or expansion.  

These industries provide sustainable job opportunities and opportunities for advancement.  Three 

key characteristics of the staffing patterns of these industries show that they are projected to 

provide good pay, job security, and job portability.  The target wage for these industries was set at 

a minimum average of $15.00 an hour.   

 

Target industries should reflect the following: 

• Turnover that is consistently moderate (including most of their occupations); 

• High unmet demand for labor that may be a good option for:  

o career changers, 

o students selecting a major, or  

o officials who develop training programs.  

• Workers do not move from site to site and from employer to employer with a lot of turnover 

(separations with replacement hires); 

• Other optional economic factors that affect the outlook of staffing patterns may include:  

o A high-technology occupation,  

o The degree to which they are tied to “newer” middle-skill, middle-wage 

occupations and/or STEM,  

o Local targets for investments and job trends that indicate: 

▪ expansion hiring,  

▪ continued growth,  

▪ demand for or emerging skills (such as high technical, analytical, 

communicative skills).   

• Be minimally impacted by business cycles, or seasonal hiring.  Traditionally there are 

industries with occupations that are affected by the business or seasonal cycles, the ups and 

downs due to weather or contracted jobs.  The occupations in the staffing pattern of these 

industries may reflect replacement hiring due to high turnover, as well as seasonal hiring 

rather than expansion hiring.  For example, the accommodations, food services, and retail 

trade are industries characterized with changes in employment due to seasonal cycles.  

Construction Laborers may be an occupation affected by business cycles and is often 

affected by contracted jobs.  However, the more technical occupations in the construction 

industry such as plumbers, electricians, sheet-metal workers, iron-steel workers are not 

readily affected by the business cycle because of the demand for the technical skills for 

these occupations. 

 

 

 

 

 

121



In-demand Industries & Target Occupations 

Policy Statement 

 

WSA is committed to move towards in-demand industry sectors and target occupations 

that pay a living wage, and 

invest funds in ways that promote sustainability.   

 

122



Table 5. Target Occupation List (2021)-Selection Criteria Percent change >= 15.7% and/or Number change (absolute) >= 500 Mean Wage >= $15.00 hourly ($31,200 annual) 

Secondary Data Targets: Employment change due to growth (not exits) >= 50, Entry Wage >= $15.00 hourly, Help Wanted Online (HWOL) postings >= 300, STEM related,  

Staffing Pattern Target Industry, Occupations identified by TWC as adding the most jobs or fastest growing, Local Targets for Investment, Local Wisdom 

No. SOC Code Occupational Title Education

Entry 

Level 

Wage (as 

of 2019)

Experienced 

Level Wage 

(as of 2019)

Change in 

employment 

2028 - 2018

Percentage 

Change

Change in 

Emp by 

Growth

Help 

Wanted 

Ads - 3rd 

Qtr 2020 Career Cluster STEM

2019 

Mean 

Hourly 

Wage

2019 

Mean 

Annual 

Wage Target Industry Title- Staffing Pattern

1 11-3021 Computer and Information Systems Managers Bachelor's Degree $96,234 $166,005 316 23.71 32 61 Information Technology Yes $68.63 $142,748 Computer Systems Design and Related Services

2 15-1211 Computer Systems Analysts*15-1121 Bachelor's Degree $61,692 $118,730 994 24.36 99 730 Information Technology Yes $47.94 $99,717 Computer Systems Design and Related Services

3 15-1212 Information Security Analysts *15-1122 Bachelor's Degree N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A Information Technology Yes $43.79 $91,075 Computer Systems Design and Related Services

4 15-1231 Computer Network Support Specialists *15-1152 Associate's Degree $42,999 $72,399 248 19.98 25 117 Information Technology Yes $30.10 $62,599 Computer Systems Design and Related Services

5 15-1232 Computer User Support Specialists *15-1151 Some College, No Degree $33,317 $56,806 1,098 24.82 110 1,135 Information Technology No $23.55 $48,976 Computer Systems Design and Related Services

6 15-1241 Computer Network Architects *15-1143 Bachelor's Degree $80,049 $130,160 207 20.25 21 293 Information Technology Yes $54.55 $113,456 Computer Systems Design and Related Services

7 15-1244 Network and Computer Systems Administrators *15-1142Bachelor's Degree $58,999 $92,573 820 24.8 82 673 Information Technology Yes $39.13 $81,382 Management, Scientific, and Technical Consulting Services

8 15-1256 Software Developers and Software Quality Assurance Analysts and Testers (15-1132, 15-1133)Bachelor's Degree $74,285 $126,111 1,513 39.47 151 3,070 Information Technology Yes $52.32 $108,836 Computer Systems Design and Related Services

9 15-1257 Web Developers and Digital Interface Designers * 15-1134Associate's Degree $44,961 $87,605 181 21.78 18 239 Information Technology Yes $35.28 $73,391 Computer Systems Design and Related Services

10 15-2031 Operations Research AnalystsL Bachelor's Degree $54,381 $95,984 440 38.97 44 459 Business, Management and AdministrationYes $39.48 $82,116 Computer Systems Design and Related Services

11 17-2061 Computer Hardware Engineers Bachelor's Degree $72,200 $117,480 26 23.64 3 51 Science, Technology, Engineering and MathematicsYes $49.22 $102,386 Computer Systems Design and Related Services

12 41-4011 Sales Rep., Wholesale & Manufacturing, Technical & Scientific ProductsBachelor's Degree $48,293 $109,345 207 24.79 21 327 Marketing, Sales and Service No $42.79 $88,994 Merchant Wholesalers, Durable Goods 

13 11-1021 General and Operations Managers Bachelor's Degree $53,590 $149,577 2,766 18.23 277 999 Business, Management and AdministrationNo $56.53 $117,582 Building Material and Garden Equipment and Supplies Dealers 

14 13-1041 Compliance Officers Bachelor's Degree $43,857 $85,228 420 17.83 42 149 Government and Public Administration No $34.35 $71,438 Management, Scientific, and Technical Consulting Services

15 13-1071 Human Resources Specialists Bachelor's Degree $45,269 $80,511 826 15.09 83 789 Business, Management and AdministrationNo $33.06 $68,764 Mining, Quarrying, and Oil and Gas Extraction

16 13-1081 Logisticians Bachelor's Degree $58,134 $95,634 239 18.67 24 128 Transportation, Distribution and LogisticsNo $39.97 $83,134 Transportation Equipment Manufacturing

17 13-1111 Management Analysts Bachelor's Degree $57,131 $94,485 1,098 24.96 110 790 Business, Management and AdministrationNo $39.44 $82,034 Hospitals

18 13-1151 Training and Development Specialists Bachelor's Degree $39,002 $70,124 533 22.46 53 309 Education and Training No $28.73 $59,750 Hospitals

19 13-1161 Market Research Analysts and Marketing SpecialistsBachelor's Degree $37,130 $82,264 726 31.55 73 423 Marketing, Sales and Service Yes $32.32 $67,220 Management, Scientific, and Technical Consulting Services

20 17-2112 Industrial Engineers Bachelor's Degree $64,520 $118,533 516 38.36 52 39 Science, Technology, Engineering and MathematicsYes $48.33 $100,529 Transportation Equipment Manufacturing

21 17-3026 Industrial Engineering Technologists and TechniciansAssociate's Degree $41,068 $71,584 70 20.11 7 328 Manufacturing Yes $29.53 $61,412 Transportation Equipment Manufacturing

22 49-3011 Aircraft Mechanics and Service Technicians Postsecondary Non-Degree Award $39,292 $62,987 256 15.19 26 129 Transportation, Distribution and LogisticsNo $26.49 $55,089 Transportation Equipment Manufacturing

23 43-5061 Production, Planning, and Expediting Clerks High-School Diploma or Equivalent $33,950 $55,689 439 19.05 44 301 Manufacturing No $23.29 $48,443 Transportation Equipment Manufacturing

24 47-2073 Operating Engineers and Other Construction Equipment OperatorsHigh-School Diploma or Equivalent $31,993 $44,430 557 15.73 56 84 Architecture and Construction No $19.37 $40,284 Mining, Quarrying, and Oil and Gas Extraction

25 47-2111 Electricians High-School /Equivalent/Apprenticeship $34,071 $56,648 670 13.91 67 324 Architecture and Construction No $23.62 $49,122 Construction

26 47-2152 Plumbers, Pipefitters, and Steamfitters High-School /Equivalent/Apprenticeship $29,600 $53,382 546 17.52 55 299 Architecture and Construction No $21.85 $45,455 Construction

27 47-2211 Sheet Metal Workers High-School /Equivalent/Apprenticeship $30,559 $46,292 28 2.21 3 66 Architecture and Construction No $19.73 $41,048 Construction/Transportation Equipment Manufacturing

28 49-3031 Bus and Truck Mechanics and Diesel Engine SpecialistsHigh-School Diploma or Equivalent $37,846 $56,511 320 18.78 32 166 Transportation, Distribution and LogisticsNo $26.49 $55,089 Transportation Equipment Manufacturing

29 49-9041 Industrial Machinery Mechanics High-School Diploma or Equivalent $32,698 $58,712 482 22.64 48 167 Manufacturing No $24.06 $50,041 Mining, Quarrying, and Oil and Gas Extraction

30 51-1011 First-Line Supervisors of Production and Operating WorkersHigh-School Diploma or Equivalent $39,144 $74,766 741 21.87 74 249 Manufacturing No $30.24 $62,892 Mining, Quarrying, and Oil and Gas Extraction

31 51-4041 Machinists High-School Diploma or Equivalent $29,114 $55,569 360 31.28 36 34 Manufacturing No $22.48 $46,750 Transportation Equipment Manufacturing

32 51-4121 Welders, Cutters, Solderers, and Brazers High-School Diploma or Equivalent $30,363 $51,619 299 10.77 30 88 Manufacturing No $21.41 $44,534 Transportation Equipment Manufacturing

33 53-3032 Heavy and Tractor-Trailer Truck Drivers Postsecondary Non-Degree Award $30,041 $48,880 2,341 14.8 234 2,296 Transportation, Distribution and LogisticsNo $20.48 $42,600 Warehousing

34 11-3031 Financial Managers Bachelor's Degree $71,645 $175,285 930 31.32 93 630 Business, Management and AdministrationYes $67.66 $140,738 Hospitals

35 13-2052 Personal Financial Advisors *13-2051 Bachelor's Degree $49,883 $113,155 237 24.97 24 197 Finance No $36.24 $75,372 Management, Scientific, and Technical Consulting Services

36 43-4051 Customer Service Representatives High-School Diploma or Equivalent $23,676 $37,830 3,720 11.88 372 3,798 Marketing, Sales and Service No $15.92 $33,112 Transportation Equipment Manufacturing

37 13-2011 Accountants and Auditors Bachelor's Degree $48,911 $87,747 1,984 21.02 198 761 Business, Management and AdministrationYes $35.96 $74,802 Transportation Equipment Manufacturing

38 41-3031 Securities, Commodities, and Financial Services Sales AgentsBachelor's Degree $33,955 $93,514 985 22.23 98 300 Finance No $35.41 $73,661 Hospitals

39 43-3031 Bookkeeping, Accounting, and Auditing Clerks Some College, No Degree $29,549 $46,957 890 7.55 89 664 Business, Management and AdministrationYes $19.79 $41,155 Mining, Quarrying, and Oil and Gas Extraction

40 13-1031 Claims Adjusters, Examiners, and Investigators High-School Diploma or Equivalent $47,944 $74,698 559 14.74 56 186 Finance No $31.62 $65,780 Agencies, Brokerages, and Other Insurance Related Activities

41 29-1031 Dietitians and Nutritionists Bachelor's Degree $42,396 $69,369 134 23.02 13 319 Health Science Yes $29.03 $60,378 Denist

42 29-1126 Respiratory Therapists Associate's Degree $48,755 $65,391 332 22.51 33 238 Health Science Yes $28.77 $59,845 Hospitals

43 29-1141 Registered Nurses Bachelor's Degree $54,270 $81,386 3,795 18.01 380 6,786 Health Science Yes $34.78 $72,348 Hospitals

44 29-2031 Cardiovascular Technologists and Technicians Associate's Degree $32,893 $65,996 74 15.91 7 239 Health Science Yes $26.42 $54,962 Hospitals

45 29-2032 Diagnostic Medical Sonographers Associate's Degree $54,011 $77,023 106 29.28 11 110 Health Science Yes $33.34 $69,353 Hospitals

46 29-2034 Radiologic Technologists and Technicians Associate's Degree $44,061 $66,648 324 19.49 32 229 Health Science Yes $28.42 $59,119 Offices of Physicians

46 29-2035 Magnetic Resonance Imaging Technologists Associate's Degree $59,130 $77,683 39 23.08 4 89 Health Science No $34.37 $71,499 Hospitals

48 29-2052 Pharmacy Technicians High-School Diploma or Equivalent $30,282 $40,461 600 19.72 60 428 Health Science Yes $17.82 $37,068 Hospitals

49 29-2055 Surgical Technologists Postsecondary Non-Degree Award $33,366 $46,785 161 13.47 16 193 Health Science Yes $20.34 $42,312 Hospitals

50 29-2061 Licensed Practical and Licensed Vocational Nurses Postsecondary Non-Degree Award $36,297 $50,626 1,031 14.58 103 1,650 Health Science Yes $22.04 $45,850 Offices of Physicians

51 29-2098 Medical Dosimetrists, Medical Recrds Specs, & Health Technols & Techs, AOPostsecondary Non-Degree Award $29,439 $51,955 421 30.27 42 599 Health Science Yes $21.37 $44,449 Offices of Physicians

52 31-2021 Physical Therapist Assistants Associate's Degree $41,960 $77,584 218 35.28 22 107 Health Science No $31.59 $65,709 Hospitals

53 31-9091 Dental Assistants Postsecondary Non-Degree Award $29,366 $41,703 1,039 30.87 104 336 Health Science No $18.07 $37,591 Hospitals

54 31-9092 Medical Assistants Postsecondary Non-Degree Award $26,261 $34,179 1,640 26.35 164 1,205 Health Science No $15.16 $31,539 Offices of Physicians

55 31-9097 Phlebotomists Postsecondary Non-Degree Award $27,040 $35,183 190 22.51 19 264 Health Science No $15.61 $32,468 Hospitals

56 43-6013 Medical Secretaries and Administrative AssistantsHigh-School Diploma or Equivalent $26,394 $41,564 2,222 24.88 222 1,029 Business, Management and AdministrationNo $17.55 $36,507 Hospitals

57 25-2021 Elementary School Teachers, Except Special EducationBachelor's Degree $47,526 $60,202 1,599 13.52 160 274 Education and Training No $26.91 $55,977 Elementary and Secondary Schools

58 25-2022 Middle School Teachers, Except Special and Career/Technical EducationBachelor's Degree $50,863 $60,861 710 13.65 71 483 Education and Training No $23.45 $57,529 Elementary and Secondary Schools

59 33-3051 Police and Sheriff's Patrol Officers High-School Diploma or Equivalent $43,941 $66,110 576 11.95 58 57 Law, Public Safety, Corrections and SecurityNo $28.23 $58,720 Elementary and Secondary Schools

Source: TWC/LMCI 2018-2028 Projections/LMI Tools

Cyber Security/information Technology

Transportation and Warehousing/Related -Wholesale-Retail Trade

Manufacturing/Construction/Architecture/Oil and Gas Extraction & Energy

Finance/Insurance/Other

Healthcare

Education and  Education Support

123



 

 
 

 

An analysis of knowledge and skills to meet employer needs.  

 

B. Knowledge and Skills Analysis  

Boards must include an analysis of the knowledge and skills needed to meet the employment needs 

of the employers in the region, including employment needs for in-demand industry sectors, in-

demand occupations, and target occupations.  

Minimum Plan Requirements:  

An analysis of knowledge and skills needed to meet the following:  

Employers’ needs  

Employment needs in in-demand industry sectors, in-demand occupations, and target occupations  

Board Response: 

The following table shows the number of regional institutions degree and certificate completions. 

Regional Trends indicate that a % change of 132% between 2003 and 2016. 

Table 1: All Completions for All programs for Certificates and Degrees 

County County Name 

All 

Completions - 

All Program 

Types - 2019 

Completions 

All 

certificates - 

All Program 

Types - 2019 

Completions 

All degrees - 

All Program 

Types - 2019 

Completions 

All degrees -

All Program 

Completions 

% Change 

(2003-2016) 

48029 Bexar 31,152 6,305 24,847 132% 

48265 Kerr 348 27 321 115% 

48187 Guadalupe 322 9 313 22% 

48091 Comal 19 19 0 0% 

48013 Atascosa 0 0 0 0% 

48019 Bandera 0 0 0 0% 

48163 Frio 0 0 0 0% 

48171 Gillespie 0 0 0 0% 

48255 Karnes 0 0 0 0% 

48259 Kendall 0 0 0 0% 

48311 McMullen 0 0 0 0% 

48325 Medina 0 0 0 0% 

48493 Wilson 0 0 0 0% 

Total   31,841 6,360 25,481 129% 

Source: EMSI 

  

124



 

 
 

Educational Attainment Gaps 

An educational attainment gap is indicated in the number of bachelor’s degrees required to meet 

the job demands in the Alamo Region.   A gap is also indicated in the high school diploma or 

equivalent required to meet the job demands of the region.  The results are an underemployment 

gap in the region. 

Table 2: Educational Attainment Gap 

 

In 2019, there were 31,152 graduates in the 13 Alamo Counties. This pipeline has grown by 9 % 

over the last 5 years. The highest   share of these graduates come   from Liberal Arts and 

Sciences/Liberal Studies, General Studies, and   Medical/Clinical Assistant.   Table 3 shows the 

primary educational pipeline and the number of graduates. 

 

Table 3: Educational Institutions Creating a Pipeline with Total Graduates 

 

Source: EMSI  

School Total Graduates (2019)

The University of Texas at San Antonio 7,116

San Antonio College 3,622

Northwest Vista College 3,078

University of the Incarnate Word 2,438

St Philip's College 2,207

Palo Alto College 1,741

Texas A&M University-San Antonio 1,669

The University of Texas Health Science Center at San Antonio 1,326

Our Lady of the Lake University 918

St. Mary's University 903

Educational Pipeline

Education Level 

Jobs 

Requiring 

Ed. Level 

Population at 

Ed. Level 

No 

Education 

Gap 

 

Education 

Gap 

No Formal Education Required 19% 16%  3% 

High School Diploma or 

Equivalent 
43% 26%  16% 

Some College, Non-Degree 

Award 
9% 23% (14%) 

 

Associate degree 2% 8% (6%)  

Bachelor's Degree 24% 17%  6% 

Graduate Degree and Higher 4% 9% (6%)  

Source: EMSI 

125



 

 
 

Figure 1- below compares the education attainment at for the Alamo Region, the State and the 

Nation. The percent of the population having attained High School Diploma and Some College is 

higher than the State’s % of the population.  The attainment of a bachelor’s and Graduate degree 

is less than the State or the Nation. 

 

Figure 1:  Educational Completions Regional Trends: 

 

Source: EMSI/Economic Analysis 

Figure 2: Regional Completions by Award Level (EMSI) 

 

 

8% 8%

26%

23%

8%

17%

9%10%
8%

25%

22%

7%

19%

10%

6% 7%

27%

21%

8%

19%

12%

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

Less Than 9th
Grade

9th Grade to 12th
Grade

High School
Diploma

Some College Associate's
Degree

Bachelor's Degree Graduate Degree
and Higher

Educational Attainment Comparison Alamo,  State, National

2018 % of Population 2018 State % Population 2018 National % Population

Educational Attainment 
 

Concerning educational attainment, 17.2% of the selected regions' residents possess a Bachelor's 

Degree (1.8% below the national average), and 7.8% hold an Associate's Degree (0.4% below the national 

average). 

 
 % of Population Population 

 
⬤ 

 
Less Than 9th Grade 

 
8.1% 

 
144,564 

 
⬤ 

 
9th Grade to 12th Grade 

 
8.1% 

 
143,741 

 
⬤ 

 
High School Diploma 

 
26.5% 

 
471,454 

 
⬤ 

 
Some College 

 
22.9% 

 
408,207 

 
⬤ 

 
Associate's Degree 

 
7.8% 

 
139,323 

 
⬤ 

 
Bachelor's Degree 

 
17.2% 

 
307,203 

 
⬤ 

 
Graduate Degree and Higher 

 
9.4% 

 
167,307 

 

While 22.9% of the 

population in the 

Alamo Region have 

some college, but 

no-degree, most 

program 

completions in 

2019 are bachelor’s 

degree with 17.2% 

of the population 

obtaining an 

award.  

126



 

 
 

Knowledge & Skills In-Demand. 

Using Job Postings Analytics, EMSI, Table 9. shows the top 30 most requested Certifications & 

Degrees. Table 10 provide insight into the supply and demand of relevant skills. The skills 

associated with workforce profiles represent workers of all education and experience levels. 

TABLE 6. CERTIFICATIONS & DEGREES 

 
                        SOURCE: EMSI      

         

TABLE 7. HARD SKILLS & SOFT SKILLS 

 

Qualification (Certifications and Degrees)
Postings with 

Qualification
Commercial Driver's License (CDL) 9,883
Licensed Vocational Nurses 2,428

Certified Nursing Assistant 2,119

Bachelor of Science in Nursing (BSN) 1,722

Bachelor of Science in Business 1,706

Licensed Practical Nurse 1,519

Master Of Business Administration (MBA) 1,350

Certified Information Systems Security Professional 1,057

Certified Public Accountant 1,004

CompTIA Security+ 922

Nurse Practitioner 894

Project Management Professional Certification 804

IAT Level II Certification 725

Certified Information System Auditor (CISA) 594

Associates Degree In Nursing 574

Certified Internal Auditor 537

Certificate Of Clinical Competence In Speech-Language Pathology (CCC-SLP) 494

GIAC Certifications 476

Food Handler's Card 467

CDL Class B License 458

Certified Pharmacy Technician 449

Critical Care Registered Nurse (CCRN) 425

Master of Science in Nursing (MSN) 405

Licensed Clinical Social Worker (LCSW) 395

Hazmat Endorsement 389

Automotive Service Excellence (ASE) Certification 384

Radiologic Technologist 373

Certified Medical Assistant 349

Cisco Certified Network Associate 343

American Registry Of Radiologic Technologists (ARRT) Certified 341

Hard Skill
Frequency 

in Postings

Postings with Skill / 

Total Postings (Jun 

2020 - Nov 2020)

Frequency 

in Profiles

Profiles with Skill / 

Total Profiles (2018 - 

2020)

Nursing 6% 9,817 / 174,003 2% 15,274 / 658,311

Auditing 5% 9,485 / 174,003 3% 23,012 / 658,311

Merchandising 5% 8,452 / 174,003 3% 22,608 / 658,311

Accounting 4% 7,554 / 174,003 5% 34,648 / 658,311

Selling Techniques 4% 6,256 / 174,003 3% 20,928 / 658,311

Basic Life Support 3% 6,062 / 174,003 1% 7,983 / 658,311

Restaurant Operation 3% 5,651 / 174,003 2% 15,513 / 658,311

Cardiopulmonary Resuscitation (CPR) 3% 5,466 / 174,003 3% 16,736 / 658,311

Warehousing 3% 4,915 / 174,003 3% 17,643 / 658,311

Data Analysis 3% 4,415 / 174,003 2% 14,056 / 658,311

Agile Methodology 3% 4,387 / 174,003 1% 4,297 / 658,311

Risk Management 2% 4,290 / 174,003 2% 12,588 / 658,311

Financial Services 2% 4,162 / 174,003 2% 15,716 / 658,311

Customer Satisfaction 2% 4,136 / 174,003 4% 26,160 / 658,311

Customer Experience 2% 3,863 / 174,003 1% 5,892 / 658,311

Strategic Planning 2% 3,706 / 174,003 7% 47,676 / 658,311

Project Management 2% 3,691 / 174,003 6% 37,404 / 658,311

Caregiving 2% 3,614 / 174,003 0% 2,705 / 658,311

Bill ing 2% 3,418 / 174,003 4% 26,157 / 658,311

Cash Register 2% 3,369 / 174,003 1% 4,258 / 658,311

SQL (Programming Language) 2% 3,320 / 174,003 2% 12,478 / 658,311

Business Process 2% 3,316 / 174,003 1% 6,903 / 658,311

Advanced Cardiovascular Life Support (ACLS) 2% 3,278 / 174,003 1% 5,525 / 658,311

Computer Science 2% 3,273 / 174,003 0% 3,048 / 658,311

Customer Relationship Management 2% 3,266 / 174,003 4% 25,287 / 658,311

Cash Handling 2% 3,232 / 174,003 0% 2,270 / 658,311

Python (Programming Language) 2% 3,167 / 174,003 0% 2,669 / 658,311

Bilingual (Spanish/English) 2% 3,151 / 174,003 0% 1,696 / 658,311

Automation 2% 3,119 / 174,003 1% 7,113 / 658,311

Purchasing 2% 3,013 / 174,003 3% 21,309 / 658,311

Common Soft Skil l
Frequency in 

Postings

Postings with Skill  / Total 

Postings (Jun 2020 - Nov 

2020)

Frequency 

in Profiles

Profiles with Skill  / 

Total Profiles 

(2018 - 2020)

Communications 27% 47,106 / 174,003 9% 58,850 / 658,311

Management 21% 36,002 / 174,003 26% 171,675 / 658,311

Customer Service 18% 31,799 / 174,003 29% 191,165 / 658,311

Sales 15% 25,293 / 174,003 23% 153,214 / 658,311

Operations 14% 24,513 / 174,003 12% 81,787 / 658,311

Leadership 13% 22,117 / 174,003 23% 148,485 / 658,311

Valid Driver's License 9% 15,708 / 174,003 0% 135 / 658,311

Detail Oriented 8% 14,091 / 174,003 2% 13,774 / 658,311

Problem Solving 8% 13,426 / 174,003 2% 9,981 / 658,311

Planning 8% 13,307 / 174,003 3% 17,456 / 658,311

Innovation 7% 11,967 / 174,003 2% 12,893 / 658,311

Presentations 7% 11,484 / 174,003 4% 23,442 / 658,311

Microsoft Excel 6% 10,822 / 174,003 17% 109,868 / 658,311

Microsoft Office 6% 10,516 / 174,003 17% 108,952 / 658,311

Research 6% 10,414 / 174,003 11% 71,114 / 658,311

Interpersonal Communications 6% 9,782 / 174,003 1% 8,555 / 658,311

Coordinating 6% 9,711 / 174,003 4% 23,864 / 658,311

Written Communication 5% 9,569 / 174,003 1% 3,420 / 658,311

Basic Math 5% 9,072 / 174,003 1% 8,366 / 658,311

Verbal Communication Skills 5% 8,435 / 174,003 1% 4,136 / 658,311

Computer Literacy 5% 8,141 / 174,003 2% 15,942 / 658,311

Troubleshooting (Problem Solving) 5% 7,849 / 174,003 3% 16,848 / 658,311

Scheduling 4% 7,741 / 174,003 2% 11,054 / 658,311

Professionalism 4% 7,286 / 174,003 1% 4,137 / 658,311

Self-Motivation 4% 7,086 / 174,003 2% 13,772 / 658,311

Teamwork 4% 6,916 / 174,003 3% 17,209 / 658,311

Good Driving Record 4% 6,744 / 174,003 0% 34 / 658,311

Organizational Skil ls 4% 6,636 / 174,003 0% 1,725 / 658,311

Android (Operating System) 4% 6,169 / 174,003 0% 906 / 658,311

Time Management 3% 6,024 / 174,003 4% 27,640 / 658,311

Microsoft PowerPoint 3% 5,990 / 174,003 11% 70,546 / 658,311

127



 

 
 

Further Gap Analysis   

 

The following tables (Tables 11 & 12) indicate a gap in demand and supply 

 

Table 11. indicates the occupations groups that have a hiring gap. Monthly job postings June 2020-

Nobember 2020 indicate a hiring gap in 12 major occupational groups (highlighted in blue).  

 

TABLE 11. Hiring GAP June 2020-November 2020 Job Postings vs. Hires 

 
Source: EMSI 

A key question for WSA is: “Are educational completions tied to key clusters for the Alamo region 

supported by WSA and partners sufficient to meet regional employer hiring needs?”: Key clusters 

reviewed include healthcare, finance, information technology/Cybersecurity and 

Manufacturing/Construction. The occupations fall within staffing patterns and are identified as 

2021 target occupations.  The following table focuses on this type of “Gap Analysis” as it reflects 

both the gap in demand and supply and the gap in annual openings and graduates and gap in 

employment (growth) for 28 occupations on the Target Occupation List.   The table below 

identifies the gap in current labor demand and supply in green and pink, and the results show 

how employer demand is not being met for many of the listed occupations (by either worker 

supply, supply gap, or annual number of graduates, education gap).  An employment growth gap 

is indicated for all except for two of the listed Target Occupations. Thus, for the listed 28 

occupations, in key occupational clusters, the region does not have a current supply of candidates 

and is not graduating enough candidates in 16 occupations to supply the number of job openings.  

 

If our labor exchange, Business Engagement, and Program services are working efficiently, then, 

WSA should identify qualified jobseeker candidates and train these jobseekers to meet the 

Avg. Monthly Postings (Jun 2020 - Nov 2020)

Occupation Avg Monthly Postings 

(Jun 2020 - Nov 2020)

Avg Monthly Hires 

(Jun 2020 - Nov 2020)

Hiring GAP

Healthcare Practitioners and Technical Occupations 8,721 1,883 6,837

Transportation and Material Moving Occupations 7,002 6,422 579

Computer and Mathematical Occupations 6,468 973 5,495

Sales and Related Occupations 6,251 7,947  (1,696)

Management Occupations 5,331 2,088 3,242

Office and Administrative Support Occupations 5,225 9,185  (3,960)

Business and Financial Operations Occupations 3,718 2,517 1,201

Unclassified Occupation 3,664 0 3,664

Food Preparation and Serving Related Occupations 2,741 14,412  (11,671)

Installation, Maintenance, and Repair Occupations 2,437 2,320 117

Healthcare Support Occupations 2,209 4,555  (2,346)

Architecture and Engineering Occupations 1,310 574 735

Production Occupations 1,230 3,295  (2,065)

Personal Care and Service Occupations 1,221 2,414  (1,193)

Educational Instruction and Library Occupations 1,170 1,881  (711)

Construction and Extraction Occupations 1,061 3,389  (2,328)

Building and Grounds Cleaning and Maintenance Occupations 1,037 2,551  (1,514)

Community and Social Service Occupations 930 693 237

Arts, Design, Entertainment, Sports, and Media Occupations 722 698 24

Protective Service Occupations 686 1,299  (614)

Life, Physical, and Social Science Occupations 523 293 229

Legal Occupations 380 191 189

Military-only occupations 68 535  (467)

Farming, Fishing, and Forestry Occupations 30 396  (367)

Avg. Monthly Hires (Jun 2020 - Nov 2020)

128



 

 
 

employer demand. Then employers should hire job seekers mostly from within the region (e.g., as 

opposed to mostly importing talent from other areas).   

 

TABLE 2. DEMAND AND GAPS FOR 28 OCCUPATIONS 

 

 
Source: TWC/LMCI/LMI Tools 

 

To meet employer needs, WSA will implement a process described as follows.   

 

Some employers take the initiative to contact WSA for assistance, and these will be provided with 

labor exchange and other services.   

 

To be strategic, we will develop strategies for specific occupations, occupational groups, 

individual employers, and groups of employers.  For instance, we will review data that reflects 

real-time demand, such as job postings.   

 

Business Engagement (BE) staff – which at the Centers are now specializing by key industry, using 

sector strategies, – will strengthen current and develop new initiatives with each of these employers 

(along with the top ten employers for all job postings in a specific target occupation). 

 

Staff dedicated to Programs will work with BE staff to first, understand the characteristics of 

workers that these employers are looking for.  To match job seekers to these employers, the top 

Credentials sought for ‘juniors’ or entry-level (0 to 2 years of experience) in the occupation for 

these employers will be utilized.  

SOC Code SOC Title

Current 

Demand 

(HWOL)

Current 

Supply 

(WIT)

Supply 

GAP 

(Current)

Avg.Annua

l Openings

Annual 

Graduates

Education 

Gap 

(Annual)

Current 

Employment 

(2019)

Projected 

Employment 

(2028)

Employment 

GAP (#C)

Finance
13-2052 Personal Financial Advisors 90 61 29 104 320 -216 830 1,186 356

41-3031 Securities, Commodities, and Financial Services Sales Agents 158 135 23 564 N/A N/A 3,570 5,415 1,845

Healthcare 
29-1031 Dietitians and Nutritionists 164 41 123 54 40 14 500 716 216

29-1126 Respiratory Therapists 80 30 50 120 73 47 1,060 1,807 747

29-1141 Registered Nurses 3,388 667 2,721 1,607 1,417 190 21,920 24,869 2,949

29-2031 Cardiovascular Technologists and Technicians 119 22 97 34 17 17 660 539 -121

29-2032 Diagnostic Medical Sonographers 53 40 13 33 55 -22 440 468 28

29-2034 Radiologic Technologists and Technicians 82 52 30 132 148 -16 1,530 1,986 456

29-2035 Magnetic Resonance Imaging Technologists 60 16 44 15 3 12 180 208 28

29-2052 Pharmacy Technicians 196 183 13 330 51 279 3,590 3,642 52

29-2055 Surgical Technologists 87 63 24 119 83 36 1,390 1,356 -34

29-2061 Licensed Practical and Licensed Vocational Nurses 708 333 375 682 506 176 7,220 8,104 884

31-2021 Physical Therapist Assistants 57 99 -42 112 106 6 650 836 186

31-9091 Dental Assistants 129 290 -161 539 300 239 3,470 4,405 935

31-9097 Phlebotomists 131 136 -5 118 44 74 820 1,034 214

IT/Cybersecurity
11-3021 Computer and Information Systems Managers 22 308 -286 149 1,049 -900 1,870 1,649 -221

15-1211 Computer Systems Analysts 243 212 31 430 532 -102 4,060 5,074 1,014

15-1212 Information Security Analysts N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 860 N/A

15-1231 Computer Network Support Specialists 52 112 -60 137 787 -650 1,380 1,489 109

15-1232 Computer User Support Specialists 379 628 -249 517 N/A N/A 4,510 5,522 1,012

15-1241 Computer Network Architects 96 137 -41 99 1,025 -926 1,100 1,229 129

15-1244 Network and Computer Systems Administrators 216 276 -60 341 811 -470 3,350 4,126 776

15-1256 Software Developers and Software Quality Assurance Analysts and Testers 880 196 684 475 212 263 5,590 5,346 -244

15-1257 Web Developers and Digital Interface Designers 102 75 27 88 160 -72 830 1,012 182

17-2061 Computer Hardware Engineers 18 31 -13 11 66 -55 120 136 16

Manufacturing/Construction
17-3026 Industrial Engineering Technologists and Technicians 151 8 143 45 2 43 310 418 108

43-5061 Production, Planning, and Expediting Clerks 127 130 -3 307 N/A N/A 2,230 2,743 513

49-9041 Industrial Machinery Mechanics 37 94 -57 265 N/A N/A 2,540 2,611 71

51-1011 First-Line Supervisors of Production and Operating Workers 133 407 -274 458 1 457 3,250 4,129 879

51-4041 Machinists 15 68 -53 171 71 100 1,360 1,511 151

51-4121 Welders, Cutters, Solderers, and Brazers 37 464 -427 351 42 309 2,330 3,076 746

17-2112 Industrial Engineers 18 43 -25 161 28 133 1,520 1,861 341

47-2111 Electricians 85 264 -179 702 52 650 4,460 6,076 1,616

47-2152 Plumbers, Pipefitters, and Steamfitters 85 203 -118 355 21 334 2,810 3,179 369

47-2211 Sheet Metal Workers 20 51 -31 152 N/A N/A 1,200 1,377 177

129



 

 
 

 

For example, using a sample occupation, 15-1212, Information Security Analyst*15-1122: 

Using tools such as ONET ONLINE and Help Wanted On-Line (HWOL) a profile of the 

occupation will be developed. 

 

The identified occupation, Information Security Analyst, will plan, implement, upgrade, or 

monitor security measures for the protection of computer networks and information. Assess system 

vulnerabilities for security risks and propose and implement risk mitigation strategies. May ensure 

appropriate security controls are in place that will safeguard digital files and vital electronic 

infrastructure. May respond to computer security breaches and viruses.  

 

As per ONET-Online the Hard Skills for this occupation include the following software and 

certificates: 

 

Software 

• Development environment software — C; Go ; Microsoft PowerShell ; Microsoft Visual 

Studio   

• Network monitoring software — IBM QRadar SIEM; Nagios ; Symantec Blue Coat Data 

Loss Prevention; Wireshark   

• Operating system software — Linux ; Microsoft Windows Server ; Shell script ; UNIX   

• Transaction security and virus protection software — HP WebInspect; McAfee; 

Portswigger BurP Suite; Symantec   

• Web platform development software — AJAX ; Hypertext markup language HTML ; 

Node.js ; Spring Framework  

 

 

The related Soft Skills include Oral and Written Communication, Critical Thinking, Complex 

Problem Solving, Monitoring, System Analysis, Troubleshooting, etc.  Additional information 

about the occupation can be found at O*NET OnLine.Org.  

 

Individual conversations with and surveys of these employers will be used to validate their needs, 

which combined with the posting analysis can be used to identify potential talent.  Identifying 

potential talent involves finding and developing talent pipelines.  These include, primarily, priority 

populations (e.g., Transitioning Service Members, Veterans, and Foster Youth) and individuals 

with barriers to employment.  Some of these job candidates will come from job seekers whom we 

serve directly (through WorkInTexas, our Job Centers, and our grants and Programs), while others 

will be identified by working closely on these initiatives with our partners (organizations that 

invest in and/or work with these populations).  

 

Certification Name  

• Cisco Certified Network Associate Security  

• Certified Information Systems Auditor  

• GIAC Assessing and Auditing Wireless Networks  

• EC-Council Certified Security Analyst  

• Certified Secure Software Lifecycle Professional  

130

https://www.careeronestop.org/Credentials/Toolkit/find-certifications.aspx?keyword=15-1122.00&direct=0&ajax=0&lang=en&sortcolumns=NAME&sortdirections=ASC
https://www.careeronestop.org/Credentials/Toolkit/find-certifications.aspx?keyword=15-1122.00&direct=0&ajax=0&lang=en&certid=0650-D
https://www.careeronestop.org/Credentials/Toolkit/find-certifications.aspx?keyword=15-1122.00&direct=0&ajax=0&lang=en&certid=0858-C
https://www.careeronestop.org/Credentials/Toolkit/find-certifications.aspx?keyword=15-1122.00&direct=0&ajax=0&lang=en&certid=4396-A
https://www.careeronestop.org/Credentials/Toolkit/find-certifications.aspx?keyword=15-1122.00&direct=0&ajax=0&lang=en&certid=5315-B
https://www.careeronestop.org/Credentials/Toolkit/find-certifications.aspx?keyword=15-1122.00&direct=0&ajax=0&lang=en&certid=3103-B


 

 

WSA will administer assessments that will let us determine which individuals from the potential 

talent either meets the requirements and/or needs short-term or occupational/vocational training to 

meet the job requirements. Knowledge of principles and processes for providing customer services 

to appropriately match job seekers to employers will be targeted for staff training. This includes 

administering customer needs assessment, assessment to identify knowledge skills and abilities 

and customer interest.  Workforce Center staff training will also include meeting quality standards 

for job seeker, providing wrap around services and follow-up that will assure job seekers success 

in training and success on the job, once placed. Appropriate referrals to the employers, along with 

the provision of needed soft skills as offered through the Job Centers (and/or partners), will be 

provided to job seekers. The further ramp-up of short-term pre-vocational training and 

employability skills as well as the provision of services to address specific barrier to employment 

will be a focus for the 2021-2024 plan years.   Finally, an evaluation of customer satisfaction at 

different points of job seeker services will be implemented.  

 

The usage of our labor exchange system (WorkInTexas/WIT) by these employers is also critical – 

the system is used to post the job openings and match the job seekers with the employers.  To be 

effective, the BE team will recruit employers and market WIT – this will help ensure that the 

postings for these occupations are a part of WSA’s and the State’s system.  Part of our marketing 

and of BE team involvement includes developing the needed promotional materials and a more 

strategic approach to promote the use of WIT. Varied media production, communication, and 

dissemination techniques and methods will be utilized. This includes alternative ways to inform 

and entertain via written, oral, and visual media. 

 

Lastly, WSA will work with training providers and educational institutions to promote the needed 

training for these occupations.  This involves working with TWC (e.g., for skills development and 

other funds), community colleges, public and private universities, and other training providers 

(e.g., through the Eligible Training Provider System/ETPS).  Having current and adequate training 

– training that meets employer needs for the job – can be challenge in Bexar County but also 

particularly in the rural counties.  Many of the training providers in the rural counties are in 

adjacent counties outside of the Board Area.  The BE team and staff in the rural centers will 

develop relationships with those training providers and identify training available at their 

institutions in the target occupations. 

 

At an industry-wide level, WSA aims to develop plans that address industry’s immediate goals (0-

1 year), medium term goals (2-5 years), and long-term goals (more than 5 years).  These plans 

would specifically address the hiring needs of employers, along with plans for each employer.   

Industry-wide level plans/strategies will be based on the plans that are developed for individual 

employers and/or groups of employers. 

 

C. Labor Force Analysis and Trends  

 

Analysis of regional workforce and labor market 

An analysis of the regional workforce, including current labor force employment and 

unemployment data, information on labor market trends, and educational and skill levels of the 

workforce, including individuals with barriers to employment.   

 

131



 

 
 

Board Response:  

The regional information provided in the following sections pertains to the 13-county Alamo 

region unless otherwise stated. 

 

Labor Market for Alamo WDA: 

• As of October 2020, the estimated Labor Force was reported at 1,264,721 

• With an unemployed population of 78,269 or 6.2%, and  

• An estimated employment for all occupations of 1,135,300. 

 

FIGURE 1. UNEMPLOYMENT RATE, WDA 

 

The unemployment rate in the region has continued to decrease from 2015 to 2019 and was 

reported at a low of 2.4% in April of 2019, in April 2020 because of Coronavirus related 

business closures the unemployment rate rose to 13.2%.  This was the largest March to April 

unemployment rate increase in the series that began in 1976. Source: TWC LAUS 

 

The unemployment rate in for the counties also rose over the year because of Coronavirus related 

business closures. In October of 2020 the lowest unemployment rate of the 13 counties was 

reported in McMullen at 2.2% and the highest was in Atascosa County at 8.0%. All the counties 

indicated an increase in employment over the year. 

Source: TWC/LMCI/LAUS October of 2020. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                                      

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

132



 

 
 

TABLE 8. UNEMPLOYMENT BY COUNTY 

            
 

FIGURE 2. LABOR FORCE, WDA 

The labor force for the Alamo Region continued to grow from January 2015 until the dramatic 

drop in April 2020, due to coronavirus related affects.  

 
 

Educational Attainment 

Educational attainment in the Alamo region indicates some challengers. For the population ages 

18-24, three counties show a high number not having completed high school: Atascosa 47.9%, 

Bandera 57.0%, and Frio 48.6%.   

 

Area Area Type Rate Rate

Atascosa County 8.0 3.4

Bandera County 5.1 3.2

Bexar County 6.5 3.0

Comal County 5.3 2.8

Frio County 5.2 2.4

Gillespie County 3.9 2.2

Guadalupe County 5.1 2.8

Karnes County 6.5 2.4

Kendall County 4.3 2.6

Kerr County 4.7 2.9

Medina County 5.7 3.0

McMullen County 2.2 1.6

Wilson County 5.0 2.7

Cibolo City 4.9 3.0

Converse City 7.5 3.1

New Braunfels City 5.2 2.7

San Antonio City 6.4 2.9

Schertz City 5.1 3.0

Seguin City 5.9 3.0

TWC/LMCI/LAUS

SAN ANTONIO-NEW BRAUNFELS

October-20 October-19

133



 

 

TABLE 9. EDUCATIONAL ATTAINMENT, AGES 18-24 

 
Source: US Census ACS 5-Year 2019 

 

For the population 25 years of age and older, three counties show high rates of individuals not 

having completed high school: Frio 33.8%, Karnes 24.3%, and Atascosa 22.9.   The completion is 

bachelor’s degrees in the region is a challenge with the highest % occurring in Kendall County at 

27% and followed by Comal Cunty at 5 24.2%. The lowest completion of bachelor’s degrees was 

in Frio County at 3.9%. 

 

TABLE 10. EDUCATIONAL ATTAINMENT 25 AND OLDER 

 
Source: US Census ACS 5-YearEstimates 2015-2019 

 

Individuals with Barriers to Employment 

In alignment with WIOA purposes, WSA is committed to increase for individuals, particularly for 

those individuals with barriers to employment, access to and opportunities for the employment, 

education, training, and support services they need to succeed in the labor market (WIOA Sec. 

2.1).  WIOA includes individuals with barriers to employment as members of one or more of the 

following populations (WIOA Sec. 3.24): 

1) Displaced homemakers, 

2) Low-income individuals, 

3) Indians, Alaska Natives, and Native Hawaiians, 

Geographic 

Population 18 

to 24

  Less than 

high school 

graduate %

 High school 

graduate 

(includes 

equivalency) %

 Some 

college or 

Associate's 

degree %

 Bachelor's 

degree or 

higher %

Atascosa County, Texas 4,479 795 17.70% 2,145 47.90% 1,434 32.00% 105 2.30%

Bandera County, Texas 1,502 98 6.5% 856 57.0% 488 32% 60 4.0%

Bexar County, Texas 203,048 27,391 13.5% 71,219 35.1% 88,507 44% 15,931 7.8%

Comal County, Texas 10,715 1,735 16.2% 4,342 40.5% 3,631 34% 1,007 9.4%

Frio County, Texas 2,680 976 36.4% 1,303 48.6% 316 12% 85 3.2%

Gillespie County, Texas 1,802 314 17.4% 686 38.1% 650 36% 152 8.4%

Guadalupe County, Texas 14,144 1,742 12.3% 6,777 47.9% 4,747 34% 878 6.2%

Karnes County, Texas 1,615 481 29.8% 522 32.3% 522 32% 90 5.6%

Kendall County, Texas 3,503 672 19.2% 1,469 41.90% 1,119 31.90% 243 41.9%

Kerr County, Texas 4,234 630 14.9% 1,808 42.7% 1,534 36% 262 6.2%

McMullen County, Texas 54 4 7.4% 22 40.7% 25 46% 3 5.6%

Medina County, Texas 4,844 1,159 23.9% 1,950 40.3% 1,460 30% 275 5.7%

Wilson County, Texas 4,038 617 15.3% 1,475 36.5% 1,589 39% 357 8.8%

Geographic 

Population 

25 +

 Less than 9th 

grade %

  9th to 12th 

grade, no 

diploma %

   High school 

graduate 

(includes 

equivalency) %

 Some 

college, no 

degree %

 Associate's 

degree %

Bachelor's 

degree %

Graduate 

Degree 

or Higher %

Atascosa County, Texas 31,431 3,461 11.0% 3,744                  11.9% 12,168 38.7% 6,055 19.3% 1,470 4.70% 3,193 10.20% 1,340 4.30%

Bandera County, Texas 16,904 653 3.9% 1,154 6.8% 5,463 32.3% 4,393 26.0% 1,384 8.20% 2,626 15.50% 1,231 7.30%

Bexar County, Texas 1,247,428 91,412 7.3% 105,982             8.5% 316,364 25.4% 283,452 22.7% 100,767 8.10% 221,427 17.80% 128,024 10.30%

Comal County, Texas 98,736 3,242 3.3% 4,049                  4.1% 24,695 25.0% 22,617 22.9% 7,768 7.90% 23,881 24.20% 12,484 12.60%

Frio County, Texas 12,449 2,245 18.0% 1,968 15.8% 4,252 34.2% 2,115 17.0% 962 7.70% 481 3.90% 426 3.40%

Gillespie County, Texas 19,327 986 5.1% 1,148                  5.9% 5,779 29.9% 5,779 29.9% 1,170 6.10% 4,465 23.10% 1,764 9.10%

Guadalupe County, Texas 104,489 4,501 4.3% 7,291                  7.0% 31,836 30.5% 22,016 21.1% 9,394 9.00% 18,958 18.10% 10,493 10.00%

Karnes County, Texas 10,693 1,334 12.5% 1,260                  11.8% 3,945 36.9% 1,988 18.6% 526 4.90% 1,237 11.60% 403 3.80%

Kendall County, Texas 29,910 1,234 4.1% 930                     3.1% 6162 20.6% 6,684 22.3% 2,310 7.70% 8,070 27.00% 4,520 15.10%

Kerr County, Texas 37,607 1,695 4.5% 2,595                  6.9% 10,219 27.2% 10,229 27.2% 2,580 6.90% 6,590 17.50% 3,699 9.80%

McMullen County, Texas 496 12 2.4% 24                        4.8% 162 32.7% 120 24.2% 35 7.10% 77 15.50% 66 13.30%

Medina County, Texas 33,616 2,387 7.1% 3,272                  9.7% 10,417 31.0% 8,084 24.0% 2,785 8.30% 4,245 12.60% 2,426 7%

Wilson County, Texas 33,086 1,647 5.0% 2,467                  7.5% 11,940 36.1% 7,406 22.4% 2,429 7.30% 4,850 15% 2,347 7.10%

134



 

 

4) Individuals with disabilities, including youth who are individuals with disabilities, 

5) Older individuals, 

6) Ex-offenders, 

7) Homeless individuals, 

8) Youth who are in or have aged out of the foster care system, 

9) Individuals who are English language learners, individuals who have low levels of literacy, 

and individuals facing substantial cultural barriers, 

10) Eligible migrant and seasonal farmworkers, 

11) Individuals within two years of exhausting lifetime eligibility under part A of the title IV 

of the Social Security Act, 

12) Single parents (including single pregnant women), 

13) Long-term unemployed individuals, and 

14)  Such other groups as the Governor determines to have barriers to employment. 

 

WSA has a document that provides definitions for each of these populations, and which is available 

upon request. 

 

To serve these individuals, WSA partners with organizations that have it as part of their mission 

to serve them.  We help develop and participate in coalitions that pilot initiatives to help integrate 

these individuals into the labor market.  WSA also invites staff from these organization to offer 

services from and/or be housed at one of our Job Center locations.  

 

To further promote workforce development, WSA plans on developing an asset and/or resource 

mapping that identifies local organizations that specialize in or focus on providing services to these 

populations.   

 

D. Workforce Development Analysis  

 

Workforce development activities, including education and training 

An analysis of workforce development activities in the region, including education and training.  

 

Note: This analysis must include the strengths and weaknesses of workforce development 

activities and an evaluation of the effectiveness of programs and services. It must evaluate the 

Board’s capacity to provide workforce development activities to address the identified education 

and skills needs of the workforce. The analysis must include individuals with barriers to 

employment. The analysis also must address the employment needs of employers.  

 

Board Response:  

In reviewing strengths and weaknesses, WSA includes a review of poverty, disparities and 

population growth. There are great challenges in the Alamo region, including for example, low to 

moderate educational attainment and skills particularly as these relate to meeting employer 

demand and the technological changes occurring in the labor market.  At another level, the area 

has high levels of inequality and vast disparities of wealth.  Segregation is high and there are 

multiple geographical pockets that historically have been isolated.   

135



 

 

A strong San Antonio area economy has helped reduce poverty over the past 5-Years. For the 13 

WSA counties, the new 2019 American Community Survey (ACS) Five-Year Estimates found in 

Table 15, indicate disparities for the population living below the poverty level.  The highest 

estimates for individuals living below the poverty levels are found in Frio County at 23.3%, 

followed by Bexar and Bandera Counties at 15.7%. Further disparities in the WSA thirteen (13) 

counties are indicated for childhood poverty. For children less than 18 years of age who are living 

below poverty, ACS Five-Year-Estimates indicate that in WSA counties the highest rate of 40.1% 

is found in Frio County, followed by 29.8 in Bandera County and 22.3% in Bexar County. These 

numbers indicate that almost a quarter of children under 18 years of age were living below poverty 

in Bexar County and over a quarter in Bandera County. Bexar County’s childhood poverty rate for 

2015-2019 at 22.3 percent, accounts for more than 110,000 children. That’s a decline from the 

25.4 percent reported for 2010-2014, covering almost 120,000 children. All the ACS poverty data 

was collected before the pandemic of 2020, so they don’t reflect the economic downturn due to 

COVID-19, which, according to the Houston Chronical, has killed nearly 300,000 people across 

the country and infected millions more.  According to the Chronical quote from Lloyd Potter, the 

State Demographer, “the numbers indicate the economy was getting better prior to the coronavirus 

pandemic”.  However, Dr. Potter is concerned the progress may have been halted by the pandemic 

sweeping across the nation. “Certainly, it’s a sign that the economy has been continuing to recover 

since the recession that we had in 2008,” said Potter, who is also a University of Texas at San 

Antonio professor of demography. “And that was continuing to have positive impacts on those 

people who are at the lower end of the socioeconomic spectrum. But I can’t help but worry about 

what’s happened in this last year. We won’t know (the effects) … for another year.” (O'Hare, 

December 9, 2020 11:05 p.m.) 

The ACS survey focuses solely on the years 2015 through 2019. In Bexar County as a whole, 

overall five-year poverty rate from 2015 to 2019 was 15.7 percent, lower than San Antonio’s. That 

amounts to more than 300,000 Bexar County residents living below the poverty level.  The U.S. 

Census Bureau defines the 2019 poverty threshold as persons younger than 65 living alone who 

earn less than $13,300 annually or seniors 65 and older who live alone and get by on less than 

$12,261 per year.  

 

TABLE 15. POVERTY BY COUNTY-5-YEAR ESTIMATES 

 
 

Table 16-1- Year Estimates, 2019, for population, income and poverty indicates poverty 

remains high with 12.9% persons in poverty for the Alamo WDA, this percent is higher than the 

national average which is around 10.5%, but lower than Texas’s 13.6%.  Per capita income is a 

136



 

 
 

measure of the amount of money earned per person in a nation or geographic region. Per capita 

income can be used to determine the average per-person income for an area and to evaluate the 

standard of living and quality of life of the population. the lowest per capita incomes are found in 

Frio and Atascosa counties at $18,288 and $24,421 respectively, the highest per capita incomes 

are found in Kendall and Comal at $43,241 and $36,899 respectively. For the City of San Antonio, 

the largest urban area, the percent of persons living in poverty is also high at 18.6%, with a median 

income of 50,980 and per capita income of $25,091. 

 

TABLE 16. POPULATON ESTIMATES 2019-1 YEAR, INCOME AND POVERTY BY 

COUNTY 

Geography 

Population 

2010 

Population 

2019 

Percent 

Change 

Median 

income 

2014-

2018 

Per 

Capita 

income  

 In 

Poverty, 

percent 

Atascosa  44,923 51,153 13.87% $55,265  $24,421  15.70% 

Bandera  20,487 23,112 12.81% $53,683  $28,539  13.40% 

Bexar  1,714,781 2,003,554 16.84% $55,456  $26,988  15.20% 

Comal  108,520 156,209 43.94% $75,356  $36,899  7.10% 

Frio 17,217 20,306 17.94% $42,476  $18,288  27.50% 

Gillespie 24,828 26,988 8.70% $58,325  $33,515  8.50% 

Guadalupe 131,527 166,847 26.85% $70,931  $30,817  8.50% 

Karnes  14,828 15,601 5.21% $52,252  $26,875  21.00% 

Kendall  33,384 47,431 42.08% $82,390  $43,241  7.40% 

Kerr  49,644 52,600 5.95% $52,473  $30,498  12.50% 

McMullen  707 743 5.09% $68,750  $32,556  10.50% 

Medina  45,993 51,584 12.16% $61,059  $26,274  12.20% 

Wilson 42,905 51,070 19.03% $72,445  $30,935  8.30% 

Total 2,249,744 2,667,198 18.56% $61,605  $29,988  12.91% 

Source: US Census/QuickFacs Nov 18  2020 

  

Another economic indicator is population growth, population percent change in Table 16. indicates 

population growth for all the Alamo WDA counties from 2010 to 2019. Population growth is 

evident in Figure 1. as the change in a population for five years is depicted. Population growth is 

a very positive indicator for a growing economy.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

137



 

 

FIGURE 1. POPULATON GROWTH 2019 TO 2019 WORKFORCE SOLUTIONS 

ALAMO 

 
                                     US Census-Population Estimates 

 

WSA’s services have quite a large impact in the well-being of the population and the economic 

productivity of the region. This is significant because WSA’s region indicates a growing 

population with a percent change of 18.56% from 2010 to 2019.    

 

From October 2019 to September of 2020, our Job Centers welcomed and serviced approximately 

90,705 in-person visitors at job centers and 116,225 virtual guests for a total of 206,930 visitors. 

In March/April 2020, all WSA job centers closed due to municipal and statewide stay-at-home 

mandates. WSA immediately took steps to provide technology and support for staff to work from 

home and began to implement virtual orientations and other services usually provide in-person at 

job centers. As of September 2020, 127,343 job seekers were active in WorkInTexas (WIT). 

 

Additionally, 7,996 jobs were filled, 25,499 job postings, and 7,163 active employers are in the 

WIT system. Over 5,000 participants are enrolled in workforce development programs from 

October 2019 through September 2020 with approximately 83% and 17% residing in urban and 

rural counties, reJob centers provided 34,600 units of service  to all job seekers and universal 

customers (those not enrolled in a program).  

 

The following graphic provides detail on job center activity from October 2019-September 2020.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

138



 

 

 

 

139



 

 

 

A review of training for the past program year, October 1, 2019 to September 30, 2020 indicates 

the following customer choice of occupational training: 

 

Table 19: Customer Choice of Occupational Training October 1, 2019 to September 30, 

2020 

Training Analysis Adult, Dislocated Worker and Youth 

Accounting Technology/Technician and Bookkeeping 14 

Agile Full Stack Software Developer Bootcamp 

 

10 

Business Administration and Management, General 1 

College/University Preparatory and Advanced High School/Secondary Diploma 

Program 

1 

Computer and Information Sciences and Support Services, Other 3 

Computer Programming/Programmer, General 18 

Computer Systems Analysis/Analyst 10 

Computer/Information Technology Services Administration and Management, Other 1 

Construction/Heavy Equipment/Earthmoving Equipment Operation 3 

Cyber Security 4 

Dental Assisting/Assistant 25 

Diploma in Digital Marketing and Search Engine Optimization  2 

Electrician 1 

Emergency Medical Technology/Technician (EMT Paramedic) 1 

Executive Assistant/Executive Secretary 3 

Health Information/Medical Records Administration/Administrator 22 

Industrial Radiologic Technology/Technician 2 

Information Technology 49 

IT Project Management Professional 4 

Licensed Practical /Vocational Nurse Training (LPN, LVN, Cert, Dipl, AAS) 4 

Licensed Vocational Nurse 10 

LVN-RN Bridge 1 

Marketing, Other 4 

Medical Administrative/Executive Assistant and Medical Secretary 1 

Medical Coding and Billing 1 

Medical Office Specialist 2 

Medical/Clinical Assistant 99 

Nursing - Registered Nurse Training (RN, ASN, BSN, MSN) 2 

Pharmacy Technician/Assistant 3 

Project Management 2 

Security IT Associate 11 

Special Education and Teaching, General 1 

Surgical Technology/Technologist 1 

Truck and Bus Driver/Commercial Vehicle Operation 80 

Welding Technology/Welder 2 

 

140



 

 

Part 3: Core Programs  

A. Workforce Development System  

(WIOA §108(b)(2); 20 CFR §679.560(b)(1))  

Boards must include a description of the workforce development system in the workforce area 

that identifies:  

• the programs that are included in the system; and  

• how the Board will work with the entities that facilitate core programs and other workforce 

development programs to support alignment to provide services, including programs of study 

authorized under the Carl D. Perkins Career and Technical Education Act of 2006, that support 

the strategy identified in the State Plan under WIOA §102(b)(1)(E).  

The Workforce Opportunity and Innovation Act (WIOA) authorizes key employment and 

training programs in the service delivery system to assist workers in the acquisition of essential 

tools and skills and to connect employers to a workforce with identified sector-specific skillsets.  

WIOA further aligns “core” programs to provide coordinated, comprehensive workforce 

services.   

The following core programs must be made available either in-person and/or virtually at the 

American Job Centers: 

• Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA) Adult, Youth and Dislocated 

Worker 

• Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF)/CHOICES 

• CHOICES Non-Custodial Program (NCP) 

• Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program Employment & Training (SNAP) 

• Trade Adjustment Assistance Act (TAA) 

• Rehabilitation Act:  that provide services to individuals with disabilities 

• Wagner-Peyser Employment Services: staff located within centers and directly employed 

by TWC; the contractor integrates theses services under the Texas Model 

• Veteran’s Employment Services/Texas Veterans Leadership Program (TVLP): provided 

by staff located within the centers and employed by the Texas Veterans Commission 

(TVC) or TWC.   

Under the guidance of TWC and in collaboration with our local area public officials, WSA 

provides service delivery oversight and planning through a partnership network.  In support of 

WIOA, WSA will continue to reinforce progress toward service integration for customers.   

141



 

 

As part of the job training, work-related, and educational programs and functions, WSA 

convenes all relevant programs identified as one-stop required-partner programs, including: 

• Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA) 

• Wagner-Peyser Employment Service (ES) 

• Unemployment Insurance (UI) Benefits Information 

• Choices, the Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF) employment and training 

program 

• Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program Employment and Training (SNAP E&T) 

• Subsidized childcare 

• Trade Adjustment Assistance (TAA) 

• Adult Education and Literacy (AEL) programs 

WSA establishes memoranda of understanding (MOUs) with the following agencies for 

programs that are not under the direct oversight of the board:  

• Adult Education and Literacy (WIOA, Title II) 

• Apprenticeship programs 

• Non-Certificate Postsecondary Career and Technology Training programs 

• Senior Community Service Employment Program 

• HHSC (jointly developed with TWC) 

WSA establishes additional cooperative relationships, on an ad hoc basis, to expand capacity and 

strengthen the regional workforce ecosystem include: 

• Local boards of education 

• Local-level vocational education agencies 

• Community-based Organizations (CBOs) 

• Chambers of Commerce 

• Industry- and Sector-based Consortiums  

• Appointed Municipal Task Force(s) 

• Faith-based Organizations (FBOs) 

• Texas Department of Housing and Community Affairs (TDHCA) 

142



 

 
 

• Other appropriate training and employment agencies and services to expand local 

presence 

Career and Technical Education Act: Consistent with the Carl D. Perkins Career and 

Technical Education Act of 2006, WSA aims to more fully support the academic and career and 

technical skills of secondary education students and postsecondary education students who elect 

to enroll in career and technical education programs.   

To that effect, WSA will explore opportunities to develop MOUs with the following optional 

partners: 

• Career and technical education programs authorized under the Carl D. Perkins Act of 

2006 

• Job counseling, training, and placement services for veterans, 38 USC 41 

• Education and vocational training program through Job Corps administered by DOL 

• Native American programs authorized under Title I of WIOA  

• HUB-administered employment and training programs 

• Employment and training activities carried out under the Community Services Block 

Grant Act 

• Reintegration of offenders’ programs authorized under the Second Chance Act, 2007 

As previously noted within this plan, youth, job seekers, and incumbent workers are expected to 

enter the education and/or workforce at various points and various levels of job readiness and 

education. Many require front-end services to gain the necessary competencies to begin the 

search for employment. Those with high school graduation or equivalency, computer literacy, 

interviewing skills, completed resume, and the ability to autonomously complete job searches are 

potentially equipped to pursue gainful employment and subsequently progress toward advanced 

education, skills acquisition, and professional development.  

WSA has developed the following employment supply-chain that describes our customers’ 

experience from entry into the network/system and on through advanced training/employment 

opportunities.  This diagram describes the progression of these career services available and 

serves as a framework for workforce and economic development. 

143



 

 

 

Building on this progressive approach, WSA has also developed wages and professional 

advancement over time in order to sufficiently articulate to youth, job seekers, and incumbent 

workers about potential entry into appropriate career pathways based on their current skill levels, 

credentials, certifications, or educational attainment. 

 

144



 

 
 

 

 

 

 

145



 

 
 

 

 

 

146



 

 

 

These projections are intended to communicate the potential entry points for a targeted industry 

while also enabling youth, job seekers, and incumbent workers to visualize the upward 

progression of a company, industry, or sector. These projections also enable WSA and training 

providers to make data-informed decisions about how to customize programming to meet the 

needs of employers.  

  

147



 

 

B. Core Programs—Expand Access, Facilitate Development, and Improve Access  

(WIOA §108(b)(3); 20 CFR §679.560(b)(2))  

Boards must include a description of how the Board will work with entities carrying out core 

programs to:  

• expand access to employment, training, education, and support services for eligible 

individuals, particularly eligible individuals with barriers to employment;  

• facilitate the development of career pathways and coenrollment, as appropriate, in core 

programs, including specific career pathways occupations that the Board currently includes on 

its Target Occupations List, and career pathways occupations that the Board is planning to 

develop; and improve access to activities leading to a recognized postsecondary credential 

(including a credential that is an industry-recognized certificate or certification, portable, and 

stackable).  

 

Boards must include a description of the Board’s plan for working with at least one of the 

Governor’s industry clusters.  

WSA provides innovative, progressive services through its Workforce Solutions American Job 

Center network and WSA centers assist in connecting job seekers, incumbent workers, and 

students with employment and training opportunities.  

WSA has a strong focus on providing leveraged services.  This includes, for example, forming 

partnerships throughout the community to create alternative entry points and opportunities for 

co-enrollment.  To do so, WSA works closely with community-based organizations urban and 

rural city and county delegate agencies, libraries, faith-based organizations, mutual aid, housing 

authorities, and multiple education and training providers. Examples of these established 

relationships include the San Antonio Food Bank, the Health Collaborative, Victoria College, 

Coastal Bend Junior College (Pleasanton, Atascosa County), Go Medina/Southwest Texas Junior 

College (Hondo, Medina County), and Hill Country University Center (Fredericksburg, Gillespie 

County). 

 

This section describes services that offered by WSA and contracted by Texas Workforce 

Commission. These are defined according to the TWC service matrix descriptions.  The intent 

here is not to provide a full description or definition of the service; rather, the intent is to report 

on the available services as TWC records them in WSA data applications and systems.   

Individualized Career Services: Consistent with our vision and mission, as well as WIOA 

requirements and federal cost principles, individualized career services must be made available if 

determined to be appropriate for an individual to obtain or retain employment.  These include the 

following services: 

• Informational Services: orientations, career guidance services, and referrals 

• Outreach and Eligibility Determination: targeted contact of potential applicant 

eligibility determinations 

148



 

 

• Assessment & Planning: comprehensive assessments, employability development 

plans, group counseling, ONET assessments, job search assessment, and REA 

assessments 

• Case Management: tracking and reporting of training and educational outcomes 

provided by other entities/agencies for job seekers, but where supportive services are 

paid from TWC program funds while in training.  A qualifying service must be provided 

in addition to this service to make the person a participant.  These services also include 

tracking participants during one or more quarters after exit 

• Job Search Services: job search assistance, supervised job-search, computer 

workstation usage, counseling, labor market/information, resume/application/ interview 

preparation, job development, self-service career guidance, self-service labor market 

information 

• Life Skills: mentoring (Choices, NCP, and youth) and leadership development (youth 

only) 

• Pre-Employment Activities: job readiness/employment skills, bonding assistance, and 

Work Opportunity Tax Credit (WOTC) eligibility 

• Work Readiness: short-term work readiness services (Choices, NCP, and WIOA) 

Employment Services: employment-related services are offered to job seekers to assist in 

gaining and retaining employment and promote advancement in their employment trajectories.  

These services include the following: 

• Unsubsidized Self-Employment, an income-producing enterprise that is intended to 

promote a clear pathway to self-sufficiency by decreasing family reliance on public 

benefits 

• Unsubsidized Employment/Employment Entry, for TANF/Choices customers, 

includes full or part-time employment for a Choices customer even if they are currently 

employed; for SNAP E&T customers, customers must receive other services before this 

service can be used to take credit for full or part-time employment (no other programs are 

eligible for this service) 

• Community Service, community service opportunities with nonprofit organizations 

(only for TANF/Choices and NCP) 

• Subsidized Employment, full or part-time employment in either the private or public 

sector that is subsidized in full or in part with wages of at least federal or state minimum 

wage, whichever is higher (only for TANF/Choices and NCP) 

• Unpaid Public/Non-Profit/For Profit Work Experience, unpaid work experience, 

time-limited training in the public, non-profit, or for-profit sectors 

149



 

 
 

• Subsidized Work Experience, paid work experience, time-limited training in the 

private, for-profit, nonprofit, or public sectors (SNAP E&T and WIOA) 

• Workfare is a SNAP E&T activity designed to improve the employability of ABAWDs 

through actual employment experience or training, or both. Nonexempt ABAWDs 

perform work in a public service capacity as a condition of eligibility to receive the 

SNAP allotment. 

 

• Summer Employment-Work Experience, employment, or work experience 

opportunities for youth within designated timeframes, directly linked to academic and/or 

occupational learning (WIOA Youth). 

Training programs: training services are offered to individuals who are unable to gain 

employment through basic labor exchange services, and for those who need additional training 

attain economic self-sufficiency.  These services include both short-term training (for rapid 

return to the workplace) and more extensive training (for job seekers who remain unsuccessful in 

finding or returning to employment, or in advancing into occupations that lead to economic self-

sufficiency). Training-related services/activities are classified as follows: 

• Occupational/Vocational Training: training conducted in an institutional setting that 

provides specific technical skills and knowledge required for a specific job or group of 

jobs and results in the attainment of a certificate 

• On-the-Job Training: employee training at the place of work while they are doing the 

actual job, and which may be supported by formal classroom training 

• Apprenticeship Training (only under Trade Adjustment Assistance and WIOA): a 

registered training program where the employer offers the worker a combination of 

employment, related instruction, and on-the-job training 

• Internships (only under WIOA): participants receive supervised practical training in a 

job setting 

• Entrepreneurial training: training that assists job seekers to achieve their goals for 

economic self-sufficiency by providing information on starting and running their own 

business 

• Customized Training (only under Trade Adjustment Assistance and WIOA for Adults 

and Dislocated Workers): training designed to meet the specific requirements of an 

employer or employers’ group 

• Private Sector Training – Upgrade/Retrain (only under WIOA): training provided and 

operated by the employer for current employees that provides instruction on new 

technologies and production or service procedures.  Training provided to upgrade skills 

necessary for retraining or upgrading skills 

150



 

 
 

• Prerequisite Training (only under Trade Adjustment Assistance): coursework required 

by a training provider prior to acceptance into a specific training program; and, 

• Skills/Self Grant: training provided through a Skills Development or Self-Sufficiency 

Grant. 

Under WIOA sec 134(c)(3)(A), training services may be made available to employed and 

unemployed adults and dislocated workers who (a) a one stop partner determines, after an 

interview, evaluation, or assessment, and career planning, are: (1) unlikely or unable to obtain or 

retain employment that leads to economic self-sufficiency or wages comparable to or higher than 

wages from previous employment through career services, (2) in need of training services to 

obtain or retain employment leading to economic self-sufficiency or wages comparable to or 

higher than wages from previous employment, and (3) have the skills and qualifications to 

participate successfully in training services. 

Educational Services 

• Basic Educational Skills/ABE: training designed to enhance the employability of job 

seekers by upgrading basic skills.  For WIOA Adult and Dislocated Workers, training 

includes services provided in combination with other training activities.  For WIOA 

Youth, training includes services conducted in an institutional setting that is designed to 

enhance the employability of the individual by upgrading basic skills.  For 

TANF/Choices, it includes Basic Education Skills training that does not occur in an 

employment setting 

• English as a Second Language: training services activities designed to enhance the 

English-speaking ability of nonnative speakers 

• High School (for TANF/Choices): for teen heads of households and adults without high 

school diploma or GED, who are attending high school 

• GED: for job seekers lacking a high school degree or GED, and those who are attending 

GED classes as a training service conducted in an institutional setting designed to enable 

an individual to pass a GED exam. The term “GED” includes all associated high school 

equivalencies 

• Tutoring/Study Skills/Instruction includes the communication of knowledge, ideas, and 

facts to help youth complete their secondary education.  This includes dropout prevention 

strategies 

• Alternative Secondary School: includes enrollment in nontraditional schools to 

complete high school, GED, and related high school equivalency. 

• Short-term Educational Services: includes services to prepare the individual for 

unsubsidized employment and increase employability, e.g.  Literacy, Adult Basic 

Education, development of learning skills, etc.  "Short Term" is defined by Board policy 

but should, with limited exceptions, be six-months or less. 

151



 

 

• Work-based Literacy: work-based (tied to employment) literacy component (ABE, 

ESL, Workforce Adult Literacy); 

• Middle School: middle school services are offered to teen heads of households and 

adults without high school diploma or GED, including those who are attending middle 

school; and,  

• High School: includes tracking and supporting High School attendance and completion. 

Support Services: to remove barriers and provide assistance necessary to allow participants to 

successfully complete program goals, WSA provides a wide variety of support services 

including: 

• Healthcare, includes, but is not limited to preventive and clinical medical treatment, 

voluntary family planning services, nutritional services and appropriate psychiatric, 

psychological and prosthetic services to the extent any such treatment(s) or service(s) are 

necessary to enable the attainment or retention of employment (NCP, WIOA) 

• Family/Child Care, referrals to subsidies for childcare services 

• Transportation, such as bus passes, gas allowance, and other transportation related costs 

• Housing/Rental Assistance 

• Counseling, provision of or referral to Counseling Services necessary to allow a 

participant to successfully complete program goals 

• Needs-Related payments, needs-related payments provide financial assistance to 

participants (Adult, DW, and Youth) to enable participation in training.  Includes NRPs 

made to individuals who have exhausted UI or TRA payments or did not qualify for UI 

payments where the individual is in training 

• Substance Abuse Treatment, referral to Substance Abuse Treatment as needed to allow 

a participant to successfully complete program goals (Choices, NCP, and WIOA 

Statewide Initiative Funding) 

•  Wheels to Work, provides low cost automobiles to eligible participants (Choices, 

WIOA Statewide Initiative Funding) 

• GED Test Payment, provision of financial assistance to help a participant pay for GED 

testing (Choices, NCP, SNAP, WIOA Statewide Initiative Funding) 

• Work Related Expense, provision of financial assistance to assist participants to pay for 

necessary, work related items.  Can include clothing and tools needed for employment 

(Choices, NCP, SNAP, WIOA Statewide Initiative Funding) 

• Financial Planning Assistance 

152



 

 
 

• Incentives: incentive payments are funds paid to participants based on actions such as 

attendance, successful performance, or completion of a program activity to encourage the 

participant to continue in the program (Choices, NCP, WIOA) 

• Job Search and Relocation Allowance (TAA only) 

Follow-up services: follow-up services are provided, as appropriate, to program participants 

who have received their last WIOA service and no other WIOA services are necessary.  WIOA 

Youth are provided with follow-up for a minimum of 12 months.  Follow-up services consist of a 

wide variety of services, including: post-employment services, job search assistance, individual 

counseling/career planning, job clubs, group counseling, outreach/intake/orientation, job 

referrals/contacts, counseling, labor market information, support services, local area information, 

provider information, non-WIOA financial assistance information, UI Claims, and resource room 

services.  Some of WSA’s follow-up services are available only to Youth, and these include 

leadership development, employer contact, mentoring, and progressive tracking. 

Youth Services: WSA provides WIOA youth activities consistent with the governor’s vision of 

strengthening the academic and future workplace outcomes for youth facing challenges and 

barriers to success.  WSA, its partners, network, and contractors provide activities consistent 

with eligibility criteria for two groups: in-school youth (ISY) and out-of-school youth (OSY).   

Referrals: WSA providers make available and coordinate supportive services to promote the 

ability of WIOA participants to participate in activities leading to employment or other 

performance outcomes.  WSA providers make referrals to ensure community resources are 

sought prior to providing services and services provided are reasonable and necessary for 

participation.  Referrals are also made when WSA’s funding is not available and, or, when 

specific services are not allowable. An example of agencies that receive referrals include the 

www.211texas.org. United Way San Antonio Texas www.unitedwaysatx.org, San Antonio 

Community Resource Directory  www.sacrd.org, Federally Qualified Health Centers (FQHCs), 

and other community action networks, indigent care programs, and mutual aid organizations.  

Through our continued promotion of strong partnerships, WSA aims at increasing opportunities 

for leveraging resources throughout the local area.  

Additional Job Center Services: In addition to the services outlined above, WSA American Job 

Centers operate programs in service of several additional key customer groups.  These include 

services to: (1) Unemployment Insurance Claimants, (2) Long Term Unemployed, (3) Adult 

Education and Literacy customers, (4) Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF), (5) 

Non-Custodial Parent (NCP), (6) Supplemental Nutrition Assistance (SNAP) customers, and (7) 

Child Care.   

• Unemployment Insurance Claimants: Consistent with State goals, one of our priorities 

includes serving the unemployment insurance (UI) claimant population and ensuring a 

fast return to work.  As allowed by law and in alignment to local labor market conditions, 

WSA determines the number of work search contacts required of UI claimants. WSA 

uses the Rapid Reemployment Services (RRES) statistical score (provided by TWC) to 

153

http://www.unitedwaysatx.org/


 

 
 

target UI claimants for enhanced re-employment services.  At a minimum, outreached 

claimants will receive an orientation and an employment plan. 

• Long-Term Unemployed: “Long-term unemployed” is defined by DOLETA as 

someone who has been jobless for 27 weeks or longer.  WSA offers job search and 

related services to these individuals before they reach this level of unemployment.  One 

of the TWC-contracted performance measures requires WSA to assist those who are in 

receipt of Unemployment Insurance gain employment within 10 weeks of their initial 

monetary eligibility.  Our strategies include increased outreach, improved quality in job 

postings/job matching, and job development activities. 

 

• Adult Education and Literacy: WSA participates in career and postsecondary education 

and training by following guidance from TWC and collaborating with our local partners 

and extended network.  To support employment, skills gains, and secondary completion, 

efforts include implementing strategies for enhanced enrollment and expansion of career 

pathway programs.  To that effect, WSA engages and supports AEL grant recipients and 

the AEL Alamo Consortium, in activities that promote student success in the 

achievement of career and higher education goals. AEL services encompass; High School 

Equivalency (HSE), Upgrade Academic Skills, English as a Second Language, Re-entry 

Services for probation/incarcerated adults, Career Training while you learn English and 

or earn your HSE, Employer Partnerships (AEL services on work sites with employers), 

College and Career Readiness services and Distance Learning. 

 The Alamo Consortium includes Alamo Colleges I-BEST, Southwest Texas Junior 

College, Northside ISD, North East ISD, San Antonio ISD, Each One Teach One, 

Restore Education, and ESC-20 AEL Program.  Integration and alignment strategies with 

the AEL Lead Agency, Education Service Center, Region 20, and the AEL Consortium 

include: 

• Co-location for the provision of AEL classes and services in WSA’s American 

Job Centers 

• Design and implementation of WSA, AEL, and VR Integration events 

• Cross-training 

• Development of one-on-one contacts 

• With the participation and guidance of TWC, move toward developing a single or 

common intake along with the sharing of information 

• Streamlining of services (administration of assessments, development of 

individual plans, service provision and case management, attainment of 

performance targets, and the provision of follow-up services) 

• Referrals to and co-enrollment with other workforce programs to support student 

retention, transition, and employment success 

154



 

 

• Strategic and program design guidance for career pathways 

• Sharing results from the analysis of employment statistics and local labor market 

information, regional economic development, and industry or occupational 

demand studies 

• Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF): WSA provides employment and 

training services to help public assistance recipients’ transition into self-sufficiency 

through a “work-first” delivery approach.  Choices, Texas’ TANF employment and 

training program, enables WSA to assist applicants, recipients, and former recipients of 

TANF in preparing for, obtaining, and retaining employment. This includes ensuring that 

adults meet mandatory work requirements through activities, including but not limited to: 

• Job search and job readiness 

• Basic skills training 

• Education 

• Vocational training 

• Support services 

The primary goal is to keep participants “engaged in work” through participation in 

Unsubsidized Employment, Subsidized Employment, On-the-job training, and/or 

Educational services for those who have not completed secondary school or received a 

GED credential/high school equivalency. WSA, through its contractor for workforce 

services engages Choices participants by focusing on intensive case management, the 

provision of support services and a mix of allowable work activities. Career Pathways for 

Choices participants is included in the Boards Targeted Occupations list, identifying 

opportunities for entry level, to mid-level and eventual career level employment 

(reference Health Care Industry example). In the Alamo area work-based learning 

activities including Subsidized Employment is promoted to connect Choices participants 

with employers that can provide relevant, hands on work experiences. In addition to 

providing learning opportunities, work-based training enables Choices participants to 

earn needed wages while gaining valuable work experience and building networks and 

social capital.  

The Choices Work Rate, defined as the percentage of TANF participants required to meet 

work-related participation requirements, reflects WSA’s ability to engage the Choices 

participant in work activities. In the 2017-2018 and 2018-2019 program years, and as 

compared to all other large Board areas in Texas, WSA attained the highest performance 

outcome for the Choices Work Rate. WSA has exceeded the Choices Work Rate target of 

50% in each of the last four contract years.  

155



 

 

Comparison 

Year 

Alamo Dallas Lower Rio 

Grande 

Tarrant 

County 

State 

2018-2019  62.97% 50.27% 58.45% 49.04% 52.62% 

2017-2018  64.69% 45.03% 61.29% 51.07% 52.69% 

2016-2017  61.69% 49.66% 64.46% 54.56% 48.41% 

2015-2016 62.58% 45.76% 67.86% 56.29% 52.42% 

 

 

 
 

• Noncustodial Parent Choices: The Noncustodial Parent (NCP) Choices program is a 

collaborative effort between TWC, the Office of the Attorney General (OAG) of Texas, 

WSA Board, WSA Office staff, and family court judges.  Through the NCP program, 

WSA serves low-income unemployed and underemployed noncustodial parents who are 

in arrears on their child support payments and whose children are current or former 

recipients of public assistance.  Services through the NCP program assist NCPs in 

overcoming barriers to employment and career advancement, become economically self-

sufficient, and make consistent child support payments.  To promote the provision of a 

wide range of services, WSA Contractors are encouraged to collaborate with other 

programs and explore opportunities for co-enrollment.  

 

• Opportunities to co-enroll NCP program participants into other workforce programs is an 

area that WSA will seek to improve. During the past four program years less than 5 

NCP’s have been enrolled in WIOA program services. To address the need to provide a 

wide range of services that can assist the NCP in developing a career pathway, that leads 

to more sustainable wages, the Office of the Attorney General’s staff agreed to allow 

short term training as an activity for NCP’s beginning in the 2019 program year. The 

short-term training ranges from 8 to 90 hours.  NCP’s are now able to participate in 

OSHA General Industry training, Forklift Operator training and Computer Literacy 

Training.  Seven NCP’s completed short term training with 4 of the 7 obtaining 

employment within 4 weeks of finishing the training.  

156



 

 

• Collaboration with partners in the Alamo area to provide additional services or supports 

for NCP’s include American GI Forum, San Antonio Food Bank, Goodwill Industries 

and Christian Assistance Ministries. These partners provide work experience 

opportunities, food assistance and other support services.  

Since 2005, when the NCP program was implemented in the Alamo area over 5044                     

Noncustodial parents have been served with over $61,447,887 dollars collected in child               

support payments.  

• Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program Employment and Training (SNAP): 

Through our partnership with TWC, WSA manages the SNAP Employment & Training 

(SNAP E&T) program.  As determined eligible by Health and Human Services (HHS), 

SNAP eligible individuals receive comprehensive services designed to improve the 

recipient’s ability to obtain and retain regular employment, increase earnings, and reduce 

dependency on public assistance.  Services to this population include: 

• Informational Services, 

• Assessment and Planning, 

• Case Management, 

• Job Search Services, 

• Education (Basic Educational Skills/ABE, English as a Second Language, and 

GED), 

• Training Services – Occupational Skills (Occupational/Vocational Training), 

• Employment Experience, and 

• Support Services. 

Employment Experience under SNAP includes Unsubsidized Employment/Employment 

Entry, Unpaid Public Work Experience, Unpaid Non-Profit Work Experience, Unpaid 

For-Profit Work Experience, Subsidized Work Experience, and Workfare. 

• Childcare: WSA administers Childcare Services (CCS) funding for the 1213-county 

region.  CCS helps parents pay for childcare while they work, go to school, or participate 

in job training to become self-sufficient.  Those eligible for childcare assistance include: 

• Parents in receipt of TANF 

• Parents who have recently stopped receiving TANF benefits because of earned 

income 

• Parents with low incomes who need help paying for childcare, so they can 

continue to work or attend school 

• Teen parents from low-income families who need childcare to attend school 

157



 

 

• Parents with low incomes who have children with disabilities 

• Parents who meet the definition of experiencing homelessness 

Parents who receive CCS assistance are required to pay a portion of their cost of care 

except: 

• parents who are participating in Choices or who are in Choices childcare 

• parents who are participating in Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program 

Employment and Training (SNAP E&T) services or who are in SNAP E&T 

childcare 

• parents of a child receiving childcare for children experiencing homelessness, 

• parents who have children who are receiving protective services childcare unless 

the Texas Department of Family and Protective Services (DFPS) assesses the 

parent share of cost 

The parent’s share of cost will be based on a sliding fee scale.  Families are required to 

participate in employment or school/training activities for an average of 25 hours 

per week for a single family or 50 hours per week for a two- parent family, with 

each parent averaging 25 hours per week at eligibility determinations / 

redeterminations, in order to receive subsidized child care. Based on sliding 

scale the max income for a family size of 4 is $5814.      

             

• Individuals with Disabilities: Beginning Sept. 1, 2016, the state agency formerly known 

as the Department of Assistive and Rehabilitative Services (DARS) was dissolved and 

several of its programs transferred to the Texas Workforce Commission (TWC). The 

158



 

 

changes are the result of legislation passed during the 84th Texas Legislative session 

which places all the state’s programs funded through the federal Workforce Innovation 

and Opportunity Act (WIOA) together under one agency. 

Transferring programs, to be operated in coordination with WSA, include: 

• The Vocational Rehabilitation (VR) program for individuals with visual 

impairments, including the Criss Cole Rehabilitation Center, 

• The Vocational Rehabilitation program for individuals with other disabilities, 

• The Business Enterprises of Texas program, and 

• The Independent Living Services program for older individuals who are blind. 

• WSA is working with TWC’s Vocational Rehabilitation program to ensure services 

for individuals with disabilities. Co-location of Vocational Rehabilitation staff in 

workforce centers facilitates immediate referrals between workforce and 

rehabilitation services. Monthly meetings between management staff and regional 

VR staff occurs and allows service delivery issues or concerns to be identified and 

resolved.  

• WSA works closely with VR staff to promote the Summer Earn and Learn, SEAL, 

program for students with disabilities. SEAL prepares students for transition to post-

secondary and employment opportunities by providing work readiness training and 

paid work experience in work-based learning positions.  Workforce staff develop 

work experience positions for students with employers throughout the workforce 

area. WSA pays the wage for students while employers provide real work 

opportunities. Last year 179 students were provided a work experience under the 

SEAL program with over 57, employers, encompassing over 71 worksites 

participating in the program.  

• Student Hireability Navigators, under WSA are also providing connections to 

workforce services for students, parents and local schools. Navigators work with VR 

staff to increase the provision of quality pre-employment transition services to 

students with disabilities. WSA Navigators share TWC’s Labor Market Career 

Information, LMCI, tools with school districts and Education Service Center staff 

for use with students in exploring career and education resources. Navigators 

conduct monthly meetings with VR Transition Vocational Rehab Counselors, 

TVRC’s to coordinate services to schools. Navigators collaborate with partner 

agencies to increase awareness and understanding of the abilities of students with 

disabilities. The Alamo Area Coalition was convened by WSA as a clearinghouse of 

information on events supporting individuals with disabilities in the Alamo area. 

Coalition members include Alamo Area Council of Governments, The ARC-SA, 

Center for Excellence, Autism Life Links, Disability SA, Vocational Rehabilitation, 

River City Group, Providence Place and South Fields.    

159



 

 
 

Strategies to Expand Access: Due to the nature of our workforce funding, eligible customer 

groups for workforce programs are well defined.  WSA will focus on implementing seven key 

strategies to expand access to services for these populations, as follows. These strategies are 

aligned with the understanding that the foundation for success heavily relies on solid 

partnerships. 

• Microtargeting outreach: WSA will leverage data mining and analysis capabilities tied 

to its two large information systems (WorkInTexas.com and The Workforce Information 

System of Texas, or TWIST).  Improved data mining and analysis will be performed to 

refine and tailor traditional marketing efforts and help drive potentially eligible customers 

to services. Outreach efforts include (1) social media strategies (i.e. LinkedIn, Facebook, 

Twitter, Constant Contact, Instagram, etc.), (2) traditional print, radio, and television 

media, (3) public service announcements, and (4) distribution of collateral materials. 

Workforce Solutions Alamo utilizes the following social media and communication 

platforms to reach our consumers. From December 2019 to November 2020, Facebook 

had a total of 27, 512 followers, 2,669 Instagram followers, 39,442 LinkedIn followers, 

and 5,618 Twitter followers.  

• The WSA website has had a total of 68,161 unique visits between May 2020 and 

November 2020. WSA Our constant contact email marketing platform has sent over 

423,922 emails and has reached 166,789 contacts between November 2019 and 

November 2020. 

 

• Streamlining Service Delivery: WSA will work with its partners and contractors to 

streamline programs and services to engage with customers.  These efforts will include 

the provision of intake and other services outside of the American Job Center locations, 

that is, on-site at various key locations and throughout the community.  These include, for 

example, creating or tapping into pipelines that lead individuals ages 14 and over into key 

training and employment opportunities.  For instance, performing intake and providing 

other case management-related services on location. 

 

• Leverage Partnerships: WSA will strategically develop partnerships with agencies that 

serve target population groups in order to (1) establish strong intake, referral, and service 

networks, (2) identify and capitalize on efficiencies, (3) provide more robust service 

offerings to common customers and enhance outcomes, and (4) explore applying and 

working with community partners to secure match and expand services (i.e., SNAP third 

party reimbursement, local investments in child care and quality child care, etc.). 

 

• Leverage Technology: The WSA service region covers 13-counties and includes 

numerous municipalities, communities, and rural population centers. Brick and mortar 

locations are insufficient to provide consistent accessibility to customers throughout the 

region in a cost-effective manner. WSA will leverage technology to expand access to 

customers without direct access to a physical Job Center using commercially available 

technology solutions, including video conferencing, kiosks, and other frameworks. 

 

160

http://workintexas.com/


 

 

• Localized and Specialized Planning Approaches: a localized planning approach will 

involve holding regional “round tables” at different locations in the 13-county region.  

The intent behind the “round tables” aims at reviewing and discussing local labor market, 

educational, and service delivery conditions, opportunities, and gaps.  The goals include 

the development of specific plans tailored to each region as based on their specific goals 

and needs.  A specialized planning approach will involve participating in and, or, 

developing and structuring group panels dedicated to addressing the needs of specific 

population groups.  This includes, for example, a Youth Panel, a VR Panel, a Veterans 

Panel, and others.  

 

• Data Analysis and Information: WSA will continue offering data analysis and 

information services to key partners and stakeholders in the community that have 

executed a data sharing agreement and/or a memorandum of understanding.  This 

includes assisting economic and workforce development partners with information 

related to the socio-economic conditions of the region.  WSA understands that this type 

of information is key for policy, strategic, and other purposes.   

 

• Building Strong Internal Partnerships: WSA understands that our own Board members 

and staff, and our contractors and network of suppliers, along with our partnerships along 

with the supports offered by TWC are our most asset.  Building on these relationships 

will be critical to WSA’s success.   

 

• Career Pathways and Co-enrollment: A successful Career Pathways approach 

includes a combination of rigorous and high-quality education, training, and other 

services that align with skill needs of industries and prepare individuals to be successful 

in a range of secondary or postsecondary education options, including apprenticeships.  

This approach supports a long-term continuum of training stacked by a sequential flow or 

ladder of career options that lead to the attainment of portable postsecondary credentials 

as a key objective. Employed effectively, Career Pathways strategies (1) accelerate 

attainment of educational and career goals within a specific occupation or occupational 

cluster, and (2) have been proven to be effective in serving disconnected youth and 

lower-skilled adults. 

With a focus on career pathways, WSA will collaborate with employers, industry 

associations and organizations, high schools and colleges, community-based and private 

education and training providers, human service agencies, and also involve parents (e.g., 

for youth) to develop and integrate a coordinated approach into career advising and 

human capital development.  This approach will include work based learning and 

stackable credentials.   

In addition, WSA will partner with agencies that have invested resources and developed 

Career Pathways strategies and materials, including Alamo Colleges and SA Works, both 

of which have made Career Pathways a part of their service design.  Alamo Colleges is 

also one of four grant recipients of the TWC-Texas Higher Education Coordinating 

Board (THECB) Accelerate TEXAS program.  This initiative aims to integrate basic 

skills with career and technical pathways to help adult students quickly acquire skills and 

161



 

 

certificates in high demand occupations.  Approximately 300 adults are expected to enroll 

in an integrated education and training model in health care, computer support, office 

technology, logistics, and building maintenance occupations.  The partnership with 

Alamo Colleges includes WSA, Education Service Center Region 20, and San Antonio 

ISD. 

In alignment to the Accelerate TEXAS program, WSA supports the state’s ambitious 

60x30 goal, that at least 60% of WSA region residents aged 25 to 34 will have a post-

secondary degree or recognized certification by 2030.   

The following table shows the educational attainment of individuals ages 25-34 in both 

Texas and the Alamo Region as related to attainment of an Associate degree, as well as 

information of WSA program participants attaining credentials in both PY20 and PY19. 

            

The following table shows the proportion of individuals ages 25-34 whose educational 

attainment is an Associate degree in both Texas and the Alamo Region from 2013 to 

2018. 

            

The proportion of individuals attaining an Associate degree in the Alamo Region was 

5.3% greater than that of Texas as a whole, but the difference varied substantially by sex. 

The proportion of women ages 25 to 34 who had an Associate degree in the Alamo 

Region was 14.9% greater than that of the State’s, but the proportion of males was lower 

than the State, by –2.5%.  This shows the need locally for additional outreach and efforts 

to promote post-secondary attainment in the Alamo Region.  

Career pathways strategies and programs, for both youth and adult customers, may 

include: 

162



 

 
 

• Short/long-term career planning, 

• Apprenticeships/Pre-Apprenticeships, 

• Contextualized adult education and English as a second language, 

• Internships, 

• Structured mentoring, 

• Career Technical Education Programs of Study with embedded industry & 

professional certifications, 

• Dual enrollment options to work concurrently toward high school diploma, industry 

certifications & postsecondary credentials, 

• Modularized Applied Associate & Technical Diploma programs, 

• Other Structured Career Pathways, 

• Stackable credentials - a sequence of credentials that accumulate over time and build 

qualifications in career pathways or career ladders toward higher paying jobs, 

• Lattice/ladder credentials which help mobility across career pathways, and 

• Processes for awarding credit for learning (for instance, give credits to veterans for 

experience)  

WSA has developed diagrams of career pathways which reflect credentialing 

opportunities related to the targeted occupations.  These tools will be used to develop 

individual employment plans for career counseling as well to identify gaps in training 

opportunities.  Samples of these pathways are included in the College Reengagement.  

In partnership with Alamo Colleges, WSA has co-located Center staff at two campuses, 

San Antonio College (SAC) and St. Philip’s College.  Their presence at the colleges 

provides students who drop out or need assistance to have access to workforce 

development services on-site.  This initiative is customized to address the growing 

number of those who begin college but do not complete or attain a credential.   

 

• Career Pathways Readiness (CPR).  WSA allocates funds provided through TWC’s 

Workforce Commission Initiatives (WCI) and that are awarded for the Career in Texas 

Industries/Youth Career Fair Events in a unique way.  A pilot CPR Summit was held 

during the 2017-2018 program year and which included individual sessions for school 

administrators, teachers, counselors, youth, parents, and workforce development 

professionals.  The intent of the CPR is to promote alignment of efforts, increase our 

understanding of Career Pathways, and develop a unified approach and definitions to 

regional efforts.   

 

• Co-enrollment: As appropriate and allowable, WSA explores co-enrollment 

opportunities for eligible individuals.  For individuals who are eligible for one or more of 

163



 

 
 

WSA’s programs, this strategy is particularly helpful when funding from one of the core 

programs helps cover services or activities that cannot be funded by another core 

program, or when funding from one program is limited.  For example, support services to 

remove barriers for participants in the Trade Adjustment Assistance (TAA) program are 

offered/provided through the Dislocated Worker program.  Individuals who receive 

SNAP benefits also qualify for WIOA Adult and WIOA Youth services (depending on 

age and other eligibility criteria), so that the leveraging of resources from multiple grants 

may benefit these customers. 

 

Co-enrollment of WSA customers with partner agencies and programs is also used to 

leverage resources and support initiatives leading to broader local community workforce 

development outcomes.  These types of co-enrollments aim to build regional talent 

pipelines that lead to attachment/re-attachment into the labor force but also to mid-

skill/mid-wage occupations.  Programs or projects with overlapping eligible populations 

facilitate co-enrollment.  WSA aims to be proactively engaged in the development of 

Memorandums of Understanding (MOUs) which promote these types of co-enrollments.  

MOUs of this nature require an individualized and customized approach in the 

relationships and processes that can be established.  Because of this, the specific elements 

that describe each MOU vary.  We include below descriptions of elements that the 

agency will look at for potential co-enrollments. 

 

• Overlaps in the characteristics of eligible populations, 

• Streamlining of intake (including cross-training in eligibility determinations, record 

development, sharing of applicant information as allowable by related law; ideally, 

WSA aims at supporting the development of a single intake system or mechanism for 

all applicants and which will require investments and TWC involvement and 

guidance), 

• Streamlining of referrals (i.e., one-on-one direct partner staff contacts), 

• Overlaps and similarities in performance outcomes (i.e., high school or an equivalent 

diploma completion, enrollment into post-secondary training or education, attainment 

of post-secondary degrees and credentials, job gain, job and wage advancement, job 

retention, etc.), 

• Opportunities for the leveraging of resources (through a combination or mix of 

partner funding and services, including wrap-around and support services), 

• Local initiatives/investments (whether the specific program forms a part of a larger or 

broader local effort/investment), 

• Overlaps and similarities in activities/services (i.e., assessments, development of 

individualized career plans, case management, follow-up), and 

• Other similar elements. 

164



 

 
 

• Improving Access to Activities Leading to a Recognized Postsecondary Credential: 

WSA promotes education and training opportunities that provide portable, stackable, and 

transferable credits and credentials.  This includes identifying gaps in opportunities and 

outreaching local training providers to assist in the development of programs within the 

career pathways that are reflected in the Target Occupations.  This effort entails offering 

assistance to training providers so that they may incorporate specific courses and 

programs of study in the Eligible Training Provider System (ETPS).  This process is 

critical because WIOA requires training providers to apply to WSA for certification to 

receive WIOA funds.  In 2020, WSA more than doubled the number of approved training 

opportunities available on this list from 224 in January 2020 to 450 in December 2020.  

The Statewide List of Certified Training Providers and instructions may be found at: 

http://www.twc.state.tx.us/partners/eligible-training-provider-system. 

 

Improved access also requires having the necessary processes and tools to administer in-

depth and comprehensive assessments of the educational abilities and interests of 

potential students.  WSA intends to implement revised job-matching systems and, 

training-matching processes based on customer data and predictive analytics to create 

innovative efficiencies and help expand access to training opportunities.  WSA plans on 

investing into these types of tools. 

 

• Adult Education and Literacy (AEL): With the addition of AEL program services to 

TWC, WSA has been charged with exploring new strategies to engage training providers 

and encourage adults to take part in literacy advancement to achieve greater success in 

employment leading to self-sufficiency.  The AEL Alamo Consortium incorporates 

relevant labor market and career information to assist with decisions regarding services 

and curricula that promote the occupational needs of the local area.  WSA will provide 

guidance to and collaborate with the AEL Alamo Consortium to enhance AEL services 

with the goal of strengthening collaborative efforts and partnerships between AEL and 

WSA and with educational, public services and other service agencies. WSA engages and 

supports AEL grant recipients and the AEL Alamo Consortium, in activities that promote 

student success in the achievement of career and higher education goals.  Integration and 

alignment strategies with the AEL Lead Agency, Education Service Center, Region 20, 

and the AEL Consortium include:  

 

• Co-location for the provision of AEL classes and services in WSA’s American 

Job Centers 

• Design and implementation of WSA, AEL, and VR Integration events  

• Cross-training on TWC sponsored Labor Market Information (every 2 years or as 

needed) 

• Streamlining of services (administration of assessments, development of 

individual plans, service provision and case management, attainment of 

performance targets, and the provision of follow-up services)  

165

http://www.twc.state.tx.us/partners/eligible-training-provider-system


 

 

• Referrals to and co-enrollment with other workforce programs to support student 

retention, transition, and employment success  

• Strategic and program design guidance for career pathways 
 

WSA Strategies will aim at supporting system integration with postsecondary educational 

outcomes, as measured by high school equivalency, college and career readiness, 

enrollment in non-remedial, for-credit courses in postsecondary educational institutions, 

and occupational and industry skill standards and certification widely used and 

recognized by business and industry. 

  

166



 

 
 

 

Part 4: One-Stop Service Delivery  

A. One-Stop Service Delivery System  

(WIOA §108(b)(6); 20 CFR §679.560(b)(5))  

Boards must include a description of the one-stop delivery system in the workforce area, 

including explanations of the following:  

• How the Board will ensure the continuous improvement of eligible providers and how 

providers will meet the employment needs of local employers, workers, and job seekers  

• How the Board will facilitate access to services provided through the one-stop delivery system, 

including to remote areas, through the use of technology and other means  

• How entities within the one-stop delivery system, including the one-stop operators and the one-

stop partners, will comply with WIOA §188 (related to Non-Discrimination), if applicable, and 

with applicable provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 regarding the physical 

and programmatic accessibility of facilities, programs and services, technology, and materials 

for individuals with disabilities, including providing staff training and support for addressing the 

needs of individuals who have disabilities  

• The roles and resource contributions of the one-stop partners  

Board Response: One-Stop Service Delivery 

Continuous improvement of eligible providers: Eligible providers, including all agencies 

contracted by WSA, are required to carry out the duties consistent with all applicable federal and 

state laws, regulations, and other requirements, and implement all workforce services and/or 

programs consistent with the Board Plan, WSA policy, procedures, directives, and Memorandum 

of Records.  

WSA requires providers to operate responsive systems and programs that embrace continuous 

improvement.  This requires a top down commitment to performing a continuous assessment of 

system performance as well as the development of systemic solutions.  As part of its internal 

controls, WSA deploys and requires providers to engage in two key strategies to drive 

continuous improvement in the workforce system: data analysis and customer feedback. 

• Data Analysis: Workforce systems are data rich environments. TWC requires utilization 

of two large information systems, (1) The Workforce Information System of Texas 

(TWIST) and WorkInTexas.com. Each year critical demographic, service, and outcome 

information is collected on tens of thousands of participants, and available for ad hoc 

analysis. WSA and its providers engage in proactive internal monitoring done through 

random sampling, data mining, analysis, and synthesis to quantify compliance, quality, 

and customer flow, and evaluate opportunities for efficiencies and targets for reducing 

inertia and redundancy for customers accessing the system.  

167

http://workintexas.com/


 

 

 

• Customer Feedback: Critical to continuous improvement initiatives is collecting 

qualitative and quantitative feedback regarding the system’s efficiency and efficacy in 

serving primary customer groups, including:  

• Employer Customers: Employers are the primary customers of the workforce 

system. Establishing meaningful relationships with employers and providing 

streamlined, value-added services is critical to our ability to prepare and place job 

seeker customers.  

• Job Seeker Customers: To effectively serve job seeker customers, they must be 

prepared to enter the local job markets and placed on Career Pathways that lead to 

self-sufficiency and career progression. 

• Chief Elected Officials: The elected officials that represent the constituents of 

the 13 counties of the Alamo region are responsible for creation of policy and 

activities that drive alignment of economic priorities and allocation of resources 

to address these priorities. WSA has established regular communication with the 

area judge and other governing bodies in each of the 13 counties of the Alamo 

region and will continue to seek the input of these officials to inform the 

development of programming.   

• Education and Training Partners:  

• Community Partner Customers: To maximize the impact of workforce 

development resources on communities, the workforce system must leverage 

partnerships to fill in the gaps and provide wrap-around services to employer and 

job seeker customers. 

• Internal Customers: Staff are a critical asset of the workforce system. Their 

feedback is invaluable to enhancement efforts. 

WSA evaluates system compliance and performance and requires providers to monitor these 

systems as well by collecting feedback from customer groups and developing action plans to 

improve systems based on analysis. 

Workforce Development Academy 

WSA will create a Workforce Development Academy focusing and emphasizing Jobs and Career 

Pathways that will target middle school and high school students. The Academy will be open to 

students, teachers, parent liaisons and counselors. The Academy will be designed as an engaging 

and interactive forum. An additional outcome of the Academy is to create Workforce 

Ambassadors that expand and connect to workforce opportunities and resources within our 

communities.  

 

168



 

 
 

The proposed curriculum may offer a half-day or whole day session or could be provided via 

workshops over the course of 4 to 5 months.  The proposed curriculum will include: 

 

• Introduction of Workforce-Overview of WSA, its impact in the community, and its 

ability to provide educational and employment opportunities through exploring Career 

Pathways.   

  

• Partnerships-Connecting employment opportunities to high school students through 

community pipelines such as SA Works. Highlighting partnerships to bridge educators 

and employers to connect career pathways in-demand occupations. 

 

• Provide tools and resources such as are available through TWC’s LMCI (i.e. Texas 

Reality Check, etc.) 

o Walkthrough lifestyle expenses  

o Determine your minimum salary needs  

o Explore the occupations that earn the salary desire 

  

• Ambassadors will explore information on occupations and Labor Market trends.  

o Attend workgroups facilitated by employers  

o Participate at workforce events   

o Market workforce career occupation opportunities and events  

o Receive professional development training  

 

• Credential Badging  

o Digital credentials that can be posted or linked to participants social media accounts 

o Digital credentials provided to Ambassadors for completion of industry curriculum 

Facilitating access to services: WSA maintains five Job Centers in located in urban areas of 

Bexar County and one in each of the twelve rural service counties:  Atascosa, Bandera, Comal, 

Frio, Gillespie, Guadalupe, Karnes, Kendall, Kerr, Medina and Wilson.   

Center capacity and staffing levels are adjusted according to the composition of the county 

population (i.e. demographic profile), the consumption of Center services, and available funding.  

Regular (annual minimum) demographic and customer flow analysis is conducted to ensure Job 

Center capacity is adequate to meet the community demand and that operations are efficient. 

Access to services in Bexar and in the surrounding counties aim to mirror population.  Center 

traffic in the Bexar County locations was 77.9% of total traffic in the area, compared to 22.1% in 

the surrounding counties.  In terms of total population, an estimated 76.1% reside in Bexar and 

23.9% in the surrounding counties. 

 

 

 

 

169



 

 

 BCY 2017 BCY 2018 BCY 2019 

Urban 187,493 176,671 153,699 

Rural 48,389 39,255 40,873 

Total 235,882 215,926 194,572 

Split 79%/21% 82%/18% 79%/21% 

 

In addition to physical service delivery locations, WSA utilizes its web-based resources as a 

“virtual information center” for customers to access information, including information about 

childcare eligibility, youth services, job seeker services, and labor market information.  Local 

efforts are complemented with state technology tools.  WorkInTexas.com, for example, provides 

a powerful platform for removing geographic barriers from the provision and dissemination of 

job seeker services (events calendar, bulletin board, subscriptions, etc.).   

WSA utilizes social media to quickly deliver information to large numbers of users of all ages 

and backgrounds. It also enables WSA to assist customers in a form that they are familiar with. 

Furthermore, social networking capabilities provide a low-cost way to reach employers, job 

seekers, and others with a need for WSA services.  WSA hosts a Facebook page, Twitter 

account, LinkedIn account, and Instagram account. 

Satellite offices are strategically located in rural areas to increase access, including that for 

individuals with disabilities, and all customers in need of services.  Particularly with VRS, Board 

and Job Center staff will maintain strong relationships with entities that assist individuals with 

disabilities in the 13-county region.  Board and Job Center Business Service staff will promote 

the benefits of workforce services to local business and training providers throughout the region. 

Accessibility: Geographic availability is a strategy for increasing access to services for 

individuals with disabilities. In each of the five urban and some of our rural locations, designated 

space is made available and VR staff and other community partners are co-located in order to 

increase the scope of services that are provided at the center.  

Board staff will conduct yearly accessibility and Equal Opportunity reviews at the Centers to 

maintain and expand access to services for individuals with disabilities.  Adaptive equipment is 

evaluated and replaced as needed, including but not limited to TTY phones, Visikey keyboards, 

large trackball mouse, noise-canceling headphones, Zoom Text, and JAWS.   

Interpreters are coordinated, made available, and funded by WSA upon request to ensure equal 

access and quality of services.  One of our strongest efforts includes cross-training and the 

scheduling of regular on-going meetings with VR management and staff.  VR and Workforce 

management level staff meet monthly to share updates and coordination activities. Issues or 

concerns that may be impacting service delivery are identified and resolved.   In addition, WSA 

will continue to learn and share best practices for services people with disabilities by attending 

workforce forums, Quality Assurance Network (QAN) meetings, and other similar events. 

170



 

 

One-Stop partner contributions: WSA partners include employer-led organizations, 

associations and consortiums of employers, industry sectors, economic development 

organizations, training and educational institutions, labor organizations, and faith-based, other 

private, and community-based organizations.  Regional workforce and economic development 

planning and execution requires a collaborative effort to fully maximize return of investments 

made in the interest of growing a robust and vibrant economy.   

The roles and resource contributions of one-stop partners to the workforce development delivery 

system are many.  WSA plans on leveraging these resources and complementing a 

comprehensive workforce development service delivery via the development of Memorandums 

of Understanding (MOUs).  MOUs are intended to describe the services to be provided through 

the system, including the way the services will be coordinated and delivered.  At a minimum, 

MOUs will: 

• Identify each partner, 

• Describe the system design, 

• Identify the services, including career services applicable to partners, 

• Identify and describe the system’s customers, and 

• Describe each partner’s responsibilities. 

 

In accordance with the “Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act Memorandum of 

Understanding Provisions Checklist,” (WD Letter 03-16, Attachment 1), and as appropriate, 

MOUs will include a description of how operating costs will be funded, methods for referring 

customers, access to services, and the duration of the MOU. 

WSA plans on continuing the delivery of comprehensive workforce development services 

through the development of MOUs that support one or more of the following: 

 

• Training and education,  

• Labor market attachment, advancement, and retention, 

• Employer attraction, expansion, and retention,  

• Support and Wrap-around Services, including for example: 

• Assessments, 

• Transportation, 

• Housing, 

• Childcare, 

• Utilities, and 

• Other services 

 

• Services that support the attainment of TWC-contracted performance measures, 

• Services that support local workforce and economic development initiatives as based on 

their alignment with TWC’s and WSA’s vision, mission, and goals. 

  

171



 

 
 

B. Cooperative Agreements  

(WIOA §108(b)(14); 20 CFR §679.560(b)(13))  

Boards must provide copies of executed cooperative agreements that explain how all local 

service providers, including additional providers, will carry out the requirements for integration 

of and access to the entire set of services available in the local one-stop delivery system. This 

includes cooperative agreements (as defined in WIOA §107(d)(11)) between the Board or other 

local entities described in §101(a)(11)(B) of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 USC 

721(a)(11)(B)) and the local office of a designated state agency or designated state unit that 

administers programs that are carried out under Title I of the Rehabilitation Act (29 USC 720 et 

seq.) (other than §112 or part C of that title (29 USC 732, 741) and are subject to §121(f)) in 

accordance with §101(a)(11) of the Rehabilitation Act (29 USC 721(a)(11)) with respect to 

efforts that will enhance the provision of services to individuals who have disabilities and to 

other individuals, such as cross training of staff, technical assistance, use and sharing of 

information, cooperative efforts with employers, and other efforts.  

WSA has attached all cooperative agreements (as defined in WIOA §107(d)(11)) between the 

Board or other local entities described in §101(a)(11)(B) of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 

USC 721(a)(11)(B)) and the local office of a designated state agency or designated state unit that 

administers programs that are carried out under Title I of the Rehabilitation Act (29 USC 720 et 

seq.) (other than §112 or part C of that title (29 USC 732, 741) and are subject to §121(f)) in 

accordance with §101(a)(11) of the Rehabilitation Act (29 USC 721(a)(11)) with respect to 

efforts that will enhance the provision of services to individuals who have disabilities and to 

other individuals, such as cross training of staff, technical assistance, use and sharing of 

information, cooperative efforts with employers, and other efforts.  

  

172



 

 

 

C. Employer Engagement, Economic Development, and Unemployment Insurance Program 

Coordination  

(WIOA §108(b)(4); 20 CFR §679.560(b)(3))  

Boards must include a description of the strategies and services that will be used in the 

workforce area to do the following:  

• Facilitate engagement of employers in the workforce development programs, including small 

employers and employers in in-demand industry sectors, in-demand occupations, and target 

occupations  

• Support a local workforce development system that meets the needs of businesses in the 

workforce area  

• Better coordinate workforce development programs and economic development  

• Strengthen links between the one-stop delivery system and unemployment insurance programs  

 

Note: This may include the implementation of initiatives such as incumbent worker training 

programs, on-the-job training programs, customized training programs, industry and sector 

strategies, career pathways initiatives, use of effective business intermediaries, and other 

business services and strategies designed to meet the needs of regional employers. These 

initiatives must support the strategy described above.  

WSA’s Business Engagement framework is based on some of the core principles of inclusive 

growth, specifically “Growth from Within.”  WSA’s Growth from Within strategy prioritizes 

industries, occupations, and firms that: 

a. Drive local competitive advantage, innovation, productivity, and wage gains, and 

b. Boost export growth and trade with other markets. 

WSA aims to focus on these industries, occupations, and firms in alignment to efforts of local 

partners and their workforce and economic development priorities and targets.  Along with the 

City of San Antonio EDD, Bexar County EDD, and the Area Judges/AACOG, for example, the 

region has a focus on three key industries, including Healthcare, Advance Manufacturing, and 

Information Technology.  Port SA is strong on Aerospace while portions of our region and 

nearby regions are tied to Oil & Gas.  One of our region’s primary industry focus also lies in 

Cybersecurity.   

 

Our methodology to select the Target Occupations looks closely into these types of local 

investments and goals.  WSA incorporates this “local wisdom” not only as an intricate part of 

173



 

 
 

our secondary data targets but mainly as our initial framework from which we began selecting 

industries that show the most promising projected growth, jobs, and wages.    

Having selected these most promising industries, WSA aims to partner with organizations, 

associations, and employers with which to further help promote the needed education, up-

skilling, and re-skilling of our residents to meet the needs of regional employers.   

In addition to working closely with Chambers, associations, economic development 

corporations/agencies, and employers, there are several strategies that WSA aims at 

strengthening and/or implementing.  These include the following: 

1) Electronically surveying employers from these key industries in a regular basis.  This will 

help WSA and the region stay in touch of industry labor and skills needs. 

2) As based on industry needs, work to address local educational and training needs. 

3) Develop Business Plans that address labor/skills needs in the immediate term (within 1 year), 

medium term (1 -3 years), and long-term (3-5 years). 

Overall Goal.  The overall goal of these strategies is to create pipelines into mid-skill/mid-wage 

occupations.  WSA aims to achieve this goal by offering services that can be classified into the 

following three types: Traditional Services, Sector Strategies, and Place-based Strategies.   

A. Traditional Services.  In addition to meeting/exceeding our TWC-contracted performance 

measure of Workforce Services to Employers, traditional services include the promotion and 

development of job postings through WorkInTexas and the participation of employers into 

our labor exchange system.  Job Fairs, Hiring Fairs, providing space at our Job Centers for 

promotion and interviewing, and other similar services are also included.  These services also 

include working with employers to created ‘transitional’ jobs programs, such as short-term 

subsidized employment and supportive services for people with limited work experience and 

barriers to employment, as well as other Job Center services.  Job Center services focus on 

in-person and individualized assistance, including skill and interest assessments that help 

match employer needs, as well as career and training planning, and others with a view on 

ensuring that these services match employer needs. 

B. Sector-Based Strategies.  Sector strategies work to identify employer skill and workforce 

needs in a given industry cluster and region and develop recruiting, assessment, and training 

strategies to help employers find workers with the right skills.  The following are examples 

of sector strategies: 

a) Industry Partnerships.  Collaborations of businesses from a particular industry that 

meet regularly with the assistance of a workforce intermediary to address their region and 

industry’s collective workforce and talent needs.  Includes discussions of shared human-

resources issues, exchange of information about industry practices, and specific actions to 

address workforce challenges. 

b) Sectoral Skills Partnerships.  Bring together multiple employers within an industry to 

collaborate with colleges, schools, labor/workforce agencies, community organizations 

174



 

 
 

and other stakeholders to align training with the skills needed for that industry to grow 

and compete.  Sector partnerships can help facilitate the advancement of workers at all 

skill levels, including the least skilled. 

c) Regional Skills Alliances.  These can take many forms.  Broadly, they can be defined as 

collaborations within a regional labor market among multiple firms with similar labor 

market needs and other key stakeholders (such as labor, educational institutions, 

community organization, the public sector) to identify and address skills shortages. 

d) Industry Skills Panels.  Private/public partnerships work to ensure that employees in 

key industries have the skills needed to quickly and competently meet the changing needs 

of businesses.  Harnessing the expertise of leaders in business, labor, education, 

economic development, and other sectors.  Skill Panels bring competitors within a 

specific industry together to collaboratively address critical issues, skill gaps, training 

needs, and performance outcomes that affect the industry as a whole. 

e) Value-Chain Models.  NAICS classifies industries by processes of production, and so do 

not account for activities that contribute to the processes of production (upstream) nor 

activities on which the outputs of production depend on (downstream).  Value-Chain 

Models look into these upstream and downstream processes to better capture, understand, 

and meet the needs of industry. 

f) Entrepreneurship.  Starting a business is challenging, but women and minorities have 

traditionally faced increased challenges (perhaps they have less access to capital and/or 

weaker networks).  These strategies aim at closing these gaps by broadening access and 

building trust in under-represented communities. 

g) Incumbent Worker Training.  Workplace-based learning has critical advantages, 

particularly in rapid changing contexts.  This type of training helps to keep training 

relevant to the job.  These strategies help firms because it’s an efficient way to up-skill 

workers and often open up new possibilities for lower skilled workers, and/or 

advancement opportunities for workers. 

h) Customized Training.  Involves tailoring of training programs to meet both the 

requirements of the targeted jobs and the learning needs of those being trained.  Off-the-

shelf programs often are in need of customization and/or to be offered at times and places 

that are accessible to the target population.  Customized training helps to respond to 

competitive pressures and new technologies. 

i) Career Pathways.  A combination of rigorous and high-quality education, training, and 

other services that align with the skill needs of industries, prepare individuals to be 

successful in education, includes counseling and support in education and career goals, 

and includes education offered concurrently with and in the same context as workforce 

preparation activities and training for a specific occupation or occupational cluster, 

organizes education/training to accelerate educational and career advancement, and 

175



 

 

enables the attainment of recognized diplomas or credentials and advancement within a 

specific occupation or occupational cluster.  

C. Place-based Strategies.  These strategies involve offering traditional services and/or 

developing sector strategies in specific locations, particularly those that have historically 

experienced isolation, such as lack of transportation and other services, in segregated areas, 

and/or areas that experience high poverty or unemployment. 

Our Business Engagement team will work to remove barriers to inclusive growth by identifying 

barriers and working with partners to remove these. 

• Dynamism Barriers.  These barriers inhibit the process of firm creation and expansion 

that fuels employment and productivity growth. 

• Skills Barriers.  These inhibit individuals from gaining the knowledge and capabilities to 

fill good-paying jobs and reach economic self-sufficiency. 

• Access Barriers.  These barriers isolate individuals’ communities with limited access to 

economic opportunity.  

Engagement of Employers: WSA’s Business Engagement (BE) Team serves as the Board’s 

ambassador to businesses by connecting them to workforce system services throughout the13-

county region. The focus is on multiple activities in which services are prioritized based on 

employer needs. These include but are not limited to: 

• Assessment and delivery of system-wide services to assist businesses in meeting their 

workforce needs 

• Support economic efforts and initiatives throughout the region by providing socio-

economic and labor market data, analysis, and information; 

• Outreach targeted businesses to inform them of system-wide workforce services and 

connect them to those services through a “warm-handoff” referral to service providers 

• Implement marketing and communications to expand access to employment through 

partnerships with local community colleges within our region 

• Expand career pathways by connecting employers to Department of Labor Registered 

Apprenticeship (work/education blended training) and TWC’s Employer Initiatives, 

Skills Development, Self-Sufficiency grants, Skills for Small Business, and Skills for 

Veterans 

• Expand career pipelines by identifying eligible candidates, implementing in-depth 

assessments and matching, and developing intake/referral mechanisms to help enroll 

these candidates into training that meets employer skills needs 

• Facilitate the development of work-related opportunities for program participants; and, 

176



 

 
 

• Educate businesses about benefits offered that are available through partner agencies and 

refer as needed. 

Business Engagement Model.  The role of the BE Team and model aims at aligning business 

services and operations with WSA’s strategic goals.  This model strengthens and streamlines 

integration, coordination, and collaboration across programs and partners for improved business 

services.  

The BE strategy also includes a division of the region into two sectors in a way that it supports 

the economic development and business needs of both the surrounding counties and the San 

Antonio metro area.  By assigning staff by region (East/West), WSA engages all communities in 

the 13- counties. 

Small Employers 

WSA recognizes the critical role that small businesses play in economic and workforce 

development and, particularly, job creation.  To that effect, the WSA BE Team will work closely 

with local business incubators and startup initiatives, small business ambassadors, 

entrepreneurial training providers, and the small business committees that participate in various 

chambers.   

Business Human Resource Needs.   

BE staff supports the human resource needs of businesses by: 

• Offering opportunities to help businesses improve their current workforce through 

easy access to incumbent worker training resources, 

• Working with businesses who are downsizing through “rapid response” to 

manage economic transition, including the potential for lay-off aversion, 

• Developing a profile of the workforce system talent pool to help businesses 

appreciate the potential for recruiting from the workforce system, 

• Presenting services available via TWC, Employer Initiatives Skills for Small 

Businesses, 

• Offering benefits of the Work Opportunity Tax Credit (WOTC) which is a federal 

income tax benefit administered by the U.S. Department of Labor (DOL) for 

employers who hire individuals from specified target populations.  The WOTC 

reduces a business’s federal tax liability, and serves as an incentive to select job 

candidates who may be disadvantaged in their efforts to find employment, 

• Providing specialized recruiting events at the Job Centers for small employers, 

and directing Business Service Representatives (BSRs) to assist in identifying 

leads prior to scheduled hiring events, and 

• Recruiting and specifically targeting employers from In-Demand Industry 

Sectors/Occupations to utilize services. 

177



 

 
 

WSA’s BE Team will work to promote target industries and occupations by: 

• Developing industry-specific partnerships to meet the specific human resource 

needs of Alamo regional targeted industries, 

• Giving priority to outreaching and facilitating service delivery to businesses 

within these targeted industries, 

• Prioritizing hiring events based on Targeted occupations and wages, and 

• Developing externships for Teachers Program for the facilitation of Career 

Pathways in STEM fields. 

Meeting Business Needs. WSA’s BE Team assesses business needs and helps determine the 

best plan of action for workforce growth and/or any potential grants, TWC grants, and board 

special programs/grants to help fill workforce needs. 

• WSA works with local economic development councils, chambers, and 

professional organizations to provide support for new and expanding business, 

• WSA’s BE Team participates in various committees in our 13-counties supporting 

local business and economic development needs, 

• BE Team utilizes a monthly dashboard to identify active WIT job seekers and 

recruit businesses, 

• WSA builds upon what already exists with partners in communities (SA Promise 

Zone, Fredericksburg Labor Force Taskforce, Hondo Economic Development 

Council-Go Medina, and other efforts), and  

• WSA also works with community partners to assist in identifying individuals that 

meet recruiting needs. (i.e., Goodwill Ind. SAMMinistries, career training 

schools, and others) 

Workforce and Economic Development Coordination: WSA has a strong commitment to 

engage and align workforce development, economic development and educational efforts to 

ensure the Alamo region remains competitive in the global economy. WSA is actively involved 

with many economic development entities, chambers of commerce, and industry/employer 

associations within the region.   

With a market-driven approach, WSA will continue to engage multiple organizations involved 

with economic development. WSA staff will maintain membership and participation in related 

boards, committees, taskforces, and/or panels.  WSA and American Job Center staff play a 

consultative role and serve as a principal resource for regional labor market information, 

economic data, demographic information, and other forms of data analysis.  WSA will 

collaborate in meetings with prospective employers and business clients seeking to relocate or 

start a business in the region. WSA will also participate in joint planning activities and in 

economic impact studies and analysis.  Collaboration with local and regional economic 

178



 

 

development organizations allows us to better identify future workforce needs to develop timely 

and responsive solutions. 

In addition, WSA will collaborate with TWC in the presentation of and promotion of resources 

through the Governor’s Small Business Forums.  These forums offer businesses with 

opportunities, best practice methodologies, and access to credit and needed supply chains. 

Other services that WSA offers to local area EDC’s include: 

• Grant application partnerships: for example, Access High Demand Job 

Training Program which supports collaborations between Workforce Solutions 

partners and local economic development corporations (EDCs). These grants are 

part of a statewide effort to create occupational job training programs that will 

improve the skill sets of individuals for jobs in high-demand occupations in Texas 

communities. 

• Labor Market Analysis and Information: for business development, attraction, 

and retention resource; and,  

• Business Summits: information dissemination of programs/services to 

communities. 

Linkages Between One-stop Delivery and Unemployment Insurance Programs: Acting as 

‘head-hunters,’ WSA’s Business Engagement (BE) Team targets employers whose needs align 

with identified skill sets of UI recipients.  WSA evaluates active WIT job seeker and program 

participant qualifications to perform quality job matches and develop employment-related 

opportunities.  This is accomplished through networks and collaborative strategies which include 

labor exchange and career counseling services that aim at providing enhanced services to UI job 

seekers.   

  

179



 

 
 

D. Coordination of Wagner-Peyser Services  

(WIOA §108(b)(12); 20 CFR §679.560(b)(11))  

A description of plans, assurances, and strategies for maximizing coordination, improving 

service delivery, and avoiding duplication of Wagner-Peyser Act services and other services 

provided through the one-stop delivery system.  

Board Response: Coordination of Wagner-Peyser Services 

WSA has fully implemented and operates the Texas Model for workforce system service 

delivery. In 2003, the Texas Workforce Commission (TWC) implemented the Texas Model for 

the delivery of Employment Services (ES) (Wagner-Peyser Act services).  In the Alamo region, 

the contractor managing and operating the region’s American Job Centers has full responsibility 

for day-to-day guidance of TWC (state) ES staff. TWC maintains administrative responsibility, 

but the WSA contract or shares responsibility for directing daily work assignments, assigning 

individual performance goals, coordinating hiring, initiating disciplinary action and evaluating 

staff performance. 

Operating under the Texas Model ensures system coordination and that duplication of services is 

minimized. In addition, WSA engages in joint strategic planning with all contractors and 

partners, stressing the importance of coordination and consistent services provision.  

  

180



 

 

E. Integrated, Technology-Enabled Intake and Case Management  

(WIOA §108(b)(21); 20 CFR §679.560(b)(20))  

Boards must include a description of how one-stop centers are implementing and transitioning to 

an integrated, technology-enabled intake and case management information system for 

programs carried out under WIOA and by one-stop partners.  

Board Response: Integrated, Technology-Enabled Intake and Case Management 

WSA aggressively incorporates technology into the one-stop service delivery system in the 

Alamo region, including incorporation of integrated, technology enabled intake and case 

management information systems for programs carried out under WIOA and by one-stop 

partners. The backbone of WSA’s approach are systems administered by the Texas Workforce 

Commission (TWC), which include: 

• WorkInTexas.com (WIT): Labor-exchange online system mandated by the 

Wagner-Peyser Act and operated in cooperative effort with JobCentral, the 

National Labor Exchange system 

• The Workforce Information System of Texas (TWIST): integrated intake, 

eligibility, case management, and reporting system for employment and training 

services.  TWIST acts as the central repository for customer information.  

Includes interfaces with WIT, the UI benefits system, and HHSC’s system 

• Child Care Attendance and Automation (CCAA): allows parents to record 

attendance using a swipe card at a point-of-service device located at authorized 

childcare facilities 

• Cash Draw and Expenditure Reporting: TWC’s online Cash Draw and 

Expenditure Reporting (CDER) system is a web application used by Boards to 

draw funds from their program allocation.  Handles all financial transactions 

• Workforce Job Center Traffic (WCCT): traffic tracking system used at career 

center locations, job fairs, and other events/activities to record and report on usage 

TWC systems are supplemented by local technology investments that include: 

• Cabinet: local network document management and workflow system used in the 

delivery of Child Care Services.  WSA plans to expand this technology 

throughout the workforce system. 

• Online applications and reporting: to expand accessibility and improve customer 

service, WSA plans to develop online applications and reporting for all workforce 

services programs.   

• Cisco Contact Center: to expand call center services and out-bound (robo-call) 

campaigns, for instance, to remind customers about scheduled activities. 

181



 

 

• Kiosks: plan to provide remote access locations to career center services and staff. 

• Customer Relationship Manager: WSA is in the process of implementing a 

customer relationship manager (CRM, Salesforce). The CRM will assist in the 

capturing and sharing of information with key partners related to contacts and 

relationships with employers, business associations, and social-service and other 

agencies.   

• EMSI: WSA will continue procuring/utilizing labor market tools which facilitate 

the analysis and reporting of key local and state-level data.  

• Learning Management Systems: contractor uses a learning management system 

for staff development and policy implementation. 

• Caseworthy: a data platform that aims to allow co-case and career management of 

participants with partners, particularly COSA’s Delegate Agencies and 

management of COVID-related programs. 

  

182



 

 

Part 5: Workforce Investment Activities  

A. Economic Development and Entrepreneurial/Microenterprise Activities  

(WIOA §108(b)(5); 20 CFR §679.560(b)(4))  

Boards must include an explanation of how the Board will coordinate local workforce 

investment activities with regional economic development activities that are carried out in the 

workforce area and how the Board will promote entrepreneurial-skills training and 

microenterprise services.  

Board Response: Economic Development and Entrepreneurial/Microenterprise Activities 

WSA actively engages with regional economic development partners and helps lead and 

coordinate local workforce investment activities in the region.  WSA’s efforts goals include: 

• developing regional service strategies 

• facilitating job fairs 

• perform targeted talent development 

• participating in the development of community partnerships 

• participating in business recruitment 

• promotion of entrepreneurial-skills training and microenterprise services 

Entrepreneurial skills training and microenterprise services: The Alamo region benefits 

from a significant footprint of agencies providing small business development and 

microenterprise services, to include micro-lending. Established regional Small Business 

Development Centers (SBDC) have a long history of assisting burgeoning entrepreneurs, and 

new investments by governments and professionals such as the Maestro Entrepreneur Center, 

Launch SA, Lift Fund, and TechBloc are injecting new energy into community startups. 

Consistent with priorities put forth in WIOA, WSA has established efficient two-way referral 

processes with these agencies to provide entrepreneurial training and resources to customers of 

the workforce system. These services are offered through strong partnerships, including: 

• UTSA, Small Business Development Center 

• Launch SA 

• TechBloc 

• San Antonio Entrepreneur Center 

• Alamo Colleges 

• Minority Week Development (MED Week) 

• San Antonio Hispanic Chamber of Commerce-Small Business Committee and 

Maestro Entrepreneurship Center 

• Texas Governor’s Forum 

• Texas Business Conference 

• Bexar County Small Minority Women-Owned Business Enterprise 

• Lift Fund 

 

183



 

 
 

Services from these partners will be incorporated into the portfolio of services offered by WSA 

to customers, highlighting a broad range of opportunities supported by the local community. 

Specifically, WSA intends to foster an enhanced relationship with the Maestro Entrepreneur 

Center to align resources and support small business owners. 

The Maestro Entrepreneur Center is a non-profit organization that provides an innovation model 

to assist entrepreneurs grow their small businesses in the Alamo region. Maestro provides 

incubation, acceleration, and connection in a creative learning environment for businesses with 

the goal of job creation. Maestro provides resources and tools for entrepreneurs in order to 

continue to grow their business.  

The Maestro campus provides office space, shared business amenities (including wifi, utilities 

and janitorial services, onsite notary, parking, scanning/printing, etc), a HUBZone address for 

Federal Certification, large and small conference rooms, training classrooms, reception, and 

property, tax, and maintenance services.  

Maestro seeks to remove barriers to sustainability and growth and has created multiple programs 

aimed at acceleration.  

• Entrepreneurship Cohort Program 

A 12-week Cohort Program curriculum based-intensive accelerator program for existing 

small businesses seeking to accelerate their growth. 

 

• After Cohort Meet Ups 

Monthly small support group sessions are for cohort entrepreneurs to come together, 

discuss challenges, share solutions and celebrate success stories. 

 

• Phenomenal Women in Leadership 

A tradition started since Maestro’s inception, the series brings together a panel of women 

leaders who discuss topics, trends, and issues as the relate to women in business. 

 

• Maestro Leadership Life Lessons 

Intimate conversations with successful business owners who share their Life Lessons 

around particular topics. 

 

• Mastering Your Money 

Lessons by successful business owners who have built wealth by diversifying, increasing 

financial capacity and investing in multiple business ventures. 

 

• Going Global- 3 Day Bootcamp 

3 Day Bootcamp for international business owners to enhance their skills in all areas of 

operating a successful business in the US. 

 

• Youth Entrepreneurship Program 

This one-week youth program introduces the spirit of entrepreneurship and leadership 

skills to the next generation of entrepreneurs. 

 

184



 

 

• Silver Jacket Program 

This 12 Week Intensive Start Up Program for fashion industry in partnership with the 

Texas Fashion Industry Institute.  

185



 

 
 

 

B. Rapid Response Activity Coordination  

(WIOA §108(b)(8); 20 CFR §679.560(b)(7))  

WD Letter 18-20, Attachment 2 8  

Boards must include a description of how the Board will coordinate workforce investment 

activities carried out in the workforce area with statewide rapid response activities described in 

WIOA §134(a)(2)(A).  

Board Response: Rapid Response 

WSA Board staff coordinate Rapid Response services with employers, and subcontractors are 

utilized for all service provision. Rapid Response is an early intervention service to quickly 

transition dislocated workers to new employment.  Rapid Response services are provided to 

layoffs and closures of all sizes.  Per the statutory reference to mass layoffs, rapid response 

services must be provided to plant closures or layoffs of 50 or more. Additionally, rapid response 

services must be provided for any layoff which receives a WARN notice. 

During the Rapid Response orientation session, workers are provided: 

• overview of the WIOA Dislocated Worker program 

• job readiness services 

• job placement assistance 

• unemployment insurance 

• and an explanation of occupational skills training offered at the Job Centers  

With the consent of the employer, affected employees are contacted on-site by the Rapid 

Response Team before they become unemployed. Workers learn about workforce services and 

are given the opportunity to complete a Rapid Response Registration Form.  The Rapid Respond 

Registration form is available in electronic format, utilizing Cognito form. Affected workers may 

immediately begin receiving workforce services without waiting to complete the intake process 

at the Job Center. To ensure accessibility to all available services, and to obtain employment or 

occupational skills training, affected employees are given the opportunity to enroll into the 

WIOA Dislocated Worker program. 

Activities under Rapid Response acknowledge the importance of early intervention and are 

designed to address the most recognized needs of dislocated workers.  The services provided 

through Rapid Response are designed to help make the period of unemployment as manageable 

and brief as possible. Through Rapid Response, on-site workshops at the employer’s location are 

made available to help prepare employees to seek employment. The workshops that are offered 

include resume writing, interviewing, job search, stress management, and financial management.  

At the request of the employer, on-site job fairs are coordinated with local area employers who 

may be interested in hiring affected workers with known skills sets.  Services are tailored as 

needed to meet the various levels of need of the affected workers.  To successfully return to the 

186



 

 

workforce, some workers require only minimal assistance while others may need more intensive 

services.  The focus is to assist everyone regardless of their level of need. 

In March 2020, all of these activities were transitioned to an online/digital format. Workshops, 

orientations, job fairs, and individual employee services are available virtually.   

187



 

 

C. Youth Activities and Services  

(WIOA §108(b)(9); 20 CFR §679.560(b)(8))  

Boards must include a description and assessment of the type and availability of workforce 

investment activities for youth in the workforce area, including activities for youth with 

disabilities. This description must include an identification of successful models of such 

activities.  

Board Response: Youth Activities and Services 

The 13-county WSA region is home to significant, but decentralized support structures to serve 

WIOA youth target populations.  This includes a complex network of more than 50 Independent 

School Districts, fragmented dropout recovery efforts, and numerous agencies whose service 

communities are marbled throughout the Alamo region.  Providing for a consistent type of 

coverage of WIOA elements and related services is one of WSA’s primary goals. An inventory 

of significant youth serving community partners, with service area descriptions is contained 

below.  While not entirely inclusive of all agencies, the resource mapping provides for an 

assessment of availability and gaps in workforce investment services available to youth in the 

region. 

 

Table 11. Workforce Investment Activities for Youth 

Agency Workforce Investment 

Services 

Service Region 

Communities in Schools Needs assessment, service 

planning, support services, 

mentoring, and case 

management. 

San Antonio (ISDs: Dilley, 

Harlendale, Edgewood, IDEA, 

Northeast, Northside, Pearsall, San 

Antonio, Somerset, South San 

Antonio, Southwest), New Braunfels 

(ISDs: New Braunfels, Canyon, 

Marion, Schertz-Cibolo-Universal 

City). 

SA Works Internships. San Antonio. 

Connections Counseling, life skills 

training, housing. 

Counties: Atascosa, Comal, Frio, 

Guadalupe, Karnes, Wilson. 

Goodwill Industries Career services, support 

services, and training. 

Alamo region with locations in San 

Antonio, New Braunfels, and 

Seguin; City of San Antonio 

delegate agency. 

George Gervin Youth 

Center 

Youth Build, Education, 

tutoring, transitional living, 

job readiness, counseling, 

and mentoring. 

San Antonio. 

Good Samaritan  Counseling, mentoring, 

leadership development/life 

skills, civic engagement, and 

career readiness. 

San Antonio. 

188



 

 
 

Agency Workforce Investment 

Services 

Service Region 

San Antonio Youth 

Literacy 

Education and tutoring. San Antonio. 

United Way Education, tutoring, 

emergency assistance, 

food/shelter, and referrals. 

San Antonio and Bexar County. 

Alamo Academies 

(Alamo Colleges) 

Occupational skills training, 

dual credit, tutoring, and 

internships. 

Alamo region with concentration in 

San Antonio, New Braunfels, and 

Seguin. 

BCFS Health and 

Human Services 

Workforce assistance, 

dropout prevention activities, 

self-esteem and leadership 

activities, and counseling. 

San Antonio. 

TWC Vocational 

Rehabilitative Services 

Career readiness, 

employment, assistive 

technology (for youth with 

disabilities - see further 

detail below). 

Alamo region. 

SA Lighthouse for the 

Blind 

Educational programs, work 

skills, assistive technology, 

and scholarships. 

San Antonio. 

Chrysalis Ministries Job readiness, money 

management, substance 

abuse and other counseling.  

Alamo region (City of San Antonio 

delegate agency). 

   

SA Youth Youth Build – workforce 

training, 

San Antonio 

Haven for Hope Housing and counseling. 

Needs assessment, service 

planning, support services, 

mentoring, and case 

management for homeless 

youth. 

San Antonio. 

SA Children’s Shelter 

(TAPPESTRY)  

Needs assessment, service 

planning, support services, 

mentoring, and case 

management for youth 

transitioning out of foster 

care. 

San Antonio. 

Catholic Charities of 

San Antonio 

Parenting education and 

counseling. 

San Antonio. 

Texas Juvenile Justice 

Department 

Education, life skills, support 

services, and counseling. 

Alamo region. 

189



 

 
 

Agency Workforce Investment 

Services 

Service Region 

Adult Education and 

Literacy (AEL) Partners 

/ Numerous TWC 

funded headed by ESC-

20 and private funded 

agencies 

Adult education, English as a 

second language, and 

remediation. 

Alamo region. 

Independent School 

District (ISD) Partners 

Education, tutoring, dropout 

recovery, and credit 

recovery. 

Alamo region. 

Healy-Murphy Center High school, GED, and high 

school equivalency programs 

Alamo region. 

 

Due to the significant need for youth workforce investment activities in the region, and the high 

concentrations of WIOA youth target populations, WSA’s focus is on (1) fostering partnerships 

with youth serving agencies in the region to ensure the availability of services, (2) strengthening 

the service delivery system and (3) supplementing community services with WIOA resources, 

and (4) working to fill service gaps.  

 

To increase accessibility for youth, WSA’s definition of the Board’s WIOA definition of 

“additional assistance” has been made sufficiently broad to incorporate disconnected low-income 

youth experiencing a wide variety of barriers.   

 

Youth with Disabilities: Active partnerships with youth-serving agencies in the region help 

build the resources and competencies needed to serve youth with disabilities. WSA’s partnership 

with the TWC Vocational Rehabilitative Services Department (formerly Department of Assistive 

and Rehabilitative Services) aims to do just that. VRS serves youth with vision related 

disabilities, behavioral and mental health conditions, hearing impairments, including deafness, 

alcoholism or drug addiction, Intellectual, learning and developmental disabilities, and physical 

disabilities, including traumatic brain and spinal cord injury, back injury, paralysis and impaired 

movement.  

 

In addition to VRS, WSA also partners with numerous agencies deploying highly successful 

service strategies in benefit of youth with disabilities, including: 

• Alamo HireAbility Coalition (Established by WSA in 2018 to bring 

together youth-serving agencies to expand and enhance pre-employment 

transition services to students with disabilities.  

• San Antonio Lighthouse for the Blind, 

• BCFS Health and Human Services, 

• Family Endeavors, and 

• San Antonio Independent Living Services. 

 

Youth services include: 

• Vocational counseling, including counseling in job exploration and post-

secondary training opportunities 

190



 

 

• Counseling concerning opportunities for post-secondary education such as college 

and vocational schools 

• Work-based learning experiences, including internships and on-the-job training 

• Training related to workplace and employer expectations 

• Training in self-advocacy and social skills 

• Referrals for hearing, visual and other examinations 

• Assistance with medical appointments and treatment 

• Rehabilitation devices, including hearing aids, wheelchairs, artificial limbs and 

braces 

• Therapy to address a disability, including occupational or speech therapy and 

applied behavioral analysis 

• Medical, psychological and vocational assessments 

• Assistive technologies, including screen reader software, computer equipment and 

other items 

• Job matching and placement services 

• Transportation assistance to and from the job, college or certification program 

• Referral to other state, federal and community agencies and organization 

• Rehabilitation Teachers Services to help learn Braille, orientation & mobility, and 

home and health management skills for youth with a vision-related disability 

• Vocational adjustment training 

• Supported employment services 

 

  

191



 

 
 

D. Coordination with Secondary and Postsecondary Education Programs  

(WIOA §108(b)(10); 20 CFR §679.560(b)(9))  

Boards must include a description of how the Board will coordinate its workforce investment 

activities with relevant secondary and postsecondary education programs and activities to 

coordinate strategies, enhance services, and avoid duplication of services.  

Board Response: Coordination with Secondary and Postsecondary Education Programs 

WSA supports partnerships with employers, training institutions and providers, and agencies   to 

facilitate institutionalization of opportunities for youth and adult learners toward the goal of 

transitioning to and attaining needed postsecondary credentials.   

The continuity of these partnerships leads to varied opportunities in licensing and certification, 

including registered apprenticeship certifications, industry-recognized certificates, diverse 

licenses, and certifications that are both portable and stackable.  To that effect, regional 

Independent School Districts, Alamo Colleges and regional community colleges and universities, 

including the University of Texas at San Antonio, Texas A&M San Antonio, Southwest Texas 

Junior College, Victoria College, Schreiner University, Texas Lutheran University, and Coastal 

Bend College are progressive in developing fully articulated education pathways.  

WSA helps to infuse these initiatives by sponsoring education, training, work experience and 

related services with workforce development resources, including WIOA, TANF, SNAP, and 

other sources of funding. Our Career Pathway partnerships help to:  

• leverage the entire larger workforce and education communities 

• ensure agency coordination to minimize duplication of services in the community 

• allow for customers to take advantage of their educational backgrounds and prior 

experience by granting them entry at the most advanced point possible along their 

Career Pathway. 

WSA and the Community Responsive Model for Workforce Development 

WSA serves a 13-county region but acknowledges that each county is unique with respect to its 

population characteristics and economic and educational priorities. The Alamo region consists of 

both urban and rural areas and includes some of the most economically segregated communities 

in the United States. Disparities related to social determinants of health create the need to solicit 

community input and feedback from local stakeholders and job seekers in order to create 

customized programming and services. To this end, WSA will distribute surveys and hold 

community listening sessions related to target industries and occupations, SDOH, special 

populations, and other priorities at least twice per year for the duration of this Plan. Quantitative 

and qualitative data from surveys and listening sessions will inform ongoing program 

development and will provide insights to formative and summative evaluation of core programs. 

Survey recipients include local area judges and other elected officials, education and training 

partners at the Pre-K, middle and secondary levels, vocational training centers, colleges and 

universities, employer and industry partners, organized labor associations, and jobseekers.  

 

 

192



 

 

E. Child Care and Early Learning  

(40 TAC §809.12 Board Plan for Child Care Services)  

Each Board must include a description of how the Board is strategically managing childcare and 

early learning within its workforce system to enhance school readiness and strengthen and 

support the childcare industry.  

Note: This may include efforts to:  

• Coordinate with employers, economic development, and other industry leaders to increase the 

awareness and importance of early learning as a workforce and economic development tool  

• Support improved school readiness through higher quality childcare, including Texas Rising 

Star, and through partnership opportunities such as prekindergarten partnerships  

• Support the needs of the Child Care industry, which could include assistance with business 

development or shared services, as well as opportunities to support professional growth and 

career pathways for early education  

WSA has developed a Child Care Committee that meets on a regular basis to discuss Child Care. 

The key focus areas for the committee are:  

• Provide guidance and recommendations on access to high quality Child Care for every 

child in the WSA board area 

• High quality teaching practices 

• Educator supports and career pathways for EC teachers 

• Coordinated systems 

• Comprehensive, continuous and integrated, advocacy, oversight and family engagement.   

WSA has a wealth of knowledge that includes board members, early childhood education 

experts, and community partners. The committee works together to develop strategies and 

collaborate on Child Care opportunities. 

WSA strives to increase the number of quality providers in our region and recognizes that 

quality care helps make children school ready.  The Texas Rising Star (TRS) program is the 

quality rating system in Texas.   WSA has contractors who work with Child Care Centers 

wanting to become Texas Rising Star certified.  TRS mentors assist centers in the pre-

qualifications to prepare for assessments and provide training to Childcare Staff. TRS assessors 

schedule and complete Texas Rising Star assessments and meet with Center staff to provide 

follow up reports that outline the score received. Centers are rated as TRS 2 Star, 3 Star or 4 Star. 

Once designated, these centers receive enhanced reimbursement rates for CCS children served. 

WSA also understands the lack of Child Care in the rural areas. WSA works to ensure that 

funding is balanced in efforts to continue to provide opportunities for quality Childcare to 

children & families in these underserved areas. 

193



 

 

WSA is working towards implementing Contracted slots, which are designed to (a) increase the 

supply of available child care for children receiving subsidies, (b) help stabilize finances of child 

care programs, and ( c ) improve quality. With this opportunity, WSA can address supply issues 

particular to the local board region, in order to address the goal of increasing quality childcare 

for low-income children and their communities.   

WSA will begin offering TRS / Child Care discounts for families who chooses a TRS certified 

center for Child Care.  The goal is to increase the number of children served in TRS certified 

centers, and to assist families offset the cost of this choice. 

WSA participates in the Shared Services Alliance meetings and collaborates with other 

programs, such as United Way of SA and Pre-K 4 SA on the goals and mission that centers are 

working towards. The goal of Shared Services is to provide child care providers with the tools 

necessary to improve operations and make businesses more profitable. WSA also partners with 

Region 20 and Head Start in facilitating partnerships.  

Childcare and Workforce Development 

WSA is mounting an evaluation effort focused on the alignment of the provision of childcare 

subsidies and its impact on wages and advancement in career pathways for parents. Pre-K 4 SA 

was implemented in 2013 in seven school districts in the San Antonio area. Recent data indicates 

that children who receive full-day, yearlong education had improved outcomes related to 

attendance and educational success. A benefit-cost study conducted in 2019 examined whether, 

and to what extent, the program’s benefits exceeded its costs. Study results indicated that the 

total cost per child was $12,760 for full-day instruction, and the resulting benefit to the San 

Antonio economy is approximately $3,790 per child or approximately $7.36 million for all 

children who attended Pre-K 4 SA in the 2018-2019 school year.  

Based on this encouraging data, WSA will conduct a benefit-cost analysis of its childcare 

programs to determine the return on investment for childcare services. The WSA study will 

expand the analysis to include data related to jobs and wages of parents who receive childcare 

subsidy. The goal of WSA is to encourage parents to participate in education and training 

opportunities in target industries and occupations in order to maximize the benefit associated 

with the provision of childcare. This analysis will provide baseline data to inform additional 

programming and strategies for parents.   

 

 

  

194



 

 

F. Transportation and Other Support Services  

(WIOA §108(b)(11); 20 CFR §679.560(b)(10))  

Boards must include a description of how the Board will provide transportation, including public 

transportation, and other appropriate support services in the workforce area in  

WD Letter 18-20, Attachment 2 9  

coordination with WIOA Title I workforce investment activities.  

Board Response: Transportation 

WSA recognizes the need to provide convenient and efficient transportation supportive services 

to customers and to remove or alleviate the negative effects of a lack of transportation has on the 

ability to secure and maintain employment. WSA accomplishes this through a combination of 

utilizing gas cards/mileage reimbursement and leveraging of public transportation.  

• Gas cards/mileage reimbursement: This service option is utilized for eligible 

program customers that have access to personal transportation but require 

transportation assistance to fully participate in workforce programs. Assistance is 

provided within policy allowances and limitations specific to the program in 

which the customer is enrolled. 

• Public transportation: The Alamo region benefits from efficient large-scale public 

transportation system in Via Metropolitan Transit (www.viainfo.net). Via 

provides affordable transportation to 98 percent of Bexar County, including 

unincorporated parts of Bexar County and the following municipalities: Alamo 

Heights, Balcones Heights, Castle Hills, China Grove, Converse, Elmendorf, 

Kirby, Leon Valley, Olmos Park, San Antonio, Shavano Park, St. Hedwig, Terrell 

Hills, and Bexar county portions of Cibolo. Via offers Bus services, Van Sharing, 

Primo (rapid bus transit), and Paratransit services at low costs.  

Rural areas are served by Alamo Regional Transit through the Alamo Area 

Council of Governments (www.aacog.com). Public transportation cost is 

subsidized for customers within policy allowances and limitations specific to the 

program in which the customer is enrolled. 

Leveraged Community Resources: WSA is also aggressive in braiding community funding with 

partner agencies to leverage community resources and expand availability of supportive services 

to joint agency customers in the Alamo region. WSA actively partners with several community 

agencies to expand the pool of resources. 

  

195

http://www.viainfo.net/
http://www.aacog.com/


 

 

F. Coordination of Adult Education and Literacy (AEL)  

(WIOA §108(b)(13); 20 CFR §679.560(b)(12))  

Boards must include a description of how the Board will coordinate WIOA Title I workforce 

investment activities with AEL activities under WIOA Title II. This description must include how 

the Board will carry out the review of local applications submitted under Title II consistent with 

WIOA §§107(d)(11)(A) and (B)(i) and WIOA §232.  

The AEL Alamo Consortium consists of 8 Service Providers that offer a variety of adult 

education services across 13 counties (to match WSA service area). Students can be served as 

young as 16 years of age, and services are free of charge to the student. Students are eligible if 

they need to earn their TxCHSE, improve basic skills, or learn English. Classes are offered both 

in-person and virtually at a variety of locations and times.  

AEL services include:  

• High School Equivalency (HSE) (English & Spanish classes) (GED®, HiSET®)  

• Upgrade Academic Skills: have diploma/HSE but need refresher 

• English as a Second Language (ESL): ESL, ESL for Professionals, EL Civics 

• Re-entry Services for probation/incarcerated adults 

• Career Training while you learn English and/or earn your HSE 

• Employer Partnerships (AEL services on work sites with employees) 

• College and Career Readiness (CCRS) services: TSI prep, career navigator 

support 

• Distance Learning: study anywhere with internet 

The AEL Alamo Consortium also offers Student Success Initiatives to improve retention, 

enhance student resumes, and build community amongst our adult learners. These activities 

include but are not limited to:  

• Student Externships: tours of employment and post-secondary opportunities 

• National Adult Education Honor Society 

• AEL Student IDs for various student discounts 

• Certificates: Digital Literacy, CPR, Job Skills 

The AEL Alamo Consortium 8 Service Providers include: 

1. Alamo Colleges I-BEST 

2. Southwest Texas Junior College 

3. Northside ISD 

196



 

 

4. North East ISD (Walzem Career Center) 

5. San Antonio ISD (E. Houston Career Center) 

6. Each One Teach One 

7. Restore Education (Datapoint and Marbach Career Centers) 

8. ESC-20 AEL Program (S. Flores Career Center) 

Adult Education and Literacy: WSA participates in career and postsecondary education and 

training by following guidance from TWC and collaborating with our local partners 

and extended network.  To support employment, skills gains, and secondary completion, efforts 

include implementing strategies for enhanced enrollment and expansion of career pathway 

programs.  To that effect, WSA engages and supports AEL grant recipients and the AEL Alamo 

Consortium, in activities that promote student success in the achievement of career and higher 

education goals.  Integration and alignment strategies with the AEL Lead Agency, Education 

Service Center, Region 20, and the AEL Consortium include:  

• Co-location for the provision of AEL classes and services in WSA’s American Job 

Centers  

• Design and implementation of WSA, AEL, and VR Integration events  

• Cross-training  

•  We attempted to host monthly meetings with AEL Provider leadership and Career 

Center leadership (both adult and youth services), but there were challenges with that. 

We haven’t done this in a long time. So perhaps omit this bullet or change to quarterly or 

twice annually? Development of one-on-one contacts  

• With the participation and guidance of TWC, move toward developing a single or 

common intake along with the sharing of information  

• Streamlining of services (administration of assessments, development of individual plans, 

service provision and case management, attainment of performance targets, and the 

provision of follow-up services)  

• Referrals to and co-enrollment with other workforce programs to support student 

retention, transition, and employment success  

• Strategic and program design guidance for career pathways  

• Information from the analysis of employment statistics and local labor market 

information, regional economic development, and industry or occupational demand 

studies Unclear on this statement. It seems like a verb is missing at the very beginning. 

Perhaps – “Sharing results from  the analysis of…….” 

• As feasible, exploring opportunities in taking additional roles, such as executing 

responsibilities as the AEFLA grant recipient and/or participating as a strategic managing 

197



 

 

organization in AEL consortia ESC-20 and the Consortium would hope that this is not a 

necessary statement, as we continue to collaborate with WSA and VRS as much as 

possible and offer quality AEL services in the Alamo area.  

  

198



 

 
 

Part 6: Adult, Dislocated Workers, and Youth Services  

A. Adult and Dislocated Worker Employment and Training  

(WIOA §108(b)(7); 20 CFR §679.560(b)(6))  

Boards must include a description and assessment of the type and availability of adult and 

dislocated worker employment and training activities in the workforce area. Boards must include 

a description and assessment of the type and availability of adult, dislocated worker and youth 

employment and training activities in the workforce area.  

Boards must also include the list of assessment instruments (tools) used for adult, dislocated 

worker, and youth.  

Board Response: Adult, Dislocated Workers, and Youth Services 

WSA operates a total of 16 American Job Centers and satellite offices located throughout the 13-

county Alamo region. In determining optimal location of American Job Centers, WSA staff 

conducts a cost-benefit analysis of: 

• local demographics to identify significant population centers and projected population 

centers 

• concentrations of historical WSA job seeker customers 

• geographic areas with characteristics that are likely to utilize workforce services 

• feedback from local stakeholders regarding community need and planned development 

• alignment with HHSC (for TANF/Choices and SNAP E&T customers) and UI Offices 

(for UI customers) 

• costs and funding availability 

 All Centers provide access to the full range of programs and services offered by WSA, including 

resource room services, informational services, orientations, training, employment, supportive 

services, and all related program services. In addition, WSA has designated the Datapoint 

American Job Center as the “Comprehensive Center” which meets the Memorandum of 

Understanding/Infrastructure Funding Agreement Requirements. The following table lists Center 

locations: 

  

Table 12. American Job Center Locations 

 Job Center Address 

1 Datapoint Job Center 3652 Bluemel Rd., San Antonio, TX 7829 

2 Fredericksburg Job Center 221 Friendship Lane Fredericksburg, TX 78624 

3 Kerrville Job Center 1700 Sidney Baker Suite 200 Kerrville, TX 78028 

4 Bandera Job Center 702 Buck Creek Bandera, TX 78003 

199



 

 

 Job Center Address 

5 Boerne Job Center 1415 E. Blanco Suite 10A Boerne, TX 78006 

6 Hondo Job Center 402 Carter St. Hondo, TX 78861 

7 New Braunfels Job Center 183 North IH-35, New Braunfels, TX 78130 

8 Walzem Job Center 4615 Walzem Rd. San Antonio, TX 78218 

9 Marbach Job Center 7008 Marbach Rd. San Antonio, TX 78227 

10 East Houston Job Center 4535 E. Houston St. San Antonio, TX 78220 

11 South Flores Job Center 6723 S. Flores Suite 100 San Antonio, TX 78221 

12 Seguin Job Center 1500 E. Court St. Seguin, TX 78155 

13 Pearsall Job Center 107 E. Hackberry Pearsall, TX 78061 

14 Floresville Job Center 1106 10th St. (Hwy 181) Suite C Floresville, TX 78114 

15 Pleasanton Job Center 1411 Bensdale Pleasanton, TX 78064 

16 Kenedy Job Center 491 N. Sunset Strip St. #107 Kenedy, TX 78119 

 

WSA also makes services available off-site at partner offices and other ad hoc locations in the 

community.  This approach allows center staff to take advantage of partner agency locations that 

are more accessible to that partner’s client base is consistent with a culturally responsive strategy 

to leverage rapport and trust of the partner agency.  It creates an added convenience to both 

customers and partners and expands our offering of immediate access to services i.e. customers 

are not obliged to visit a center to access services.  Our services become immersed within or as a 

part of the broader system of services that are offered throughout the community.  Serving 

customers who also receive additional services from partner agencies helps create stronger safety 

nets and supports in ways that are contribute to improved outcomes.  This applies to both adults 

and youth.   

WSA partners with Joint Base San Antonio (JBSA) to offer workforce services to veterans and 

transitioning military members and military spouses at the Military and Family Readiness Center 

at JBSA Fort Sam Houston.  WSA’s contractor also has a case manager at Haven for Hope to 

provide workforce services to homeless individuals. 

Another example of this type of co-location is the manifestation of a partnership with the Bexar 

County court system, WSA provides employment and training services on location to non-

custodial parents who are mandated by the court to obtain and retain employment for child 

support purposes. This relationship facilitates continuity of services and alleviates the need for 

parents to visit an additional location while accomplishing the goal of increased compliance with 

court orders.  

200



 

 

Potentially eligible customers apply for training and educational services at partner agency 

locations (i.e., Alamo Colleges, CodeUp, Iron Yard, CodeBound, etc.).  Recruitment and initial 

information are provided to students by a partner agency with training or educational 

opportunities. Partner agencies and Job Center contacts collaborate to determine eligibility 

facilitate the provision of other services. This approach increases enrollments into IT and 

cybersecurity-related target occupations.  

To supplement WSA program services and better serve customers, WSA has established 

partnerships with numerous agencies.  MOUs in place with all agencies include agreed upon 

responsibilities and costs for space and/or delivery of program services, as applicable.   

Some of key partnerships include those which offer expanded services for job seekers, share 

similar performance goals, and help leverage our resources. 

  

201



 

 

 

B. Priority to Recipients of Public Assistance and Low-Income Individuals  

(20 CFR §679.560(b)(21))  

Boards must include the Board policy to ensure that priority for adult individualized career 

services and training services will be given to recipients of public assistance, other low-income 

individuals, and individuals who are basic skills deficient, consistent with WIOA §134(c)(3)(E) 

and §680.600 of the Final Regulations, as well as veterans and foster youth, according to the 

priority order outlined in the WIOA Guidelines for Adults, Dislocated Workers, and Youth. 

Boards must also include a list of any Board-established priority groups, if any.  

Board Response: Priority to Recipients of Public Assistance and Low-Income Individuals  

WSA has incorporated and follows the priority of services as established by federal and state 

guidelines.  Career and training services must be given on a priority basis, regardless of funding 

levels, to the following populations in the following order: 

• Veterans and eligible spouses who are also recipients of public assistance, other low-

income individuals, or individuals who are basic skills deficient (TEGL 19-16; WD 25-

15) 

• Foster youth and former foster youth (as defined in WD 43-11) who are also recipients of 

public assistance, other low-income individuals, or individuals who are basic skills 

deficient 

• All other individuals who are recipients of public assistance, low-income, or basic skills 

deficient (as referenced in WIOA §134(c)(3)(E) and Final Rule §680.600) 

• All other eligible veterans and eligible spouses (e.g., not included in #1) 

• All other foster youth and former foster youth (not included in #2) 

• All other eligible persons (not included in #3) 

• Local Priority: individuals potentially eligible for co-enrollment into programs of and 

services offered by local partners (e.g., City of San Antonio Delegate Agencies and other 

partners) 

• Local Priority: individuals with barriers to employment.   

WSA Contractors are required to ensure that priority populations are made aware of:  

• their entitlement to priority service 

• the full array of career and training services available under priority of service 

• any applicable eligibility requirements for those programs and/or services.   

It is expected that WSA Contractors monitor operations to ensure that policies, procedures, and 

processes comply with priority of service requirements (TEGL 10-09). 

202



 

 
 

 

Definitions 

Priority of Service 

“Priority” means that these populations are entitled to precedence and receive access to a service 

earlier in time or, if the resource is limited, receive access to the resource instead of or before 

than lower priority populations.  If a waiting lists exists, priority of service requires these 

populations to be placed first on the list in the order listed above. If a service has already been 

approved or funds have already been encumbered (e.g., approval for training or a support 

service, etc.), priority of service is not intended to allow a person from a priority group who is 

identified subsequently to displace or deprive the participant of that service or resource. 

WSA has not established priority of services for any additional populations.  However, WSA has 

approved services for Youth who exceed low-income guidelines, which fall under priority #6 

(WSA WIOA 48).  

Priority Groups have been identified for Child Care Services: 

The first priority group is assured childcare services and includes: 

• Children of parents eligible for CHOICES childcare as referenced in 809.45 and D-300 of 

the TWC Child Care Guide. 

• Children of parents eligible for TANF Applicant childcare as referenced in 809.46 and D-

400 of the TWC Child Care Guide. 

• Children of parents eligible for Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program (SNAP) 

Employment & Training childcare as referenced in 809.47 and D-500 of the TWC Child 

Care Guide. 

The second priority group is served subject to the availability of funds and includes, in the order 

of priority: 

• Children needing to receive protective services related to childcare as referenced in 

809.49 and D-700 of the TWC Child Care Guide. 

• Children of a qualified veteran or qualified spouse as defined in 801.23 

• Children of a foster youth as defined in 801.23 

• Children experiencing homelessness as defined in 809.2 and described in 809.52 

• Children of parents on military deployment as defined in 809.2 whose parents are unable 

to enroll in military-funded childcare assistance programs 

• Children of teen parents as defined in 809.2 

• Children with disabilities defined in 809.2 

The third priority group includes any other local priority group adopted by the Board. The order 

of the local priority groups will be as follows:  

• Rural siblings of a child already receiving care 

• Rural Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA) participants 

• Rural children on the waitlist when the rural enrollment percentage is less than 20% of 

the total enrollments 

• Bexar County siblings of a child already receiving care 

203



 

 
 

• Bexar County Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA) participants 

• Children enrolled in Early Health Start-Child Care Partnership 

• Bexar County children on the waitlist 

 

Basic Skills Deficient 

• WSA utilizes the TABE test including the three functional areas of Reading, Language, 

and Math.  A score below 9.0 in any of the three areas is considered basic skills deficient.  

• Behind grade level (e.g., based on age and scores from a recognized/standardized test 

showing grade-level, or attending secondary school but being behind one or more grade 

levels). 

• English language learners also meet the criteria and must be included in the priority 

populations for the title I Adult program (TEGL 19-16). 

 

Individuals with Barriers to Employment: 

 

• WIOA emphasizes the goal of helping job seekers and workers access employment, 

education, training, and support services to succeed in the labor market and match 

employers with the skilled workers they need to compete in the global economy.   

 

  

204



 

 

Part 7: Fiscal Agent, Grants, and Contracts  

A. Fiscal Agent  

(WIOA §108(b)(15); 20 CFR §679.560(b)(14))  

Boards must include identification of the entity responsible for the disbursal of grant funds 

described in WIOA §107(d)(12)(B)(i)(III), as determined by the CEOs or the governor under 

WIOA §107(d)(12)(B)(i).  

Board Response: Fiscal Agent, Grants, and Contracts 

The Alamo Workforce Development Board, DBA Workforce Solutions Alamo, is responsible for 

the disbursal of grant funds for the 13-county Alamo region, as described in WIOA 

§107(d)(12)(B)(i)(III), as determined by the chief elected official or the governor under WIOA 

§107(d)(12)(B)(i). The area Inter-local Agreement and the Partnership Agreement both identify 

the Alamo Workforce Development Board as the grant recipient. 

B. Sub-Grants and Contracts  

(WIOA §108(b)(16); 20 CFR §679.560(b)(15))  

Boards must include a description of the competitive process that will be used to award the sub-

grants and contracts for WIOA Title I activities.  

Board Response: Sub-Grants and Contracts 

Competitive proposal procedures are conducted in accordance with applicable administrative 

requirements as outlined in Chapter 14 of the Texas Workforce Commission (TWC) Financial 

Manual for Grants and Contracts (FMGC).  The competitive proposal method of procurement is 

utilized when purchasing goods or services for which the aggregate cost exceeds the simplified 

acquisition threshold of $150,000. Competitive proposal procurements adhere to the following 

federal requirements: 

• Requests for proposals (RFPs) are publicized and identify all evaluation factors 

and their relative importance 

• RFPs are solicited from an adequate number (usually two or more) of qualified 

sources 

• Technical evaluations are completed of the proposals received and for selecting 

awardees 

• Awards are made to the responsible firm whose proposal is most advantageous to 

the program, with price and other factors considered 

 

In preparation of the competitive proposal procurement, an assessment of need is determined, 

and an initial cost analysis conducted. With the Chief Executive Officer’s (CEO) or his/her 

designee approval, a solicitation is developed and identifying the following: 

• Purpose, 

• Eligibility, 

205



 

 

• Scope of work, 

• Type of contract, 

• Term of contract, 

• Administrative/Governance provisions, 

• Required certifications, 

• Evaluation criteria, 

• Proposal submission instructions, and 

• Protest procedures. 

 

Prior to finalization, an evaluation tool is developed based on the evaluation criteria defined 

within the solicitation.  Upon finalization and approval of the CEO or his/her designee, the 

solicitation is publicly advertised on the (WSA) website and on the Electronic State Business 

Daily (ESBD).  In addition, the solicitation is distributed to applicable bidder’s listings of 

interested parties. 

A minimum of three (3) evaluators are selected from either internal or external subject matter 

experts.  Evaluators must declare and sign conflict of interest and non-disclosure forms.  

Proposals received are date stamped and documented.  Timely proposals are initially reviewed 

for responsiveness to the RFP requirements.  Once deemed responsive, the proposals and 

evaluation tools are distributed to internal/external evaluators to score the proposals.  The scores 

are averaged and ranked accordingly.  Costs are analyzed. Results are presented to the CEO.  

The CEO communicates results to the Board Chair.  A recommendation is taken to the 

appropriate Committee(s) for approval and taken to the Board of Director’s for action. 

If the services solicited meet the definition of workforce services, a pre-award survey/fiscal 

integrity evaluation is conducted prior to the Board of Director’s action.  The pre-award 

survey/fiscal integrity evaluation is approved by key management staff and WSA’s CEO. 

The approval is documented on the appropriate review form and the Board of Director’s 

approval is documented in the meeting minutes.  Upon approval, the awarded contractor is 

notified, and contract negotiations begin.  Non-select notifications are sent to any other entity 

that submitted a proposal. 

  

206



 

 

 

Part 8: Performance  

A. Board Performance Targets  

(WIOA §108(b)(17); 20 CFR §679.560(b)(16))  

Boards must include a description of the local levels of performance negotiated with TWC and 

the CEOs consistent with WIOA §116(c), to be used to measure the performance of the area and 

to be used by the Board for measuring the performance of the local fiscal agent (where 

appropriate), eligible providers under WIOA Title I subtitle B, and the one-stop delivery system 

in the area.  

Board Response: Board Performance Targets 

To meet employer and job seeker needs, WSA performance strategies aim to strengthen the 

alignment of TWC-Contracted common performance accountability measures with requirements 

governing the one-stop delivery system.  The WIOA measures currently focus on Credentials, 

Median Wages, and Employment (or wages) at the 2nd and 4th quarters after Exit (enrolled or 

employed for some measures), and the Measurable Skills Gains (MSGs).  While TWC-

Contracted Performance measures take priority, WSA also aims at facilitating living, self-

sustaining wages, particularly for priority populations and individuals with barriers to 

employment. All TWC-contracted measures are incorporated as part of WSA’s subrecipient 

contracts.  

WSA supplements performance negotiated with TWC with Local Expenditure Measures, 

Eligible Training Provider Measures, and Customer Satisfaction Measures. 

Negotiated TWC-Contracted Performance 

For each measure, the performance target set by TWC is evaluated based on the “Percent of 

Target” met.  WSA adheres to TWC’s method of calculating whether a measure is Met, Not Met, 

or Exceeded.  Currently Meeting performance is set at 90% to 110% of target, above 110% is 

considered to be Exceeding and under 90% Not Meeting.   

Local Expenditure Measures 

WSA contractor expenditure benchmarks are set during contract negotiations.  Negotiated 

benchmarks facilitate meeting TWC expenditure benchmarks for which WSA is responsible. 

TWC sets specific benchmarks for each of the core formula grants (i.e., WIOA, TANF, SNAP 

E&T, Child Care), and for special grants (i.e., NCP, NDW).  WSA performs contractor oversight 

to ensure that all benchmarks are adequately met.   

Eligible Training Provider Measures 

Eligible Training Providers (ETPs) are entities with job training programs approved by the Texas 

Workforce Commission (TWC) to provide Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA)–funded 

training services. Local Workforce Development Boards (Boards) fund training for Adult and 

207

https://www.twc.texas.gov/partners/workforce-innovation-opportunity-act-wioa


 

 

Dislocated Worker program participants primarily through Individual Training Accounts (ITAs). 

The publicly accessible Statewide Eligible Training Providers List (ETPL) includes all programs 

that are currently approved by TWC for ITA funding. The Statewide ETPL Performance Report 

includes data related to student enrollment for approved programs. To be included on the 

statewide ETPL, WIOA requires all ETPs, except Registered Apprenticeships, to submit 

verifiable student-level performance data for all students connected to programs. The student 

data is collected through Student Data Reports (SDRs) distributed to providers by TWC. For new 

programs, SDRs are required before inclusion on the statewide ETPL. Providers are also 

required to submit annual student data reports for the past program year.  

 

Measure PY ’15 Recommended Minimum Board Standard 

Program Completion Rate 

(ALL) 
60% 60%* 

Entered Employment Rate 

(ALL) 
60% 60%* 

 

Local area performance measures include both job seeker and employer satisfaction surveys.  

These are used to evaluate quality in the services provided to our primary customers.  

 

 

  

208



 

 

Part 9: Training and Services  

A. Individual Training Accounts (ITAs)  

(WIOA §108(b)(19); 20 CFR §679.560(b)(18))  

Boards must include a description of how training services outlined in WIOA §134 will be 

provided through the use of ITAs, including, if contracts for training services will be used, how 

the use of such contracts will be coordinated with the use of ITAs under that chapter, and how 

the Board will ensure informed customer choice in the selection of training programs, regardless 

of how the training services are to be provided.  

B. ITA Limitations  

(20 CFR §663.420)  

Boards may impose limits on the duration and amount of ITAs. If the state or Board chooses to 

do so, the limitations must be described in the Board Plan, but must not be implemented in a 

manner that undermines WIOA’s requirement that training services are to be provided in a 

manner that maximizes customer choice in the selection of an Eligible Training Provider. 

Exceptions to ITA limitations may be provided for individual cases and must be described in 

Board policies.  

Board Response: Individual Training Accounts (ITAs) and Limitations 

Individual Training Accounts (ITA): Training services authorized under the WIOA Eligible 

Training Provider System (ETPS) are provided through the use of ITAs.  Using funds as 

authorized under WIOA Title I, TANF, and SNAP E&T, ITAs have established maximum 

reimbursement amounts for eligible program participants.  Customers use ITAs to purchase 

training services for skill attainment in occupations identified by WSA in the Target Occupation 

List.  The Texas Workforce Commission (TWC) sets provider application requirements by 

which Eligible Training Providers (ETPs) become certified.  TWC publishes the ETPS, a 

statewide list of all approved Providers, and monitors to ensure training providers meet 

established performance minimums for each board area. 

ITA funds may be used to pay for: 

• Training costs to include tuition, fees, books, supplies/materials, testing fees, review 

courses, and other training-related expenses required for participation in the eligible 

program not to exceed $7,500 

• “Highly technical”, in-demand job training may be paid at a rate not to exceed twice the 

standard rate, or $15,000, and these are allowable only for the occupations listed below: 

• Software Developers, Applications 

• Software Developers, Systems Software 

• Network & Computer Systems Administrators 

209



 

 

• Registered Nurses 

• Electro-Mechanical Technicians 

These occupations will be updated to reflect training programs that exceed the $7,500 threshold 

for “highly technical” occupations in the Target List for 2021, until the Plan or other policy is 

amended (as approved by the Board). 

All customers funded with an ITA develop Individual Employment Plans (IEPs) with goals and 

objectives related to their selected training, and subsequent employment goals.  In all cases, 

evaluation of lowest cost provider must be considered.  If the cost of training exceeds the WSA 

fund limitation guidelines of $7,500, and the occupation is not “highly technical,” Career 

Advisors assist customers in developing a financial plan to cover the total cost of training. 

ITAs expire two (2) years from the date of the account's establishment.  Therefore, customers 

must attend classes on a full-time basis, as determined by the training provider's catalog/policy, 

with the following exceptions: 

• If a customer is employed, the customer may attend on a part-time basis, if half 

time scheduling is available with the training provider and the training program 

can be completed within a two-year timeframe. 

• Contractor’s management may approve exceptions to time/duration limitation in 

writing, on a case-by-case basis. Requests for exceptions must include a 

justification and evidence that financial support is available during this extended 

training period. 

Funding may be provided for post-secondary instruction only when both criteria listed below are 

met: 

• Training Service Priority consideration shall be given to programs leading to 

recognized post-secondary credentials that align with Board approved sectors and 

targeted in-demand occupations.  ITA funds may be provided for general 

academic programs (including bachelor’s Degrees) whose CIP codes are cross 

walked or matched to a program of study/training in a Board-approved targeted 

demand occupation or Board-approved sector (on a case by case basis, with 

documented Labor Market Information); and, 

• The customer has demonstrated ability to meet all training program prerequisites 

and requirements. 

Note: Contracts for training services will not be used (except for special initiative grants, pilot 

projects or other non-WIOA funding sources if allowable). 

  

210



 

 
 

Part 10: Apprenticeship  

A. Registered Apprenticeship Programs  

Boards must include a description of how the Board will encourage Registered Apprenticeship 

programs in its workforce area to register with the Eligible Training Provider System in order to 

receive WIOA funding.  

Board Response: Apprenticeship 

WSA will use the apprenticeship model as a key strategy in meeting the needs of business in the 

Alamo Region, integrating this service offering into business services and training strategies.  

WSA will design Registered Apprenticeship service strategies around recommendations outlined 

by the Department of Labor (Workforce Investment and Opportunity Act, Advancing 

Apprenticeship as a Workforce https://www.dol.gov/agencies/eta/apprenticeship, 

apprenticeship.gov  and ApprenticeshipUSA (Making ApprenticeshipUSA Work for the Public 

Workforce System: Using Funds to Support Apprenticeship 

https://www.dol.gov/apprenticeship/toolkit/docs/Desk-Aid-Use-of-Funds.pdf). 

To encourage Registered Apprenticeship programs to register with the Eligible Training Provider 

System (ETPS) and increase the overall utilization of Registered Apprenticeships among 

regional employers, WSA will:  

• Educate regarding Registered Apprenticeship program eligibility in the 

ETPS: Under WIOA, all Registered Apprenticeship program sponsors are 

automatically eligible to be placed on the ETPS. The WSA Business Engagement 

Team will actively educate employers regarding their eligibility to receive federal 

workforce funding as pre-approved training providers. This is one of the most 

important changes in WIOA, as it expands opportunities for job seekers and for 

the workforce system to use WIOA funds for related instruction and other 

apprenticeship costs.  

• Educate regarding Registered Apprenticeship benefits: Registering an 

apprenticeship program provides several benefits, such as a national credential for 

apprentices and potential state tax credits for businesses. The WSA Business 

Engagement Team will educate employers regarding these additional benefits. 

• Promote work-based learning to meet employer skilled worker’s needs: The 

WSA Business Engagement Team will promote the use of work-based learning 

services to employers, including use of On-The-Job Training (OJT) and 

Registered Apprenticeships. WSA will also encourage use of OJT to support non-

registered apprenticeship programs. 

  

211

https://www.dol.gov/agencies/eta/apprenticeship
https://www.dol.gov/apprenticeship/toolkit/docs/Desk-Aid-Use-of-Funds.pdf


 

 
 

B. Apprenticeship Texas  

Boards must include a description of the Board’s strategy and commitment to support 

Apprenticeship Texas efforts across the state, as applicable. 

Board Response: Apprenticeship Texas 

WSA will employ the strategies below to increase the utilization of Apprenticeship as a service 

option and support Apprenticeship Texas statewide and regional efforts: 

• Using Pre-Apprenticeships and Registered Apprenticeships to build Career 

Pathways for youth: WIOA supports apprenticeship as a workforce strategy for 

youth, including the use of pre-apprenticeship activities and work-based learning 

as program elements. WSA youth programs will work with regional employers to 

emphasize these service strategies. The WSA youth program will also coordinate 

with Job Corps which recognizes apprenticeship as a career pathway, and 

coordinate with Youth Build to utilize pre-apprenticeship and apprenticeship 

programs. 

• Leverage related WIOA Youth Elements: WSA will utilize WIOA youth 

services including tutoring, mentoring, and work experience, in combination with 

pre-apprenticeship and apprenticeship programs, to strengthen Career Pathway 

opportunities available to youth customers. 

• Customized Training/Incumbent Worker Training Options: Using WIOA 

funds, customized and incumbent worker training will be leveraged to support 

businesses that sponsor apprenticeships and other training programs. Customized 

training will be used as an option to support apprenticeship programs by meeting 

the special requirements of an employer or a group of employers.  

Apprenticeships will also be used as an option to up-skill entry- level (incumbent 

workers) employees, retain them, and provide workers with an upward career 

path.  In addition, WSA will explore other customized training and incumbent 

worker training opportunities.  

WSA recognizes that WIOA emphasizes work-based learning/training and employer engagement 

and provides workforce systems with enhanced flexibility in deploying resources to support 

regional employers. WSA will continue to work with representatives of the Texas Workforce 

Commission, US Department of Labor, and the regional employer community to identify further 

strategies that encourage use of Apprenticeship to develop Career Pathway opportunities for 

residents and efficiently supply employers with labor.  

  

212



 

 

Conclusion 

Workforce Solutions Alamo submits this plan in accordance with the Workforce Innovation and 

Opportunity Act (WIOA) §108 (20 Code of Federal Regulations §679.500–580) and is intended 

to represent existing and proposed workforce and economic development activities for the 13-

county Alamo region. This plan has been developed in cooperation with local community 

stakeholders including elected officials, area employers, education and training partners, 

community-based organizations, and individuals who are the recipients of services provided by 

Workforce Solutions Alamo.  

Workforce Solutions Alamo is committed to the development of Sector-Based Partnerships 

model with emphasis on best practices that connect people to training opportunities that are 

employer-driven and data informed. Workforce Solutions Alamo is prepared to convene strategic 

partnerships that align with industry clusters as defined in this plan and according to the Sector-

Based Partnership model.  

Workforce Solutions Alamo will continue to seek feedback from stakeholders in each of the 13 

counties served by WSA. Community voice and employer input is the essential to a community-

based participatory and responsive methodology for continuous process evaluation and 

improvement.  

213



 

 

 

MEMORANDUM 

 

To: Board of Directors 

 

From: Ricardo Ramirez, Director of Quality Assurance 

 

Presented by: Ricardo Ramirez, Director of Quality Assurance 

 

Date: January 22, 2021  

 

Subject: Monitoring Timeline Briefing 

 

 

SUMMARY:  The following estimated Monitoring Timelines are being presented to the Board of 

Directors as a briefing. 

 

In alignment with functions that are required of Local Workforce Development Boards, WSA both 

contracts out and performs internal oversight and compliance monitoring of federal and state grants 

as operated by subrecipients and contractors. 

 

Subcontracted Program Monitoring Estimated Timeline 

Project Days Start Finish 

Risk Assessment 14 12/10/2020 12/29/2020 

Child Care Services 55 12/15/2020 3/1/2021 

TANF/Choices 30 3/2/2021 4/12/2021 

WIOA Adult 25 4/13/2021 5/17/2021 

WIOA Dislocated Worker 25 5/18/2021 6/21/2021 

WIOA Youth Urban 25 6/22/2021 7/26/2021 

WIOA Youth Rural 25 7/27/2021 8/30/2021 

 

Subcontracted Fiscal Monitoring Estimated Timeline 

Project Days Start Finish 

City of San Antonio 60 2/1/2021 4/23/2021 

C2 Global Prof. Services 65 3/1/2021 5/28/2021 

SERCO 52 4/1/2021 6/11/2021 
 

Fiscal Monitoring includes 3-5 Fiscal Integrity Reviews (e.g., for procurement purposes), and 

which will be scheduled for contract initiations and/or renewals. 

 

214



Internal Program Monitoring Estimated Timeline 

Project Days Start Finish 

Trade Adjustment Assistance 44 12/7/2020 2/4/2021 

National Dislocated Worker 44 12/8/2020 2/5/2021 

Non-Custodial Parent 25 2/10/2021 3/16/2021 

SNAP 29 2/26/2021 4/7/2021 

Child Care Quality Improvement 28 3/16/2021 4/22/2021 

VR SEAL 27 4/1/2021 5/7/2021 

VR Year-Round 27 4/19/2021 5/25/2021 

Externship for Teachers 27 5/5/2021 6/10/2021 

PII Reviews 10 6/11/2021 6/24/2021 

Equal Opportunity Reviews 10 6/25/2021 7/10/2021 

 

Monitoring goals include the following: automating and streamlining systems, incorporating 

additional audits to minimize subcontracted costs, completing monitoring of projects on a more 

frequent basis (e.g., twice a year instead of yearly).  

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Continue supporting WSA’s monitoring functions. 

 

FINANCIAL IMPACT:   Estimated subcontracted costs for fiscal monitoring $127,105, and for 

program monitoring $120,000 (total of $247,000).  

 

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE:  To help ensure that local employment and training activities, 

including one-stop delivery systems and workforce development services, appropriately use, 

manage, and invest funds as required and in ways that maximize performance outcomes (WIOA 

Sec. 107(d)(8); WIOA Sec. 134(2)(B)(iv); WIOA Sec. 183; WIOA Sec. 185(c)(3); WIOA Sec. 

121(3); WIOA Sec. 129(b)(1)(e)). 

 

ATTACHMENTS:  None. 

 

215



WSA Monitoring Timeline
Ricardo Ramirez, Director of Quality Assurance

January 22, 2021

216



Summary
This item serves to provide a briefing of WSA’s Estimated 
Monitoring Timeline.  

217



Overview

In alignment with functions that are required of Local 
Boards, WSA both contracts out and performs internal 
oversight and compliance monitoring of federal and state 
grants as operated by subrecipients and contractors.

The following tables show estimated timelines for 
subcontracted program and fiscal monitoring, and internal 
program monitoring. 

218



Contracted Program Monitoring

Project Days Start Finish

Risk Assessment 14 12/10/2020 12/29/2020

Child Care Services 55 12/15/2020 3/1/2021

TANF/Choices 30 3/2/2021 4/12/2021

WIOA Adult 25 4/13/2021 5/17/2021

WIOA Dislocated Worker 25 5/18/2021 6/21/2021

WIOA Youth Urban 25 6/22/2021 7/26/2021

WIOA Youth Rural 25 7/27/2021 8/30/2021

219



Contracted Fiscal Monitoring

Project Days Start Finish

City of San Antonio

• Child Care Services
60 2/1/2021 4/23/2021

C2 Global Prof. Services

• Adult/One Stop, CARES, Youth 

Urban, Child Care Quality

65 3/1/2021 5/28/2021

SERCO

• Youth Rural
52 4/1/2021 6/11/2021

Fiscal Integrity Reviews

• Fiscal monitoring includes 3 – 5  Fiscal Integrity Reviews (e.g., 

for procurement purposes), and which will be scheduled for 

contract initiations and/or renewals. 

220



Internal Program Monitoring

Project Days Start Finish

Trade Adjustment Assistance 44 12/7/2020 2/4/2021

National Dislocated Worker 44 12/8/2020 2/5/2021

Non-Custodial Parent 25 2/10/2021 3/16/2021

SNAP 29 2/26/2021 4/7/2021

Child Care Quality Improvement 28 3/16/2021 4/22/2021

VR SEAL 27 4/1/2021 5/7/2021

VR Year-Round 27 4/19/2021 5/25/2021

Externship for Teachers 27 5/5/2021 6/10/2021

PII Reviews 10 6/11/2021 6/24/2021

Equal Opportunity Reviews 10 6/25/2021 7/10/2021

Monitoring goals include:

• Automating and streamlining systems,

• Incorporating additional monitoring to minimize subcontracted 

costs,

• Completing monitoring of projects on a more frequent basis 

(e.g., twice a year instead of yearly).
221



Questions?

222



Unemployment Insurance 
(UI) Claimants

Alamo Area

Data: Feb. 28, 2020 to Dec. 31, 2020

Published January 13, 2021

223



Information 
about the data

This weekly report 
includes the Alamo 

region’s 13 counties of 
Atascosa, Bandera, 
Bexar, Comal, Frio, 

Gillespie, Guadalupe, 
Karnes, Kendall, Kerr, 

McMullen, Medina, and 
Wilson.

The data are intended to 
support reemployment and 

general analysis – and may not 
perfectly align with federal 

Unemployment Claim 
information.

Boards are determined by zip 
code of record, which is how 

the UI system assigns the Board.  
There will be cases where the 

zip code was incorrectly 
entered into the system, 

including claimants not living in 
the Board area.

Summary information will vary 
depending on how the data are 

aggregated.  

This report uses Texas 
Workforce Commission 

(TWC) claimant data and ad 
hoc generated data.

224



Unemployment Insurance
Claimant Data

Published January 13, 2021

This report is based on 

332,984 total unique 

claimants filing a claim from 

02/28/2020 through 

12/31/2020. 

• New claimants during the 

previous two weeks (excluding 

most recent week which is 

incomplete) averaged 5,887.

Data counts unique claimants per week.

840

32,359

24,513

32,287

21,486

13,323

8,504

11,405

7,081

10,415

8,175

7,047

9,471

6,053

5,587

0

5,000

10,000

15,000

20,000

25,000

30,000

35,000

Claimants by Week
Weeks beginning Mar. 02, 2020 to Dec. 31, 2020

225



Unemployment Insurance
Claimant Data

Published January 13, 2021

• The figure shows 

unique claimants per 

month.

• Claims in December 

increased by 1.5% from 

the previous month. 

Data counts unique claimants per month.

12.1%

54,462

24.2%

109,242

11.7%

53,091

8.5%

38,317

8.8%

39,792 7.3%

33,167

8.5%

38,530 7.0%

31,461 5.9%

26,727

6.0%

27,127

0

20,000

40,000

60,000

80,000

100,000

120,000

Claimants by Month
Months starting March 2020 to Dec. 31, 2020

226



Unemployment Insurance Claimant Data
Published January 13, 2021

• We are reporting two trends, unique claimants (green) and duplicated claimants (light blue).  

• There were an estimated 165,993 claimants who have filed duplicate claims during the period.

• This suggests that approximately 49.9% workers filing initial claims starting 02/28/2020 at some point gained 
employment and thereafter have lost those new jobs and filed additional claims.  We see this duplicate trend in claims 
beginning around mid-April.

The data count unique and duplicate claimants by day.

-10,000

90,000

190,000

290,000

390,000

490,000

590,000

2/28/2020 3/28/2020 4/28/2020 5/28/2020 6/28/2020 7/28/2020 8/28/2020 9/28/2020 10/28/2020 11/28/2020 12/28/2020

Duplicate Claimants (Light Blue) / Unduplicated Claimants (Green)
Polynomial Trendline (Dark Blue) / Linear Trendline (Red)

Feb. 28, 2020 to Dec. 31, 2020

498,977

332,984

227



Comal and Guadalupe Counties account for 54.0% of all claimants in the 
12 rural counties.  These two counties also account for 13.2% and 10.1% of 

the total rural population ages 15-64, respectively.  

Of the estimated 73,217 who commute into Bexar County for work, 31.6% commute 
from Guadalupe and 19.0% from Comal (US Census).

66.5% of claimants excluding San 
Antonio reported the following cities as 

their place of residence. 

Unemployment Insurance
Claimant Data

Published January 13, 2021

Data count unique claimants by 
County and City of residence as 

recorded by Claimants.

9.1%

5,820

2.9%

1,826

28.2%

18,025

2.6%

1,660

3.4%

2,145

25.8%

16,522

2.2%

1,425

6.3%

4,004

6.7%

4,268

0.1%

53

6.6%

4,216
6.5%

4,151

0

2,000

4,000

6,000

8,000

10,000

12,000

14,000

16,000

18,000

20,000

Claimants by County of Residence
Feb. 28, 2020 to Dec. 31, 2020City Claimants % Tot

NEW BRAUNFELS 13,789 16.0%

CONVERSE 6,940 8.1%

SEGUIN 6,088 7.1%

SCHERTZ 4,066 4.7%

BOERNE 3,987 4.6%

KERRVILLE 3,365 3.9%

CIBOLO 3,207 3.7%

UNIVERSAL CITY 2,716 3.2%

HELOTES 2,701 3.1%

CANYON LAKE 2,275 2.6%

FLORESVILLE 2,175 2.5%

PLEASANTON 2,012 2.3%

LIVE OAK 1,915 2.2%

FREDERICKSBURG 1,872 2.2%

228



Claims by Census Tract

The maps show claimants by 
census tract.  Census tracts have 

on average about 4,000 residents.

Unemployment Insurance
Claimant Data

Published January 13, 2021

Data count unique claimants by 
census tract based on geocoded 

residences.

229



Claims by Zip Code

Data include only zip codes that 
are fully or partially contained 

within the WSA 13-county area.

Unemployment Insurance
Claimant Data

Published January 13, 2021

Data count unique claimants by 
zip code based on residence 
information as recorded by 

Claimants.

Claimants in the following 
zip codes account for 

46.2% of all claimants.

Zip Claimants % Tot

78245 12,689 3.8%

78130 10,713 3.2%
78249 8,609 2.5%
78223 8,575 2.5%
78254 8,528 2.5%
78251 8,404 2.5%
78228 8,360 2.5%
78240 8,270 2.4%

78253 7,365 2.2%

78250 7,360 2.2%
78233 7,179 2.1%
78207 7,044 2.1%
78109 6,998 2.1%
78227 6,974 2.1%
78247 6,812 2.0%
78216 6,771 2.0%

78213 6,611 2.0%

78201 6,571 1.9%
78230 6,095 1.8%
78155 6,003 1.8%

230



Claimants by Council District

UI claimants by Council District 
include 195,852 geocoded 

addresses.

Unemployment Insurance
Claimant Data

Published January 13, 2021

Data count unique claimant geocoded 
addresses using a TIGER US Census 

address (edges) file, mapped using a 
Council District spatial boundary file.

District Claimants % Tot
1 18,353 9.4%
2 20,510 10.5%
3 20,146 10.3%
4 19,137 9.8%
5 16,506 8.4%
6 20,841 10.6%
7 20,052 10.2%
8 22,882 11.7%
9 17,947 9.2%

10 19,478 9.9%

231



Claims by Bexar County 
Commissioner Precincts

UI claimants by Precinct 
include 245,935 geocoded 

addresses.

Unemployment Insurance
Claimant Data

Published January 13, 2021

Data count unique claimant 
addresses geocoded using a TIGER 

US Census address file (edges), 
mapped using a Commissioner 
Precinct spatial boundary file.

Precinct Claimants % Tot
1 60,167 24.5%
2 62,571 25.4%
3 59,607 24.2%
4 63,587 25.9%

232



Unemployment Insurance

Claimant Data

Published January 13, 2021

• While the pandemic has 

impacted workers 

regardless of sex, females 

have bore more of the 

brunt.

• 1.6% more females have 

filed for unemployment 

than males.

Data count unique claimants 
with sex information.

50.8%
169,046

49.2%
163,828

0

20,000

40,000

60,000

80,000

100,000

120,000

140,000

160,000

180,000

Female Male

Claimants by Sex
Feb. 28, 2020 to Dec. 31, 2020

233



Unemployment Insurance

Claimant Data

Published January 13, 2021

Black and Hispanics have been 

impacted over twice as much as 

Whites by the pandemic (64.9% 

compared to 31.3%)

• Over half of all claimants have been 

Hispanic (54.8%).

Data include 311,187 claimants with 

race/ethnicity information. 

Percentages are based on this total.

Data count unique claimants with 
race/ethnicity information.

3.0%

9,357

10.1%

31,420

54.8%

170,566

0.5%

1,413

0.3%

1,009

31.3%

97,422

0

20,000

40,000

60,000

80,000

100,000

120,000

140,000

160,000

180,000

Asian Black Hispanic Native
American

Pacific
Islander

White

Claimants by Race/Ethnicity
Feb. 28, 2020 to Dec. 31, 2020

234



Unemployment Insurance

Claimant Data

Published January 13, 2021

Younger workers have been most impacted by 
the coronavirus pandemic.

• The proportion of individuals ages 34 
and under filing claims account for 
almost half of all claimants (47.3%).

• The proportion of claimants ages 35 to 
54 account for 36.2% of all claimants.

• The proportion of claimants ages 55 and 
over account for 16.5% of all claimants.

• Prime working ages (25-54): 63.1%

Data may include claimants who filed a second 
claim after having a birthday that could have 
bumped them from one age group to the next.  
They would be counted once for each age group.

Data count unique claimants with age information.

20.5%
68,857

26.8%
90,241

20.0%
67,327

16.2%
54,651

12.0%
40,245

4.5%
15,177

0

10,000

20,000

30,000

40,000

50,000

60,000

70,000

80,000

90,000

100,000

Age15to24 Age25to34 Age35to44 Age45to54 Age55to64 Age65over

Claimants by Age Group
Feb.28, 2020 to Dec. 31, 2020

235



Unemployment Insurance

Claimant Data

Published January 13, 2021

Information on the educational 
attainment of claimants show that 
those with lower educational 
attainment have been impacted most:

• 82.7% have Some College or Less,

• 62.6% have a HS/Equivalency 
Diploma or less.

Data may include claimants who filed a 
second claim after advancing in their 

education.  They would be counted once 
for each educational level. 

Data include unique claimants with 
educational information.

13.0%
43,349

49.6%
165,268

20.1%
66,926

11.6%
38,630

1.3%
4,246

3.7%
12,352

0.7%
2,233

<HS

HS/Equiv

Some College

Associates

3 Yr College (No Degree)

BA+

No Response

Claimants by Education
Feb. 28, 2020 to Dec. 31, 2020

236



Unemployment Insurance

Claimant Data

Published January 13, 2021

• We noticed a change in the 

coding of claimants with 

Veteran status – the change 

now reports a decrease from 

what was previously recorded.

Data include a total of 139,717 

claimants who had Veteran 

information.

Data include unique claimants with 
Veteran information.

0.2%
215

87.0%
121,573

12.8%
17,929

0 20,000 40,000 60,000 80,000 100,000 120,000 140,000

QSpouse

No

Yes

Claimants by Veteran Status
Feb. 28, 2020 to Dec. 31, 2020

237



Unemployment Insurance

Claimant Data

Published January 13, 2021

About 7,354 of 

claimants have self-

disclosed having a 

disability.

Data include unique claimants with 
disability information.

2.0%
7,247

2.0%
7,354

70.2%
254,114

4.2%
15,130

21.5%
77,965

0

50,000

100,000

150,000

200,000

250,000

300,000

Not
Asked

Yes No Refused
to Answer

Not
Reported

Claimants with a Disability
Feb. 28, 2020 to Dec. 31, 2020

238



Unemployment Insurance

Claimant Data

Published January 13, 2021

• While the data include all 332,984 
unique claimants, the total claimants 
aggregated by industry sum to 437,007.  

• Because claimants file multiple 
claims, they are counted once for each 
industry for which they filed a claim.

• The data show that there were a total 
of 104,023 (31.2%) claimants who may 
have filed separate claims associated 
with jobs in different industries.

• The data may suggest the types of 
industry movement of workers in the 
labor market.

Data include unique claimants by industry.

52.3%, 174,285

17.1%, 56,974

10.2%, 34,081

9.7%, 32,272

9.0%, 30,038

4.4%, 14,564

3.8%, 12,557

3.6%, 11,990

3.3%, 10,954

2.9%, 9,729

2.8%, 9,310

2.7%, 9,057

2.3%, 7,781

1.7%, 5,753

1.4%, 4,801

1.4%, 4,651

1.3%, 4,230

0.5%, 1,815

0.5%, 1,645

0.1%, 275

0.1%, 245

Not Reported

Accommodation and Food Services

Retail Trade

Health Care and Social Assistance

Administrative and Support and Waste…

Manufacturing

Other Services (except Public Administration)

Construction

Professional, Scientific, and Technical Services

Transportation and Warehousing

Wholesale Trade

Educational Services

Arts, Entertainment, and Recreation

Mining, Quarrying, and Oil and Gas Extraction

Finance and Insurance

Real Estate and Rental and Leasing

Information

Public Administration

Management of Companies and Enterprises

Utilities

Agriculture, Forestry, Fishing and Hunting

Claimants by Industry
Feb. 28, 2020 to Dec. 31, 2020

239



Unemployment Insurance Claimant Data
Published January 13, 2021

The table reports estimated impacts of COVID-19 on industry based on UI Claimant activity. Over half (57.4%) of employers have had layoffs. There are about 
4.0 claimants per job posting), and the estimated impact on jobs in 2020 is on average at 23.0%.  We could not calculate employers with layoffs in Mining – the 
information conflicted with total employers reported. 

Data for the table count unique claimants by industry.  Sources include EMSI and QCEW/BLS data for employer counts by industry.

Industry Claimants % Tot
Jobs
2020

Est.
Impact

Job
Postings
Dec'20

Clmts-
to-Jobs

Average
Wage

Employers
with

Layoffs
Employers

2020

Est.
Impact

Employers
Accommodation and Food Services 56,974 24.3% 127,891 44.5% 3,715 15.3 $23,951 4,513 5,262 85.8%
Adm. & Supp. & Waste Mmgt. & Remediation Svs. 30,038 12.8% 80,893 37.1% 9,833 3.1 $43,481 2,920 3,029 96.4%
Agriculture, Forestry, Fishing and Hunting 245 0.1% 5,410 4.5% 97 2.5 $43,157 121 601 20.1%
Arts, Entertainment, and Recreation 7,781 3.3% 20,737 37.5% 389 20.0 $37,586 673 726 92.8%
Construction 11,990 5.1% 82,014 14.6% 1,525 7.9 $60,427 3,482 4,694 74.2%
Educational Services 9,057 3.9% 24,759 36.6% 1,725 5.3 $44,413 857 654 131.1%
Finance and Insurance 4,801 2.0% 73,663 6.5% 4,044 1.2 $101,376 1,005 3,147 31.9%
Health Care and Social Assistance 32,272 13.8% 155,432 20.8% 7,722 4.2 $57,004 4,652 10,958 42.5%
Information 4,230 1.8% 20,144 21.0% 3,092 1.4 $82,360 457 601 76.1%
Management of Companies and Enterprises 1,645 0.7% 14,114 11.7% 131 12.6 $141,245 187 255 73.5%
Manufacturing 2,848 1.2% 54,843 5.2% 2,843 1.0 $76,403 358 1,642 21.8%
Mining, Quarrying, and Oil and Gas Extraction 5,753 2.5% 13,448 42.8% 237 24.3 $126,386 784 na na
Other Services (except Public Administration) 12,557 5.4% 57,539 21.8% 1,795 7.0 $31,679 2,408 4,799 50.2%
Professional, Scientific, and Technical Services 10,954 4.7% 64,061 17.1% 7,192 1.5 $80,645 3,311 6,536 50.7%
Real Estate and Rental and Leasing 4,651 2.0% 22,887 20.3% 883 5.3 $65,140 1,156 2,769 41.8%
Retail Trade 21,425 9.1% 123,780 17.3% 6,844 3.1 $39,866 2,229 6,498 34.3%
Transportation and Warehousing 7,419 3.2% 36,518 20.3% 4,862 1.5 $60,810 1,162 1,433 81.1%
Utilities 275 0.1% 1,536 17.9% 127 2.2 $104,912 74 73 101.0%
Wholesale Trade 9,310 4.0% 37,178 25.0% 849 11.0 $81,308 1,990 2,660 74.8%

240



A newly released TWC 
dataset was used to 
identify claimants by 
County of residence.

County industry 
information is now 
based on county of 

residence and not the 
ES Office were the 

claim was filed as was 
previously reported.  

Claimants that file 
multiple claims can and 

do lose jobs from 
different industries –
these claimants will 
count once for each 
industry they filed a 

claim for.

We previously excluded 
reporting the number 
of claimants missing 
industry information 

but are now including 
these.  

39.3 %, 3,000

8.9 %, 680

7.1 %, 542

6.4 %, 488

5.6 %, 428

5.3 %, 403

5.1 %, 390

4.4 %, 338

3.6 %, 272

3.1 %, 237

2.9 %, 222

1.9 %, 146

1.6 %, 123

1.3 %, 97

0.9 %, 65

0.8 %, 58

0.5 %, 39

0.5 %, 37

0.3 %, 26

0.3 %, 20

0.2 %, 15

0 1,000 2,000 3,000

Not Reported

Mining, Quarrying, and Oil and…

Accommodation and Food…

Health Care and Social…

Retail Trade

Administrative and Support…

Construction

Manufacturing

Transportation and…

Professional, Scientific, and…

Wholesale Trade

Educational Services

Other Services (except Public…

Real Estate and Rental and…

Arts, Entertainment, and…

Finance and Insurance

Public Administration

Management of Companies…

Agriculture, Forestry, Fishing…

Information

Utilities

Atascosa County

241



46.2 %, 1,092

12.4 %, 293

6.4 %, 152

6.4 %, 151

4.2 %, 100

3.9 %, 93

3.2 %, 76

2.8 %, 67

2.6 %, 62

2.2 %, 53

1.7 %, 41

1.7 %, 40

1.1 %, 25

1 %, 24

1 %, 24

0.9 %, 22

0.9 %, 21

0.4 %, 10

0.4 %, 9

0.3 %, 6

0.1 %, 3

0 200 400 600 800 1,0001,200

Not Reported

Accommodation and Food…

Health Care and Social…

Retail Trade

Administrative and Support…

Construction

Professional, Scientific, and…

Manufacturing

Other Services (except Public…

Mining, Quarrying, and Oil and…

Wholesale Trade

Transportation and…

Educational Services

Finance and Insurance

Real Estate and Rental and…

Information

Arts, Entertainment, and…

Agriculture, Forestry, Fishing…

Public Administration

Management of Companies…

Utilities

Bandera County

40.1 %, 

142,386

13.6 %, 

48,423

7.7 %, 27,316

7.4 %, 26,374

7.2 %, 25,671

3 %, 10,661

2.9 %, 10,295

2.5 %, 8,937

2.4 %, 8,634

2.2 %, 7,840

2.1 %, 7,451

2 %, 7,046

1.9 %, 6,668

1.2 %, 4,114

1 %, 3,624

1 %, 3,539

0.9 %, 3,170

0.4 %, 1,426

0.4 %, 1,310

0 %, 171

0 %, 83

Not Reported

Accommodation and Food…

Retail Trade

Health Care and Social…

Administrative and Support…

Manufacturing

Other Services (except Public…

Construction

Professional, Scientific, and…

Transportation and…

Educational Services

Wholesale Trade

Arts, Entertainment, and…

Finance and Insurance

Information

Real Estate and Rental and…

Mining, Quarrying, and Oil and…

Public Administration

Management of Companies…

Utilities

Agriculture, Forestry, Fishing…

Bexar County

242



39 %, 8,879

12.2 %, 2,774

8.5 %, 1,942

7.8 %, 1,776

5.3 %, 1,218

4.1 %, 931

3.3 %, 759

3.2 %, 733

2.9 %, 656

2.6 %, 590

1.9 %, 439

1.8 %, 406

1.6 %, 370

1.6 %, 365

1.6 %, 364

0.9 %, 202

0.8 %, 186

0.4 %, 83

0.3 %, 65

0.1 %, 28

0.1 %, 15

Not Reported

Accommodation and Food…

Retail Trade

Health Care and Social…

Administrative and Support…

Manufacturing

Construction

Other Services (except Public…

Professional, Scientific, and…

Wholesale Trade

Educational Services

Arts, Entertainment, and…

Transportation and…

Mining, Quarrying, and Oil and…

Real Estate and Rental and…

Information

Finance and Insurance

Management of Companies…

Public Administration

Utilities

Agriculture, Forestry, Fishing…

Comal County

40 %, 879

8.5 %, 188

6.9 %, 152

6.4 %, 141

5.8 %, 128

5.5 %, 121

5.3 %, 116

3.3 %, 72

3 %, 66

2.8 %, 61

2.7 %, 60

2 %, 43

2 %, 43

1.6 %, 35

1.4 %, 30

1.3 %, 28

0.5 %, 12

0.4 %, 8

0.4 %, 8

0.2 %, 5

0.1 %, 3

0 200 400 600 800 1,000

Not Reported

Mining, Quarrying, and Oil and…

Accommodation and Food…

Construction

Health Care and Social…

Transportation and…

Retail Trade

Professional, Scientific, and…

Administrative and Support…

Wholesale Trade

Educational Services

Agriculture, Forestry, Fishing…

Manufacturing

Real Estate and Rental and…

Public Administration

Other Services (except Public…

Finance and Insurance

Information

Management of Companies…

Arts, Entertainment, and…

Utilities

Frio County

243



39.4 %, 1,066

18.7 %, 505

11.8 %, 319

6.3 %, 169

6 %, 163

2.9 %, 78

2.6 %, 69

2.2 %, 60

1.7 %, 47

1.5 %, 40

1.4 %, 39

1.4 %, 39

1 %, 28

0.8 %, 21

0.7 %, 20

0.6 %, 17

0.4 %, 10

0.3 %, 8

0.1 %, 3

0 %, 1

0 %, 1

0 200 400 600 800 1,0001,200

Not Reported

Accommodation and Food…

Retail Trade

Health Care and Social…

Manufacturing

Administrative and Support…

Construction

Professional, Scientific, and…

Arts, Entertainment, and…

Wholesale Trade

Other Services (except Public…

Real Estate and Rental and…

Educational Services

Transportation and…

Mining, Quarrying, and Oil and…

Information

Finance and Insurance

Public Administration

Management of Companies…

Agriculture, Forestry, Fishing…

Utilities

Gillespie County

36.9 %, 7,658

9.2 %, 1,914

8 %, 1,662

7.9 %, 1,647

7.2 %, 1,496

6.3 %, 1,315

3.9 %, 809

3.2 %, 657

2.9 %, 602

2.5 %, 520

2.4 %, 494

2 %, 408

1.8 %, 369

1.6 %, 322

1.3 %, 269

1.1 %, 223

0.9 %, 181

0.5 %, 99

0.4 %, 83

0.1 %, 19

0.1 %, 11

0 2,000 4,000 6,000 8,000 10,000

Not Reported

Accommodation and Food…

Retail Trade

Manufacturing

Health Care and Social…

Administrative and Support…

Wholesale Trade

Other Services (except Public…

Construction

Professional, Scientific, and…

Transportation and…

Educational Services

Mining, Quarrying, and Oil and…

Arts, Entertainment, and…

Real Estate and Rental and…

Information

Finance and Insurance

Management of Companies…

Public Administration

Utilities

Agriculture, Forestry, Fishing…

Guadalupe County

244



39.9 %, 758

11.2 %, 212

11 %, 209

5.9 %, 112

5.1 %, 97

4.8 %, 91

4.1 %, 78

3.8 %, 73

2.5 %, 47

2.4 %, 45

2.3 %, 43

2.2 %, 41

1.7 %, 32

1.2 %, 23

0.6 %, 11

0.4 %, 8

0.3 %, 5

0.3 %, 5

0.2 %, 4

0.1 %, 2

0.1 %, 2

0 200 400 600 800

Not Reported

Accommodation and Food…

Mining, Quarrying, and Oil and…

Administrative and Support…

Transportation and Warehousing

Construction

Health Care and Social…

Retail Trade

Wholesale Trade

Real Estate and Rental and…

Manufacturing

Professional, Scientific, and…

Educational Services

Other Services (except Public…

Public Administration

Arts, Entertainment, and…

Agriculture, Forestry, Fishing…

Finance and Insurance

Management of Companies…

Information

Utilities

Karnes County

40.8 %, 2,076

10.7 %, 542

8.9 %, 451

8.4 %, 426

5 %, 254

4.1 %, 207

3.5 %, 176

3.4 %, 175

2.5 %, 129

1.9 %, 99

1.9 %, 96

1.8 %, 92

1.5 %, 75

1.2 %, 62

1.2 %, 60

1.1 %, 56

0.7 %, 35

0.7 %, 35

0.5 %, 23

0.2 %, 10

0.1 %, 6

0 500 1,000 1,500 2,000 2,500

Not Reported

Accommodation and Food…

Retail Trade

Health Care and Social…

Administrative and Support…

Other Services (except Public…

Construction

Professional, Scientific, and…

Manufacturing

Arts, Entertainment, and…

Wholesale Trade

Educational Services

Real Estate and Rental and…

Mining, Quarrying, and Oil and…

Finance and Insurance

Transportation and…

Information

Management of Companies…

Public Administration

Agriculture, Forestry, Fishing…

Utilities

Kendall County

245



40.2 %, 2,158

15.6 %, 838

14.7 %, 786

6.9 %, 369

3.2 %, 174

3 %, 161

2.8 %, 152

2.5 %, 134

2.5 %, 133

1.6 %, 88

1.2 %, 66

1.1 %, 57

1 %, 51

0.8 %, 41

0.7 %, 36

0.7 %, 35

0.5 %, 29

0.4 %, 24

0.3 %, 14

0.2 %, 10

0.2 %, 9

0 500 1,000 1,500 2,000 2,500

Not Reported

Retail Trade

Accommodation and Food…

Health Care and Social…

Administrative and Support…

Manufacturing

Other Services (except Public…

Construction

Professional, Scientific, and…

Educational Services

Wholesale Trade

Mining, Quarrying, and Oil and…

Real Estate and Rental and…

Transportation and…

Arts, Entertainment, and…

Finance and Insurance

Public Administration

Information

Management of Companies…

Utilities

Agriculture, Forestry, Fishing…

Kerr County

32.3 %, 21

15.4 %, 10

13.8 %, 9

9.2 %, 6

7.7 %, 5

6.2 %, 4

4.6 %, 3

4.6 %, 3

3.1 %, 2

1.5 %, 1

1.5 %, 1

0 5 10 15 20 25

Not Reported

Mining, Quarrying, and Oil and
Gas Extraction

Administrative and Support and
Waste Management and…

Retail Trade

Construction

Professional, Scientific, and
Technical Services

Accommodation and Food
Services

Wholesale Trade

Transportation and Warehousing

Health Care and Social Assistance

Real Estate and Rental and
Leasing

McMullen County

246



39.9 %, 2,142

8.6 %, 462

8.5 %, 458

7.6 %, 409

5.1 %, 273

5 %, 268

4.7 %, 251

3 %, 159

2.7 %, 145

2.7 %, 145

2.6 %, 141

2.3 %, 126

2 %, 109

1.2 %, 64

1 %, 55

0.9 %, 49

0.7 %, 39

0.5 %, 28

0.4 %, 22

0.4 %, 20

0.1 %, 6

0 500 1,000 1,500 2,000 2,500

Not Reported

Retail Trade

Accommodation and Food…

Health Care and Social…

Construction

Administrative and Support…

Mining, Quarrying, and Oil and…

Professional, Scientific, and…

Manufacturing

Transportation and…

Educational Services

Other Services (except Public…

Wholesale Trade

Arts, Entertainment, and…

Real Estate and Rental and…

Finance and Insurance

Public Administration

Agriculture, Forestry, Fishing…

Information

Management of Companies…

Utilities

Medina County

39.6 %, 2,109

7.2 %, 384

6.7 %, 359

6.2 %, 330

5.8 %, 311

5.5 %, 291

5.3 %, 282

4.1 %, 220

4 %, 214

3.2 %, 172

3.1 %, 166

2.3 %, 125

2 %, 108

1 %, 53

0.9 %, 50

0.9 %, 47

0.7 %, 37

0.5 %, 27

0.5 %, 24

0.2 %, 10

0.1 %, 4

0 500 1,000 1,500 2,000 2,500

Not Reported

Health Care and Social…

Accommodation and Food…

Administrative and Support…

Mining, Quarrying, and Oil and…

Construction

Retail Trade

Manufacturing

Transportation and…

Wholesale Trade

Professional, Scientific, and…

Educational Services

Other Services (except Public…

Finance and Insurance

Real Estate and Rental and…

Public Administration

Arts, Entertainment, and…

Information

Management of Companies…

Utilities

Agriculture, Forestry, Fishing…

Wilson County

247



Unemployment Insurance

Claimant Data

Published January 13, 2021

• As with industry, claimants filing multiple 

claims count once for each occupation.

• Because claimants file for multiple occupations 

and count once in each occupation that they file a 

claim for, the data include a total of 489,811 

claimants (332,984 unique).

• The data may suggest that 47.1% of claimants 

may be gaining jobs in multiple occupations.  They 

filed an initial claim for one occupation, gained a 

job in a different occupation, and then also lost 

that new job and filed an additional claim.  

• The data may also suggest that gaining jobs in 

multiple occupations is about 16% more likely to 

occur than gaining jobs in multiple industries 

(31.2%).

Data counts of unique claimants by occupation.

48.5%, 161,555

16.5%, 54,978

13.4%, 44,616

6.7%, 22,304

6.7%, 22,150

6.0%, 19,855

5.6%, 18,518

5.3%, 17,726

5.3%, 17,525

5.0%, 16,526

4.9%, 16,215

3.8%, 12,670

3.4%, 11,466

3.4%, 11,394

3.0%, 10,102

2.7%, 8,827

1.8%, 5,840

1.4%, 4,820

0.9%, 3,037

0.8%, 2,796

0.8%, 2,546

0.4%, 1,487

0.3%, 1,016

0.3%, 974

0.3%, 868

Not Reported

Food Preparation & Serving Related

Sales & Related

Personal Care & Service

Production

Transportation & Material Moving

Management

Office & Administrative Support

Heathcare Support

Construction & Extraction

Installation, Maintenance, & Repair

Building & Grounds Cleaning & Maintenance

Heathcare Practitioners & Technical

Education, Training, & Library

Business & Financial Operations

Arts, Design, Entertainment, Sports, & Media

Unknown SOC Code

Community & Social Services

Computer & Mathematical

Architecture & Engineering

Protective Service

Legal

Life, Physical, & Social Science

Military Specific

Farming, Fishing, & Forestry

Claimants by Occupation
Feb. 28, 2020 to Dec. 31, 2020

248



Unemployment Insurance Claimant Data
Published January 13, 2021

The table reports estimated impacts by occupation based on UI claimant activity including claimant and jobs in 2020, claimant-to-job posting ratios, and automation index 
(greater than 100 means above average risk of automation, lower than 100 means below average risk).  

Data include claimants filing claims for multiple occupations.

Data counts of unique claimants by occupation.

Occupation Claimants % Tot
Jobs
2020

Est.
Impact

Job
Postings
Dec'20

Clmts-
to-Jobs

Posting
Wages
Dec'20

Automation
Index

Architecture & Engineering 2,796 0.9% 18,084 15.5% 1,282 2.2 $82,816 87.0
Arts, Design, Entertainment, Sports, & Media 8,827 2.7% 17,658 50.0% 732 12.1 $39,552 89.8
Building & Grounds Cleaning & Maintenance 12,670 3.9% 44,305 28.6% 930 13.6 $27,008 122.6
Business & Financial Operations 10,102 3.1% 65,719 15.4% 3,673 2.8 $70,016 89.5
Community & Social Services 4,820 1.5% 16,670 28.9% 920 5.2 $42,624 82.3
Computer & Mathematical 3,037 0.9% 29,899 10.2% 6,738 0.5 $81,280 83.5
Construction & Extraction 16,526 5.1% 66,653 24.8% 904 18.3 $43,648 123.3
Education, Training, & Library 11,394 3.5% 68,018 16.8% 1,068 10.7 $45,184 85.8
Farming, Fishing, & Forestry 868 0.3% 4,106 21.1% 32 27.1 $28,032 109.9
Food Preparation & Serving Related 54,978 17.1% 121,308 45.3% 2,872 19.1 $25,024 125.9
Heathcare Practitioners & Technical 11,466 3.6% 71,843 16.0% 9,883 1.2 $85,888 88.3
Heathcare Support 17,525 5.4% 64,033 27.4% 2,667 6.6 $29,056 95.1
Installation, Maintenance, & Repair 16,215 5.0% 51,933 31.2% 2,472 6.6 $46,464 108.9
Legal 1,487 0.5% 8,578 17.3% 258 5.8 $70,016 84.0
Life, Physical, & Social Science 1,016 0.3% 8,438 12.0% 491 2.1 $61,824 84.7
Management 18,518 5.7% 63,025 29.4% 5,662 3.3 $85,376 85.2
Military Specific 974 0.3% 19,129 5.1% 16 60.9 $26,000 na
Office & Administrative Support 17,726 5.5% 176,075 10.1% 5,260 3.4 $34,432 98.0
Personal Care & Service 22,304 6.9% 33,974 65.7% 1,036 21.5 $29,056 96.4
Production 22,150 6.9% 49,351 44.9% 1,217 18.2 $28,288 113.8
Protective Service 2,546 0.8% 27,885 9.1% 584 4.4 $40,320 98.9
Sales & Related 44,616 13.8% 126,479 35.3% 6,291 7.1 $50,048 94.9
Transportation & Material Moving 19,855 6.2% 88,555 22.4% 9,117 2.2 $62,400 110.3

249



Unemployment Insurance Claimant Data

Published January 13, 2021

Additional important information about the data.

• New TWC Data. TWC has worked on providing Workforce Solutions Boards with UI Claimant data.  This report uses this new dataset.  
• Claimants by County. This new format now uses the County of residence as provided by TWC as opposed to the county associated with the ES Offices 

where claimants filed their claims.  By doing so, summary information for some tables and figures vary from what was previous ly reported particularly for 
County aggregate data and Industry by County. 

• Multiple Claims. Workers may and do file multiple UI claims.  Because of this, claimants may count more than once depending on how the data are
aggregated.  For instance, one worker may have filed two claims in different weeks for different industries and occupations – the claimant will count once 
for each week and once for each industry and occupation.

• Missing Information. Many records have missing information.  Thus, summary information will vary.  Depending on the information that is available, for 
instance, aggregating by sex will show different total numbers than aggregating by race/ethnicity.  

• Slicing Data. Every time the data are sliced using one or more characteristics, the aggregate summary information will vary and not necessarily coincide 
with other summary information.  

• Residence and Place of Claim.  Claimants can reside outside the 13-county area and file their claim(s) in a WSA ES Office.  This presents a different 
challenge.  When summarizing by county, which is based on WSA ES Office location and their respective geographic assignments, the claimant will be 
counted for counties in the Alamo area.  If the zip code that the claimant entered, however, is not fully or partially contained by a WSA county, then we 
exclude those zip codes and claimants with zip codes that are outside of the area will not be counted.  Thus, the total number of claimants by location, 
county, city, or zip code, will vary.  

• Location.  Summary of claimants using certain administrative boundaries, such as City Council Districts or Bexar County Commissioner Precincts, are 
generated through geocoding of the addresses that claimants enter when applying for UI.  Because claimants enter their addres s, these contain errors, 
misspellings, and other information that prevents the address from being identified in a map.  There also may be addresses that are not yet coded into the 
US Census database and captured by the Address Locator.  The way street address and number information are entered also impact geocoding (e.g., E 
Travis as opposed to Travis E.).  Thus, the numbers reported for these administrative boundaries will generally involve an undercount.  About 90% of 

addresses do get geocoded so the entire set of geocoded addresses reflect an undercount of approximately 10%.  Each of the smaller administrative 
boundaries could include 90-100% of addresses, but it is not feasible to determine a precise undercount number within that range for smaller 
geographical/administrative areas. 250



Unemployment Insurance

Claimant Data

Published January 13, 2021

Data Sources
• TWC UI Claimant data.
• Sybase InfoMaker ad hoc report using vw_claim_instance.
• EMSI for Jobs in 2019, Avg. Wages, job postings, and similar information.
• QCEW/BLS data for employer counts by industry.
• Burning Glass for job posting information.
• ArcGIS Business Analyst for employer/business information.

Methodology
• Counts mostly based on individuals using ssn, dob, and claim file date.
• For industry and occupation information, merged TWC data with ad hoc data 

using ssn, dob, and date claim was filed (involves ~3-5% margin of error).
• ArcGIS was used for geocoding of residential addresses and mapping spatial 

information.  
• All of the analysis except the mapping was done using the R statistical software.

Definitions
• Claimants: includes all claimants regardless of type of claim or reason that the 

job seeker separated from the last employer that he/she had before filing.
• Claim file date: The date that the claimant filed his/her initial and/or additional 

UI claim.
• Automation Index: EMSI’s potential automation risk based on job task content –

derived from ONET work activities, combined with data of Frey and Osborne to 
identify risk and resilience tied to automation.  

Ricardo G. Ramirez, PhD(c)

Director of Quality Assurance

rramirez@wsalamo.org

251

mailto:rramirez@wsalamo.org


WSA Board of Directors

Adrian Lopez
Chief Executive Officer

January 22, 2021

252



Mission
To strengthen the Alamo regional economy by growing and 
connecting talent pipelines to employers.

Vision
To lead the most integrated workforce network in the region.

Values
▪ Accountability

▪ Collaboration

▪ Excellence

▪ Innovation

▪ Integrity

253



CONSTRUCTION OIL/GAS

HEALTHCARE AEROSPACE

IT/CYBERSECURITY

EDUCATION

HOSPITALITY

Top Career Industries

MANUFACTURING

254



Performance Metrics

• Met or exceeded 14 of 15 measures (8 of 15 
measures WSA ranks 1-3 of large boards)

• Over 168,000 total clients served

• Over 25,000 job postings

• 5,114 program participants

• 11,671 hired through Work in Texas

• 10,093 children served from  over 5,700 
families

• 669 youth served ( 14 - 24 years)

255



Facilities
• Workforce Solutions Alamo operates 16 career 

centers

• Houston St. grand opening in February 

• Seguin COO in a couple of weeks

256



Financial & Compliance
• Board approved monitoring schedule

• Making improvements to process including setting 
timelines; start and stop

• Audit firm hired and will commence work 

257



Organizational
Transformation

• Hired Director of Public and Government 
Relations

• Advertising for Procurement Director, Systems 
Administrator, Network and Security Specialist

• Continuing improvements on evaluations; setting 
goals for staff 

• Commencing negotiations with Professional 
Employment Organization

• Will solicit coach for executive staff

• In discussions with UTSA for training for 
contractor staff 

258



Rebranding

• Commencing Annual Report

• Upcoming announcements and media outreach: Tx 
Mutual, Dream Proposals, Houston St and Seguin 
offices, skills development fund, NDW

• 2021 is 25th Anniversary of WSA 

259



Funding 
• Childcare fund reallocation

• Will commence amendments for COSA contract

• TWC award submissions process will commence in 
next few weeks (some awards result in funding)

260



Adrian Lopez, Chief Executive Officer

alopez@wsalamo.org

Office: 210-272-3250 

Cell:    210-730-6224 

Questions

261

mailto:alopez@wsalamo.org


1-22-21

2021 WSA Board Priorities

262



Summary
WSA Board and CEO have outlined the following priorities for 2021 

263



Approval & Implementation of Local Plan

• Promoting and supporting targeted 
industries

• Establishing relationships with partners in 
workforce ecosystem

• Develop new data and tracking systems to 
offer real value to: people, programs and 
industries

264



1st Annual Report

• WSA 25th Anniversary 

• Highlight People, 
Programs, Industries 

265



Increase Board Participation

• Industry Champions

• Assist with implementation of Sector Based 
Model

• Ambassadors for WSA programs and 
initiatives  

266



Return on Investment Report

• Demonstrate impact

• Show value of investment

267



Organizational Transformation 

• Complete transition with PEO; payroll and 
HR functions

• Continue to make staffing changes to 
improve effectiveness and efficiencies

• Invest in staff training and building capacity

268



Organizational Transformation 

• Agency coach to address: 
• Work Culture

• Collaborative Strategies

• Promote Innovation from staff

• “Sense of Purpose”

• Continue make changes to IT 
• Security enhancements

• IT plan for delivery of services 

269



New Initiatives 

• Workforce Academy

• Childcare 
partnerships like 
“Educare”

270



Facilities 

• Floresville 

• Marbach

• New or renovation 
271



Questions?

272



Workforce Solutions Alamo 

Board of Directors Racial Diversity 

Regional Comparison 2021 

 

 

 

Source: EMSI Economic Modeling 

273



CC VetLAST FIRST Category Industry Gender Race Hisp Expires Vacant Company

Workforce Solutions Alamo1/4/2021

O.O.C.

NoNo12/31/20Vac. Blaylock, Mining M White NoHalliburton Energy Servi 12/31/20prv sector 03/31/21

NoNo12/31/20Vac. Solis III, J Finance, Insuranc M White YesBranch Banking and Tru 12/31/20prv sector 03/31/21

NoNo12/31/20Vac. Lee, John Manufacturing F White NoSan Antonio Lighthouse f 12/31/20rehab 03/31/21

NoNo12/31/22Allen Jamie Finance, Insuranc F White NoTexas Creative/PEO-Souprv sector

NoNo12/31/22Batch Mary K. Manufacturing F White NoToyota Motor Manufacturprv sector

NoNo12/31/20Cantu Leslie Manufacturing F White NoToyotetsu Texas Incprv sector

NoNo12/31/21Cooper Eric S. Health Care, Soci M White NoSan Antonio Food BankCBO

NoNo12/31/21Crowder, Jr. Frank M. Professional, Tech M Black NoDefense Consulting Servprv sector

NoNo12/31/21Denn Mitchell Shane Other Services M White NoSan Antonio Buidling & Clabor

NoNo12/31/21Dennis Lindsay N. Public Administrati F White NoSeguin Economic Develoecon devl

NoNo12/31/20Kassim Yousef Professional, Tech M Other NoEasyExpunctions.comprv sector

NoNo12/31/20Kenny Diana Health Care, Soci F White NoAssessment, Interventionprv sector

NoNo12/31/21King Carolyn Health Care, Soci F White NoMethodist Healthcare Syprv sector

NoNo12/31/21Leal Polo Public Administrati M White YesTexas Workforce Commipub emplo

NoNo12/31/22Lutz Elizabeth Health Care, Soci F White YesThe Health CollaborativeCBO

NoNo12/31/22Morrill Sammi M. Educational Servic F White NoAlamo Colleges Districteducation

NoNo12/31/21Munoz Betty Accomodation, Fo F White YesJW Marriott San Antonio prv sector

NoNo12/31/22Niederauer Mark Q. Real Estate, Rent M White NoElectrochemical Oxygen prv sector

NoNo12/31/20Oliveira Angelique De Health Care, Soci F White NoGoodwill Industries of SaABE

NoNo12/31/20Peavy Benjamin A Professional, Tech M Black NoAccenture Federal Servicprv sector

NoNo12/31/21Rhodes Kelli G. Educational Servic F White NoRestore Educationliteracy

YesNo12/31/20Roper, Jr. Burnie L. Educational Servic M Black NoLackland ISDeducation

NoNo12/31/20Trevino Tammye H. Health Care, Soci F White YesHousing Authority of Bexpub assist

NoNo12/31/21Vernon Dawn M. Construction F White NoD.L. Bandy Constructors,prv sector

NoYes12/31/21Watson Douglas J. Health Care, Soci M White NoHealy-Murphy Center, InCBO

BOARD:

WDA:

 Current Members 25
 Hispanic

5

 CC Reps

1

 Vet Reps

1

20%

Operating Size: 25  - 30

Term: 3

 Priv Sect:

13

 Female

14

Black

3

56%

48%58%

12%

5%

52.0%

Pub Employ: 1 Econ Dev: 1 CBO: 3 Rehab: 1 Labor: 1 Priv Sect: 13  Pub Asst: 1  Lit: 1  ABE: 1 Education: 2

CBO/Lab:

4

16.0%

Monday, January 04, 2021 Workforce Solutions Alamo - Page 1 of 1 Pages274



 1 

 
WORKFORCE SOLUTIONS ALAMO BOARD POLICY 

 

ID NO:   Board 6, C1    EFFECTIVE DATE:  _________ __, 20__ 

 

TO:  Workforce Solutions Alamo Board of Directors 

       

FROM: Chair, Board of Directors  

      

SUBJECT: Board Attendance 

 

 

Policy Statement 

 

The purpose of this policy is to establish the rules and procedures for Board member attendance. 

 

Requirements 

Directors should notify the Board Chair (through Board liaison), their committee chair, or the 

office of CEO in advance, if possible, if they will be unable to attend a Board or committee 

meeting.  The director should provide a reason for the absence if he or she requests an excused 

absence. 

"Excused absence" is defined as an absence due to illness or injury, military duty, vacation, jury 

duty, death in family, out-of-the ordinary job requirements, or other circumstances beyond the 

member's control.  No more than three (3) excused absences in any "rolling" twelve-month 

period are permitted.  The Executive Committee shall review all absences for approval. 

 

A director who fails to attend at least 75% of all scheduled Board and committee meetings 

(unless excused) they are required to attend within a "rolling" twelve-month period may be 

subject to removal by a 2/3's vote of the Board present at the meeting or by action of the 

Committee of 6 (CO6). Upon the Executive Committee recommendation, the Chair may include 

the matter as an action item on the Board agenda and initiate the removal process at a scheduled 

meeting of the Board.  The CO6 may initiate the process of removing a member, regardless of 

Board action. 

 

The decision of the Board to remove a member shall be forwarded to the CO6 and state the 

reason(s) for removal. 

 

275



 2 

 

 

A member who is removed by a vote of the Board for non-compliance with this policy may 

appeal his/her removal to the CO6 in writing within ten (10) days following Board action and 

include the basis or reason for the appeal. A copy of the appeal notice shall be sent to the Board 

Chair. The removal of Board member under appeal shall be held in abeyance until the request is 

acted upon by the CO6. The member may attend the next scheduled Board meeting and 

participate in discussions but may not vote until the appeal is concluded.  The final decision of 

the CO6 is not subject to further appeal.  Removal from the Board by action of the CO6 is not 

subject to appeal. 

 

In addition, attendance and any excused absence may be evaluated by the CO6 at the time of re-

appointment to the Board. 

 

The Board Liaison shall be responsible for maintaining attendance records. The Liaison shall 

present member absence notification to the Executive Committee and regularly report on the 

attendance of all members. 

 

 

Questions in relation to this policy should be addressed to the Office of the Chair. 

 

Workforce Solutions Alamo 

276



Board of Directors Proposed Meeting Dates for 2021

(Updated 01.15.2021)

2019-2020 BOD Meeting Dates 2021 BOD Meeting Dates

FEB. 21, 2020 1/22/2020

12-Jun-20 3/26/2021

AUG. 21, 2020 6/11/2020

DEC. 4, 2020 8/27/2021 Rural 

12/10/2021

2019-2020 Committee Meetings                                  BOD and Committee Meetings  

Executive Committee Meeting 10-Jan-20 Child Care Committee Meeting 1/11/2021
 

Board meeting 1/22/2021

New Board Orientation Oct. 30, 2020 Co6 Meeting 1/27/2021

New WSA Board Member Orientation 2/17/2020

Special Board Meeting 2/19/2021

Strategic Committee 2/24/2020

HR Committee Audit & Finance Committee Meeting 3/5/2021

Audit & Finance Committee Meeting Feb. 7, 2020 Oversight Committee Meeting 3/5/2021

Oversight Committee Meeting Executive Committee Meeting 3/19/2021

7-Feb-20 Board meeting 3/26/2021

Feb. 14, 2020 Audit & Finance Committee Meeting 5/14/2021
 

Board Retreat (RURAL) Oversight Committee Meeting 5/14/2021

28-Feb Child Care Committee Meeting 5/21/2021

Mar. 20, 2020 Executive Committee Meeting 6/4/2021

Marketing & Communications 

Committee Meeting

POSTPONED 

COVID
Executive Committee Meeting 6/4/2021

Board meeting 6/11/2021

APR. 3, 2020 Audit & Finance Committee Meeting 7/9/2021

POSTPONED 

COVID
Oversight Committee Meeting 7/9/2021

Child Care Committee (ad hoc) 7/12/2021

10-Apr-20 Executive Committee Meeting 7/23/2021

Oversight Committee Meeting
POSTPONED 

COVID
Board meeting 8/6/2021

Audit & Audit & Finance Committee 

Meeting
29-May-20 Co6 Meeting 8/25/2021

Executive Committee Meeting 29-May-20 Nominations Committee 11/5/2021

HR Committee Meeting 5-Jun-20 Child Care Committee Meeting 11/8/2021

Audit & Finance Committee Meeting 11-Jun-20 Oversight Committee Meeting 11/12/2021

24-Jul-20 Audit & Finance Committee Meeting 11/12/2021

Oversight Committee Meeting Nominations Committee 11/19/2021

Executive Committee Meeting 24-Jul-20 Co6 Meeting 12/8/2021

Child Care Committee (ad hoc) 10-Aug-20 Board meeting 12/10/2021

Nominations Committee 19-Sep-20

Child Care Committee Special 

Meeting
Nov. 6, 2020

Oversight Committee Meeting Nov. 10, 2020

Nov. 13, 2020

Audit & Finance Committee Meeting

Nominations Committee Nov. 13, 2020

Child Care Committee (ad hoc) Nov. 16, 2020

Strategic Committee Meeting Nov. 16, 2020

Executive Committee Meeting

Audit & Finance Committee Meeting

Oversight Committee Meeting

Executive Committee Meeting

277



                                                                                           

                                                              2021 BOARD COMMITTEES 
        (Updated 1.13.2021) 
 

EXECUTIVE OVERSIGHT AUDIT & 
FINANCE 

HUMAN 
RESOURCES 

MARKETING & 
COMMUNICATIONS 

CHILDCARE BYLAWS STRATEGIC NOMINATIONS 

Leslie 
Cantu 
(Chair) 

Dr. Mark 
Niederaur 

(Chair) 

Mary 
Batch 
(Chair) 

Leslie Cantu 
(Chair) 

VACANT 
(Chair) 

Doug 
Watson 
(Chair) 

VACANT 
(Chair) 

Eric Cooper 
(Chair) 

Carolyn King 
(Chair) 

         

MEMBERS MEMBERS MEMBERS MEMBERS MEMBERS MEMBERS MEMBERS MEMBERS MEMBERS 

Eric Cooper Dr. Sammi 
Morrill 

Dawn 
Vernon 

Mary Batch Dr. Burnie Roper Elizabeth 
Lutz 

Polo Leal Shane Denn Jamie Allen 

Mary Batch Jamie Allen Yousef 
Kassim 

Betty Munoz Dr. Mark Niederaur Betty 
Munoz 

 Elizabeth 
Lutz 

Frank Crowder 

Ben Peavy Leslie 
Cantu 

Mitchell 
Denn 

Diana Kenny Carolyn King Kate 
Rogers 
(volunteer) 

 Angelique 
De Oliveira 

 

Elizabeth 
Lutz 

Diana 
Kenny 

Leslie 
Cantu 

 Jamie Allen Dr. Sarah 
Baray 
(volunteer) 

 Ben Peavy  

Doug 
Watson 

   Kelli Rhodes Dr. 
Henrietta 
Munoz  
(volunteer) 

 Lindsay 
Dennis 

 

Jamie Allen     Katherine 
Filut  
(volunteer) 

   

Frank 
Crowder 

    Ana 
Dehoyos-
O’Conner 
(volunteer) 

   

     Kristi Koath 
(Volunteer) 
 

   

     Dawn Dixon    

 

278



 

 

 

 

 

 

2021 WORKFORCE SOLUTION ALAMO BOARD OFFFICERS 

LESLIE  CANTU 
(CHAIR) 

ASSISTANT VP 
TOYOTETSU TEXAS, 

INC.  

JAMIE ALLEN 
(VICE CHAIR) 

CHIEF OPERATING OFFICER 
TEXAS CREATIVE 

FRANK CROWDER 
(SECRETARY) 

PRESIDENT & CEO 
DEFENSE CONSULTING 

 2021 WORKFORCE SOLUTIONS 
ALAMO BOARD MEMBERS 

 

   

MARY BATCH 
MANAGER, TALENT MANAGEMENT TOYOTA 

MANAUFACTURING TEXAS, INC. 

ELIZABETH LUTZ 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 

THE HEALTH COLLABORATION 
BETTY MUNOZ 

DIRECTOR OF HUMAN RESOURCES JW MARRIOTT 
SAN ANTONIO HILL COUNTRY 

DOUG WATSON 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 

HEALY- MURPHY CENTER 
DR. BURNIE ROPER 

SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS 
LACKLAND INDEPENDENCE SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 

CAROLYN KING, LCSW, LMFT, BCD 
CLINICAL SOCIAL WORKER 

 

DR. SAMMI MORRILL 
ASSOCIATE VICE CHANCELLOR OF OPERATIONS 

ALAMO COLLEGES DISTRICT 

YOUSEF KASSIM 
CEO 

EASYEXPUNCTIONS.COM 
ANGELIQUE DE OLIVEIRA 

CHIEF MISSION SERVICES OFFICER 
GOODWILL INDUSTRIES OF SAN ANTONIO 

BEN PEAVY 
MANAGING DIRECTOR 

SAN ANTONIO DELIVERY CENTER LEAD 
ACCENTURE FINANCIAL SERVICES 

MITCHELL SHANE DENN 
COUNCIL REPRESENTATIVE 

SAN ANTONIO BUILDING & CONSTRUCTION 
TRADES COUNCIL 

DAWN VERNON 
MARKETING & BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT 

MANAGER 
NAIN MEDINA BAIN, INC. 

DIANA KENNY 
OWNER, COO 

ASSESSMENT, INTERVENTION, MANAGEMENT, 
LLC 

(A.I.M) 

POLO LEAL 
INTEGRATED SERVICES AREA MANAGER 

TEXAS WORKFORCE COMMISSION 

DR. MARK NIEDERAUER 
CHIEF OPERATING OFFICER 

EO2 CONCEPTS 

ERIC COOPER 
PRESIDENT & CEO 

SAN ANTONIO FOOD BANK 
LINDSAY DENNIS 

ASSISTANT DIRECTOR 
SEGUIN ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

CORPORATION 

KELLI RHODES 
EXECUTIVE DIRETOR  

RESTORE EDUCATION 

LISA NAVARRO-GONZALES 
VICE PRESIDENT 
SANATA GROUP 

DAWN DIXON 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 

MYCONNECTABILITY.ORG 

 

 

279


	Agenda
	I. Call to Order and Quorum Determination
Presenter:  Chair Leslie Cantu
Welcome New WSA Board members:
Lisa Navarro Gonzales, Vice President Santana Group
Dawn Dixon, Executive Director, ConnectAbility
	II. Declarations of Conflict of Interest
Presenter:  Chair Leslie Cantu
	III. Public Comment
Presenter:  Chair Leslie Cantu
	IV. Consent Agenda: (Discussion and Possible Action)
Presenter:  Chair Leslie Cantu
a.    Special Board Meeting December 28, 2020 Minutes
b.    Parent Share of Cost Policy
c.    JBSA Priority Group 
d.    C2 Global Professional Services, LLC Adult Services Contract Renewal #1
e.    C2GPS Youth and SERCO Youth Renewal #2
	Special Board Mins 12 28 2020
	Parent Share of Cost Policy Memo 1.22.2021 Request for Consent
	PPT Parent Share of Cost Policy Request for Consent 1.22.2021
	CCS 12, C2 Parent Share of Cost
	JBSA Briefing Memo Revised Approval Full Board consent request 01.22.2021
	PPT JBSA Request Approval Priority Group REVISED Board Consent 1.22.2021
	CCS 11 Ch 3 Maintenance of a Waiting List and Board Priority Groups
	Renewal C2 Adult Services v.3.0
	Renewal C2 Youth Urban v.3.0
	Renewal SERCO Youth Rural v.3.0

	V. Audit and Finance (Discussion and Possible Action)
Presenter: Louis Tatum, CFO
a.    Request for Proposal Financial Monitoring Award (4-year renewal) 
b.    Request for Approval Enterprise Agreement and Equipment (Network Security
       Upgrades)
	Memo Discussion and Possible Action Fiscal Monitoring Services
	PPT Fiscal Monitoring Services RFQ - 01.22.2021
	Enterprise Security Solution Memo_
	IT Request- 7100

	VI. Child Care Committee Report (Discussion and Possible Action)
Presenter: Doug Watson
a.    Request for Proposal Child Care Quality Services Award
	CCQ Board Memo with Analysis
	CCQ  PPT Recomendation for Award

	VII. Strategic (Discussion and Possible Action)
Presenter: Dr. Andrea Guerrero-Guajardo, CIO
a.    Local Plan 2021-2024
	012221 Board Memo Local Plan Update
	Local Plan 2021-2024 Presentation 1.12221
	LP 21.24 Draft for Approval 1.22.21

	VIII. Oversight (Discussion and Possible Action)
Presenter:  Ricardo Ramirez, 
a.    Monitoring Timeline
	Memorandum Monitoring Timeline 2020-2021 v.2.0
	PPT Program Monitoring Timeline 2020-2021 v.2.0

	IX. Committee of Six Chair and/or Partner Staff Report Outs / Discussion Items
Presenters: Diane Rath, Pooja Tripathi, Alex Lopez
	X. CEO Report
Presenter:  Adrian Lopez
a.    Unemployment Claims & Responses
b.    Performance, Facilities, Financial and Regulatory Compliance, Organizational, Branding, Funding, Partnerships, Event highlights
c.    New Staff Introduction: Cristina Bazaldúa, Director Public & Government Relations
	WSA Claimants Feb 28 to Dec 31
	PPT CEO WSA BOD Meeting 12221

	XI. Chair Report (Discussion and Possible Action)
Presenter:  Chair Leslie Cantu
a.    Board Priorities 2021
b.    Review of WSA Demographics, Attendance and Board Make-up January 2021
c.    WSA Board Attendance Policy
d.    Board Meeting Schedule for 2021
e.    2021 Committee Chairs
	Chair Report PPT Board Priorities_ BOD 012221
	WSA Board Diversity January 2021
	Alamo-ReportCard JAN 2021
	Board Attendance Policy 11-18-20
	FINAL BOD Meeting Dates 2021 01.15.21
	WSA 2021 Board Committee Listing
	BOD SHORT LIST 2021

	XII. Next Meeting: special Board Meeting – Febraury 19, 2021
	XIII. Executive Session:  Pursuant to Chapter 551 of the Texas Open Meetings Act, the Board may recess into Executive Session for discussion on any issue for which there is an exception to the Act as set out in section 551.071 et. seq. including, but not limited to, the following: 

a.    Government Code §551.072 – Discussions Regarding Purchase, Exchange, Lease, or Value of Real Property if Deliberation in an Open Meeting Would Have a Detrimental Effect on the Position of Workforce Solutions Alamo in Negotiations with a Third Party; 
b.    Government Code §551.071 - All Matters Where Workforce Solutions Alamo Seeks the Advice of its Attorney as Privileged Communications under the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct of the State Bar of Texas:  
c.    Pending or Contemplated Litigation; and 
d.    Government Code §551.074- Personnel Matters involving Senior Executive Staff and Employees of Workforce Solutions Alamo and 
e.    Government Code Section 551.089—Discussions regarding Security Devices for Audits.
	XIV. Adjournment
Presenter:  Chair Leslie Cantu



